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$33.0 million of our varjable rute term loans as required under our senior secured credit facility. After c\pcns'.s related to the'elimination of
deferred financing costs and transactions costs, we recognized a net pre1ax gain of $57.7 million related 1o Lhcse transactions.

Discontinued Opemrions—[)iscomihuca operations include the results of our international operations incjuding our former Blue Chip, Grand
Bahamas and Coventry casino operations. During fiscal 2010, we completed the salc ofour Blué Chip casino propentics under a plan of
administration and have no continuing involvement in' its operation. Durmg t'scal ?009 we recorded a $1.4 million charge 0 reduce the Blue Chip
assets held for sale 10 their estimated fair vahoe. Dnnng fiscal 2011 wi rccogmzcd a gan of 52.7 mﬂhun, mcludmg tax benefits of $4.2 million,
upan completion of the administration process. We also recognized:in fiscal 2011 a tax’ benefit of $0.8 million in dncon:mucd operations
representing the resolution of previously unrecognized tax positions following the completion of cértain federal tax reviews.

On April 23, 2009, we completed the sale of ont assets and terminated our Yease of Arena Coventry Convemion Cener relating 1o our casino
operations in Coventry, England. Our lease termjnation costs and other expenses, net of cash proceeds from our assets sakes, resulted in a pretax
charge of $12.0 million recorded in fiscal 2009 refuted 10.our discontintied Coventry ¢ operations.

‘The exit from our Grand Bahamas casino operations was substumiai!y vompleted during November 2009.

Flooding—Due to flooding along the Mississippi River, certain of our properties have been closed during fiscal 2011 and subsequent to our
fiscal 2011 year-end. Qur Davenport property closed on Apiil 15, 2011, 10 ‘days prior.1 10 ouf fiscil Year end and did not reopen until May 1, 2011.
Subsequent 1o year end our Caruthersville and Vicksburg properties were closed for 13.and:i 7 days respectively. Our Lula propenty closed on
May 3,-2011 and pantially reopened on Junc 3, 2011, Our' Natchez prOpcrty closed'on May 7, 2011 and will remain cloged unti} the Mississippi
River recedes further. While we maintain insurance coverage ‘subject fo various deductibles, recognition of certain business interruption insurance
proceeds are contingent upon filing and settlement of our insurance claims in future periods,

Results of Operations

Qur results of continuing operations for the fiscal years ended April 24,2011, April 23; 2010-and Aprii 26, 2009 reflect the consolidated operations of all
of our subsidiarics. Our former inicmmiona) operations, consisting of Coveniry, Blue Chipand Lucaya are presented as discontinued operations. The results
far our fiséal year 2009 have been reclassitied to reflect the classification of all international opcranons as discontinued operations as well as to conform our
financial presentation to our current year financial Statement format: Our Lucaya operations were classitied as discontinued operations in the third quarter of
fiscal 2010, and ‘our Coventry and Blue Chip Casino operations were classitied s discontinued gperations in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2000,

Our fiscal year ends on the last Sunday in April. This fiscal year convention creaies more compiarability of our quarterly operations, by gencrally having
an equal nunaber of weeks (13) and weekend days {26) in cach quarter. Periodically, this convention necessitotes a-53-week year. The fiscal years ended
April 24, 2011, April 25, 2010 and April 26, 2009 were all 32-week years.,
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ISLE OF CAPRI CASINOS, INC.

(In thousands)

Ogerating Income (Lass)

Net Revenues Fiseal Year linded Fiscal Year Ended
Aprit 24, April 23, April 26,. T April 24, April 25, April 28,

{in thoussnds) 2011 2010 2009 2011 ;2010 ‘ 2009
MisSIZsinDi L B0 s v g R T e eyt TR ket b e

Biloxi § 68,3358 72,6028 83,8805 {6,011)3 (s 308)S (7,952}
DRI S AN ST S TR 3z,svc?"~‘370?3;':,3,591“’*Fa%ﬁ%’”" 0811

Lula 67340 68,147 70,985 12471 10697 11,498

2 2V icksburg(1). % e 21935, R R T T

Mississippi Toml 194,397 173,575 191,888 13,219 1l 254 14,357
Comigiang; sl o 10 i T He ek PR o Jsr a e -

La}.etChaﬂes 131214 139423 152002 43 63':5 5331?
Missouri "—‘g P TRy e R e T “ﬂx,ﬁ &

Kansas City 17 710 76815 74435 14619 13 m 10359
= " Roonville. ... 2ae 18776, 77,7595+ 78 587”22,670% 217125,2.20,737]

Caruthéfsville 33696 32,685 31,579 3909 3853 1,638
Lo MissorisToal 2 51900182 187:25%:, 7 184)596534 141987381695, 3 32,744i
lowa
S Bettendoris <o % 279,003, 79,557 - 016615 133867 |2,m4 30,0904

Davenport 43,651 48,075 49,005 %171 10,494 16,35
F A M arduetie s i B 27307 T T6r 20,8750 33780 R 113305 5317053

Waterduo 93,197 81201 80544 17953 11614 W37
(o Towa Totalzace . 2233:24877236,039:7., 251,085,543,290, 236.062,:345,523]
Coloradu
B Black Hawk ot 4s 115,482; 126,190, 90 123382641 0,003 14,801 " 514:6848
Florida

% Phmpanc, e irel38:704, 1133 G0k, 147 67201 2,0304.6(6,951). 7 (6/434)

Insurance recovenes(2)

= — 940713
- oy

Expence n:coveucs and-’ i e R g BeEe
[ ottiér charges, net(3), % <5 . o o ,"-,A B GITR2E (36; 23)
Comporate and o(her ] 1 768 1.402 -ﬁS 3 468) {44,974} (46 335}
Frony Lonunumg ] _,,"F' Ty ef;,m s :

VdoperationsIs L 27, -°

Nate: This table excludes our intemativnal properties which have been classified as discontinued operations.

(1} Reflects results since the June 2010 acquisition effective date,

{2}  lnsurance recoveries include business tnterription proceeds of 562,932, included in net revenues in fiscal 2009. 61,845 of this amount
relates to settlement for events that oecorred prior to fiscal 2009 {primarily Hurricane Katrina)

{3)  Expénse recoveries and other charpes include experise recoveries, valuations and other charges. See Executive Overview—Expense
Recoveries and Other Charges, net for a deailed discussion of such items.
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Fiscal 2001 Compared to Fiscal 2010

Reventies

Revenues for the fiscal years 2011 and 2010 are as foltows:

Fisenl Yeor Bnded

April 24, April 25, . Percenizge
{in thousands) . 201] ) 2010 _ Variznce . . Variance .

[ A AR R T KT R s Y Sy T 3 |
Casino $1,036,538-5 1,013,386 § 23,152 2.3%
TRooms § = e P 0.2 0 430075 (2.730) - (6.41%
Food, bevcra,,,c pari- mumcl .md other ) 134,725 134,994 269) (0 ")%
(57 TCross reveridssoats . B e o] 211538 1191387, 20,147 . 5 157%

Less promotional aﬂowames © {206,539y (19t Sl) (14 988‘) ) (T 8}%
E R hE T g POS NG foventies” 55' ] $ 15004,995, S“"999 835“- 'v.\,139 = 05%3

Casino Revenues—{Casino revenues increased §23.2 million, o5 2 2 3m, in fiscal 2011 compared to ﬁscal 20i0. For fiscal 201 1, casino revenues increased
'$8.9 million a1 our Pompano property, and included $36.8 million from aur mG:,hurg casino, These increases,were offset by decreascd casine revenues at our
Black Hawk and Quad Cities properties of $13.2 million reflecting the 1mpd(.t of competition and a'decreasé at our Lake Charles, Lula, Natchez and Biloxi
properiies ofappmxlmately $13.3 million primarily due to curent economic ¢onditions. Oir other properties combined for a net increase of $6.2 million in
casing revenues. :

Rooms Revernue—Rooms revenue decreased $2.7 million, or 6.4%, In fiscal 2011 compared to fiscal 2010. The majority of this decrease has occurred at
our Black Hawk property where we have experienced declines in both room rates and occupancy following }111: opening of a competitor's new hotel during
October 2009 und at our Biloxi property where market and ecanomic conditions reésulted in reduced overall hotel room rates.

Pari-mutuel, Food, Beverage and Other Revenues —Pari-mutucl, i‘ood, beveruge and other revenues decreased $0.3 million, or 0.2%. in fiscal 2011
compared to fiscal 2010, Food, beverage and other revenues for fiscal 2011 included $2.3 miltion from our recently acquired Vicksbury casino,

Promotional Allpwances—Promotiona) allowances increased $13.0 million, or 7.8%, in fiscal 2011 compared 1o fiscal 2019, Promotional allowances for
fiscal 2011 included $11.1 million from our Vicksburg casino.: At our existing properties, changes in our promotional allowances retlect revisions to our

marketing plans as a result of competitive factors, economic conditions and regulations.
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Operating Expenses

Operating expenses for the fiscal vears 2011 and 2010 arc as follows:

.Fiscal Year Endéd

- April 24, April 25, . Percenlage
{in thousands) 2011 ZD]U . Varistice _ Variance’
Operating exponses: & et TVRE B L bl & E R -
Casino 5:158,580.8 153 838 S 4, 742 3. 1/..
FCTINR TAXES Lk bt ot o b 20 B e 230, 102375 262,24 K = (120139) 2 (3.6)%
Rooms 973 10843 (1052) (9.7)%
(oot boverneSpanraTeT and ey L A4 04 T 44,760 1% TRA- 8, WT]
Marine and facilities s 6D, 485 61 507 (l 0"2) __ (L7 7%
markclmg and administrative 5. .53, _&,,@25? A3, 2753, 097 P 3"6 a0 1%
Corporate and dew:lnpmr:m 42,909 46,750 (4 041) (8. 6]%
Fmen\e rcwvermq and other chd|,9.cs ncl e 'Fm'* =1 (6; 767)::6 7627 % (100, O)“/.
Hurricane and « other.i Insurance rewvcncq - o~ — N/M
iDLpn_Lmuon dlld dmorﬂzat:on R L 3 s B9 040' 169; 504“,“{70 464) (18 7)030
Total opemtmgdcxpcnscs _$_ 949,075 §.935,780 _("6 705) {2.9%

Casino—Casino operating expenses ‘increased $4.7 million, or 3.19 for fiscal 2011,compared to'fiscal 2010. Exchuding casino costs of $4.8 million
incurred:by our Vlcksburg casifo, our casino costs wounid have den:remcd $0.1 million: This net change in casino uperur.mg ‘expenses reflects net cost
reductions in easino expense a1 most of our propertics offset by a sllght increase in ¢asind expenscs at our Pompano property following the expansion of
gaming hours effective July 1, 2010,

Gaming Taxes—State and local garhing axes decreased $12.1 million, ord 6% for fiscal 2011 compared 1 fiseal 2010. Reductions in gdmmg taxes for
fiscal 2011 reflect the decrease in state paming taxes at our Pompano facility from 50% to 35% effective July 12010 and ch:mgcw in the mix of our gaming
revenues derived from states with ditferent gdmlng iax rates. Goming taxes for fiscal 2011 included $3.2 nnlhon from vur Vicksburg casino.

Rooms—Rooms expenses decreased by $1.1. million or 9.7% in fiseal 2011 .comipared to fiscal:2014). This deeredse in rooms expense is reflective of a
6.4% reduction in our hote] revenues for fiscal 2011 -respectively, as compared to fiscal 2010.

Pari-muiuel, Food, Beverage and Other—Pari-mutuel, food, beverage and other cxpefises were relatively flat for fiscat 2011 compared to fiscal 2010,
Excluding food beverage and other cosis of $1.1 million incurmed by our Vicksburg casine, our food, heverage and other expenses would have decreased
$0.9 million.

Marine and Facifities—Marine and facilities expenses decreased $1.0 million, or 1.7% for-fiscal 2011.compared 1o fisca) 2010. Exchiding marine and
facility. costs of S1.4 million incurred by our acquired Vicksburg casino, our marine and {acility costs would have decrebsed $2.4 million. This decrease

inctudes reductions in facility costs across most properties as we continue to focus on cost reductions efforts.

Marketing and Administrative—Marketing and administrative expenses inereased $0.3 million, or 0.1%% for fiscal 2011 compared to fiscal 2010.
Excluding marketing and adminisimtive costs of $8.6 million_ mcurrcd by owur Vicksburg casino, our markeung and administrative costs would have
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decreased 58.3 million. These decreases reflect reductions in vur operating cost 1o align such expenditures with changes in visitation and spend per visit by
Our Cusiomers.

Corporate and Development—During fiscal 2011, our corporate and development expenses were 42,7 million compared to $46.8. million for fiscal
2010. The net decrease in corporate and development expense reflects'decreases in insurance costs and, mu:mue compensation. Corporate and development
expenses for fiscal 2011 inciude financing related costs of 54.0 million and development and acquisition costs of $4.0 million. [n fiscal 2010 we ificarred
$ 4.8 million in costs related to an amendment of our senior créadit facility.

Depreciation and Amortization—epreciation and amortization expense for fiscal 2011 compared 1o fiscal 2018 decreased $20.3 million, primarily due
10 certain assets becoming fully depreciated offset by depreciation at Vicksburg of $4.6 million:

Other Income (Expense}, income Taxes and Discontinued Operations,

laterest expense, inierest income, derivative expense, income tux (provision) benefit and income from discontinued operations, net of income taxes for
the-fiscal years 2011 and 2010 are as follows:

- April 24,  April 25, Pertentage
(in thous_._ands) i 2011 2010 Variance \’nhhﬂ:
Intefest Expense £ T L 3.t a i ge S(91934)8(75,4305(16,500) 1 T 219%)
Interest income . 1:916 1,833 ‘83 -4, 5%
DefivativeleXpenses™ oo - JHE s e % A (12 14)3,___(370)_._.(844)* i ‘N\al,_g
Income tax (pmvlsmn) benefit_ &) 6()0) ?,374 (II 974 (I43 0)%

IWmc[l(x,c) fromdis cnmmued Operations, net of - E .
intome laxess, o b S 3tsas (1"73") 3 -l 84.!’-:.-_~. <42
Interest Expense—|nterest expense increased $16.5 million, ar 21.9%, in ﬁscal 201 mmpared o tr«:al 2010 pnmanly due increased interest entes on
Gorrowings under our senior secured credit facility following our amcndlncm of this tam]nv diiving the fourth quantér of fiscal 2010 and higher, outstanding
borrowings following our acquisition of Vicksburg casine diring June 2010, Fiseal ”U 11 intérest expense.includes 2 $3:2 million write-off of deferred
financing costs as a result of the amendment of our senior secured credit facility dunng the fourth fuarter and a $8.5 million decrease in interest associated
with our interest rate swaps as certain of our swaps have matured.

Income Tax (Provision} Benefit—Our income tax (provision) benefit from continuing opetutions and our effective income tax rate have been impacted
by our state income taxes and our income for financial statement purposes as well 25 our percentage of permanent dnd other items in relation to ourr inicomme or

loss. During fiscal 2010, our effective income tax rate was also impacted by our settlement of certain tax liabilities for $4.7 miltion less than our estimated
accrual,
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Fiscal 2010 Compared te Fiscal 2009

Revenues

Revenues for the fiscal years 2010 and 2009 are as follows:

Fiscal Year Ended

- m Percentage

{in thousands) . . 2010‘ 1009 ﬂ_{isnce \’ariance
Cusino T 31 013 38D Sl 055,694 3 (42 3[)8) [4 l))%
Rooms S o pa . 7k o sii Aol n AN007, 2, (46,380, e LO373) . L (05)%
Food, beverape, _pari- mutuci and other 134,99 ]38 632 (3.638) (2.6)%
Wcane and’ mher lnsumncc re(.ovt.nc';‘;t-“"*,‘ A LT 62,932; "(6" 932):—‘:*1\!\1 .j
(‘m:q revem:ce - + 1,191,387 1,303,638 ( 12,251) (8.6)%
O Ty prommmn.ll a][omnccs;.,_(l‘)l 531195603 .., 4,052 #2 1‘}7;:}
Net revenues 'S 999,836 $1,108,035 (i08,199) {9.8)%

Casino Revenwes—Casino revenues decreased 54" 3 million, or'd 0%, i i fiscal 2010 conmpared to fiscat 2009. We experienced a decrease intasino
‘revenues at most of our properties primarily asa sesult of the continuied deterioration in discretionary consumer spending in conjunction with poor economic
conditions; with our properties in Lake Charles and Biloxi expericncing decreases of $9.5 million and $8.1 milkion, respectively. Casino revenues a1 our Quad
Cities properties declined $13.9 million due 1o competition from a new land-bascd facility and casino revenues at our Porapano slot facility declined
53.6 million due to expansion of nearby competing Native American casinos.

Rooms Revernue —Rooms revenite decreased $3.4 million, or 7.3%, in fiscal 2010 compared 1o fiscal 2009 primarily resulting from decreased occupancy
and lower yverage room rnes as a result of reduced consumer demand for ropms,

Pari-mutuel, Food, Beverage and Other Revenues—Pari-mutuel, food, béverage and other revenues decreaséd $3.6 million, or 2.6%, in fiscal 2010
compared to fiscal 2009. This decrease was a result of a decrease of $3.7 million in pan-muinel revenues at Pompano as o resuh of a 33 day decrease in year
over year Yive racing days offset by a netincrease in food, beverage and other revenues.

Promotional Allowances—Promotionat allowances, which arc made up of complimentary revenues, cash points and coupons, are rewards that we give
our loyal customers to encourage them to continué to patronize our properties. These allowances decreased by $4.1 million in fiscal 2018 compared to fiscal
2009 due to changes in our promotions and comesponding reductions iri our revenues, For fiseal 2010 and 2009, promotional allowances as a percentage of
casino revenues were |8.9% and 18.3%, respectively.
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Operating Expenses

QOperating expenses for the fiscat years 2010 and 2009 are as fullows:

Fiscal Year Ended

ApritlS,  Aprid2e;, Percentage
(in thousands) . 2010 2009 . Varlance _ Variance
OpEriting EADENSC . o @0 warseh s . v“m“t;ui‘ “‘“f:. B Tl e ,-]
Casing: N _$1531818 § 151 610 'S, ., 2,228 1:5%
f&ﬁﬁﬁﬁgﬁ‘x‘&_f‘_;_:;?» T N RN Y TTRRLT ) 9?3* L (7657), (2=s)%‘
Rooms - 10,845 12306 (I, . {119%
{Food, beverage, pari:mumel and other: =, %! “-4;4;-2_6_0- T (6’.@% {13_0))
‘Marine and facilities 61.507 64,368 (2,861) {4400
jMancnng anid ddmlmsmuvewmm”ﬁ WOy 256210 (3 T e (1. 7)—,7
. Corporate and development, ) 46,750 41 331 5,419 13.1%
ﬁ“x-ﬁenac recoveries: nnmr chargeq‘m‘l,?:;,__,(é F62): /36,12358 (47: SS?}m._.lllS - 7)%
Hurricane and othcr msurancc recgveries — (32,277) 32277 NM

. e e - —
“i22,4405 (12,936) 11 (10.6)%
973:503 (37_,723) (3.9
Casino—Casino operating expenses increased $2.2 milfion, or 1.5%.in fiscal 2010 compared to fiscal 2009. These expenses are primatily comprised of
salarics, wages and benefits and other operating expenses of our casinos: This increade was primarily the result of increased cost of casino operations at our
Black Hawk casinos following a July 2009 regulatory change expanding the hours of gaming aperations.

[Bcpreciationtand amortization ......._._‘.“"” Lt

Total operating expensecs

Gaming Taxes—Gaming taxes decreased by $7.7 million, or 2.8%, in tiscal 2010 compared to fiscal 2009. This reduction in gaming laxes is primarily a
result of 2 4.0% decrease in casino gaming revenue and changes in mix of gaming revenies ymong states with ditfering gaming tax raes.

Rooms—Raoms expenses decreased by $1.5 million or 11.9% in fiscal 2010 compared 1o tiscal 2009. Overall reductions in rooms expenses corresponds
‘to our 7.3% decling in rooms revenue.

Pari-mutuel, Food, Beverage and Other—Pari-muued, food, beverage and other expenses decreased $6.7 million, er 13.0%, in fiscal 2010 as compared
to fiscal 2009. Pari-mutuel operating costs at Pompano decreased $4.2 million in fiscal- 2010 compared 10 fiscal 2009. Such costs consist primarily of
compensation, benefits, purses, simulcast fees and other direct costs of track operations. The decreses in current year as compared to prior year are a result of
reduction.of 33 live recing days during the current fiscal year. The reduction in food and beverage expenses rcqultcd primarily from labor and other cost
reduitions. Food and beverdge expenses consist primarily of the cost of goods sold, salaries; wages and benefils and other operating expenses of these
depariments.

Marine and Facilities—These expenses include salaries, wages and benetits of the marine and facilities departients, operating expenses of the marine
crews, maiiitenance of public areas, housekeeping and gencral maintenance of the riverboats and pavilions. Marine and facilities expenses decreased
$2.9. million, or 4.4%, in fiscal 2010 compared to tiscal 2009 and is the result'of $1.5 million in wtility cost reductians, $0.5 million in reduced payroll costs
and $0.9 miltion in other cost reductions.

Marketing and Administrative—These expenses include salaries, wages and benéfits of the marketing and sales departments, as well as promotions,
direet muil, advertising, special events and entertainment. Administrative expenses inclide administration and human resovrce depariment expenses, rent,
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professions] fees, insurance and property oxes, The $3.1 million decrease in marketing and adminisirative expenses 1n fiscal 2010, as compared to fiscal
2009, reflects our decision to reduce marketing costs to less profitable customer segrients and HTJ reduce our.administrative costs.

‘Corporate and Development—During fiseal 2010, our corperate and development expenses were "$46.8:million compared to $41:3 million for fiscal
2009. This increase’ in corparate and development expense reflects 31.8 million of costs 2ssociated with the dmendment of our eredit facility, a $1.1 million
increase in stock compensation expense and other inéreéases in professional and othet ckpenses associated’ wnh ouy dcvcbpmem and acquisition activities:

Depreciation and Amortization—Depreciation and amortization expense decreased by $12.9 millian, of 16.6%, in fiscal 2010, as'comparéd to fiscal
2009 primarity due o certain assels becoming fully depreciated during the curent year.

Other tncome (Expense), Income Taxes and Discontinued Operations

Lnterest expensce, intcrest income, derivative expense, gain on early. cmngmshmcm of debt, income tax {provision} benefit and income from discontinued
operatians, net'of income taXes for the fiscal years 2010 and 2000 are as follows:

Fiscal Year Ended

. Aprll 25, . April 26, . Percentage
(in thousands) - 120107, 4 k2009 Variende Varisnce

Interestenpense 2 é‘;wmﬂs 434)5(92 osi)sﬁus 63 1___.‘(18'-1‘)%

[ntercst ;ncome . . (13 A

Denvau\re expcn»ca_; g‘w -: N,
I\."M

f.oss from dxsmnllnued operations; nel nt'mr.nme
1axcs (1, 737) {17, 638) 15, 93¢ (90.2)%

Interest Expense—Interest expense decreased $16.6 million, or'[§, l% incfiscal 2010 compared to.fiscal- '?qu resulting from Jower average debt
balances. Our lower average debt balance resulted from-the reduction of 5142.7 ‘million’of o, sedior subordmatcd % nates and a 835.0 niillion repaymerit on
our senior secured credit tacility debt in Februiry and Math '}009 rcapecn'- Lly While we lmvc cxpenenced a décrease’in the intérest mte on e’ variable
intereést ryte compoiients of onr débt :hrough the third quarier of fiscal '70I0 our senior. secured credn facility amendment diring the fourth quarter. of ﬁﬁcal
2010 increased our overall interest rates. See liquidity and Lap:ta[ resources for additional discusgion of our senjor, secured credit facility amendment.

Imterest Income—Dhuring fiscal 2010, our interest income decreased. 503 miltion‘as compared 10 fiscdl 2009. The change in interest incomé reflects
changes in our invesicd eash and marketable secunties balances and lower interest fatés. -

Other—This includes expenses related to the change in fair value of our_ing:jﬂbc!iye interest rate swap agreements.
Income Tax:(Provision} Benefit—Qur income tax (provision) benefit frot continting ofiefations and our effective income 3ax rate has beén impacted by
our settlement of certain tax-liabilities for-$4.7 million less than our estimatéd accrual, our. amount of annval taxable income (loss) for financial statément.

purposes as well as our percentage of permianen; items In relation to such income or loss.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

Cash Flows from Operaling Acﬂwrres——l)unng fiscal 2011, we pencrated S123.7 million in cash flows from operating activitics compared to generating
$106.4 million during fiscal 2010. The i increase in‘cash tlows fmm operating activities is primarily due to 'increased income from operations and a
$4.2 miltion decrease in our income tax recejvable;

Cash Flows used in Invasting Activities—During fiscal 2011 we used 5144 6 million for investing activities compared to using $31.0 million during
fiscal- 2010, Slgmﬁcant investing activities during ﬁscal "01 1 inchuded the pl.lTL hase ofthe Rainbow. Casmo in Vlcksburg, Mississippi for $76.2 million,
‘capital expenditures of 358.6 miltion, :ncludmg $13.3 miltion relaung ta Cape Girasdeau and Nemacoim and i m{:rcascs in restricted cashrand investments at
our captive insurance company by 59 3 million 1o fund insirance reserves i hiey’ of prov idlng letters of credit, Slgluﬁcanl mveatmg actwmcs during fiscal
2010 included the purchase of property and equipment for $27.7 million and payment of $4.0 mlﬂmn towards our Waterloo gaming license.

Cash Flows used by.Financing Activities—During fiscal 2011 onr net cash flows provided by financing activities were $28:1 million primarily
comprised of:

. Net proceeds from cur common stock offering of $31.2 million;

. Net proceeds from the issuance of owr 7.75% senior notes of 829.';‘ & million;

, Net reductions in our Senior Secured Credit Fa'clliit:y‘ of $306.1 tﬁilﬁop; and

. Payment of $14.8 million in deferred financing costs sisoriated with.the isspance of our 7.75% senior notes and amendment of our senior

secured credit facility.

During fiscal year ended 2010 owr net cash flows used by financing activitics were $104.0 million primarily comprised of:

. Repayment of $8.4 million oflou_r senior secured term loans;
. Net repayments of $90.5 millian under cur revbh:i'n'g credit agn:cmeni: and
. Payment of $3:9 million in deferred financing costs associated Witk the imendment of our senior secured credit facility.

Availability of Cash and Additianal Capitai—At April 24,2011, we had cash-and cash equivalents of §75,2 million and marketable securities of
§22:2'million. As of April 24, 201 {, we had $33.0 miilion in borrowings under our. revolving credit and $500 0 million in term loans ommndmg under our
senior secured credit facility. Our net line of credit dvailability at April 24; 201 1. was‘approximately 5175 nullion as limited by ‘our leverage ra!m

Capital Expenditures and Development Activities—As part of our business development activities, historically we have entered into agreements which
have iesulted-in the acquisition or development of businesses or assels. These business develapment efforts and related agrecments typically require sthe
e\pendj]ure of cash, which may be «;sgmﬁcam ‘The amount and nmmg of our cash capendimies relating to develdpment actvities may vary based wipon our
" -evaluation of current and fiture’ development opportunities, our financial cnndmon and the eandition of the Fnancmg markets: Qur developmen activities are
Subject 1o a variety of factors mc]udmg but not limited to: obtaining permits, licenses and approvals From appropriate rcgulamry and ‘other agencies,
legislative changes and, in certain circumstances, negotiating acceptahle leases.

On December 1, 2010, our proposed casino in Cape Girardean, Missouri-was selected by the Missouri Gaming Commission for prigritization for the
139 and final gaming license in the State ot Missouri. We had previdusly entéred into a development agreement with the City of Cape Girardeau.
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The project is expected W include 1,000 slot machines, 28 table games, three restaurants, a lounge and termace overlooking the Mississippi River and a 750-
seat event center. We currently estimase the cost of the project at approximately $125 million with an anticipated opening date by the end of calendar 2012. At
Aprii 24, 2011, we have incuimed capital expenditures, including capitalized interést, of $13.0.miltion.

‘On April 14, 2011, our proposed casino in Nemacolin, Pennsylvania was selected by the Pennsylvania Gaming Control Board. We have entered into a
development and management agreement with Namacolin Woodlands resort to biiild and operate 2 casino with 600 slot machines and 28 wble games. We | .
expect to begin construction later this Summer and to open‘approXimately nine months thereafier. ‘The award of the license to ]‘\cma(.o]m is sabject to 4 30-day
appeal period which ends on-June 20, 2011 and the oblainment of a management license. We cu.rrently estimaté the cost of the project at approximately
$50 million. At April 242011, we have incurred capital expenditures, including Capitalized interest; £ 5023 niillion.

Historically; we have made sigﬁiﬁcanl investmenis in property and equipment and expect that ons operatinns will continue to demand ongoing
invesiments to keep our properties competitive. In fiscal 2012, we plan to invest approximately.$50 million 1o 5100 mllllon in'project capxlal in our.Cape
Girardeau and Nemacolm dcvciopmcm projects, baring any dcla)s rélated to licensing and pefmitting, contragtor neguuauons weather or other jtems, and
dppromma:e]y $5( million in maintenance capial expendimres at odf existing properties.

We have identified several capiial projects primarily tocused’on rcfreshmg our hotel Toom inventory ‘as weil as addmonal improventents to our Black
Hawk and Lake Char!es  praperties, and further Lady Luck canversions, The ummg, :.omplcuon and amount of these caplml projects will be deicrmmed as we
gam mare c]anw as 1o imptévement of economic and Jocal market conditions, cash flows from our commumg operations and borrowing av:ulablhty under our
senjor Secured credit fac:ln}'

Typical!y, we have funded our daily operations through net cash provided ‘by operating activities and our significant capital expenditures through
opemllng cash tlow and debt financing. Whilc we believe that thh on hand, procccds from our recent equity, oifering, cash flow from opcrauons and
available bcrrowmg:. ‘under our senior secured credit fdulny will be sufficient to support our. wirkirg capital nculs pl.mned (.‘dpilal eéxpénditures aiid debt
service requirements for the foreseeable future; there is no assurance that these sonrces will § in fact provide adequate ﬁ.mdmg for our planned and necessary
cxpend:turcs or that the level of our capital investments will be 5utﬁucm to allow us 1o remain competitive inour existing miarkets.

We are highly leveraged and may be unable 1o obtain additional debt or equity, ﬁnancmg on acccplablt. wmms 1 our current sources of Hquidity are not
sufficient or if we fail 1o stay in ¢ompliance with the covenants of our senior sécured credit famllly We will continDe 16 cvaliate our planned capital
expenditures at each of our existing locations in light of the operating performance of the facilities at-such locations.

Critical Accounling Estimates -

.Cur consolidated ﬁnancmj statements are prepared in accordance with LS, generaliy accepted accoummg prmuplec that require our management 1o
make estimates and gssumptions that affect reported amounts and related ‘diselosures. Managemient identifies eritical accounting estimates as:

. . those that require the use of assumptions about matters that are inherently and highly uncertain a1 the time the estimates are made;

. those cstimates where, had we chosen differens estimates or assumptions, the resulting differences would have had 2 material impact on our
financial condition, changes in financial condition or results of operations; and
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. those estimates that, if they were to change from period to period, likely would result in a material impact on our financial condnmn, changes in
financial condition or results of operations. .

Based upon management's discussion of the development and sclection af these eritical accounting estimates with the Audit Committee of our Board of
Directors, we believe the following accounting estimates involve a higher degrec ofJurlgmcnt and complexity,

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets—At April 24, 2011, we had goodwill and other intangible assets of $427.5 million, representing 24.8% of total
assets, [n accordance with ASC Topic 350, Intangibles—Goodwill and Other, we perform an annual impairment test for goodwill and indefinite-lived
intangible assets in the fourthy fiscabquarter of each year, ar au an interim basis it indicatars of impairment exist, For prapenies with gaodwibl gndfor ather
intangible asseis with indefinite Iives_,ulhis test requires the comparison of the imp]ied fair value of each reporting unit to camying value,

We must make various assumptions and estimates in performing our impairment testing. The implied fair value includes estimates of future cash flows
that‘are based on reasonable and supportable assumptions which represent our best estimates of the cash flows expected to result from the use of the 355¢1S
including their eventual disposition and by a market approach based upon valuation nmlnplcs for similar companies: Changes in estimates, increases’in oor
cost of capital, reductions in transaction multiples, operating and eapital expenditure assumptions or application of alterative assumptions and definitions
could produce sxbmﬁmmly different results. Future cash flow cstimates are, by their nature; subjective and actual results may differ materiatly fiom our
estimates. |F our ongoing estimaies of future cash flows are not met, we may have to record additional iapairment charges in future accounting periods. Our
‘estimates of cash flows are based on the current regulatory, social and ¢gconomic climates, recent opnraimg information and budgets of the various: pmpemcs'
‘where we conduet operalwns These estimates could be negatively impacted by changes in‘federal, state or local regulations, economic dowmums or other
evenis affecting various forms of travel and access to our properties,

"We engaged an independent third party valuation firm to assist management in our annual impairment testing for fiscal 2011, Qur reporting vnits with
goodwill and/or other long-lived intangibles had fmr values whlch cxcec{!cd their camying valugs by at iest 15%, except for our Black Hawk reporting nnit
with goodwili and indefinite-lived assects as oprnl 242011 of. 530 6 mllllon in which fair value exceeded its carrymg value by 7% and our Vicksburg
‘reporting unit acquired during the current fiscal year. During dur 2009 annuaki impairment test, we recorded an impairment charge of $18.3 million to write-
down goodwill and indefinite lived inangible assets at our Black Hawk reporting uniz,

Progerty and Equipment—At April 24, 2011, we bad propenty and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation of 1.1 billion, representing 65% of our
total assets. We capitalize the cost of property and equipment. Maintenance and repairs thut neither materially add to the vatue of the property or equipment
nor appreciably projeng its life are chasged to cxpense as incurred. We depreciate property.and equipmen on a siraight-tine basis over their estimated useful
‘lives. The estimated useful lives are based on the hature of the assets as well as our current operating strategy. Future events such as'groperty. expansions, new
competition, changes in technology and new regulations could result-in a change in the manner in which we are using certain assets requiring a change in the
estimated usefir] lives of such assets.

Impairment of Long-lived Assets—We evaluate long-lived assets for impairment in accordance with the guidance in the Impairment or Disposal of Long
Lived Asscts subsection of ASC Topic 360, Property, Plant and Equipment §ASC Topic-360"). For a long-lived assct to be held and used, we review the assct

for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying :
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amount may net be recoverable. In assessing the recoverability of the. carrying value ofsuch property, equipment and other long-lived assets, we make
assumptions regarding future cash {lows and residual values. 1f these cstimates or the related ussumptions are not achieved orchange in the future, we may be
required 1o record an impairmeit loss for these assets, In evaluating impairment of long-lived assets foF newly opcned operations, estimales of future tash
flows and residual values may requirc some périod of actual resulfs to provide the basis for an opinion of future cash flows and residual values used i in the
determination of an tmpairment less for these asscts. For assets held for disposal, we recognize the asset at the lower, of carrying value ‘or fair market vahue,
less cost of disposal based upon appraisals, discounted cash flows or other methods'as appropriate. An-impairment loss would be recognized as a non-cash
component of operating income.

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2009, we recorded a charge of £1.4 million to redace our,Blue Chip assets held for sale to their ¢stimared fair value
less the cost ta scll.

Seif-Insurance Liabilities—We are self-funded up to a maximum amount per ¢laim for our employee-related health care benefits program, workers'
compensation and general liabilities, Claims in excess of this maximura are fully insured thiough a stop-loss insurance polu.y We accrue a'discouned
estimate for workers' compensation liabibity and general liabilities based on c]almﬁ filed and estimates of claims in¢urred but not reportedWe rely on
independent consullants to assist in the determination of esumated accruals. While the ultimate cost of claims mcun'ed depends on future developments, such
as increases in health care costs, in our opinion, recorded reserves arc. adequate’ to cover future claims paymcms Based upon our current accrucd insurance
liabilities, a | % chenge in our discount factor would cause a $0.6 million change in our accrued self-insurance liability.

Income Tax Assets and Liabilities-—W e account for income taxss in accordarice with the guidance inASC Topic 740, Lacome Taxes ("ASC Tapic 7407).
We are subject to income taxes in the United States and in several states in which we operate. We recognize 4 current tax asset or liability for lhc cstimated
1axes payable or refundable based npon application of the ehactod 1ax rates 1o taxable income in the curTent year. ;\ddmnnaﬂy, we are n:qmn:d 10 recognize a
deferred tax tiability or asset for the estimated future 1ax effects attribitable to temporary differences. 'l"emporarv differences occur when differences arise
between: (4) the zmount of taxable income and presax financial income for a year and (B) the: tax: ‘basis of assets ar Babilities and their reported deLmlb in
financial statements. Deferred tax assets recogmized must be reduced by a valpation allowance for any tax benefits that, in our judgment and based upaon
gvailable evidence, may not be realizable.

We asscss our lax positions using a two-siep process. A tax position is recognized if' it meets a "more likely (han not” threshold, and is measured at the
largest amount of benefit shat is greater than 30 percent likely of being realized. Uncertain tax-positions must be reviewed at each balance sheet date.
Liabilities recorded as o result of this analysis must gencrally be recorded qepumlely from any current or.deferied income tax:accounts, and are classified as
cosrent or.Jong-term in the balance sheét based on the time until expected payment in accounts acerucd liabilities-other or other ]ong term libilities.
respectively. We recognize accrued interest and penalties related to unrccngm?cd tax benefils in-income tax expense.

Stock Based Compensation—We apply the guidance of ASC Topic 718, Compensation—Stock Compensation ("ASC Topic 718") in accounting for
stock compensation, Generally, we are required to measure the cost of employee services received in exchange for an award of equity instruments based on
the grant-date fair value of the award. The estimate of the fair value of the stock options is caleulated using the Black-Scholes-Merton option-pricing medel.
This model requires the use of various assumptions, including the historical volatility of our stock price, the risk free interest rate, estimated expecied life of
the grants, the estimated dividend yicld and csiimated rate of forfeitures. Stock based compensation expense is included in the expense caegory
correspanding to the employecs’ fegular compensation in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations.
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Derivative Instruments—We uiilize an investment policy for managing risks associated with our carrent and anticipated future borrowings, such as
interest rate risk and its potential impact on vur fied and varisble mie debt, The policy docs not alloiw-tor the use of derivative financial instruments for
Lrading or speculative purposes. To the extent we employ such financial instruments pursuant o this policy, and the instruments qualify for hedge accomnting,
we may designate and account for them as hedged instruments. In ordes to quahfy for hedge accounting, the underlying hcdgcd item) must expose us to risks
associated with market fluctuations and the financial instrument used must be dcﬂgnatcd as a hedge and must reduge Sir exposure © market fluctuations
throughout the hedged period. If these criteria are not meet; a change in the market value of the financial instrament is recogmzed as a gain (loss} in the period
of change Olhem'lsc gains and losses related to the change in the market value are not recogmud exceptto the cxteni that the hedged debt i s disposed of
pnor 10 matunly or to the extent that unacceptablé ranges of ineffectiveness exist in ﬂu: hedge Nel interest pand or received pursuant 1o the hcdgcd financial
“instrument is included in interest expense in the period. Otir current interést fate swap ‘agreeéments, which were desighated as cash flow hedges, became
‘ineffective upon the amendment of our senjor secured credit facility in Eehruary 2010: We record them at fair value and measure their gffecuveness using the
long-hapl method. The effective pertion of any gain or loss on our interest fate swaps is secorded in othes comprehensive income (loss). We use the
hypothetical derivative method to measure the incifective portion of our lnten:st rate.swaps. The ineffective portion, if any, is recorded in other income
(c‘(pcnsc) We measure.the mark-to-market valoe of our interest rate swaps, usm;, a dlsmumed wsh flow analysis of the projected firure reccipts or payroents
baséd upon the forward yield curve on the daté of measurement. We adjust’ ‘ihis dmount to measure the fiir value of our interest rate swaps by applying a
credit valuation adjustment to the mark-to-market exposure profile.

Contlngenc:ﬁ—we are involved in varions legal proceedmgs and have identifi ed ccnam loss connngencacs We record: liabilitics related 1o these
contingencies when it is determinied that a loss is probable and reasonably ammable in .m.ord.mce with'the gmdance of ASC Topic 450 Contingencies ("TASC
Topic 450"). These assessments are bised on our knowledge and expericnce as well -as the advn,c of Iebul ‘counsel rc_i,ardm[.. current and past evénts. Any such
estimates are also subject to future events, court rulings, negotiations between the parties and other uncertainties. If an acivai loss differs from our estimate, or
the acwiat oucome of any of the Jegal procecdings differs from expeciations, fumre’operating results conid be impacied.

Contractual Obligations and Commercial Commifments

The following table provides information as of the end of fiscal 201 1, about our contractual obligations and commercial commiiments. The table prescnts
contractual obligations by due datcs and related contractual commitmenits by ‘expiration dites (in millions).

Payments Due by Perind

L&aThnn

Contraciual Qbligations Total ‘1 Vear 1 -3 Years 4.8 Yeors _After S Years
CongTerm Dbl (& i e o5 v Tr THSIIOABTS: | 5:4 S 18861281 0.6. 51 302
Estimated interest paymems an long term debi(1) 1363 78.3 1376 47.% 729
Operating Lc:.ms.- i SRR ﬂﬁSOZQW 18067 T¥30.6_ % 315, 2 420.5)
Long-term Obhgmmnsm 124, . 78 40 T 0.5, 0.1
Other Longz Lorm OblEAIONS 2 _ga s’ oicr o o T "2’ 6_‘,,,___4I TR 3 M 1 158

Taotal Contractual Cash Obligitions S 2,104.3 3 1112 3 1,072.3 5 906§ 2300

{1y  Estimaied interest payment on long-term debt are based on principal amounts cutstanding at our fiscal year end and forecasted LIBOR
rates for our senior secured credit facility.

(2)  Long-term obligations include future purchase commitments.
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Recently Issued Accounting Standards

Recently Issued Accounting Standards—ASU No. 2010-16, Entertainment-Casinos (Topic 924): Accruals for Casine Jackpot Liabilities. The Financial
Accounting Standurds Board issbed ASU No. 2010-16, Emercammem -Casinos { Top.'r: 924): Accruals for Casine Jaakpor Liabilities. The gmddm.c clarifies
that an entity should not accrue jackpot liabilities (or portions thereof) before a jackpot is won 'if the entity can avoid paying that jackpot sinte the machine
can'legaily be removed from the gaming floor without payment of the base amoany. Jackpots should be acerued and charged 1o revenue when an entity has the
obligation to pay the jackpot. This guidance applies lo both base jackpots umd the incremental portion of progressive jackpots. The guidance is effective for
fiséal years, and interim perjods within those fiscal years, bcgmnlng on or after. December 15, 2010, This guldance should be applied by recording a
cumutative-effect : adjvstment to opening retained eamnings in the period of adoption. @1 current accounting policy conforms 1o the new guidance and as such
we expect the adoption to have no cumulative effect..

I'TEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Market risk is the risk of loss ansing from adverse Chunges i in market rates and prices, including interest rates, foreign currency exchange rates,
cnmmodny prlccs and equity prices. Our primary exposure to market risk is interest rate risk associated with our senior secured credit facility:

Senior Secured Credit Facility
.During fiscal 2011, we maintained interest rate swap agreements and interest rate €ap arrangements with an aggregate notional value of $100 miltion and”

$220 miHion a5 of Apnl 24,2011 reﬁpectwcly The swap agreements effectiv cly convert portions of the senior. secured credit facility variable debt to a fixed-
.rat¢ basis vl the Fespeclive swap aglecmcns terminate, which occuirs lhruugh fiscal 2014,

The following table provides information at April 24, 2011 about our finafcial instriiments that are sensitive to changes in interest rates. The table
presents principal cash flows and related weighted average interest rates by expected maturity dates,
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Interest Rate Sensitivity,
Principal (Notionaly Amount by Expected Maturity
Average Interest (Swap) Rate

Fair
Value
(dollars in milllons) 20I2 ‘0!3 _d4 S 1016 Thereafter | ‘Total 4!241‘20]]
—_—— B e e -‘__..,‘3‘0'1,= b2

Fiscal year

Lidbilities®__ W5 6 2T
Long-termy debt,
inclading current

porlion et i
& Fixed tote s a8 0 2a650.2 ,53 57:5, 08102 R $E0.25 $5302. 75 5661:035:66714)
Average
interest e 745% 7.38% 7. 08% ? 84% 7 85 7 '?6
e s e S T AR T
"’““‘”\’dr]dble Tl S _5:2% §35:2-8523: 2‘ S 0" "qza( L3} WSQ,? ‘%:&3.‘3531 8;3:337
Average
interest

0{)0%

rate( 1)

['mamul‘
- ’Inslruruen!s - o
Rdulcd 18 Debiy  aax”
Interest rate : swaps
ml’ayvﬁr:ey' T
o - Jfeceive, -
@r LA » Variable ~e$.>00
Average pay

rate 4.21% 4.00% 4 00% 0 00% 9&30% 0.00%. N
e Average; <-4 B SE T AT v 4 Sl
> 065/ 0% 20,000 o £

2% Treceive fate B 0 34011 2%,

(1) Represents the annnal average LIBOR from the forward yu:ld. curve at April 24, 20 plus the wctg,htcd average margin above LIBQR
on all consolidated variable rate debt,

As of April, 24, 2011, our senior secured credit facility contained variable rate debt based on LIBOR with a floor of 1.23%, which is above the current
market FIBOR rates we receive under our interest rate sWwap agreement. In addition, we hive’ piirchased interest Tate caps a1 3% for'a notional gt of
$120 million and 2% for & notional smoum of $100 miltion vo further hedge our interest rate exposure. ‘The following table depicis the estimated impact on
our annual interest expense for the relative changes in interest rate based upon current debt levels:

Increase 1o Inerease/(decrease)
yariable rale {in milliops)

DR o oo sty ~..',W$‘“ s (L))
FrF-< T :

3 . :i.l:-.‘l.. .ﬁ::‘:\..l ""EM; 4 J"ﬁ-«.—‘% ) M 6. 63
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

The following consolidated financial statements are included in this report:

Report of Indcgt:mlem Registered Public Acéounting Firm on Consolidated Fm.mu.:l Statemcents

Consolidated Balance Sheets—Apiil 24 2011 and April 25, 2000

Fiscal Years Ended April 24, 2011, April 25, 010 and April 26, 2009
Consolidited Statements of Operations
.Consolidated Statenients’ ome:lgholdcrs Equity’
Cansulidated $tatenients of Cash Flows

Notis to Consalidated Financial Statements

Schedule I1l—Valuation and Oualll‘)ing f\ccounls-«l'lscal Years Ended April 24, 2011, April 25,2010 and April,
26, 2009
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Iske of Capri Casinos, inc.

We have audited l$le of Capri Casinos, Inc.'s internal contro) over financial reperting as of April 24, 2011, based on ¢riteria established in [nternal
Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Commiliee of Sponsoring Organizitions of. the Treadway Commitssion (the COSO criteria). Isle of Capri
Casinos, Lnc.'s management is responsible for. maintaining cffective internal control over findncial réporting, and for its assessment of the effectiveness of
internal control over financial reporting included in the accompanymg Management's Report an nternal Contral over Financial Reporting, Our responsibility
is 1o express an opinion on the company's interral control over tinancial reporting based 4i-our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit 10 obtain reasonable assurance about whether éffective intemal contro] over.financial reparting was maintained in all
material respects. Our audit included oblauung an understandmt, of internal control over. financial reponing, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists,
tisting and evaluating the design and operdting effectiveriess of internal control based on the assessed risk, and pcrfonmng such other procedures as we
considered nccessary in the un_umslanccq We belteve that'our audit provtdcs a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company's internat control over financial reporiing is a, ;process designed to , provide, reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes.in accordance with gcncral]y acgepted-accounting principles. A company's internal control
over financial reponmg includes those policies and procedures that (1) pértain to the’ mainténance of records that, in reasonable detail, accumle]v and fairly
reflect the transactions and d]:.posmons of the assets of the company: (2), pru\.lde reasonable ﬁssurancc that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial stat€ments in accordance with generally accepted d(..LDunlmg plmcnplcq and that ru,upxs and ¢xpenditures of the company are being

made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company: and (3) pmv:de reasanable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, usc or disposition of the company’s #ssets that Could have a material effect on the {inancial staterents.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatemenits. Also, projections of any evaluation
of effectiveness 10 future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate becanse of changes in conditions, or that the degsee of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, sk of Capri Casines, lic. maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over fmancial reporting as of April 24, 2011,
based nn the COSO criteria.

We also have andited, in aceordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (Uniied Siates), the consolidaled balance
sheets of Isle of Capri Casinos, inc.as of April 24, 2011, and April 25,2010, and the related consolidated siatements of operations, stockholders’ equity, and
cash flows for the fiscal years ended April 24, 2011, April 25, 2010, and Apiil 24, 2009, of Isle of Capri Casinos, Inc. and our report dated June 16, 2011,
expressed an unqualificd opinion thereon.

s/ Ernst & Young LLP

St. Louis, Missouri
June 16, 2011
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Report of Independent Registered Mublic Accounting Firm

The Board of Dircctors and Stockholders
Isle of Capri Casinos, Inc. )

* We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Isle of Capri Casinos, Inc. (the Company) is of April 24, 201 1, and April 25, 2010,
and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders™ equity, and cash flows for the fiscal years ended April 24, 2011, April 25, 2010, and
Apnl 26, 200%. Qur audits also included the financial statement schedule listed in the Lndex at Item 15{a}, These financial statements and schedule are the
responsibility of the Cumpany s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial staterments and schedule based on our zudits,

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight-Board (United Siates), Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance aboit whether the financial statcments are free of material misstatement. An andit includes
examining, on & tes! basis, evidence supporting the amounis and disclosures in the finaneial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement preseniation. We believe that our audits
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opmmn the financial statements referred to above present fmrly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial pesition of Isie of Capri
Casinos, Inc. at April 24,2011, and April 25, 2010, and the consolidated results of its dperations and its cash flows for the years ended April 24, 2011,
Apnl 25, 2010, and April 26, 2000, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles: Also, in our opinion, the related financial statement
schedule, when considered in relation 1o the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole, ‘presents fairly, in all material respects, the information
set forth therein. .

"We also have audited, in accordasnce with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), Isle of Capri Casinos, Inc.’s
internal control over financial reporting as of April 24; 2011, based on the criteria established in /nternal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the
Comimitiee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission, and our report date June 16; 2011 sexpressed an unquahﬁcd opinion thereon,

fs/ Emst & Young LLP

St. Louis, Missouri
June 16, 2011
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ISLE OF CAPRI CASINOS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In thousands, except share and per share amounts)

Aprit 14, April 25,
] 2010
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FASATE o R o RSSO TR, SE_6%,069]
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Other Inng;}_:_:_rrp llabllmcs 16,694 17,166
O A e U SRS S S T :’?5?.{’3’ AT I o Ta T AN

Preferred stock, 501 par value: 2,000 000 shares ¢ nuthorlzed nnnc issued : — —

sb TR T Common sock - $.01-paralic: 60,000,000 shares. B R e P o S U S A
LR 4210635360 a1 APril 24,5201 1- &md36,77 <730 a1 Abril 2522010 e Yoo g2l f 367]
C!ass B common stock, S.01 par valie; 3 000 000 shares dut.honzed nane ’
issued —
{.:-_‘(“S_% o rﬁ:..i*_:\dﬁnmnal A0 CADNAY S e S %_f N N N G YRR T 464‘
" Retained eamings, 103,005 98,555
£ %Py e e ok, ACcumalated ptHer compnhcmwc income (Jogs) ek, Fie T REV(, 2:"3) “5(8,060)

355,204 292,326
= T rehdury: stock, 3:841:28 3 shares d'April 24320 17and 3,326,242 s hares at April 25201052 ;2 o (46:266) (32! 107)
‘Total stockholders' equity TO309028 0 230219

511733888 51,674 840}

5_‘»:'—”—’_:7;_. ‘.Totai hablhues and slockhaldcrs equlty -

See accompanying notes to c_onsolldated financial statements.
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ISLLE OF CAPRI CASINOQS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(In thousands, ¢xcept share and per share amounts)

Fiscal Yexr Ended

April 24, Aprid 15, Apsil 16,
‘ ‘ 2011 2010 2009
Révenuest: & %~ T L_M“‘“@é AN AT - R
Casino _ ' - ] $ 1 036 5358 1 0133868 ! 05« 694
SR STl T A N R T T 027 A 3007, 36,360)
Food, bevcragt_: pnn—mumcl and othcr " . 134 125 134, 994 138,632
Vi, Humcanc and Gther: insurance, rccmcncw’ v RET X ‘?Q.I‘;; R T S B 52,5.3_"}
Gross revenues i 1,211,534 1,191387 1,303,638
Lol s e By Lcss pmmonunal a]lownnccs* Y "'(’06 339)_E(190s55 1) (193.603)
et I‘\g}\‘rcvcinucs 1,004,995 209836 _1,108033
Operating CXpensess,, ~ i . Soone o 3% R = G I S et "
Casino . I)S,SBU IJ3,838 ISl 6]0
L&z_____Gnmmg PN TR I I R Rer =i 5250002 -E 2620410, 3% 9’8i
Rooms : 9,793 ___LQ 845 12306
Lsei - - SFood. beverage, an Smunie] and other__S3®° v>~h“”“r b ;az" NEEEy 5447043 5 44760, ‘51”46*3.
__Marine and facilifies 60,485 61,507 64,368
[T T Marketing and adminswatee .o o om L e T e 3534230353097 . vaﬁ.2:0§
Comumtc and dev. elopmem s 42,709 46,750 41,331
S Ex;nnse Tecoveries. 5and Other Charpes, NEt /o s & B o g o oo mo o T TeEy - ._.,...:’6 1251
hurricane and gtherinsurance recoyeries ] ) — — (32,217
* Depreciation and ar amomzauon P Tl o R g, :35»_...39 0405, w109 §04§" - 13304401
Tota) operating expenscs 909,075 935,780 973,503
ODEFAting INCOME Lenes o v s c5on o By B Pl e oL T8 e B 95,920,- 564,056, 11 34:532]
Interest expense (91,934) ('b 434)  {92,065)
Interest income.__ .= * 5 32 e T cgw S NVESRCE TR o IOI6Y ] 833, Y EE
Gain on early__'c_*_xl_glgmshmcm of debt — _ . i :)7 653
Deni vamzt,!‘csxpcn%c;: R R R Sl SR W Rt aN L 14) G0y, . A
[ncomc {loss) from connnumg opcranons before income taxes 4,688 (9 91 5) 107 272
F R m NGOG X (pravision) heelit,_wim . G T TR B[RS Ay A7AF 2 T(41.039)
Incame (loss) frg_r[l__conlmumg opmunm — (] 541) . '.6152‘33

Im:omc (IO§>) from dlscpmmned opemuont: mc]udmg IUS\ ant Tsale; net o iNCOME, tax G- + %
. Denefn 31 SBOTST$5664R] 59, 33? 0T ARE: ﬁc:.a'l year-. cndcd 301 2010
Arespedtively, <P T SRR ST ey z

d 1009‘

732)5 (17,638)
(3.273)8 43575

Net income {loss} attributable to common stockholders

Ezisﬁiﬁ,g's (loss) per.common share SHDUIIDIE 10, COMMION SIOCkROKErsbasic- Lt ng T
Income (loss) from conunumg operanom 5 e $ 0 03 S (0 03)‘2 . 1.95
e [nc:om(::(lus';) froms ¢ d]scommued operano SRS dmb gam O%Ls‘!lesnet of@ e B

e 5]
L4 T iRcometaxes A L Toey T 07T - @10 (0 0") . (0.36)
Net income (]oss) aitributable commaon stockholders s 0.13 % {0.10)s 1.39

Earfings {1055) REr,COMMON Shart At DNtADIE1G, Common stockholders—2dilited; %-"Y’r's‘“ T TE R s e di

Income (Joss) | from t rom Tonfinuing operations | __ 0 03 S (0 05)3
I.ncomc (Ioss) ﬁ_-uru d:sconunued opeldllons mcludmg g:un on| qalc net’ uf‘m«gﬂ‘? ~ “G% Loy e [
; £ L SR 0N (00)_,_\_ )
Net income Uoss)'_annbum'ble ¢ommon slog:kholdcrs $ 0138 {D.10)8 1. 39
WCIRhied 3verate. Dasic SNATes o Toat st 1 5 . 78 FH A T, s 00 e 341066;159%:32,245,7697231:372,670)
Weighted average diluted shares 34,174,717 32,245,769 31,379,016

See accompanying netes to conselidated financial statements,
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ISLE OF CAPRI CASINOS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

{In thousands, except share amonnts)

Accum.
{Oher Total
Shares of Addilionul - Coatprehensive Stock-
Common Common Paid-n Retzined Income Treasury holders’
. <tock ‘;mck Capual Flrmnﬂs (l.oss) Stock Equitv
Balin : W R T il
Lt\nnt -7 2008—*35.2"9006_5_35345 ISB 036 ‘;‘58.2 et (5 GOI)S(SJ {32‘))51880I2i
Netincome

43,575

ijn;;l:z:d lus.-s.,._ .
01 interess mte
\wnp contracts » w
nctq[mcouﬂ:’?
tax béncfit 61 Y,
2&337’0" PERTA
Foreign currency
translation
adjustiments —. -
('.'mnrn'ehen.mt:r_};‘f e s = ot
income iy .l L
Exercise of stock '
optivns
L R
Issuance of *

Edéferred bonns

“(3,335)

g
‘33 985

ghares fram -;r
- froasry, stock S

Qther
Issuande afe T

. T

N (mn)

L'ompensaliim

experise - — 7.125 — .= — 7,025
Balance, Rooe L Tt 1 BN, % e:g o tf s}
12 Abeil 2672008 36111 080" " 3&1:__193 82‘1‘""10] s#s gm_ 15 '!l)_g(SE ¥} r228426]
Netloay

Unn::hzed g::m.
n mlemct mle
- wup ¥ Cordriicts ¥
P e uilnco:nc"
2oLax Im:\'ismn :
2 0F 82 683
Deferred bedgc
adjustiment net
of inteme tax
provision of
. 531463
Fumgn currency e
- ranskatinn an s
. AjUSEMEALS

Ccmpr:hcnmc
.. mcome
Exercise of Sock g A
B ot o B, 21602 % helip o)
lssuance of

deferred bonus

shares fromn

e ERSULY stock — (-)rp,

TR T T '—‘—ﬂﬁw

Otberre. e Bl
Issuance uf

restricled

stock, net of

forfc:n.rea 638_1 75 6

""7 ,':"9“?“"

2o
;’"‘ﬁ‘.qhg\‘k }.\/-

4

G,

Batance
Apn]_j 2010 36,771,730 367 201464  9B.555 (8,060 (52 H07) 240,219

helmcnme P A e i r‘E e "3.540 o TM{I”{\"‘%”&:_E,:‘_@“}‘OI
Deferred bedge

adiusuneni net

of income 1ax

provision of

net of infome =8 _Sa+ =y %

Lnrealized 1055 g o p2en 29 B - ¥ 3 ;

‘:on Luterest ralc - ' 2 i V —{h -
| cap contmacls E— .,- s « i W e

? P @ uu e x . ﬁ.ﬁiﬁ‘ » ,(155%;.,91313:"

-



tax benet'! of TEE L

(5195 B T
Farcign cun'enq .
translation A
adjustments — — — — 133 — 113
Compre hcniwe TE TR
"-ﬂm;c:"(;emc= i ‘3“,“ 5 Lo AR5
Common stock
uﬁmng — 5.300,000 53
sy g H
el oy
Issnance of
deferred bonus
shares from
_commaon stock H bd!
f-'urfen:u.w_\;u'ufi A

T
Ll pe e (IO
Isswance of
restricted stock
from treasury
Stuck
‘Stocks,

L‘pr»m'

Balaace. . - . .
April 24, 2011 42063569 S 421 5254013 $103.095 S (2,235)${46.266) 5 309,028

See accompanying notes to consolidaied finandial statements,
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ISLE OF.CAPR] CASINOS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(In thousands)

Fiscal Year Ended
April 14, April 15, April 26,

L L 2011 2010 2009
i e e o sy T R - e o R
_Opemungacuvmea:i“a R A B A A R D RN R R G N LA AT i._.... N
Net income (1oss) S 4, 540 $ 13 73)5 43, 573
Lol TP fal .bln. Ju T
Admstmcms to’ rcconcﬂc net'income (10s3) .10 net cash provu.l;d by_opumml.. ACtVILCS: et A > J s ______4
Depreciation and amortization . 89 040 109,504 127,222
% Amoruzition and  write;off, ofdci'cncd ﬁnanc:ng cnsts- e e gt - 6,266 o834 2 70[

Gain o ca_r]y_cmguzshmcm of dcbt . L . — — _(57,693)
D T Plopeny. MSUTNCE ICCOVENTS o ¥ oo "o aame S o gw o A poo o CF (3%
Expense recm'enes dnd mher charges, nér. , —_— (t’: 767) 36, 573
- Deéferred i RO taxes AL TS "‘% OO R oBE. 2IS08 2 (455) 32,:’3?1
_ Stock compensauon emcnse . ) 7,595 7 633 7 125
"% % Dcferred compcnsntmn Expense,; *m’"‘-ﬂw’ T T e o T3 175]
' lLoss on dcnvalnc instruments } 1214 370
B o T 2(Gain)loss on disposal of assets i ,E . T NN TS IS (L A AL A ) 16"]
Chamzes in nneratml, assets and liabilities: . _
E T T Sales (purthases) oftating SCOBHES L+ g Bl g e TRe i 7831, (3378)F __985)
— -Accounts receivable . . s (460 32144 §48 ]
E . . Income laxes receivable . 2 | o, o Sm L ot ekr sy, 4243, - 2(363)7-20 919.:
. Insurance recenabl::___u . . _‘_:_‘("34) e 2,204 . ..5.486
e " ¥ Prepaid xpenses and-other assels . Lak T g w6 4,546 83513
‘Accounis payabh. and acerued lmb:ht:cc R 1,066 (8,575) (19,011)
Neét'cash provided by.apemLing activitics. | % oo ; g e T 1230661 5 106,382 5 190,610]

investing petivities:
Burchase of broperty,and éguipment_x" 1 i B {58,600),_1(27:6990) (581579)
Propeny insumnee recoveries . — — 32,179

Paymems tovwards gaming license, ... Tx gk BT e e AR S &360);_;(20‘66)
Net cash paid for acquisitions . (qelen - _
Proceeds, fom sales f asscis held 108 ke &7 o1 ot oo AT el e e T e e e 65% 954{
Restricted cash and investments - B {9.870) 47 1 579

et CAsh nied D IVEsing Gotvinios ey o b & e B R TR - (144,637)_(30:990) - (27.867)

BTV L

_Financing activities:
e
an.mal Tepayments on-long: erm debt

’(. FC RN 5

e IR (31T:586) _ (8.730) (127457)

Net borrowmes (rcpayments) onr!lnc of r..rcdn L1500 191 558) (IS 484)
Tcn-nmaimn.paymcm ‘Telating to other, long term’ !mbllmcs : ' ok u«g—‘a §o_rex (ll 35")

-Proceeds from long-term debt borrowings 207,792 — —

Payment of deterTod [MANCING COSSE o2 i ol s h s A e -*M(Hi’szq)&- N8I P

Pmcced': from 1 Issuance of common :mck 31 227

Proteeds from & EXeitise.of S10CK options <. L R TN AT SN YN ’3&___:,@; a2+ lOJ
Net cash provided by (used by) financing activities. C 38133 (103,958) (157,183)
ETfect of foreign CUITency exchange Ties o Cash. - G D arig ey o % e g L (AR)P (19). % T (696)
‘et increase {deerease) in cash and wg.}}h:;gun.alcms ] 7,1‘0‘) (28, 585) 4 864
Cash and ‘cash equivalents at beginning ofyeare(‘?“ £ AR S T ?‘:6,8,'0_69);_196 634 9! 1901
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year S 75178 % 68,069 S 96,654

See accompanying notes 1o consolidated financial s1atements.
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ISLE OF CAPRI CASINOS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCLAL STATEMENTS
(amounts in thousands, except share and per share amounts)
1. Organization

Organization—Isle of Capri Casinos, Inc.; a Delaware corporation, was incorporatcd.in February 1990. Except where otherwise noted, the words "we,”
“us," "our” and similar terms, as well as "Company,” refer to Isle of Capri Casinos, Inc. and all of its subsidiaries. We are a leading developer, owner and
operator of branded gaming facilities and related lodging and entertainment facilities in markets throughout the United States. Onr wholly owned subsidiaries
ownwand opersie fourteen casine gaming facilities in thé United Siates locaed in Biack Hawk, Culorado; Lake Charlés, Louiisna; Lulz, Biloxi, Natchez und
Vicksburg, Mississippk; Kansas City, Caruthersville and Boonville, Missouri: Bettendort, Davenporn, Waterloo and Marquette, lowa; and Porapano Beach,
Florida:

2. Summary of Significant A’ccouniing Polities

Ba'sr's‘qf Presentation—The consolidated financial statements incInde the accounts of the Compuny and its substdiaries. All significant intercompany
balances and transactions have been climinated: We view cach property as an operating segmens and ail such operating segments have been aggregated into
one reparling segment. )

Discontifiued operations include our former-casinos; in Didléy and-Wolverhampton, England sold in Noveriber 2009; in Freepoit; Grand Buhariias
exited in November 2009; and in Coventry, England sold in April 2009.

‘Fiscal Year-£nd—OQur fiscal year ends on the last Sunday in” April. Periodicully, this sysiem necessitates a 53-week year. Fiscal years 2011, 2010 and
2009 are all 32-week vears, which commenced on April 26, 2010, April 27, 2009, and April 28, 2008, respectively.

Use of Estimates—'he preparation of finencial statements in conformity with‘siccounting principles generally accepted in the United States reguires
management 1o make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results conld
differ from those estimates.

Cashr and Cash Equivalents—We consider ali highly liquid investments purchased with an original mamrity of three months or less as cash equivalents.
Cash also includes the minimum operating cash balances required by state regulatory bodics, which totaled $24,230 and 520,846 at Apni 24, 201 and
April 25,2010, respectively. .

Marketable Securities—Markctable securitics consist primarily of trading securities held by our captive insurance subsidiary. The trading securitics arc
primarily debt and equity sccurities that are purchased with the intention to resell'in the near term. The trading securities are carried at fair value with changes
in fair vaive recognized in curremt period income in the accompanying statemenis of eperations.

fnventories—I[nventories are stated a3 the lower of weighted average eost or market value.

Property and Eqiipment—Property and equipment are stated at cost or if acquired through acquisition, the value determined under purchase adeéunting.
Assets subject to impairment write downs are recorded at the lower of ret book value or {air value. We capitalize the cost of purchased property and

equipment and capitalize the cost of improvemenis 10 property and cquipment that increases the
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ISLE OF CAPRI CASINOS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
(amounts in thousands, except share and per share amounts)
2. Summary of Significant Acenunting Policies (Continued)

¢

value of extends the useful lives of the assets. Costs of normal repairs and maintenance are charged to expense as incuired.

Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over tie fﬁ]lowing estimated vseful lives of the asses:

Years
R v3 d.')?"%r Wt .-‘.éi‘r' e &

=X OF

St machiness software 2nd COMPUIETS o == i)
Furnitare, fixtures and cqu:pmem . 5-.10
Leasehold improvements . +; - #.{ LessorofJile,of ]easc‘fs—“sunmted uséful; hfe
_Bmidmgs and improvements o 7.30%0 0
Ccnzun property currently leased in ‘Bettendorf, lowa and property formerly leased 'in Covcmry, England, prior to the tcrmination of such lease, are
accounted for in accordance with Accounting Standards Coditication ("TASC) Topic 840, Leases ("ASC 840").

Capitalized Interest—The inierest cost associated with major developiment and construction projects is capitalized and included in the cost of the project.
When no debt is incurred specifically fora pmjcc! intercst is captwltzed on amounts expended on the groject using the jveighted-average cost of.our
bon’owmgs Capnd]lulmn of interest ceases when the project is subst‘mml]y cump]cle ur-dévélopment activity is suspended-for more than a brief. period.
Cap:tnhzed interest was $125, 575, and $1,018 for fiscal years 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

Opérating [ eases—W e recognize rent expense for.each lease on the straight line basis, aggregating all future minimum rent payments including any
predetermined fixed escalations of the minimum rentals, Our liabilities include the aggregate difference between rent ¢xpense recarded on the strajght-line
basts and amounts paid under the feases.

-Restricted Cash and Investments—We classify cash and investments which are either statutorily or conlractually restricted as to its withdrawal or usage
as restricted cosh short or restricted cash and investments lbong-term based on the duration.of the undcr]} ing restrictinn. Restricted cash primarily includes
amounts related to state tax bonds and other gaming bonds, and amounts held in escrow relatéd to leases. Restricted investments relate 1o trading securities
pledged as insurance reserves by our cuptive insurance company.

Goodwill and Other Intangitie Assets—Goodwill represents the exeess of cost over the net identifiable tangible and intangibie asscts of acquired
‘businesses and is stated at cost, net of impairments, if any. Other intangible assets include values attributable to acquired gaming licenses, customer lists, and
il"'ldt’.‘mﬂl’ka ASC Topic 330, Intangibles—Goodwill and Cnher {"ASC 350") requires these assets be reviewed for impairment at least annually oron an
interimn basis if indicators of i impairment exist. We perform our annual impairment 1est during our fourth quancr Goodwill for relevant reporting units is
tested for impairment using: 1) a discounted cash flow analysis based on foreeasted fuure. resilis discounted at the wc:g]'ncd average cost of capitel and; 2) by
using a markel approach based upon valuation muliiples for similar Lompamcs For mlang:ble assets with indefinite lives not subject to amontization, we
review, at least annually, the continved use of an indefinite nsefu)
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ISLE OF CAPRI.CASINOS, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED, FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

{amounts in thousands, except shire and per share amounts)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {Continued)

life, kf these intangible assets are determined to have a fipite uscful life, theéy are amortized over their estimated remaining useful Hves,

Long-Lived Assets—We periodically evaluate the can‘ymg value of long-lived assets to be hcld and used in accordance with ASC Topic 360, Propeny,
Plant and Equipment ("ASC 3607) which requires impaimoeit lodses to be re(,urded onlong- -lived assets used in aperations when'indicators nf'lmpaumcnt are
present and the undiscounted cash flows estimated to be Eenemtc by these assets are less thaii the assets' carrying amounts, In that event, a loss is recognized
based on the amount by which the carrying amount exceeds the fair market value of the long-lived assets.

Deferred Financing Costs—The costs ‘of issning long-term debt are capltallzcd and amortized using the effective interest method over the term of the
related debt.

Self-Insurance—W e are sclf-funded up to 2 maximum amoint per. claim for employec-related health care benefits, workers' compensation and general
liabilities. Claims in excess of this maximum are fully insured through a stop-lms insurance policy. We accre for workers' compensation and general
liabilities on a disconnted bas:s based an clzims filed and estimates of claims tncuirred but not rcponed The estimates have been discounted at 2.0% at
April 24, 2011 and April 23, 2010, vr a discoum of $1,758 and I, fH respt:ctm.]y We ifilize md(.pendem cuhsultants 1o assist in the determination of
estimated liabilities. As of April 24, 201 1 and April 25, 2010, our cmp!oyec—rclaled health carc benefits program and discounted workers' compensation and
general liabilities for unpaid and incurred but not reporied claims are $33 046 and $32,739, respectively and are included in accrued liabilities-payroll and
related for health care benefits and workers' compensation liabilities and if” "accrued hablhtlcs -other for gcncra! !mm]uy in the accompanying consolidated
balance sheets. While the toia) cost of claims incurred depends o fuiure duc]opmcm: in management's opinion, recorded reserves are adequate to cover
future claims payments.

Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities—ASC Topic 815, Derivatives and Hedging ("ASC 815"} requires we recognize all of our derivative
mstruments as either assets or Jiabilities in the consolidated h'lhnce shcr: at fair v*tlue and disclose certain qualitative and quantitative information. We utilize
derivative financial instruments to'manage interest rate risk associated with'a pumun of our varizble rate borrowings. Derivative financial instruments are
intended to reduce gur exposure to interest rate volatilicy. We account for chang,cs in the fair value of a derivative instrument depending on the inteaded use of
the derivative and the resulling designation, which is cstablished at the inception. ofa derjvative. ASC 815 requires that a company formally document, at the
inception of a hedge, the hedging relationship and the entity's risk management objccmc and strategy {or undertu.kmg the hedge, including identification of
the hedging instrement, the hedged item or transaction, the nature of the risk-being hedged, the method used to assess effectiveness and the method that will
be used 10 measure hedge inctfectiveness of derivative instruments that recéive hedge accounting treatment. For derivative instruments designated as cash
flow-hedges, changes in fair value, 1o the extent the hedge is cffective, are recagnized in other comprehensive income until the hedged item is recagnized in
carnings, and ineffective hedges are recognized as other income or loss below operating income. Hedge effectivencss is assessed quarterly.
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ISLE OF CAPRECASINOS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(amounts in (housands, except share and per share amounts)

2. Summary of Sigrificant Accounting Policies (Continned)

Revenue Recognition—In accordance with gaming industry practice; we recognize casino revenues as the net win {rom gaming activities. Casino
revenues arc net of accruals for anticipated payouts of progressive slot jackpots and cerain tble games wherein incremental jackpot amounts owed arc
accrued for games in which certain wagers add io the jackpot t6tal. Revenues from rooms, food, beverage, entertainment and the gift shap are recognized at
the time the related service or sale is-performed or realized.

Promotional Alfowances—The retail value of rooms, food and beverage and other services furnished to guests without charpe is included in gross
revenues and then deducted as promm:onal allowanccs to arrive at net revenues included in the accompanying consolidated staiements of operations. We also -
Tecord the redemptmn of coupons and pmms for cash a5 pmmonom] allowanccs: The estimated cost of providing such complimentary services from
continuing operatians are included i in casino expense in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations are as follows:

Fisezl Year Erded
April 24, April 25, April 26,

- 2011 2010 !009
Rooms 2 _ivg aneed  aho Lol Sl gk 90007 STE 0,533 S;  8.830]
Food :md bctcrage N . 59,322 ::7 196 37,251

Other ot oo o w‘é}rﬂ& T L R TS 354

Total cost of complimentary services § 70,374 § 68,1625 66615

Players Club Awards—We provide patrohs with réwards based on the dollar amount of pldy on casine games. A liability has been established based on
the estimated value of these omstanding rewards, uuhzmg the age of the points and priof history of redemptions.

Advertising—Adventising costs are expensed the first time thie related advertisement appears. Total advertising costs, including direct mail costs, from
continning operations were $36,404, $32,981, and $27,496 in fiscal years 201t,2010 and 2009, respectively.

Development Costs—We pursue development opportunities for new gaming facilities in an ohgoing effort to expund our business. In accordance with
ASC Topie 720, Other Expenses ("ASC . 720), costs related to projects in the developmen stage are recorded as a development expense, except for thase costs
capitalized in accordance with the guidance of ASC 720. Capitalized development costs are expensed when the development is deemed less than probable.
Tatal development costs expensed from continuing operations were recorded in lht, cansolidated statements of operations in corporate and development
EXPERSES.

Pre-Opening Costs—W e expense pre-opening costs as incurred. Pre-opening costs include payroll, outside services, advertising, insurance, utilities,
travel and various other expenses related to new operations.

Income Taxes—We account for income taxes in accordance ASC Topic 740, Income Taxes ("ASC 740™). ASC 740 requires the recogatition of deferred
income tax liabilities, deferred income 1ax assets, net of valuation allowances related to net operating loss carry forwards and cenain temporary
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ISL.E OF CAPRI CASINOS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contin ued)
{zmounts [n thousands, ¢xeept share and per share amounts)

2. Summary. of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

diffcrences: Recognizuble future tax benefits are subjeet to o valuation reservé, unless'such tax benefits are determined to be more Hkely than not realizable.
We recognize accrued interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax henefits in income tax expense.,

) E’arnmgs (Loss) Per Common Share—Ii acconlance with the gl.lld.mu: of ASC 260, Eurnings Per Share ("ASC 260"), basic earnings (loss) per share

["EPS") is computed by dividing net income (loss) applicable 1o comimon stock by the weighted average common shares ouistanding durmg the period.
Diluted EPS reflects the additional dilution for all patentiaily dilutive securities such as stock options: Any options with-an excrcise price in‘excess of the-
av erage market price 6f our common stock diiring the periods presented are not considered when calculating the dilutive effect of stock options for diluted
-earnings per share calculations.

Stick. Compensauan——Our stock compensation is accounted for in accordance with ASC Topic 718, Compensation—Stock Compenf:anon ("ASC 7187).
Stock compensauon cost is measured at the grant datc ‘based on.thc estimated fair.valuc nflhc award andis recognized as cxpense on a straight-line basis
over the requisite service period for cach sepamately vesting portion of the award as if the award was, 1n-9ubsiance multiple awards.

Foreign Currency Transiation-—We account for Currency transation'i 'in-aceonifinée with ASC Topic 830, }-orugn Currency Matters (*ASC 830") Assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencics are translated into U).S. dolfars at the exchange rate in effect at cach:balance sheet date, Statement of
operations accounts are translated monthly.at the average rate uf'cxchang:c. prevailing during the period. ‘Uranstation adjustments resulting from this process
are inclided in slockholders equity as accumulated other cumprchcn:lv-. (10ss) income. The cumulative koss from fareign currency transiation inchided'in
other comprehensive loss is $0 and ($133) as of April 24, 2011 and Aopril 25, 2010, respectively.

Allowancé for Doubiful Accounts—W'e reserve for receivables that may not be collected: Methadologies for estimaling the allowance for doubtful
accounts range from specific reserves to various percentages applied to aged receivables. 1listorical collection rates are considered, as are cusiomer
relationships, in deterniining specific reserves.

Fair Valug Measurements—We follow the guidance of ASC Topic 820, Fair V 1]ue Measurements and Disclosures ("ASC §207) for our. finanicial asséts
"and liabilities mciudmg marketable securitics, restricted cash and investments and dérivative instruments. ASC 820  provides a framework for measuring the
fair value of financial assets and liabilities. A description of the valiation methodologies used to measure fair value, key inputs, and significant assumptions
follows:

Marketable securities—The estimated fair values of our marketable securities are based upon quoted prices available in active markets and
réprisent the amdunts we would expect io receive if we sold these markétable securitics.

Restricted cash and investments—The estimated fair values of our restricted cash and investmicnis are based upon quoted prices available in active
markets and represent the amounts we would expect to receive if we-sold these festricied ¢ash and investments,
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continucd)
(amounts in thousands, except shure and per share amounts)

2. Surimary of Significant Accounting Policies (Comtinued)

Derivative instruments—The estimated fair vatoe of our derivative instruments is besed on market prices obtained from dealer quotes, which are
based on interest yield curves and such quotes represent thu éstimated amounts we would réCeive or pay to tenminate the contracts,

Recently Issued Accounting Standards—New Pronouncements—ASU No. 2010-16, Entertalnment-Casinos (Tapie 924): Accruals for Casing Jackpot
Liabitities. The Financial Accounting Standards Bodid issued ASU No2010- 16, En:erlammenr-Casmas {Topic 924}; Aceruals for Casino Jackpol
Liabitities. The guidance clarifies that an entity should uot accrue jackpot liabilities (or portions r.hen:ol) beforc a jackpﬂl is won if the entity can avoid paying

that jackpot since the machine can legally be removed from the gaming floor without payment of the base amount. Jackpots should be accrued and charged to
revenue when an entity has the obligation ta pay the jatkpot. This guidance apphes tn both baSCchkpols (a‘nd the incremental portion of progressive jackpots.
The gridance is effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within those fiscal years, beginning on or-after December 15, 2010. This guidance should be
applied by recording a cumulative-effect adjustment to opening retained earnings in the period of adoption. Our current accounting palicy conforms o the
new guidarice and ds such we expect the adoption to have no cumulative effect

3. Discontfinucd Operatiens

Discontinued operations include our former casmos Dudley and Wolverhampton, England ("Blue Chip”} sold in November 2009, Freeport, Grand
Bahamas exited in November 2009; and Coventry, Exigland sold in April. "(Jﬂ‘)

The results of our discontinned operations are summanized as follows:

Discontinued Operatuns.
Fiscal Year Ended
Aprit 24, Apnil 25, Apri 26,
2011 2010 1009

e SERE U817 406:5-277628)

T ST 7 S
Netrevenuesmiis, oot o, o 0 i be

Valuation cham.es . ) — "‘(l A00)
Preiax (los;) gain’on sale of discontinued ¢ Opcrauonsmx_z- Mm‘...: (6]?)__(12 016)
Pretax {loss) income from d:sc.omlnued nncmtmns 1,474 (2 29‘3} ("7,545)
Imomc-t::?bcncnt Trom discontintcd OPETATOmS Y, & ont vy b w078, = ¥366.5 - -0 8877
Income {loss) from discontineed operations 3,452 (l 732) (17.658)

During fiscal 2009, we recorded a pretax charge of $1,400 to reduce our Blue Chip assets held for sale {o their estimated fair value less the cost to sell
and we completed the sale of our assets and terminatéd our lease in the Arena Coventry Convention Center relaung to our casino operations in Coventry,
England. Our lcase termination costs and other expenses, net of cash proceeds from ouwr assets sales, resulted in'a pretax charge of $12.016 recorded in fiscal
2009,

During fiscal 2010, we completed the sale of our Blue Chip casina propenties under a plan of administration and have no continuing involvement in their
operation. The sale of our Blue Chip asscts resulted in a pretax charge of 5617 reeorded in fiscal 2010,

W
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ISLE OF CAPRI CASINOS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEM EN'I'S {Continued)
(amounts in thousands, except share and per share amounts)
3. Discontinued Operations (Continned)

Puring fiscal 2011, we recognized a gain of 32,6358 including cenain tax benefiis upon 60n1p1'eﬁ_0'n of the Blue Chip administration process; We also
recognized a tax benefit of $794 in discontinued operations representing the resolntion of previously unrecognized 1ax positions related to Rlue Chip
following the completion of certain federal tax reviews.

Net'interest income (expense) of $0, 38, and (51,972) tor. ﬂsual years 2011, 201, and 2009, respectively, has been allocated to discontinued operations.
Interest expense allocated  our former international operations was based ipon 16ng. térm debt and ather long-term obligations specific 10 such operations.

4. Acquisilions

Acquisition of Rainbow Casino—On June 8, 2010 we completed the acquisition of Rainbow Casino—Vicksburg Partrership, L.P. ("Rainbow™) locased
in \’icﬂsl:iurg, Mississippi. We acquired 00% of the partnership interests and have inétuded the results of Rainbow in our. consolidated financial statements
subsequent to June 8, 2010, The allocation of the purchase price for these pm‘mcrshm interests was deicrmmed based upon estimates of future cash flows and
evaluatioiis of the net assets acquired. The ransaction was accounicd for sifig Lh{, acqiisition method in accordance with the accounting gu:dance under
Accounting Stindards Codification Topu{ 805, Business Combinations..As a result, the net assets of. Rainbow were recorded at their estimated fair value with

the excess of the purchase price over the fair value of the net assets acquired aliocated to goodivil]; The acquisition was funded by bormrowings from our scnior
secured credit facility.
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4. Acquisitions (Continued}

The following table sets forth the determination of the consideration-paid for Rainbow and the purchase price allocation'based upon management's
valuation of the net assets acquired.

June 8, 2010

E’i’ﬁ_ss’fc*ajnpu?‘ch“‘*?"j'. _ s e T T TR B 2s) 980,000}
De'dpu

BOEOEORTY
38,387

Eﬁ ﬁ’;&. el 4?{&;\ o *’@Si:

i 544< i

Pmneny zmd cqulpmcnt
lmanglhk:assezs S E‘ﬁ i

: B -h,, Y oSt
Customer relanonshlps [ 700‘ ; )
BT o "‘“‘.',L' ke e ol lntangib](.:.& A g ke T 7:2533
Goudw_il] 32,167
B gas s o tOther a asSels e gul R % e s ﬁi",@f Jr‘“n& G 2.._- ._1._39"3
Currenl llabllmes {1,
¢1 S Ty gt - 3 W il
: . Oter HADILITIES g ? I B g e Ay (408)
Purchase price T3 76167 76,167
!:=

The useful lives of assets acquired are estimated-as follows: customcr list—three years: tradenami 1.5 years; customer relaiionships eight years: fumniture
and equipment ane to five years: ind other property and equipment fificen 1o twenty:five years. DLdULHh]C goodwill for tax purposes is estimated ta be
approximately 533,000

Net revenue and income (loss) from continuing operations for fiscal 2011 related 10 Rainbow weré $27,935.and (51,724), respectively.
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ISLE OF CAPRI CASINOS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continicd)
{amounts in thowsands, cxcept share and per share amounts)
4. Acquisitions (Continued)
The pio forma results of aperations, as if the acquisition of Rainhow had ocewrred om the first day of fiscal 2011 is as follows:

unaudited
Fiscal Year Ended”

_ Apiii24: 2011 nril!i:ﬂ)lﬂ

Pro; format * e S ETERT o Y ¥ =

Net revenues 3, 009 023 036,982
Fincome (loss) frony connnmm. oper'mﬂns 3 before ipcame; Taxus;‘_%fl 036 ESE1(3,282)
Income (loss) from conug__l_JéE;, 0 tions _ ,;i . ,?04
Basic carmnp,s (loss), Df:nsharc from’ commmno o) IGhE i SR 0 040 - s 008

‘Dijuted earnings {loss) per share from cominiing Sperations B (X1 S X
5. Property and Equipment, Net

Property and eqipicnt, net consists of the following:

20117 L. 2010

Propeity;and eqipment 2 J
_Langd and- land :nmrm'cments .
isl,msehold xmpmvcments;’v e X ST gﬂmﬁ G 337‘32075 e, 335 4;3

Buildings and improvements’ e 662530 646811
fR:wrboatsandﬂoaung,paw]mns T 95216, 5, £149.470)

Fumnurc f'xrurcs and equlpmun . _ - o - 535,289 508 IT:‘
fConq!mctmn in:progressugss ’st_. LR S R e 2330,
Total property and cqu;nment 1 884 955 1, 805 814
T oy TR "
{Less aocumulated de depreciation and'a amoruzmmn !
Property and equiprient, net S 1,1 1-3,54943 ,i,098,942_
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ISLE OF CAPRI CASINOS, INC.
NOTES T(» CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cumi'nuud)
(amomts ip thousands, exeept share and per share amounts)
6. Intangible Assets apd Goodwill

latsngible assets consist of the following:

April 24 2011 Aprit 25, 2010
Gross Net Grass Net
Carrying Accumulated Carrying Carrying Accumulated ' Cairying
Amouat Amurtuatinn Amounl Amount Amnrtuatmn Amaunt.

e e ety
Intlefintteslived assctslen. oy c e o

Gaming Jicenses $66.126 S '_ussslzc;ssslzﬁ s" ——sssm;
N A Rl T o A O T L T L e o g W T N T

Intangible assets—subject 1o

amnrn.miinn . "
Cuslomt.r]r:l:. iy e L5 393" " (120655)F "'2}738;_{[_.5,'1
Trade name 544 (3]7) 227,
Customer relatjonships. T B0, T (I33) 806 e s s
Towl $95912 § (13,705)$82,207 $88,659 S (8,984)379,675

Our indefinite-lived intangible assets consist primarily of gaming licenses and trademarks for-which it is re.:sonablv assured that we will continuc to
renew indefinitely. Our finite-lived assets consist of customer lisis amortized ovei 2 to 4 yedrs, trade. name amortized over 1.5 years, and customer
relationships amartized over § years, The weighted average remaising 1ife of our ather intangible'ssets subject to amortization is approximately 5.0 vears,

We recorded amortization expense of $4.271, §3,913, and $4 624 for our-intangible assets subject to amartization related to our continuing operations for
the fiscal years ended 2011, 2010, and 2009, respectively.

Future amortization expense of our amortizable intangible assets is as fallows:

T S R ST A NN L ¥ T T 50a )
ws 218
M L T T o RT3
2015 - _ #38

2016, S e 2T % TR e g et (838 5g
‘Thereafter ) 1.778

— i BT Y TS e T T xy
ol e L R R AT AR RS TN T g e Rg 032 T

A roll forward of goodwill is as fellows:

_April 24, 2011 April 25, 2010
T o YR i
Balance,, bc;ummgofpenodmﬁ 7 S e Ta e SR S 31 !35,__13 D 3131363
Addition from Rainbow ucqulsmun 32,167 —
Raliance chd Df, pEriod; . Beiik 72 400 b ol S, _55__ hsa 345:303 "“3 T at3137136]
Goodwill includes accumulated impairment losses of $14,801.
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1SLE OF CAPRI CASINOS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATEDR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
{amounts in thousands, except share and per share amounts)
7. Expense Recoveries and {Hher Charges, net

We recorded pretax expense recoveries and other charges from continuing operations as follows:

Fiscal 2010-~We recorded an expense recovery of $6,762 representing the discounted value of o receivable for reimbursement of development costs
expended in prior periods relating 1o a termiinated plan to develop a cosing in Pittshurgh, Pennsylvania. This receivable was recorded following a revised
assessmen of collectability.

Fiscal 2009—An impairment charge of $18,269 was recorded at our Black Hawk, Colorade property as a Fesult of our annual impairment test required
under ASC 350: The Black Hawk impairment charge included $7, 000, 57, 072 and $4,197 related to goodwill, lmdemarks and gaming licenses, respectively.
Fair values were determined using methods ds follows: d:scoumcd cash flow anid multiples nfeammgs for goodw:ll relief from royalty method for
trademarks; and the cost approach for the gammg hccnse The 1mpau‘mcm was'a result of dccreased operating pcrformance cavsed by o’ smoKing ban which

became effective in January, 2009 and declines in the economy. rc:ulung in lower farket valuation nultiples for gaming assets and higher discount rates.

Following our decision not to complete our construction plan as originally designed for our Biloxi property, we recorded a valuation charge of $11,856 to
construction in progress.

Foliowi ing our’ lt.rmm..mon of an agrecment for a potential developmént ofd castno prajectin Portland Oregon, we recorded a 36, 000 charge consisting of
a non-cash write-off of $5,000 representing our rights under 2 land option and $1,000 termination fee. Under the terms of the agreement, we retain certain
rights bui no cuntinuing obligations with regard 10 this development projeet.
3 Long-Term Debt
[.ong-term debt consists of the following:

April 24, April 25,
2011 2010

Seniof Secured Credit Facility:, R S R
Revolving line of credit, cxp1re< Nm cmber 1 0!3 interest payable
_atleast quanerly at enhe! LIBOR and!or p_;gme plus a margin_ ‘5. %_3;,000 S 21,500

nable T2 A TN R T e PEY o 3

ayments, due quarh.rl}" a

pa RN
L amarginh Sl L e s E T v 500,000 817,256]

7.75% Senior Notes, interest payable semi-annually March 15 and
B Scp:ember 15 nct ofd:sco&l e
7% Senior | Subordma!ed I\oh.t mtcrcsl'pu)ahlc seml-d.ruma]l}, sy 2T
LZMareh;tTnd September i:55 T L e 5 1‘.‘51‘-_~g_xA_L__§_.....

Other _ 4,504 4858
CREF B S s T \x13192,594 Z1i200,889)
_ess current maturities 5,373 8,754
T M ” " n
s _SIY187,231°81,1923135)

T T
Longiterm debt 222~ 23
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ISLE OF CAPRI CASINOS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(amounts in thousands, except share and per share amounts)

8. Long-Term Debi {Continued)

Seniar Secured Credit Facility, s amended and restated—Our Credit Facility as amended and restated ("Credit Facility") consists of a $300,000
revolving line of credit and a $500,000 1erm loan. The Credit Facility is sccured on a first priority basis by substantiaily all of our assets and guaranteed by
subsiantialiy all of our signiiieant domestic subsidiaries.

On March 25, 2011, we amended and restated our Credil Facility, Among other things, the amendmt_m and restatement {1} extended the misturity of lhc..
credit facility to November 1, 2013, or if the 7% Scnier Subordinated Noles arg jefinanced prior to that date, the Tevolving line of credit matures on March 25,
2016 and term foan matures on March 23, 2017 {2) added a senior secured leverage rativand modified the maximurm 1otal leverage ratio and a- minimum
interest coverage ratio as well as other covenants 10 provide financial flexibility througl‘i-'thl. term of the loans and (3) set the interest ratcio LIBOR plusa
margin based on total leverage rtio which is initially 3.50%, decreased the LIBOR floor to 1.25% for term Joans and eliminated the floar re]med to revolving
line of credit. As a result of the amendment and restaternent and in accordance with: ASC 470-50; “Debt \Aod:ﬁcauons and Extinguishments,” we incwred
expenses of approximaiely $6,155 related to fees and the write-off of certain unamortized deferred ilndncmg cosis, of which approximately 83,167 was non-
cash, and capitalized defemed financing costs of 59,477,

As a result of a previons amendment, we incwred a charge of approximately $2,143 refated to fees-and the write-off of certain unamontized deferred
finaihcing costs, of which approximatély S309 was non-cash, and capitalized deferped hndnuﬂg costs of 33 A74in fiseal 2010,

(ur net revolving line of credit availability al Aprl 24, 2011 as limited by our maximum senior secured leverage covenant was approximately $173,000,
after consideration of $23,600 in cutstanding surety bonds and letters of credit. We have an annil commitment fee related to the unised portion of the Credit
Factiiny of up to 0.623%, which is included in nterest expense in the accompanying cnnsn'i]d;atc_d staicments of operations. The weighted average cffective
interest rates of the Credit Facility for the fiscal vears 2011 and 2010 were 6.25% and '4.83%; respectively,

The Credit Facility includes a number of afiirmative and negative covenants. Additionally, we must comply with certain financial covenams including -
mainenance of a intal leverage ratio, senior secured leverage ratio and mimimum interest coyerage ratio. The Credit Facility alse restricts our ability 1o make
certain investments or distributions. We are in compliance with the covenants as of April 24, 2011

7.75% Senior Notes—On March 7, 201 1, we issued $300,000 of 7,75% Senior Notes dne 2019 through a private placement at a price of 99.264%
{"7.75%% Senjor Notes™), The net procecds fmm the issuance were used to repay term Yoans under our Credis Facility. The 7.75% Senlor Notes are guaranieed,
on & joint and several basis, by substantially all of our significant domestic subsidiaries and certain other subsidiaries as deseribed in Note 21. Al! of the
guaranior subsidiaries are wholly owned by us. The'7. 75% Scnior Notes arc gcm.ral nnsecured obligations and rank junior to all of our s¢nior secured
indebtedness and senior 10 our senior subordinaied mdcbtedncqq The 7.75% Senior Notes are redeemable, in whole or in part, at our.option at any time on or
afier March 15, 2015, with call premivms as defined in the indenture governing the 7.75% Senior Noles. In connéction with the private placernent of the
notes, we entered into a registration rights agreement with the initial purchasers in-which we agreed o file a registration statement with the SEC to permit the
holders 1o
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8. Long-Term Debt {Continued)

exchange or resel] the notes within 180 days after the 1ssuance of the notes, subject to certain suspension and other rights sct forth in the registration rights
apreement. As a result of the issuance, we capitalized deferred financing costs of $5,346.

The indenture governing the 7.75% Senior Notes limits, among other things, our ability. and our_ festricted subsidiaries ability 1 borrow money, make
restricted payments, use assets as security in other transactions, enter into transactions with affiliates, pay dividends, or repurchase stock. The thdenture also
limits our ability to issue and sell capital stock of subsidiaries, sell assets in excess of specified gmounts or merge with of into other companies.

7% Senior Subordinated Notes—During 2004, we issued $300,000 of 7% Senior Subordinated Notes due 2014 ("7%% Seniar Subordinatéd Notes"). The
7% Senior Subordinated Notes are guaranieed, on a joint and several basis, by a]] of our sngmf‘canldomcsttc subsidiaries and certain other sub51d1am.s as
described in Note 21. All of the guarantor subsidiaries are whally owned by o3, ‘The- T% SenidE Subordinated Notes are gencral unsécuned obligations and:
rank j junior to all of our senior indebiedness. The 7% Senior Subordmatcd Notes are rcdwmablc in whnlc o in part, 4t our optien at any time on or after
March L, 2009, with calt premiums as defined in the indenture governing the 7% Sénior Subordinated. Notes.

The indenture governing the 7% Senior Subordinated Notes limits, amoay other.things, vur ability and our rcs‘LriL!r:d subsidiaries ability 10 borrow
money, make restricted payuents, use assets as security in other transactions, enter imo transactions with affiliates; pay div idends, or repurchase stock. The
indenture also limits our ability to issue and sell capital stock: of subsidiuries, :,eli 4sSelS 1N EXCCSS ufsptuhed amounts or merge with or inte other companics.

Cain (Loss} on Early Emngmshmenf of Debt—During Febnary 2009, we retired Sl42,725 of the 7% Senior Subordinated” Notes, through a tender otfer,
for $82,773 from our available Cash and cash equivalents. After expenses rci.aled to the climination of detcn'ed ﬁnance costs and transactions costs, we
recognized a pretax gain of 537,892 during fiscal 2009, Dwing March 2009, we repaid $35,000 of our term loans undgr our Credit Facility resuliing in a loss
on early extinguishment of debt of $199 due to the write-off of deferred financing cost.

Future Principal Payments of Long-terim Debt—The aggregate prmmpal payments due ¢ on long-term debt as of April 24, 2011 over the next five vears
and thereafter, are as follows:

Fiscal Years Ending:

2002 7 . e e S g b 55362 ]
03 5,381
SR P i Pl T A et e .

T e o S R B T e T e 48D 676
2015 . ] 426
AN NI € NG A S N NS P R I TE
Thereafter i ] _ 302,719
T e R s e e e --in,wm.‘?:!
Unamam?.cd debt dxscnum 2,185)
i et P SR G _‘__1,192 5945
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
(amounts in thousands, excepl share and per share amounts)

9, Other Long-Term Obligations

Quad Cities Waterfront Convention Center—We cntered into agreements with the City of Bettendorf, lowa under. which the City constructed a
convention cenicr which opened in fannary "009 adjacent to our hotel.-We lease,’ managc and provide financial and operating support for the convention
center. The Company was deemed, for accounting purposes only, 10 be the owner of the convention center during the construction period: Upon completion of
the convention center we were prccluded from accounting for the transaction as a Sale’ and icaseback due to our continoing involvement. Therefore; we are
accounting for the transaction using the direct financing method. As of Apn] 74 2011, we have fecorded in other long-term obligations $16, 694 related to our
lizbility under ASC 840 related to the convention center. Under the terms of our agreements for the corivention center, we have guzranteed certain obligations
related to $13,815 of notes issued by the City of Bettendorf, lowa for the conventioh center.

The ather long term abligation will be reflected in our consolidated balance sheets until completion of the lease term, a1 which time the related fixed
assets, net of’ accumitlated depreciation, wilt be removed from our consolidatéd financialstatements and the riet remaining obligation aver the fiet carrying
value of the fixed asser will be recognized as a gain (loss) on sale of the fucility.

Future minimom paymentis due under other long-term obligations, including interest, as of April 24, 2011 as follows:

Fiscal Years Ending: L , N
e 2T 1w - s T Ry U] - Lo Ty TInn T
2002855 3r7r elan a St f et AT o P et i - 15100,

2013 1,100
S SIS S AR S B R R A SRR
005 s ) 1600
TG o o L 15766,

Thereafter : ' 13,770
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
(amounts in thousands, eacept share and per share amuunl:s)

0. Earniogs Per Share

The following table sets forth the compusation of basic and diluted camings (losg) per share (in thousands, except share and per share amounts):

-Fiscal Yezr Fnded

April 24, April 25,7 April 26,
o 2011 20140 2009
Numerator . Sur o cor b« 1o T T W:ﬁ T ., A ENE R .
._Income {loss)a apphr.ablc to common s} chares
EREIRES "a"%.'lncomn: (iOSh) from wmmmnb operdtmnq uttrlbutab]g !0, e Lo, ed, sl l
Ry “32.-_ SEOImT0N- StockhGIHBTS I 2 o dwil 2 o7 TN e B T 053 5"—»----(1 34”5»3-——61 133
Income (losg) from discontinued aperations 3452 . (1,732) (17.658)
Netinconme (10ss) attributable to the conymon Stockholdarsnes ot @il o dore 37,5 4,540,5: _2(3,273)5_7.43,513}
= 4
Dengminator:
g d Denommdlor tor bamc cammgs (lm:,) per- 5hmc~kwughk.d 5 o h
AL * T averageicharesy et o P en T i LB ETS L 5 F34.066; 139432
l-ﬁcu of dilutive s.curmcs
ity s Toa “Emplo)t.c wtock apnons s T‘lOS 558
Denominator for diluted camings {105s) per. bh:lh.—ddjl!‘ilcd ) ‘
weighted average shares and assumed conversions 34,174,717 32,245,769 31,379.016*
Béi'sic'_ezi’r?iiﬁﬁs,‘_ﬁ‘o“%) bi':r.sh‘:frzgattribuﬁzbiﬂ?’&uiniﬁuﬁ';?ackﬁoldu'mfw”mp_l i i ante T 1
——Income (loss) from connnumg oper__a;ﬁtgons g $ 0.03 % (0.05)_5 1.95
o p o s Income (loss) from discontinuéd Dpérationst, i o o . T 000 o (0.03) " u(0:
b T (Toss) from di & peratio s 0.10 (0.0 0:56
Net'income tloss) aunbuwble 10 common stockholders 3 0.13% (0.10)8 1.39
Dilited carnings (1055) per share atributable (o common Sockholders - wr o 2 bo g el * B 0 D v oo o 4
{ncome {lms) from continding npcrdlmnti 3 0.03% (0.05)5 1.95
- Ty Tiecmm P - T re— it ey
Fo7F 9 27 05 ncome (0ss) from discontinuéd perations £ E T wobsr 0108 - H(QU05): T - (0:36)
Net income (lass) attributable to common siockholders $ 0.13 % (0,108 1:39

During Japuary 2011, we completed the sale of 3.3 million shares of common stock gencrating net proceeds of $31,227. Proceeds from our equity

offering were used 10 repay long-term debt.

Stock options representing 469,710, which were anti-dilutive, were excluded from the ealeulation of common shares for diluted camings per share for
fiscal 2011. Due 1o the loss from continuing operations, ‘stock options representing 1 l(' 511 shares, which are potentially dilutive and 495,474 shares, which
are anti-dilutivé, were excluded from the caiculation of common shares for diluted carnings (luss) per share for fiscal 2010. Stock options representing
1,520,040 shares, which were anti-dilutive, were exciuded from the caiculation of common shares for diluted earnings {Joss) per share for fiscal 2009.
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11. Stock Bused Compensation
Under our amended and restated {.ong Term Incentive Plan, we have issued stock aptions and restricted stock.

Stock Options—We have issned incentive stock options and nonqualified stock options which have a maximum term of 10 years and are, generally
exercisable in yeary instalimenis of 20% commencing one year after the date of prant. As of April 24, 2011, ‘our agpregate forfeiture iatc was 19%.

We granted stock options during fiscal 2010 and 2009 and estimated the fair value of each option grant on the date’of the grantusing the Black-Scholes-
Merton option-pricing mode! with the range of assumptions disclosed i the following table:

Fiscal Year Ended

A[)rfl 25 10168 n Iuﬂ‘?

Weighted average expected yalatility 4 gk s,

67 36% g 42 29%
Expected dJudcnd yield 0.00% . . 0.00%
Weiphted average expetted term, T R s O R ST RS PR 35
Mghwd avempe risk-free jnterest rate . 3.07% . '3.50%
Weightdd dverage fainyalue of dptions’ gdnltd@&jw&_;:,g:i 53 - 8 - 273

Weighted average volatility is calculated using the historical volatility of our stock price over a mnge ofdalf:q equal to'the expected term of a grant's
options. The weighted average expected term is caleuluted using historical data that is representative of the option for which the fair value is 1 be determined.
The expected term represents the period of time that options granted are expecied 10 be outstanding, The weighted average risk-free rate is based on the U.5.
Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of the grant for the approximate period of 1ime equivalent to the grant's expected term.

Tender Offer—On October 7, 2008, we completed a tender offer whereby certain emp'loy‘e,c’s and directoss exchanged 2,067,201 outstanding stock
options for 293,760 shares of resiricted common stock and the payment of $153 in cash to'eligible pafticipants'in accordance with the terms of the tender

offer. Réstricted shares issued as pant of the tender offer vest three years from the date of issudnce. At April 24, 2011, our estimated forfeiture rate for these
shares was 7.7%,

Restricted Stock—W e issue shares of resticted common stock 1o employees and directors under our Long Term Incentive Plan. Resiricted stock awarded
1o craployees vests one-third on each anniversary of the prant datc and for directors vests one-halt on the grant date and one-half on the first anniversary of the
grant date. Our estimate of forfeitures for restricied stock for employees and directors is 10% and 0%, respectively.

Stock Compensation Expense—Total stock compensation expense from continuing operations in'the accompanying consotidated statements of aperations
was $7,595; §7,628, and 37,103 for the fiscal years 2011, 2010, and 2009, respectively. We recognize compensation expense for these awards on a straight-
line basis over the requisite service period for each separately vesting portion of the award,
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t1. Stock Based Compensation (Continued)

Activity Uinder Our Share Based Plans—A summary of rustricted stock and option activity for fiscal 2011'is presented below:

\\'e_ightef! Welghted

‘Average Average

Grant-Date Exrercise

. - icted Stock. . l-mr\’alue , Optians - Price

OuLsmudmﬂ at'Auul 2552010 s Say S e RS 1078717 5. -9 3),__,,__..1 435, 133 BT E 29)
Granted } 497 373 3.26 e
Excreised £ &8 o <z ] el e s T 5 M J»;a,- N S —ald, 375)« . '6.50_1
Vested _ (5‘6_,4\ 073) 9.60 —
Foricited and expired g, 1 Fdsz s ob - Seiliein (e < edo s (20 48, - 8. 59, T L6 500) :15.98¢
Outstanding at April 24,2011 ) 109599 5. 876 367110 § 1108
ASoTApril 23,2001 _ s & o %5 g o TRET e bl SO g RS w8 L v T e er o Mo i aeR

Quistanding exercisable opuons - na 89‘8 670 $ .12, 33

{Weighted average remammg contractiil 18rmis_ ﬁ,ﬁ’@vﬁ e RO R earst ransGyears, . o %

Agpregate intrinsic value:

“Oursianding excréisable_- R o R w FT “'_‘*”" RS R A AR BT RN R
Outsmndmg i : ) _8.76 .5 2.33 o
[Nonvested:. %, IR A Al A R B A DR R R S X TR

e s 670

Unrecogmzn.d compcnj‘;,\‘t_mn o3t
L_chghled average rtmammg ‘.cstmg penod
Additional information rélatinig to our share based plans s as fol]m\ 5

Aprit 24, April25. April 26,
011 2(]”] 1009

Réstrieted Siock: % PRLE tH A G Bl g ntg e h L TAE
Fair value of restricted t:mck \'{:<th during the year 5 4 457 S ",146 S 312
T ey T R, T, T ¢

Stock Options:__s +87 % “toag oo ° DG R '-";‘..‘A-.‘_‘,._:."_ RGN g
Emnn':u: value of- smck opuons (:\ct_ruch i 10 30 L4l

T S e P23 . 104 % 5. 110
:Prm,ceds trom sloc}. ‘aption exercises L Zd: Rk Y T N A A T U

We have 1,807 841 shares av ailable for fiture issuapce under our equity compensation plan as of April-24, 2011. Upon issuance of restricted shares or

exercise of stock options, shages miay be issued from avaitable treasary or.common shares.

“Stock-Based Compensation—Deferred Bonus Plan—~Cur stockholders Yuvé approved the Deferred Bonus Plan which provides for the issuance of non-
vested stack to eligible officers and employees who agree to receive a deferred bonus in the form of non-vested stock. The vesting of the stock is dependent
upon continued service to the Company for a'period’of five years-and the fair value of the non-vested stock :it the grant date is amorized ratably over the
vesting period. Compensation expense related 10 stock-based compensationunder.the Deferred Ronus Plan for fiscal years 2011, 2010, and 2009 totaled S0,

S100, and $175, respectively. We do not plan to award any further compensation under

70

T Y -r
i 3years, -, ]




Tahlé of Contents

ISLE OF CATRI CASINOS, INC.
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L 1. Stock Based Compensation {Continned)
the Deferred Bonus Plan; however, any grants that have been awarded prior to he Deferred Banus Plan's discontinuation will be paid provided the vesting

requirements are iet.

A summary of activity for fiscal 2011 under the deferred bonus plan is'as follows:

Weighted

Number. Averape
of Craat Date
‘?harn Fair \ alue

Nonzvested stock at April-25 2010 3G b v 8k 4 aT 54§
Sharcs vested ' . o (m 646) 2754
Nonzvesied ook ai ADTi 247 201 1o A2 AN . B st m S, @i
The to12] weighted average fair vatue of shares vested related to the:Deferred Bonus Plan for fiscal years 2011, 2010, and 2009 was $293, $276, and
$515, respectively.

Stock Repurchase—Qur Board of Direciors has approved a stock repuichase program, as smended, allowing up to 6,000,600 shares of our comman stock
to be repurchased. As of April 24, 2011, we have repurchased 4,895,792 shares of commen stock, and retired 553,800 shares of common stock under this
stock repurchase program. Mo shames were repurchased n fiscot years 2011, 2010 or, 2009,

11. Deferred Compensation Plans

2005 Deferred Compensation Plan—Our 2005 Deferred Compensation Plan (the "Plan”); #s amended and restated, is an nniunded deferred
compensation arrangement for the benefit of kev management officers and eriployees of the Company and its subsidiaries. The terms of the Plan.include the
ahility of the participants 3o defer, on o pre-tax basis, salary, and bonus payments-in excess of the amoum permitted under [RS Code Section 401(k}. The
term3 also allow for a discretionary annual matching contribution by the Comp.my The Plan allows for the aggregation and investment of deferred amounts in
notional investment alternatives, including units representing shares of our. common stoek. The liability related 1o the Plan as of April 24, 2011 ond April 25,
2010 was $3,016 and 53,069, respectively, and'is included in Jong-term other. act.rued Tiabilities in the cansolidated batance sheets, Expense for our
contributions related to the Plan was $54, $83 and $104 in fiscal years 201 [, 2010 and 2009, respectively,

13. Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Informatlon

Faor the fiscal years 2011, 2010 and 2009 we made cash paymenis for interest, net of capitalized interest 0f584 506, $71,623, and $96,706, respectively.
We collected an'income tax refund net of payments of $5,599, 51,561 and 520,164 tor fiscal years 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

For fiscal 2009, we purchased property and cquipment {inanced with a long term obligation ot'$14,384 as discussed in Now 9,
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14. Income Taxes

Income tax (benefit) provision from continuing operations consists of the following:

Fiscal Year Ended

April 24, April 15, April 26,

20ll - .2010 . 2609

Corent 56 P Al diet e N :% W s Reniw g ey o)
Federal 5. (125 s‘ '

SIAteL 7 g ot el By o R on = ) 3
3010
Dcfcrrcd i “H'“ S R N T - G
Federal B 2,645 35,309
State’y . %L SO A NI E 3'248) 22:140;
4,808 (8; 224) 38.029
annme tax {benefit), prova:mn SR L ST s Ty, 600 .55 (8, 374) 8% 039]

A reconciliation of incorme taxes {rom continning operations at the %tututmy corpotite tudcml tax rate aof 35% to the incame tax (benefit) provision
reported in the accompanying consolidated starements of operations iy as follows:

Fiscal Year Ended
April 24, April 25, April 26,

. 2011 2010 009

Statutory,tix (benciit) proviston £ . & i T PLTe o 87 16458 5(3,469):8_235,794]
Effects of :

Potate txes > o ooy Bageet 9 RETR FEE o TeR0T w5730
Rcducuon ofunreu.ogm?ed 1ax bbﬂcf]lh . — —
EOtherod & = £ ol =i o1 ;:z_‘g_ﬂ',;%ex»w r e g Tee g W h ol T
. Lobbying e 746 . 307 1192
melo';mcm tax credits d_s“..‘_‘&._,; ‘;‘,m_f_;;._mm____ﬁsn < (L. EEE}Y
Fines & Penalties - 81 58’ 37

¥, Meals & Enténainment .. AN e R TIR T ke s 730]
Quahfed stock option expense (henefit) 44 .(240)

VVETIOUS DErmanent Qiferences Sor g . AR gt s P % & & CR(I1EAT 25 T 23
[mcreslr__rm i e 2 . (134) = (‘ﬁ-’)

L0mers e R T e AR T R g 12 e, (643)

tncome 1ax {benefit) provision § LeDD 3 (2374)3 41,039
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14, Income Taxes (Continued)

Significant compaonents of our domestic net deferred income tax asset {liability) are as follows:

Fiscal Year Ended

April 14, April 25,
20011 R 1010

Deferred tax:tiabilities: ; R b S omfy gt e
Pmperty and equipment $ (68,075) 5 (58 00‘))
Goodwﬂ] Bnd: mlan;..lb]c%_ﬁ& '“;,,M_xﬁhb’f b r(2‘) 76’) . {23, 871)
Gain on carly uum..u:shmem of debt (21,593) (2 4ll5)
(o TR T P R O WO T BT PN C(1LR09): & . (8, 696)
Tosal deferred tax liabilities (12!,239) (l 14 942)
Déferred 18% SSSEIS T g o LB i Wb B b e Te o e ® Tt e

Net opernting losses . 64,042 11 773
Fo E Emplayment X Credits g gn it e i i 17398 Lo 1 5‘393;

Accmed cxpc S5 10,521 l 1 789

E‘i Ahername mmu_num tax credizd e, e L33 '“. AT 696’,1

Caplla] loss S_gl;rlyotfr - S | 1, jl;‘_(

CTOtHer . 0. oF Fags ana o ﬁ o e 50 107 Dy - 40,051 ¢
Total deiuTCLi tax assets 107.270 112,128
Valuatmn allowance on- dcxurrcd tax'a aqsetsy R a7 \__(y.__, it SGA(696). - (9, 533)
Net deferred tax asset 102,574 102,573

Net deferrcd tax asset(Lability) o Sae B % oy el 1of$r3%_(18,663),8% 3(123367),

Al April 24, 2011, we have federal net operating loss carryforwards of $153,132 tor income tax purposes, with expiration dates from fisca) 2024 1o 2031.
Approximately 547,189 of these net operating losses arc attributable to 1C Holdings Colorado, Ine. and its wholly-owned subsidiary CCSC/Blackhawk, Inc.
("IC Holdings, Inc. & Sub”) and can only be used to offset income earned by these entities. The remaining federul net operating losses are subject to
limitations under the internal revenue code and underlying treusury regulations, which may limit the amount ultimately wilized: however, we believe that all
federal net operating losses will be utilized prior to expiration. We also have varjous state income tx net operating Joss curryforwards totaling $236, 144 with
expiration dates from fiscal 2012 10 2031, We have determined that it fs more Jikely thar not that we will nat bé able 10 milize $112,955 of the state income
tax net aperating losses and have established valuation allowances accordingly. [f or when recognized, the 1ax benefits relating to any reversal of the valuation
allowance on dclcrred tax asscts as of April 24, 2011 will be accounted for'as a reduction of income tax expense. We also have a federal general business
credit can‘yforwalﬂ of $17.398 for income tax purposcs, with expiration dates from fiscal 2018 to 2031 We believe that these credits will be wtilized prior. to
expiration. Deferred income taxes related to NOL carryforwards have been classificd as noncurrent ta reflect the expected wtilization of the carryforwards.
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14, Income Vaies (Continned)

We account for unrecognized taX benefits in accordance with ASC 740. A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amounts of unrecognized tax
benefits as follows:

Aprit 24, April 35, April 26,

— 2011 010 2009
Beginning Balance L T 5 o b tr g e i 80 12,126 SU19,4827821,819]
Gross increases—lax poemonsm current penod e = '. —
(iross, mcrrnst:s——E:IaK 'pOSItONS, L, prior periods. o RS T e TS e147 ]
Gross decmdsesnlax ositions in prior enod:. _(779 54 —
Settlements? ! = o = 2 e R VR L’:; {2 107%"%(::0)
Lapsc of statute of limitations — — 2,134)

Ending Balance p s 5 L o W M Tty o By L7401, 5% 12:126, 85 19 432

tncluded in the balance of unrecognized tax benefits ar April 24, 2011 arc $2,953 of tax benefits ‘that, if recoghized, would affect the effective tax rate.
Also.included in the balance of unrecogm?ed tax benefits ai Aprit 24, 2011 are $6,704 of tak henefits that, if recognized; would result in adjusiments to
deferred taxes.

We recopgnize acerued interest und penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits in income 1ax expense. Belated to the unrecognized tax benefits noted
above, we recorded interest expense of (5460) in fiscal 2011 related to prior periods. We accrued no penalties during the fiscal year ended 2011. in total, as of
April 24, 2011, we have recognized a Hability of $2,154 for interest and no amount for penalties.

We believe that an increase in unrecognized 1ax benefits related to federal and state exposures in the coming year, though possible, cannot be reasonably
estimated and will not be significant. [n addition, we believe that it is reasonably possible that an amount between 30 and $2,955 of our currently remuining
unrccognmed iax positions may be recognized by the end of the fiscal ycar'ending April 29; 201 2. These amounts relate to positions taken on Mississippi
income tax returns for the fiscal years ending April 2002 :hrough April 2008. The Mississippi Depariment of Revenue has completed its examination of the
income 1ax returns for these years and has issued its assessment: We plan to file an appeal and expect to resolve this issue during the next wwelve months.

On April 30, 2011, the Federal statute of limitation for the fiscal yeurs ending April 30, 2000 and April 29,2007 lapsed. Consequently, we plan 10
recognize approximaiely $6.704 of Federal and $475 of state tax benctits during the fiscal year ending April 29, 2012.

We file income tax returns in the LS, Federal jurisdiction and various state jurisdictions. During fiscal 2010, the RS completed its examination of our
Federal income 1ax returns for the 2006 and 2007 tax years which relaie to our fiscaj years ended Aprl 29, 2007 and April 27, 2008; respectively. We
recorded a 1ax beneiit of 5168 in fiscal 2010 related to the examination. These income tax ekamination ¢hanges were reviewed by the U.S. Congress Joint
Commitice on Taxation and agreed 1o during the fiscal year ending Apnl 24, 205 L. In addition, various state junisdictions are cusrensly examining our state
income 1ax returns tar varions subsidiaries. The tix retorns for subsequent years are also subject to examination.
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We file in numeraus state jurisdictions with varying statutes of limitations. Our unrecognized state tax benefits are retated to state tax returns open from
tax years 2002 through 2011 depending on cach state’s statute of limitations.

I5. Hurricane and Otber Insurance Recoveries

" During fiscal year 2009, we received insurance recoveries related to various claims. These insurance recoveries are from claims filed peraining to our
propenty in Biloxi, Mississippi, which was struck in the fall of 2005 by Husricane Katrina. Additionally, we received insurance recoveries relating to flood
claims at our Davenpor and Natchez properties during fiscal 2000,

Business intermuption insurance procecds are included as revenues under Hurricane and other insurance recoveries in our consolidated statement of
operations. Other insurance proceeds, after collection of insurance receivables are included as a reduction of operating expenses under hurricane and other
insurance recoveries in our consolidated statement of operations.

The significam component of eur fiscal 2009 insurance recoverics is the final payment ofour 8225000 settlement related to Hurricane Katrina which
had damaged our Biloxi, Mississippi property. As a resuli of this settlement, we received an ddd:tmna] 595,000 in insurance proceeds, Atter first applymg. the
praceeds 10 our remaining insurance receivable, we recognized $92,179 of pretax’income including $60, 000 of business interruption proceeds included in pet
revenues and other insurance recoveries of $32,179 are recorded as a reduction of operating expenses,

16. Employee Benefit Plan

4071k} Plan—We have a 40i(k} plan covering substantially alt of vur cmployees who have completed 90 days of service. Expense for our cantributions
tor comtinuing operations related to the 401 k) plan was 81,371, 1,463, und $1,500 in tiscal years 2011, 2019, and 2609, respectively. Qur conuibwion is
hased an a percentage of employee contributions and may include an additional discretionary amount.

17. Related Party Transactions

Effective February 2010, we amended a lease with an entity owned by cenain of cur stockholders resulting a payment of $60 annualiy for a parking arca
adjacent to one of our casinos. Prier to this lease amendment, we leased on a month to month basis this parking area and a warehouse for $23 per month.

In 2005, one of our whally awned subsidiaries, 153 of Capri Bettendorf, 1..C., entered into a Development Agreement with the City of Bettendorf, Towa
and Green Bridge Company relating to the development of o conference/events center in Bettendaorf, lowa, the expansion of the hotel at Benendorf and related
facilities, including a skywalk between the hotel and conference/events center and a parking facility. Green Bridge Company is indirecily owned by certain of
our direcrors. Isle of Capri Benendorf, L.C. will hold Green Bridge Company hannless from certain future increases in assessments on ad]acent property
owned by Green Bridge Company, capped at $4,500.
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‘18. Interest Rate Derivatives

“We have entered into various interest rate derivative agreemenlc in order tr manage market risk on variable rate term loans outstanding. We have interest
ratc swap agreements with an aggregate notional value of §100,000 with, mamrny dates in fiscal 2012 and 2014, We have also entered into interest rate cap
contracts with an aggregaic notional vaine of $224,000 having maturity dates in fiseal 2012 and 2013 and paid premiums of $203 at inception.

As a result of un gmendiient o our Credit Fucility in.the fourth quarter of fiscal 2010, our interést rate SWips no tunger méet the criteria- for hedge
¢ffectivencss, and therefore changes in the fair value of the swaps subseguent t6 the date of fneffectiveness in-February 2010, are recorded in derivative
income (expense)in the consolidated siatements of operations. Prior to their. ineffectiveness, changes in the fdll’ value of these interest rate swaps were
adjusted through other comprehensive income {loss) as these derivative instruments qualific ed for hedgie accoummg The cumulamc loss recorded in other
comprehensive income (loss) trough the date of ineffectiveness is being amortized into denvame expense over the remaining ierm of the’ mdwndunl interest
rate swap agrecments or when the underlying wransaction is no longer etpected 10 oceur, As oprnI ”4 3011, the wi cighted average. fixed LIBOR intercst rate
of our interest rate swap agreements was 4.25%

The interest rate cap agreements meet the eriteria for hedge accounting for cash flow hedges and have been evaluaied, as of April 24, 2011 as being fully
effective: As a result, there is no impact on owr censolidated statement of operations from changes in fair value of the imerest rate cap agreements.

The loss recorded in accumulated other-comprehensive income {loss) of ourinterest rate swap contracts is recorded net of deferred income tax benefits of
$1,295 and $4,704, as of April 24, 2011 and April 23, 2010, respectively, The loss recorded in accumulated other t.omprehmalw. income (loss) for our interes:
rate ¢ap eontracts-is recorded net of deferred incornc tax benefits of $49 and: 530 as of.r\pn] 24, 2011 and April 23, 2010, respectively.

The fair values of derivatives included in our consolidated balance sheet are as follows:

Tyvpe of Dcrmllnc Instrument Balance Sheet Location April 24. 2011 Apnl b 2010
{hterest e cap. comraus__‘,__;___m oA e o Prépiid deposits imd other 13 x S S i '79*,,__5 T} |
Interest rate - swap comracu. Accrued lI\lLrEhl . l 439 .. 6,704
InicTest rate swap SOnracts, o g tOther Jongiterm 1i iR L.' s &3 50447 TR 6,54__7']

We recorded derwalwe income of 57, 9l8 and §3, 541 in the statément of opera jons related 1o the Lhange in fair value of intérest rate swap contracts
during the years ended Apnl 24, 2011 and April 25, 2010, respectively.

Additionally, during the vedr ended April 24, 2011, we realized derivative expénse of §9,132 associated with the amontization of 85,724, net of taxes of
$3,408, in cumulitive Joss recorded in other camprehensive indome (loss) for the: interest Tate swaps through the date of their ineffectivencss. During the year
ended April 25, 2010, we recorded derivative expense of 83,912 associated with the.amortization of $2,449, nct of taxes of §1,463, in cumulative loss
recorded 'in other comprehensive income (lnss) for the interest rate swaps through the date of their ineffectiveness.

The change in unrealized gain {loss) on our derivatives qualifying for hedge accounting was §5 and '£7,139 for fiscal years 2011 and 2010, respectively.
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The amount of accumylated other comprehensive income (loss) related to interest rate swap contracts and interest mie ¢ap contracts maruring within the
next twelve months was $1,398, net of tax of $841;as’of April 24, 206 1.

19. Fair Valoe

The fair value of our interest swap and cap coniracis are recorded using Level 3inputs at the present value of all expected future cash flows based on the
LIBOR-based yield curve as of the dase of the valuation.

The following table presents the changes in Leve) 3 iiabilities measured at fair vahue on a recurting basis for, the fiscal years ended April 24, 2011 and
April 25,2010:

Flscal Year Ended

Aprll 24 201] — April 25,2010 —
inlcru.t Rale l)cnvqtues_ﬁ_ﬂ ORI S BN s SO |
chm_l_ngbalantc oS 412997 S 2 i)

‘Reallzcd gaing 0 T o J';"v-'.«_iv""'r*"- 7,‘2!_8&; e 3.‘:4];
Unrealized gains” B '5 i 7,244
Ending balatice ) - 2l " 3 ea BT ER B 5?; Lt 5004 St - Tzl

Financial Instruments—The estimated carying amounis and fair valves of our vihier financial instriments are a8 follows:

_April 34, 2011 . Aprit 25, 2010

Carrying ] Carrying

Amnuni Fair ¥, n\ne . Ampunt A Fair Valne .
Finanoiol assefs:n - wop - aacies & o TAh G e aw o ! -"”--‘ Sgea oL L T
Cash and cash cquivalents 5 75,178, § 75 ns 68069 3 - 68 059
Marketable securities R SR IR ER DA ;1735‘6 T s ”"[i'i.“} 3 926%, 133796,
Rmmclcd cash and’ |mcstrnems 12,810 12,810 _7 774 2774
NOIES TeCeivable Tty —xe Soie b Ty T yf s g A e TRE T 5 3 REL AL Z8a
Fionneial Nabilities: ’
REVALANG [N OF CROTITE. % aem o e A T T e R 000,35 TR RN 21,500 St 0 20,835
Variable rie term loans 500,000 505,000 8 17, 256 80(_),‘)] 1
7159, SCniOrnOtes] o, 4f.o T ot PRy B T o e s [I07 R1Scgn 0 305,085, me e mio Ao T
?% Senior subordinated BOILS 357,275 358 615 357,275 I"6 0l3
Other lons-terin debtl,_ b g 7% Tgt B o T RS0 s F o d 500 - o h o458 o o 48581
Other long-term nbllgauum 16,694 16,694 17,166 17,166

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of each class of financial instrements for which it is practicable to estimate
that value:

Cash and cash equivalents and notes receivable are carried at cost, which approximates fair value due to their shont-term maturities.
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{amounts in thousands, except silare and per sharc amounts)
19, Fair Value (Continued)

. Marketable securities and restricted cash and investments are based upon Level 1 inputs obtained from quated prices available in active markets
and represent the amounts we would expect to receive if we sold these assets.

-The fair value of our long-tern: debt or other long-term obligations is estimated based on the quoted market price of the underl¥ing debt issue or, when a
quoted markes price is not available, the discounted cash flow of future payments utilizing current rates available 1o us for debt of similar remaining
maturities. Debt obligations with a short remaining maturity have a canying arnount that approximates fair value.

20. Accumulated Gther Comprehensive Income (L.0ss)

A detnil of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) is as follows:

Aprit 24. 2011 ApFil 15, 101'0
TCrest fate cap comracts o o CRE P (Lt I8 F A (82} . Sy (50}
Interest rate c\'wif: coniracts ' ('> ]\3) ('1' 377)
Forcipn currency, ranskition:16s5___, . i i RN Pl ‘-;,,;__ B (£
5 2235 s {2.060)

The amount of change in the gain (loss) recognized in accumnlated other comprehensive income (loss) related to' derivative instruments is as follows:

Fiscal Year Ended

Type of Derivative lastrument April 24:2011 n April 15, 2010
Intérést faté Cap GOttt L Sr 5 o8 % B S gL EV2NL__Sa o (0]
interest rate swép confracts 5,724 6,935

T e RS i %W FERE L S 3516028 2, 418, 16,9057

21. Consolidating Condensed Financial 1oformation

Certain of our wholly owned subsidiaries have fully and unconditionally guaraméed on a joint and severa) basis, the payment of at abligations under our
7.75% Senior Notes and 7% Senior Subordinated Notes.

The following wholly owned subsidiaries of the Company are guarantors, on nJumt and several basis, under the 7.75% Senior Notes and 7%, Senior.
Subordinated Notes: Black Hawk Holdings, L.L.C; Casino America of Colorado, Inc.; CCSCIBldckhaM\ [ne,; Grand Palais Riverboat, Inc: [C Haoldings
Celorado, Inc.; 10C:Black Hawk Distribution Company, L.L.C.; 1OC- Boonville, Inc IOC—Caruthen,‘-'ﬂIc LL. C 10C-Kansas City, Inc.: [OC-Lula, lnc.;
1OC-Natchez, inc.: 1OC-Hlack Hawk County, lne; WOC-Davenpat, Inc.: IOL Holdings, LiL.C; 10C Serviges, L.L C.; 10C-Vicksburg, Inc.: 10C-
Vicksburg, LLC; Rainbow Casino Vicksburg Partnership, L.P.: 10C Cape Girardean, LLC: Isle of Capri Betteadorf Marina Corporation.. Isle of Capri
Beuendort, L.C; Isle of Capri Black Hawk Capital Corp.: Isle of Capri Black Hawk, L.L.C; Isle of Capri Marquette, Inc.; P.P.L, Inc.: Riverboat
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21. Consolidating Condensed Financial loformation (Continued)

Corporation of Mississippi: Riverboat Services, Inc.; and S1. Charles Gaming Company, Inc. Each of the subsidiarics' guarantees is joint and S{:\cml with the
guarantees of the ather subsidiaries.

Consolidating ¢ondensed balance sheets as of April 24, 2011 and April 25, 2010 are as follows (in lhu'usandﬁ):

As of April 24, 2011

Lsle of Capri Comsalidating i

-Casinos, Ine. Non- _cand | L5t of Capri

(Parent Guarantar Guarantor l:liminating- Casioos, Ine.

Balaner S'Ifgcl _ Obiigor) _ Subsidisries Subsidiarivs _ Eniries . Consofidated
Current assets_ g e vr 2.5 = i5__i281886:5: V87650583 PIV2THS S M EMIMARDER ?591
mercompany receivables 1,020,593 ("76,226) (56 599) (737 768) —
PRGN s s RO T TOTL . (652297 3Ty 351 ST MR |
Pmpcm’ and equipmént, net I0,2]5 1 071415 M99 _ = L ll_:,549
Other,assots o 2o i = 63:8495 4415304, 120,003, ,(53,703)..471,980}
Total assets 'S1,542,350 51,309,404 § 27,559 5(1,145.425)51,733 838

Curent liabilities, __t% 20 % Sa e4o,711A;$3;.H4;§65:$,§29'050"s (4515153878
Intercompany payables 37,76 (73? 7(?) —
Long~1crm dcbt"i g e

Eomarhrinies? 40 T - ,183709] ; :
Other accrued liabilities 9,3] 7 1 14 703 - H 744 (33 703) 83 76!
Storkholders, equity B v g o "2 30028 ‘369,349“ 8 A8 £ (353:501 1309 m
Total liabilities and stockholders'
equity 51,542,350 51,309,404 § 27,559.8(1,145425)51,733,888
As ol April 26, 2010
Isle of Capri Consalidating
Casings, Inc. Non- and 1sle of Capri
(Parent Guarantor CGuaramtar  Elimizatieg  Casines, Inc.
BahnceShf-el . Obligor) Ruh\ncha'ms Subsiclidries Entries - Consolidated
Ciifyent BSSelsn o 2GS o b 5o 8,0 133.815/8007 1 xazjsau,zm,s-:- L0018 5149 904
lntcrcompany ru.ggnablcs 991,404 (187 21 s) (53 4"1) (750 768)
investments in subsidiaries 5;__,,%,}._}‘ "389 5""E 5(6 073),{3_'_5"__‘,‘ (37) e (3"6 @12y )y 3
Propenty and equspmem net 7579 1 059 146 1?.’?.” - = l 098 94”
OtheT assets Lre < £hr et E E g 60,083 4091103% 2111 830 15 (54, 504) ~4425.604]
Total assets S1 484,582 '5) 289,841 §. 33,199 §{1,132,784)S 1,674,840
Crirrant Hab il B, B i S 46.380, 5. 80,9258 330,783{S7 &r(1;100). 1573155}
Intercompany payables o _?.,EQJ,GS {750, :1‘63) —
Ldngerm deb:'!ess cum:m’s-‘: TR ’ﬂ, }‘ '—N" W--fﬁ,"‘” T i
€ manritiesy Fi 5l e J,g_l 183‘ 632 & 5 L Y “'35_,_,,,{3_ =2 15192, HS}
Othcrnccr‘ucd Ilabllmcs 10,151 I16 314 l" 870 f54 504) 83, 331

Stockholdersiequty S e i 740,2107 7337 600LB1 151077 (326/412) 340,219

Total liabilities and siockholders’ .
equity S1,484.582 31, 289.843: § 33,199 §{(1,132,784)51,674,840
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21. Consolidating Copdensed Financial Information (Continucd)

Consolidating condensed statements of operations for the fiscal years ended April 24, 201 1, April

Far the Fiscal Year Ended April 24, 2011

25, X

a0, <

010 and April 26, 2009 arc as follows:

Isle of Capri Consolidating
Casinos, Inc, Non- and

Isle of Capri

{Parent Guarantor  Guaranter  Eliminating  Casinos, Ine.

St

atement of ()p?rftmf‘ - (lbllgnr! Suhstdlarles Suhsudmn_::sw l‘nlm‘:-'s ('atfglul_llfdt
Revenucs . & o 25 b 27 e T
Casino S — $| 03( 538§ —- S. — .51 036,538
Rooms; 150, be\'erage pa.n-mume} - Y e 37?"’ ;? 5 S
L;.'md othcr,k R o l 669 3 173,229 ﬁ 9 6"6 ‘*’ (9,528) 174 99
(iross revenues 1, 669 1 2(]9 767 19,626 (9, 3"8) 1 211 534
s N AR TO E W .
28¢5 promotional aliowances:2: = S (70( 330) AR e - S (’06 339)
I\ici revenues e 1 669 I ()03,228 9,62_§ (9 3"8) i 004 995

Operting exponses: ..}

Casing s . !58,580
Gaming taxes = 5 ° . o Fe g 0w o Daspligpt - CEREVES LN 5550102
Rooms, food, bcxcrm,c pan—mu!ucl ) ) )

and other 47 838 ’-68 752 9,201 (9,528) 411 ,353
Management feeExpense. (n.\cnue)__‘_(JS WA38). 2354385 r@ L D T
Depreciation and amommuon 1,955 86,513 572, - 89,040
HE] apemung cxpmses Tn 95355, 809 339’”‘ e T08637% £ (07528)5909,075]
Opcmunfw_gome { Ioss:) {7 686) 103,843 ("37} . —-- 95,920
Interest expense; m:tu SN e T(2Q] 634) " 3(615032); xfm' 648, o — = {50, 018)
Gain on e:(_g_qgmshmem of dtbi — — —
Others: w, % R S Qe -
Equity in‘income (luss) of

subsidiaries 31,565 (2,1 70)
].ncome(]oq-;) frm:n commumg b e

N opc ibns bctnrc lmome mx e :

:and néncontolling imérest3 3 - ; .("9 393} £ 4 688
Income tax {pm\-lsmn) benefit 8 037 (9 045) ( 01 ") — (3 600)
[ncame, (1655) fram conimummg The £ Gy % A o B AR - {
L operations s Y8 Ty el Sen i 088 =550, 996@5( 16012 g2(29; 393)*_:.“1 088}

Income (loss) of discontinued

operations 3,452 -— L ATS 11,475)

3,457

NEVTICOME (lose)s 10 B % e 8.474,580. 8233 0,996 5 S19(126)55 2 (30,8 70)$ 24,540
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21. Consolidating Condensed Financial Information {(Continued)

For the Fiscal Year Ended April 25, 2010

Isle of Copri Consolidating
Casinos, Inc. Non- . and Isle of Capri
{Parent Guarantor Guarantor  Ellminating Casigos, Inc.

SlatcmmlofOpcrnlmns - Obligar)__ Subsidiaries Subsidinries Entries  Consolidated’
Reverinesi, 2 g o S o E T e e e T Y
Casino ) — $i,013,386 & — 57— 51"(]!3,386
Rooms,: food? hcuraﬂc, pan BT PR StP;}" e ﬁ} R R BEEE AT s
C:-_._md m_hcr TIRE ~,L,.J €T .. b5.§£___,; % 5 176 59‘) 3 0,653 02 (9,5 T’) ‘173 001

Gmss rcvcmlcs i ] S20 4, 139 93‘\ 9, 654 i (9 577) 1 l91,387
Less promouonal a]]owances I PR Lo -(I‘)l SE) il I 6’" T n(l9lF551)
998 434 9,654 (9,572). 999,836

Ter

Net reventes
[ TR s
Opemtmgcxpcnscs —t

Casino ‘ T T _— 153 838
Gumingtaxes_ 5 > L o % %% PR “:62‘041 A T T Lzso,znu}
Rooms, food, beverage, pan -mutuel
.and other 43,479 370311 3,979 9. ST’) 410,197
Manigement fee expense (re‘cnuc)...___(”6‘197) Fra6107; b fmRs = —"A.,EL*T,--T_;’
Depreciation’and amonization 4115 104,779 610 —. 109,504
Total Operating expenstas s = o S . 23307 H917:366,:4:074:589;_5,a.7(9,572) 12935,780,
O;Jcraung mwmc[luss] ....,07'?) 81,068 '5,'065 — 64,056
Intérést expense s nei...z.‘i'._':;_._..n__:.(lﬂ 3"7}_,__,(6 Sa3) P32y 28 e T (73.601)
Ciain on exunmushmcnt of debt .' - —— —
Olhre o W Lrmer st ST g '-(370) RO A 22 T 203 T0)
Equﬂy in income (loss) of
subsidiaries 13, 8"4 (1,&18) (1.450) (10,556) —
Vlncnme (lo;s)é‘mm cgmmu_mgg“ e el ﬂjg‘h i j‘éi-"'cim*"
(19 MO)___w__IG A T TR T {99I3)
lncomc ax (pmwsmn) bcneﬁt . 17,909 (8 31) {1 304) — 8, 374
Theame (loss) | ﬂ:om CORRUINIRG - 4 -4 qtshias o e, wnri "
Loperiions 25, 0w 23 0 12 -OR2§_A_{10 556),“_3(1 :4:)
Income (Ims) of discontinued
operations (1,732 (1,167 {2.300) 3,467 (1,732)

N Income. (1056 1 ranrt i 150230708 RETA07,: 55 (21 8) .S 2.(7,089)8.54(3,273)
8
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ISLE OF CAPRI CASINOS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
{amounts in thousands, except share and per share amounts)

21. Consolidating Condensed Financial Information (Continued)

For the Fiscal Yenr Ended April 26, 2009

Isle of Capri .Consalidating -
Casinos, Inc. Non- and Iéle of Capri
{Paremi Guarontur' Guarantor- Eliminsting Casinos, Inc.”
Statement of QOperalions ()bltgorl 'suhudhnu Suhsidiaries Entries = Consolidated
N R A ML R AT SO S R T A RN

Casino g —31 055,694 S  — § | —§1,055694

Rooms, food - -beverage, pan smotucl e e B 1@ Yo, j T Gha L ey

[ %and other., c- % - - ors (o0 368 ¥ e247 it ‘f-’*«x 915‘? 0,426, 247,944
Gross revenues: '" 368 1,303,182 2.514 .(9,426)11303.638!
TEss Br promotmnﬂlallowmccs AR (59 603)% s s T e - -(193’(03)

Nm TEVEnUYs 1 IO'J‘ 579 (2’4,.29 1,108,033

368

TS AR AN T
Oneraingexpensessg 2 7o oo S0 o0 o
Casing ~' 151,610 - = 51810
Gamulg xes. e T 00 SO ) e L e i s s, 369,928
Rooms, (ood, bc\cmgc pari- mumrl 3 .

and other 47,096 2,197 9658 (9 4"6) 4291325
Mmagcmenl Ted Sxpensefrevenue) ., {30:681)..° 10 68 b ki *g Ao Poemt
DLpre-:Jznmn and amomzanon 4,853 | 16 982 605 — 122,340
{Ttnal ogerating expenses: ., fuag oo 521 2BNREn 95 F30R B10,2637 0 2 (9,426)'F 9731503
Opcraung income {loss) o (20,900) 156,181 (749) — 134,532
TRte o ERDaIee, nel e e T (19,7761 0 69. 7657 P ML Do i {§9.55%)
Gam on extinguishmient of dgbit, _ _ 5? 693 e o Lo— 57,693
Equity.in. income ne (1055) of & 4 R i 1% e

L,__quh-::d]anes,___.,,______‘_-j 3 ’”’, “* 33 133,,,,,__(13 0 ‘§),, 3(2 508) .f" : 3-’ ,59‘?&7'
Income (loss) fram continuing

operations before income taxes

and nonconuo]]mg interest 70 150 73 388 {3, 669) (37, 397) 102 27

Tncome Lk (pm\-lsxon) benehny . o v Z(8. 9172 N134,058 ‘fﬁ R 936‘;4 i o 1,0 39)
Incame (loss) from continuining.

_,_bnerations 61,233 39 330 (1, 733) (37 597) 61 ’33
InCoc, (1655) from ¢ dlscommued & Q‘:W?@W SRR ?—‘ TR 1-. L,

%o optrations nét ofEx ", ol ,4.__.(1 658).2%55(2,038 A%, 038)" (30618)n 581652 (17 658)
Net income (loss) § 435758 37,292 S{41347) § 4 055 S 43,575
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21. Consolidating Cendensed Financial Information (Continued)

Consolidating condensed stateracnts of cash flows for the fiscal years ended April 24, 2011, Agiril 25. 2010 and April 26, 2009 are a5 follows:

For the Fiscal Year Ended 'Aeril '241 2011

Isle of Capri . Consolidating
Casinos, Ine. . Non- and Iste of Capri
{Parent Guarantor  Guarantoer Eliminallng Casinos, lae.

. Statement of Cash Flows Obligor) lwul:sl:llnrm Subsidiaries l- nlncs Consolidated
Net'cash provided b (used’ m) epemm s i W T :i
I activites e 43 2 x5 2T E}i#m SQE(I 550)$ ]19 078§S~§‘“6 133 S-“" TE 3 -l23 661
Net cash provided by (used in) investing

. aclivities {19 490) (1"9 7431 (J_,lﬁD) "4 756 (144 637)
Ncl cash prov:dcd b) (uscd m) i'mancm T Fous: G
o Bctivitics p Tie & ol TR

Effect of foreign currency etchange rates on
cash and cash equivalents

Ng increase (dccrcas;) in cash ande Tash. e e -‘;, Aﬁ“ G
~equivalents, R [ilke L"_{.;—.(Z 554).,5“15 ] x
Cash and cash equivalents at begmmnl, 3 of- :
the petiod 6, 506 46,994 !4 569 —_— 68,069
Cash and cash cqu:\'dlents at cnd 01 the““ ERE R S W h g Te L e T
U peiivdim = . T 3"9524$4§62 055§ gmg_s NS L VST BT
——-——_ ——8— ]
For the Fiseal Year Ended April 25, 2004
Isle of Capri Consolidating
Casings, Ine. Nan-+ _ and Lsle of Capri
. {Parent  Guaradtor . Guarastor  Elminating  Casines, tie.
. Staicment of Cxsh Flows Obltgor! ‘-ubsldiarles "iubsidlnr]cs Entries Consolidated

Net cash.provided b) (used m) opumnng e

tactivities e 7 o e
Net cash provided by (uscd in) investing

p : = T
85170, D{)?)S*‘"llx 77--5;(2,393) g ﬂswos,as?l

. activities 109,297 (30,321} (l 19, 688) (30,990
Net Caslr pmv;dcd by-(IJSL m) fm‘mcmg 25 TR ‘F":“'b."'ﬂ!s i’ 53%‘ - “n’f

L Ctivities o S T e T G '(109 6a31Ee
Eifect of foretgn currency exchange m:es an

2,438)___;:! 10 688‘ (103;,958)

cash and ‘cash equiv a]t.nN — {19)
Netincrease (ds.cn:mc) in cn:,h and cash»s\ 1{ q‘“' [ X e |
P equivalents ¢ o ) e S 2270) 2207 (78 585)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning nt

the period 8,776 638,681 19,197 — 7 95,5654
Cashand’ cas_h eqyl\a]enls at cnd oflhc e R RN o E,"F‘ Poi-dmgh Ve T WY gt
$ periodE . St TGS Shetn. L TR 9 she. ;§7246, 99455314 3(94’ ; : g
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ISLE OF CAPRI'CASINOS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
{amounts in thousands, except share and per share amounts)

21. Consolidating Condensed Financial Information (Continued)

Far the Fiveal Year Ended) April 26, 2009
Isle of Capri Canselidating
Caiinos, lnc. Nan- and Lsle of Capri.
{Pareni’ Guaranter  Guarapior Eliminating Casinas, Inc.

Statement of Cash Flows . ()hll,-,-:nr) - Suhsidiaries ‘mhmdmnes Fnlnes (‘nmohdatﬂl
Net cash provided by, (usuj m) opemtmg,g £ \% r-»w FT ;
b detivings oo = Sy Y s emmt) SETo5 0T, 51(181980)¢ s___,__J woswi

Net cash p:rowdcd by (uscd m) Lnvesting
;activities 138,049 (26,177} (2 -382)
-NEtcash pruvndrdby (u':ed m) ﬁndm_mg TR TR Ty g
Lo aetivities,_"2n Al et i &(]55,8’4)3'(171*931),,__22 21*-"
Eifect of foreign curreacy exchange rates on

(137,357) _(27.86)

v k!
437«3;7 (157 133)

cash and cash cquxva]cnts _ — — (696 - {696}
N& incresse (det.raaen) : LT TR IR TS
Frequivalemsy o e o e 34 e .JMA ftz‘); - 4__-},864 -
Cash and cash cquwdlems a! bc_i,ummg of

the'peried | 5,362 GT 38R 19 040 . -—: 91 %0
(‘m;h and Tashequ equw-n!cm: at end a1 1h e F,ﬁ FET N "

A o oy W
§EE 76"5 68 641 $"19 l()L St —-S - 96, 654

{efiod o 25 % e Sl i S
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ISLE OAF CAPRI CASINOS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {Continued)
{amounts in thousands, except share and per share amounts)
22. Selected Quarterly Financial lnformation (unaudited)

Our selected quarterly financial information has included reclassifications tor amounts show in our previously filed reponts on Forms 10-Q) to reflect the
discontinued operations presentation for our Freepori, Grand Bahama and UK casino properties,

Fiscal Quarters Ended

July, 25, Octgber. 24, January 23, CApril 24,

] 2010 1010 Wi zon
NCtTevenues s idios ot g o o0 S8 g (PP g g 251021 $1246,651 5. 22232)007, 8¢ <274,416]
Operatmg income . 20,286 20,336 :I 6,293 39,005
Facomc, (toss) from ContiRuIng operations, 2.4 4. é”‘”wgﬁ'”‘ TR e (2, 655) (IR 27 (2 657), s KSE
[néorie (Ioss) from dmommurd opcranuns net of i income 1axes . — 794 -— 2,658
Netjincome (1088)ns g6’ Foee L 2F s i LRGBS Wt g (2 635) (V019N ol (2 657),________10 871}
Edrnmgs “059) per wmmon share basic: )
ilncome {loss), from CONLMIING OPErAIONS . -1, S8 o d v T oS08 o (0 (R} S5 -(Q.O_,G)SJ' = T(0.08)S__+...0:22
_1m.ome (loss) from discantinied operations, net of income taxes - 003 - = 0.07
INetincomie(loss)F e 8 o 7o - Ba-in g oo gla e #SP e (0.0R)S, L {0.03)8. 0 -1(0.08)S.___0:29]

Eammgs {loss) per common | qhnrc dﬂun:d
ST ST T
fincome {loss), fmm commumg opcruuom

-.-r«.-\:»'. - s-r--ﬁ_- T

AR TS e (0.08)S 1 (0:06)S. T (0/08)S, . 1, 0127]

income (1053) from dlscomnmcd operations, net of i income taxes — D03 — 0.07
IR T (o) o g T IR TR T, L 08 (0035, o (008)8: - - 20:29)
Weighted average hasic shares 32442004 32783736 32929065 38,103,040
Weighted avernge GiTVE ShTER. _ poos & o bn et o 2 g3 2,447, 004_332,783:726,__32,920,965.2. 18,232,(%}
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ISLLE OF CAPRI CASINGS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continned)

(amounts in thousands, except share and per share amounts)

22. Sebected Quarterly Financial Information (unaudited) (Confinwed)

Fivcal Quarters Ended

July 16, October I8, January 24, Apri! 15,
2009 . 20091} 1010 2010

N T oV CITICS s e o R B e R e w3 B §257,01415.2+246,055:55 2 227,07 15 ¢ +268:796]

Opcranng income

13,822 2,676 27,619

Incon (lossY from continuing opcrationsy Rt SV A WS 15055_ 5t 2 735 % (1 ,400) 2 6431’1

Income (losa) from discontinued openations, ret of income ldxe:, ;- (150} (8! l) 773 (] 546}
Netincome, (lss) o o2 paf B et < w SgSO05 L E 15627 ®_(10,625) - . 4885
Edmmgs (]oss) Rer common share ba.',lb
flnzomie (I0ss) from “Continuing onerations s 1 3 G Mg eRE TR 0T S 0% .85 20358~ :0:20]
Income {loss) from discontimied aperations, net of income Laxes ) —, (0.02) 0.02 (0 05}y
{Navineome (lods) = = o = TEERT T e st 8 . 0 035 o 005585 {035 0:s]
Eamm?.} tloss‘r PeL.Common, share d dlluted -
Hm.omc floss) from ‘continuing operauons NS a TR W i 03:%:2 - #1007, S AE(05)S s "—WI
lacame [!nss) from discontinued upcrauons nm uf tncome taxw -_— {0.02) 0.02 (0.05)
INGl income (1088)_ ' Shaon e e B REEE RS TR 00335, 5. 005, see s 033355 . ..0.15]
nggh!t:d avenge hasic shares 31,779, 100 32,319,789 ‘2,43? 809 32,445, 378
Weinhied SErARe Aihlve SHAREE. n = v e m B ade b AVRRSHOE | 32311462, -32,4_W 809 33:513.829%

A summary of certain revenues and expenses from our continuing operations impacting our quarterly financial results is as follows:

H

During the sccond quarter of 2010 we recorded an expense recovery of $6,762, representing the discounted value of a receivable
for reimbursement of development costs.

23. Commitments and Contingencies

Operating Leases—The Company leases real estate and various equipment under operating lease agreements. Future minimum payments over the lcase
term of non-cancelable operating keases with initial termos of one year or more consisted of the following a1 April 24, 2011:

Fiscal Years E ndmg
2012 e R PR S e AR & o SRR TI85E
j(‘”'; ey l.')‘..33
10!4 -:\‘?- ETRTTT B . . 5 - J !":‘_‘ e ‘16 -;22“
__Z.{Q_}_)ﬁ“ﬁ ) I.\,?S::
0065, 5.8 Lot i B e 1312
Therafter 420,524
Total MINIMBM Tease, payents i &, 2 o ot mﬂ_,“ T oS 5028543
— —— - ——
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ISLE OF CAPRI CASINOS, INC.

NOTES TO C()NSOI IDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

{(amounts in thousands, except share and per share amounts)
23. Commitments and Contingencies {Continued)

Rent expense from continuing operations was $33,772, 831,672, and 333,109 in fiscal years 2011; 2010, and 2009, respectively. Such amounts include
contingent rentals of $3,427,55,739, and $6,259 in fiscal years 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

Develapment Prajects—On Decerber 1, 2010, our proposed casina in Cape Gicardeau, Missouri was selected by the Missouri Gaming Commission for
priofitization for the 13“’ and final gaming license in the State of Missouri. We had previously emered Into a development agreement with the City of Cape
* Girardeau. We currently estimate the cost of the project at approximately $125,000 with an anticipated opening date by the end of_catcnda{ 2012.

On April 14, 2011, the Nemacolin Woodlands Resort ("Nemacolin") in Farmiington, Pennsylvania was-selected by the Pennsylvania Gaming Control
Board for the final Category 3 resort gaming license. We had previansly entefed into an agreement with Nemacolin to complete the build-out of the casino
space and provide management services for the casine. We currently estimale the project cost at approximately 550,000 and expect to be complete within nine
months of the commencement of construction. The award of the license to Nemaeolin is suhjcc.jl._tu a'30-duy appeal, which cnds on lune 20, 2011, and the
‘obtainment of a management license. o

Legal and Regulatory Proceedings—Our wholly ownéd subsididry, Lady.Luck Gaming Corporation; and several joint venture partners Eave been
defendants in the Greek Civil Counsand the Grcck Administrative Courts in-similar lawsuits brought by the coumrv of Greece. The actions allege that the
defendants failed to make specified paymenis in connection with the gaming license bid process for Patras, Greece. Although it is difficuit 1o determine the
damages being sovght from the tawsuits, the action may seck damages up to that agerepate amount plus interest from the date of the action.

in the Civil Court lawsuit, the Civil Court of First instance ruled in our favor and dismissed the lawsuit in 2001. Greeee apgealed 1a the Civil Appeal
Court and, in 2003, the Court rejected the appeal, Greece then appealed 1o the Civil Suprerie Court and, in 2007, the Supreme Count ruled that the matter was
‘nat properly before the Civil Cowmrts and should be before the Administrative Court.

In the Administrative Coun lawsuit, the Administrative Court of First Lbstance rejected the Tawsuit stating that it was not competent to hear the matter.
Cireece then appealed 1o the Administrative Appeal Court, which court re_]u_tul the appeal in 2003: Greece then appealed 10 the Supreme Administrative
Court, which remanded the matier back to the Administrative Appeal Court for a hearing on the mierits. The re-heanng took place jn 2006, and in 2008 the
Administrative Appeal Court rejected Greeee's appeal on procedural grounds. On December 22, 2008 and January 23, 2009, Greece appealed the ruling to the
Supreme Administrative Court. A hearing has tentatively been scheduled for October 2011,

“The outcome of this matter is still in doubt and cannot be predicted with any degree of centainty, We intend 10 continue a vigorous and appropriate
defense to the claims asserted in this mater, Through April 24, 2011 we havé accrucd an estimated Jiability including interest of $11,710. Qur accrua) is based
upon management's estimate of the original claim by the plaintiffs for lost payments. We continue 1o accrue interest on the asserted claim: We are unable to
estimaite a 10ta] possible loss as information as 10 possible additional claims, if any, have not been asserted or quantified by the plaimtiffs a1 this time,
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ISLE OF CAPRI CASINOS; ING:
NOTES 10 CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cenlinued)
(amounts in theusands, except share and per share amouonts)
23 Commitricnts and Contingencies {Continued)

We and our wholly-owned subsidiary, Riverboat Corporation of Mississippi ("RCM"); are defendants in a:lawsuit filed in the Circuit Court of Adams
‘Cuuntv Mississippi by Silver Land, Inc., alleging breach ofcontruu in connection with our 2006 sale of casino opcrauons in Vicksburg, Mississippi, to a
third party. In January 2011, the court ruled in favor of Silver L.'md iind scheduled a heanng Yor damagcs The hcnnng is currently scheduled-for Sepiember
2011 and Silver Land has nssencd damages of approximately $2 ;400 plus intérest from the original judgment daté inJapuary 2011, The outcome of this
matter is still i in doubt and cannot be predicated with any degree of cerainty. nWe interid o contifiile @ vigorous and appropnate déferise to (e claims asserted
by Stlver Land in-this matter. After damages are assessed, we plan to appeal the Judgment ‘of the «circuit court and.we believe itis more likely than not we-will
obtain a favorable ralimg on appeal.

We are subject to certain federal, state and local environmental protection, health and safety laws, regulations‘and ordinances that npplv to businesses
gencrally, and are subject t0 cleanup requirements at certain of our facilities as a resnlt thereof. We havc not madé, and do not anticipate makln;, matcrial
expenditures, nor do we anm.:pau: 1m.umng delays Wllh respect 10 environmental remediation or protection. However, in part because oar prescm and futere
‘development sites have, in some cases, been used as nmnuﬁctmmg facilities or other facilitics that gencraic materials. that are required to he remediated under
environmental laws and regulations, there can be no guaraniec that additional pre-existing cond.umm will not be discovered and we will niot experience
material liabilities or delays.

We are subject 10 various contingencies and litigation matters and have a-number of unresolved claims. A]:hough the ultimate Jiability of these
contingencies, this litigation and these claims cannol be determined at this time, we believe they will not have a material sdverse effect on our consoliduted
financial posiion; results of operatons or cash flows.

24. Subsequent Events

Due ta flooding along the Mississippi River, certain of our properties were closed during fiscal 2011 and have been ‘closed subsequent to our fiscal
1011} year-end. Our Davenport property closed on April 15, 2011, 10 days prior to t'qcal year cnd and did not reopen until May 1,°2011. Subsequent o year-
end our Caruthersville and Vicksburg propenies were closed for 3 and 17 days rcspet.nw.ly Our Lula pioperty closed on \v!ay3 2011 and pastially rcopcned
on June 3, 2011, Our Natchez property closed on May 7, 2011 and will remain closed u.nnl the- M|55155:pp1 River recedes further. While we maintain insurance
coverage subject to various deduciibles, recogaition of‘ccmm business interruption insurance proceeds are contingent upon filing and settlement ofour
insuraitce claims in tuture periods.

-On June 13, 2011, we granted an option agreement 10 a third party which could result in'thé sale of certain assets uscd at our Lake Charles, Louvisiana
property, The option agreement expires on November 30, 2011 and is stibject to a-number of conditions. The transaction is a alsn subject to regulatory and other
approvals, and passage of a local referendum to relocate the vegsel to a different market, 1fthe option i5 exercited and the transaction, cluscs we would
continue 1o operate pur Lake Charles hotel and ].md based operations and consolidate our gaming operations onto one gaming vessel.
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ISLE OF CAPRI CASINOS, INC.
SCHEDULE II—VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

(1o thousands)

Acconinls Reeeivable Reserve

Balance at Charged to
Begianing of Costs and Deductions from Balance at End
Period Year FxEénscS Rcscn e of h‘ar
e Ended April 247201 Weagd 53wl 385K 41955 B i 08 S 3 g 043); e N e ) 010}
Ycar Ended Apn] 25, 2010 - . 3 106 ) l 00 (4 5‘\1} 1_955

YearEnded Apiil 2652009, 0 Y P T a,@;aé;-' 412§s¢ P »:4973 W o & (128)n B e 51064

Other Receivables Reserve

Balance at Charped to
Reginning of Costs and Deductions from Ralance at End
Period . Yeéar Expenses Reserves of Year
Yeor,Ended Apil 24:201 T £ Tk T S RSIE 2R8NSyt ARTEUG L 1000) . - Sk . 1.882]
Y ear Ended Apnl"S 20|0 - 3,194 e (’él_%]_'h_ 2,882
Y ear Ended Aprl 2652000, = £ (- dm ,;_ﬁ},194 RN S A 223, 1941
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
None.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Ef\’ALU/\TlON OF DISCLOSURE CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures—Rased on their evaluation as of April-24, 2011, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial
Officer haw. concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(c) and 15d-15¢c) under the Exchange Act) were sufficiently
effective tn ensure that the information required to be disclosed by us in this Annual chon was recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the
time periods specified in the SEC's rules and instructions for Form 10-K.

Management's Report on Internal Control over Financial Repérting—Our management is responsible for csmblish'mg and maintaining adequate tnternal
countrol over financial reporting (as defined in-Rule 13a-15(f) under the Exchange’ Act). Our management, including our Chief’ Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Ofﬁ.er, assessed the cfxechvcncss of our internal control over financial rcporung as of April-24, 201 1. In making this assessment, our management
used the criteria ‘set forth by the Committee o[ Sponsoning Organizations of the Trcndway Comnussmn in Lnternal Control—Integrated Framework Our
management has concluded that, 2s of April 24, 201 L, our intemal control over financial reporiing is effecuive based on these criteria, Eriist & Young LLP, an
independent rcg:stered public accounting firm, who andited and reported on the consolidated financial statements mc]uded in this Annual Report on Form 10-
K, has issucd an auestation report on the cffectiveness of the Company's intemal control aver financial reporting as stated in their report which is included in
Item 8.

Changes in-internal Controls over Financial Reporting—There have been'no chafiges in our, internal controls over financial reporting during the quarter
ended April 24,2011 that have materially affecied, or are reasonabiy likely to materially affem our internal contrels over financial reporting. .

Inherent Limitations on Effectiveness of Controls—Our management, including our Chief Exceutive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, does not expect
that our disclosurc controls and procedures or our intemal controls will prevent all errors and all fraud. A control system, ro matter how well conceived and
operated, can provide only reasonable; not absolute, assurance thit the objectives of the control system are met. Further, the design of a comro]'sysicm must
reflect the fact that there are resource constraints, and the benetits of controls must be considered relative to their costs. Because of the inherent limitations in
all contro) systems, no evaluation of controls can provide absolte asswrance that all contral i issucs and instances of fraud, if any, within our company have

been detected,
ITEM9B. OTHER INFORMATION

None.
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PART NI
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

This item has been omiited from this report and is incorporated by reference 1o Isle of Capri's definitive proxy statement to be filed with the U.S.
Sccurities and lixchange Commission within 120 days after the end of thc fiscal year covered by this rcpo‘rt.

ITEM (1. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

This item has been omitted from this report and is incorparated by reference to [sle of Capri's definitive proxy statement 10 be filed with the U.S.
Securities and Exchange Commission within 120 days after the end of the fizcal year covered by this reporc

ITEM 12: SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTALN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER
MATTERS

The information required by this item relating to secusity ownership of management has been omitted from this report and is incorporaied by reference to
Isle of Capri's definitive proxy siatement to be filed with the U.S. Securities and Exchange ( Commission within 120 days after the end of the “fiseal year
covered by this report.

Equity Compensation Plans. The following table provides information about securitics authorized for issuance under our 2009 Long-Term Stock
Incentive Plan for the fiscal 208 1.

{n) () (c}

Number of securitles
Number of seturities remaining dvaitable for
to beissued upon  Weighted-aversge  futurei issuance under
exercise of exercise price of equll) comipensation plans
outstanding nplwm, outstanding optians, (mcludmg securitics
Plan category \\urrﬂllls and rlgms narrsmt\ und riﬂhn ruﬂeclcd in :olumn {2}
Fquny compenv;auon pl'\n\ apprmed by secunlyd g ,5 el a 3
ChAldS e o B ?,1_1__0. i Trfoge, b 1 307 841
Equ1ty wmpemahon_plans not approw:d by seumty
_ holders — — —
e S A R | T A S A T T 110 gl P08 L Tr ‘IR07.8414

ITEM 13, CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSAC’]-]ONS, AND' l)IR]LC_—TOR INDERENDENCE

"This item has been omitted from this report and is incorporated by reference to Isle of Capri's definitive proxy staterpent to be filed with the U.S.
Securities and Exchange Commission within 120 days after the end of the fiscal year covered by this répor.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

This item has been omitted from this report and is incorporated by reference to Isle of Capri's definitive proxy statement o be filed with the U.S.
Securities and Exchange Commission within 120 days after the end of the fiscal year covered by this report.
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PART 1V
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEM EN.T SCHEDULES AND REPORTS ON FORM 3-K
The following documents are {iled as part of this Form 10-K.
{a)  Consolidated financial statements filed as pant of this report are histed under Pat 11, ltem 8,
{b)  The exhibits listed on the "Index to Exhibits™ are filed with this report or incorporated by reference as set forth below.

All other scheditles are omiited becanse they are not applicable or.not required, or because the required information is included in the consolidated
financial statement or notes thereto.
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SKGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 13(d) of the Securitics Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has’duly caused this report to'be signed on its
behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

ISLE OF CAPRI CASINOS, INC.

Dated: June 16, 2011 fsf VIRGINIA M. MCDOWELL

_ Virginia M. MéDpwe_i!,'
. _ Chief Executive Officer and Prasident
Pursuant 1o the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this repart has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the
registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated. '

Dated: June 16, 2011 s/ VIRGINIA M. MCDOWELL

Virginia M. McDowell,
Chief Executive Olfiéer and President
{Principal Executive Officer)

Dated: fune 16, 2011 #s/ DALE R. BLACK

Dale R. Black,

Senior Vice President and Chiel
Financial Officer
(Principai Financial and Accounting
Officer)

Dated: Jupe 16, 2011 fs/ JAMES B. PERRY

James B. Perry,
Executive Chairman of the Board

Dated: Junc 16, 2011 fs/ ROBERT 8. GOLDSTEIN

Raobert S. Goldstein,
Vice Chairman of the Board

Dated: June 16, 2011 ' fs/ W.RANDOLPH BAKER

W. Randolph Baker,
Director

Dated: Jupe 16, 2011 fs/ ALAN 1. GLAZER

Alan ). Glazer,
Director
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Dated: June 16, 2011

Dated: June 16, 2011

Dated: June 16, 2011

Dated: June 16, 2011

24

/st JEFFREY D. GOLDSTEIN

Jeffrey D. Goldstein,
Director

IS/ RICHARD A, GOLDSTEIN

Richard A: Goldstein,
Director

s/ GREGORY ). KOZICZ

Gregory J. Kozicz,
Director

s/ LEE §. WIELANSKY

Lee S. Wielansky,
Director




EXHIBIT
NUMBER

INDEX TO EXHIBITS

‘DESCRIFTION s

3.1=

32

4.1

4.2

43

10.1

10.4%

10.6¢

(074

10.8%
10.9¢
10.10+

10114

10,124

Amended and Réstated Certificate of Incampétition of Isle of Cupti Casinos, Ln¢.

Bylaws, as amended {incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Current Repon on Form 8-K filed on
June 25, 2010) .

Lndenture; dated asof March 32004, among ‘lele of Capri Casinos, Inc., the subsidiary guarantors namied
merem :md. U S..Bank National Assnmauon as{Trustee (Lncarporated by reference te Exhibit 4.3 to ﬂze
Registration Statemerit o Form S:4 filed oI May 12, 2004}

h:déhmrcz_daged as of March 7:52_-01:1 , 'amongihc Compaity, the guarantors riamed therein and U.S. Bank
Natienal Association, a$ trustee {Ificorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Current Report on
Form 8-K filed on March 8;2011)

chtstratmn Rmht‘l Agreement, dated March:7,2041 ;among the Company, the guarantors named therein
and Credit Suisse Securitics {USA)LLC, as rcprcscntatlvc of the several'initial purchascrs named therein

(Incarporated by, reterence 10 Exhibit 4 2 m the Currenl Report on'Form §:K filed on March 8,2011)

Agreement, dated January 19, 2011 »'D¥ and among'lsle ot Capn Casinos, Inc.. and Mr. Jeffrey D.
Goldstein, Mr. Robert §. Gnld:tcm chhard A Guldstem and GFIL Holdings, LLC {Incorporated by
refcrencc 16 “Exhibit 10, 1 fo. 1he Currun! Repon on Form '8k filed an January 19, 2011}

Amendmem Number One to' Gowma‘ ce Agreement, dated February 23, 2011, ‘by and smong Lsle of
Capii Cgsinos, Inc., GFIL- lluldmgs . Jeffrey, n. Go]dstcm, Robert S Goldstein and Richard A.
Goldstem (]ncorporated by reference to Exhlbn 10,1 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q) filed on
February 28, "01 1)

- ‘Aménded Casino America, Inc. 1993 Siock Opunn Plan (Incomorated by reference 1o the Proxy Statement

filed on August 25, 1997)

Ainendéd dnd Restated Isle of Capri Casinos, ne, 2009 Long-Term Stock Incentive Plar {Inéorporated by
reference 16.Bxhibit 10,1 10 the Quaner]ychoh on Form 10-Q filed on Deccrber 4, 2009}

Isle'of Capri Casinos, [ne. Corporate Level Lncentive Compensanon Plan {Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to the Quarterly:Repart on Farm 10- Q filed 'on-December 3, 2010)

Isle ofC;lpri Casinos, Inc. Deferfed Bonus-Plan (incomorated by reference 1o the Proxy-Stiement fited on
August'15, 2000)

Isle of Capri Casinos; Ine. Deferred Bonus Plan Code Scction 409A Compliance Amendment

isle of Capri Casinos, Inc.'s Amended and Restated Deferred Compensation Plun
Isle of Capri Casino, lnc. Amended and Restated Deferred Compensation Plan Adopiion Agreement

Letter of Stock Option and Compensation Committee dated November 1, 2008 {[ncorporated by reference
10 Exhibit 99.1 to the §-K filed on'November 6, 2008)

tsle of Capri Casinos, Inc.'s 2003 Non-employee Director Deferred Compensation Plan (Incorporated by
reference 1o Exhibit 10.32 1o the Quarterly Report Form 10-Q filed on-Murch 1, 2003)
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"EXHIBIT

NUMBER

DESCHIPTION

1013t

10144

10.15¢

10.161

10,171

10.18%

Isle of Capri Casinos, lne Non-employee Director Deferred Compensation Plan
Iske of Capri Casinos, In¢, Medical Expense Reimburseiment Plan (MERP)

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, dated Jantiary 18, 2011, between Virginia M. McDawell
and Isle of Capri Casinos, Inc. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 1o the Curren: Report on Form 8-
K filed on January 18, 2011)

Emplbymcnt Agreement dated as of December 3, 2007, between Isle of Capri Casinos, inc. and Dale R
Black (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 1o the Current Report on Form 8-K filed on December 7,
2007)

Amended and Restated Erployment Agreement, dated January 18; 2011, between James B. Perry and Isle
of Capri Casirios, lic. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 1o the Currcm chon 60 Form $-K.filed
on January 18,201 1)

Employment Agreement, dated a3 of July 1, 2008 between Isle of Capri Casinos, Inc. and Edmund L.
Quatmann, Jr_(Incomorated by reference 1o Exhibii 10.18 10 the Annual Report on Form 10-K filed on.
July 11, 2008) .
isle of Capri Casinos, lnc. Employment Agreement Compliance Addendum—Dale R Black {Incorporated
by reference 1o Exhibit 10.3 10 the Quarterly Report on Furm 10-Q filed on March 6, 2009)

Isle of Capri Casinos, Ing, Employmein Agrccmem Compliance Addendum—Edmund L. Quatmann, Jr.
{lncorporated by reference to Exhibii 10.4 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed on March 6, 2009)

Employment Agrecruent dated as of August 6, 2009, ht::tv-'ccn Isle of Capri Casinos, Inc. and Eric Hausler
{Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.19"to the; Antiual Re port on Form L0:K/A filed on June 8, 2010)

Employment Agreement dated as of October 30, 2008, between Isle of Capri Casinos, Inc. and Paul Keller
{Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.20 to the Annual Report on Form 10-K/A filed on June 8, 2010)

Form Employment Agreement for Senior Vice Presidents. of Isle of Capri Casinos; Inc. {Incerporated by,
reference to'Exhibit 10.1910 the Annuval Réport on Form 10-K filed on fuly 11, 2008)

Form Stock Option Award Agreement {Incorporated by reference 1o Exhibit 10.20 to the Annual Report
on Form 10-K filed on .Fuly 11, 2008)

Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement (Incorporated by retercnce to Exhibit 10.22 to the Annuoal
Report of form 10-K tiled on June 23, 2009) )

Credit Agreement, dated as of Juby 26, 2007 ameng Isle;of Capri Casinos, [nc., the Lenders listed herein,
Credit Suisse, Cayrhan Island Branch, as administrative agent, issuing bank and swing line lender, Credit
Suisse Securities (USA) LLC, as lead arrunger and bookrunmer, Deutsche Bank Securities [nc. and

CIRC Warld Markets Corp., as cu-syndication agents and U.S. Bank, N.A. and Wachovia Bank, Natienal
Association, as co-documeniation agents (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Current Report
on Form 8-K filed on July 31, 2007) '
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EXHIBIT
NUMBER

DESCRIPTION

[0.27

10.28

10.29

10.30

10.31

10.32

10.32

10.34

10.35

10.36

Security Agreement, dated as of July 26, 2007, smong Isle of Capri Casinos, Inc., its material subsidiaries
party thereto, and Credit Suisse, Caynmn [s]ands Hranch :as Administrative Agcm for and representative
of the financial institutions panty to'the Credit Agrtcmenl and any Hedge Providers (a5 deiined therein)
(Incorporatéd by reference to Exhibit 10.1 1o the Currerit Reporl on Form 8-K filed on July 31,2007)

First Amendment to Credit Apreement, dated as of February 17, 2010, aitiong the Company, as borrower,
the financial institutions listed therein; as-Jenders, Credit:Suisse AG, Cayman Islands Branch, as
administrative agent and the other agents | referred 0 lhensm  among Tsle of Capr: Casinos, Inc., the Lenders
listed therein (Incorporated by refcrence to E\thblt 10.1-to the Current Report on Form §-K nlcd on
February 29, 2010) .

Second Amendment to Credit Agreement, dated as of March, 25, 2011, among Lsle of Capni Casinos, Inc,,
as borrower; certain: subsidiaries of lske of Capri Casinos, Inc:, the ﬁnancml institutions iisted therein, as
lenders, Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, ag .:dnnmslmtuc agml {as successor to Credit Suisse
AG, Cayman [slands Branch (ﬂkla Cmdtt Sulsse Cayman Islands Branch}}, and the other agents referred
{o therein (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10:1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed on

March 31,-2011)

Biloxi Waterfront Project Lease dated May 12, 1986 with Point Cadet Development Corporation {Biloxi)
(Incorporated by reference to zn exhibit to thé Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
Apri} 30, 1992)

Addendum io Lease Agreement, dated August 1,.1992, between the City of Biloxi, Mississippi, Poimt
Cadet Development Corparation (Biloxi) (Incorporited by referenve to an exhibit to the Annval Report on
Form §0-K for the fiscal year ended April 30, 1992)

Second Addendum 1o Lease, dated April 9, 1994, by and between the City of Biloxi, Mississippi, Point
Cadet Development Corporauon the Biloki Pont Commission-and: Riverboat Corporation of Mississippi
(Biloxi) (Incorporated by reference 1o an g:xhlbit 10 the Annual Repon on 'Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ended April 30, 1994)

Third Addendum to Casina Lease, dated April 26, 1993, by and between the Chy of Biloxi, Mississippi,
Point Cadet Development Corpor.nmn the Bitoxi Port Commission and Riverboat Corparation of
Mississippi (Bllo:u) (Incorporated by reference 1o an éxhibit to thé Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
fiscal year ended April 30, 1995)

Biloxi Waterfront Project Lease dated as of April 9, 1594 by and between the City of Biloxi, Mississippi
and Riverboat Comporation of Mississippi (Biloxi) (Incorporated by reference 10 an exhibit to the Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the tiscal year énded - April 30,.1994)

First Amendment to Biloxi Waterfront Project Lease {Hoiel Lease), dated as of April 26, 1993, by and
between Riverboat Corparation of Mississippi (Biloxi) (Incorporated by reference 1o an exhibit 1o the
Annuil Report on Form (0-K for the fiscal vear ended April 30, 1995)

Point Cadet Compromise and Settlement Agreemient, dated August 15, 2002, by and between the
Sceretary of State of the Siate of Mississippi, the City of Biloxi, M ississippd, the Board of I'rustecs of
State Institutions of Higher Learning and Isle of Capri Casinoes, Inc. and Riverboat Corporation of
Mississippi {Biloxi) (Incorporated by reference 10 an Exhibit 10.29 10 the Annual Report on Form 10-K
filed on July 30, 2007)
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10.37

19.38

10.39

10.40

10.41

10.42

10.43

10.44

10.45

10.46

1047

Biloxi Waterfront Project Garage-Podium Lease and: Easement dated as of August 15, 2002, by and’
between the:Secretary of State of the.State of Mississippi, the City of BiloXi, Mississippi, the Board of
Trustees of Stare Institutions of Higher Learning and 1sle of Capri Casinos, Inc. and Riverboat Corparation
of Mississippi (Biloxi) {Incorporated by reference to an Exhibit 10.30 to the Annual Report on Form 10-K
filed on July 30, 2007)

Amended 2nd Restated Berth Rental Agreement dated May 12, 1992 between the Biloxi Port Commission
and Riverboat Corporation of Mississippi {Biloxi) (Incorperated by reference to an exhibit to the Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended April 30, 1992)

Second Amendment 10 Berth Rentzl Agrecment dated August 13; 1996, 113) Third Amendnent w Berth
Rental Agreement dated December. 14,:1999 and {iii)-l.etter Agreement to Berth Rental Agreement dated
Ociober. 17, 2006 (Biloxi) (lncnrpomxeﬂ oy reference to"an Exhibit 10.32 1o the Annual Report on

Form 10-K filed on July 30, 2007)

Agreement on Casino Berth Tract dated as of Aupust 15, 2002, S1ate conscnied to dredging, wharfing and
filling by Isle of areas 10 reconfigure Beéith Trict 107 accommodate a larger gaming vessel {Biloxi)
(Incomporated by reference to an Exhibir’10,33 to the Annual Report on Form LO-K {iled on July 30, 2007)

Amended and Restated Lease, dated as of April 19, 1999, among Part Resources, Inc. and CRU, Inc., as
landlords and $1. Charsles Gaming Conipany, Inc,, as tenant (St. Charles) (Incorporated by reference to an
Lixhibit 10.28 to the Annual Report on Forny'| 0:K filed on July 02, [999)

Lease of property in Coahoma, Mississippi dated as of November 16, 1993 by and among Roger Allen
Johnson, Jr., Charles Bryant Johnson and Magnolia Lady, Inc. {Incorporated by reference to the
Registration Statement on Form S-4/A tiled June §9; 2002)

Addendum to 1.case dated as of June 22, 1994 by and smong Roger Allen Johnson, Jr., Charles Bryant
Johnson and Magnolia Lady, Inc. {Incorporated by refercnee to an Exhibit 10.46 10 the' Annual Repori on
Farm 10-K fiicd on July 28, 2000).

Second addendumn to Lease dated as of Qutuber 17, 1995, by und among Roger Allen Johnson, Jr., Charles
Bryant Johnson and Magnolia Lady, lnc. (Incorporated by reference 10 an Exhibit 10,47 to the Annual
Report on Form [0-K filed on July 28, 2000)

Master Lease between The City of Boonville, Missouri and 10C-Boonville, Inc. formally known as Davis
Gaming Boonville, Inc. dated as of July 18, 1997, {Incorporated by reference o an Exhibit 10.40 1o the
Annual Report on Form 10-K filed on July 11, 2008)

Amendment 1o Master Lease between The City of Boonvilie, Missoun and 10C-Boonville, Inc. formally
known as Davis Gaming Boonville, lac. dated as of April 19, 1999. (Incorporated by reference 1o an
Exhibit 10.41 io the Annual Report on Form 10-K filed on July 11, 2008)

Second Amendment to Master Lease between The City of Boanvilie, Missouri and 10C-Boonville, inc.
formerly known as Davis Gaming Boonville, Inc. dated as of September 17, 2001. (Incorporated by
reference to an Exhibit 10.42 to the Annual Report on Form 10-K filed on July -1, 2008)
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Third Amendment 10 Master [ease between. The City of Boonville, Missouri and 10C-Boonville, Ine.
formesly known as Gold River's Boonville Resort, Inc. and Davis Gaming Boonwille, Inc. dated as of
November 19, 2001. {Incorporaied by reference 1o an Exhibit 10.43 to the Annval Report on Form 10-K
filed on July 11, 2008)

Amended and Restated Leasc Agreement by and between the Port Autherity of Kansas City, Missouri and
Tenant datcd-as of August 21, 1995 {Incorporated by reference to'Exhibit 10.44 ro the Annual Report on
Form 10-K filed June 23, 2009}

First Amendment to Amended @nd Restated Lease Agreerentby and between the Port Authority of
Kansas City, Missouri and Tenant dated as of October 31, 1995 {Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.45 to the Annual Report on Form 10-K filed June 25, 2009)

Second Amendment to Amended and Restated Lease Agreement by and between the Port Authority of
Kansas City, Missouri and Tenant duted as of Jine 10, 1996 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.46 to
the Annual Repont on Form 10-K filzd June 25, 2009) '

Assignment and Assumplion Agreement (Lease Agreement) between Flamingo Hilon Riverboa
Casino, LP, Isle of Capri Cusinos; tnc..and H0C-Kansas City, ne. dated as of June 6, 2000. {Incorporated
by reference 10 an Exhibit 10.44 10 'the Annual Report on Form 10-K filed on July 11, 2008)

[.ease and Agreement-Spring 1995 betwcen Andrianakas Limited Lia;bility Company and [sle of Capri.
Black Hawk, LLC. dated as of August 13, 1995, (Incorporated by reference to an-Exhibit 10.45 to the
Annual Report on Form 10-K filed on July L1, 200%8)

Addendum to the Lease and Agreement-Spring 1995 between Andrianakos Limited Liability Company
and Lsle of Capri Black Hawk, [LLC. dated as of April 4, 1996. {Incorporated by reference 10 an
Exhibit 10.46 10 the Annual Report on Form 10-K filed on July 11, 2008)

Second Addendum to the Lease and Agreement-Spring 1993 berween Andrianakos Limited Liability
Company and Isle of Capri Black Hawk, LLC. dated as of March 21, 2003.{Incorporated by reference 10
an Exhibit 10.47 10 the Annual Report on Form 10-K tiled on July 11, 2008)

Third Addendum to the Lease and Agreement-Spring 1995 between Andrianakos Limied Liability
Company and 1sle of Capri Black Hawk, LLC. dated as of April 22, 2003. {Incorporated by reference 1o an
Exhibit 10.48 1o the Annual Report on Form 10-K filed on July 11, 2008)

Operator's Contraci dated August 11, 1994; as amended by: (1) Amendment to Operator's Contract dated
August 15, 1998: and (ii) Second Amendment to Operator's Contract datéd June 30, 2004 {Bettendorf)
(Incorporated by reference to an Exhibii 10.38 10 the Annual Report on Form 10-K filed on July 30, 2007)

Development Agreement by and between 1OC-Cape Girardean, LLC and the City of Cape Girardean,
Missouri dated as of October 4, 2010 {Incarporated by reference to Exhibir 10.2 10 the Quarterly Repont on
Form 10-Q filed on December 3, 20t

Si_g,niﬁcam Subsidiaries of Esle of Capri Casinos, [ne.

Consent of Emnst & Young LLP

Certification of Chief Executive Oifficer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(n) under the Sceurities Exchange Act of
1934
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Exhibit 3.1
Form of

AMENDED ANDRESTATED
CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION
of -
ISLE OF CAPRI CASINOS, INC.

Pursuant to Sections 242 and 245 of the General Corporation Law of Delaware

Isle of Capri Casinos, Inc., a corporation organized and L\ustmg under the General Corporation Law of Delaware, does
hereby certify as follows:

(1) The name of the corporation is Isle of Capri Casinos;:Inc. The name under which it was originally incorporated was
Kana Corporation, The date of filing of its original Certificate of Incorporation was February 14, 1990.

(2) This Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation was duly adopted by the Board of Directors of the
corporation and its stockholders in accordance with the provisions of Séctions 242 and 2435 of the Geoeral Corporation Law of
Delaware.

3) This Amended and Restated Certificate of [ncorporation restares and integrates and further amends the Certificate of
Incorporation of the corporation, as heretofere amended or supplemented.

4 The text of the Certificate of Incorporation, as heretofore amended br supplemented, is amended and restated in its
-entirety as follows:

FIRST: The name of the corporation is Isle of Capn Casinos, Inc. (hercinaﬂer.in this Amended and Restated Certificate of
Incorporation called the "Corporation™).

SECOND: The registered office of the Corporation in the State of Delaware is'located at 1209 Orange Street in the City of
Wilmington, County ot New Castle. The name of the registered agent of the Corporation is The Corporation Trust Company.

THIRD: The purpose of the Corporation is to cngage in any lawful act or activity for which corporations may be organized
under the General Corporation Law of Delaware.

FOURTH: Thc aggregate number of shares the Corporation has authority to'issue shall be 63,000,000 shares, of which
60,000,000 shares of the par value 3.01 shall be designated as "Common Stock,” 3,000,000 shares of e par value $.01 shall be
designated as "Class B Common Stock,” and 2,000,000 shares of the par valuc $. 01 shall be designated as "Preferred Stock.”

Authority is hereby expressly granted to and vested in the Board of Directors of the Corporation to provide for the issue of
the Preferred Stock in onc or more series and-in conncection therewith toXfix by resolutions providing for the issuc of such series the
number of shares to be included'in such series and the designations and such voting powers, full or limited, or no voting powers, and
such of the preferences and relative, participating. optional or other




speeisl rights, and the qualifications, limitations of restrictions thereof, of such series of the:Prefermed Stock, to the full extent now or
‘ereafter permitted by the laws of the State of Delaware: Without: hmmng the-generality of the’ “grant of authority contained-in the
preceding sentence, the Board of Directors is authorized to.determine any orall’of the following, and the shares of each:series may
vary from the shares of any other.series in any or all of the’ followmg respects

L. The number.of shares of such series (which may subsequently'be increased, except as otherwise provided by the
resolutions of the Board of Directors providing for the issue-of such Series, or'decreased to « mumber not less than the number of
shares then outstcmdmg) and the distinctive designation thereof;

2. The dividend rights, if any, of such series, the dividénd pl‘Ef&l‘EnLLb if any, as'between such series and any other
class or series of stock, whether and the extent to which sherS of such series shall be entitled to-participate in dividéiids with shares of
any-other series or class of stock, whether and the extent to which dividends-on. such sertes shall be cumulative, and any limitations,
restrictions or conditions on the payment of' such dividends;

3. The time or timés during which, the price or prices at which; and-any other terms or conditions on which the shares
of such series may be redeemed, if redeemable; .

4. - The rights'of such series, and the preferences,:if any, as:between such series and any other clidss or series of stock, in
the vent of any volunhuy oF involuntary l:qu:dauon drssolunon or winding up of the Curpomtmn and wht.ther and the extent to

3. The voting powers, if any, in addition toithe,vufi"ng puwers preseribed by law of shares of such series, and the terms
of exercise of such voting powers; '

6. Whether shares of such series shall be.convertible into or exchangeable for shares of any other series.or class of
stock, or any other securitics, and the terms and conditions, if any, applicable o stch riglits; and

7. The terms and conditims_.-ifany: of any purchase, retirement or sinking fund which may be provided for the shares
of such series. ) .

Authortty is also hereby expressly granted to.and vested in the Board of Directors of the Corporation to establish, by
resolution adopted and filed in the manner. provided by law, onc or more-series of:Class B Common Stock and to fix the pawers,
preférences, rights and limitations of such class or Series.

FIFTH: The number of dll‘EL'lOl’b which shall constinte thc whute Board of Directors of the Corporation shall be the number
from time to time fixed by the Boardtof Directors but in.no! ‘event shall be less than five or moré ‘than fificen.

. Any vacancy on the Board of Directors, iicluding any such vacancy, that results from an increase in the number of directors,
may be flled by o majority of the directors then in office, although less, than 2 quorum; or by asole femaining director.
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SIXTH: The Board of Dircctors shall have such powers as are permitted by the General Corporation Law of Delaware,
including without limitation and without the assent or vote of the stockholders, to maké, alter, amend, change, add to, or repeal the
Bylaws of the Corporation; to fix and vary the amount to be reserved as working capital; to authorize and cavse to be executed
mortgages and tiens upon all the property of the Corporation, or any part thereofto determine the usc and disposition of any surplus
or net profits over and above the capital stock paid in; and to fix the times for the declaration and payment of dividends.

SEVENTH: To the fullest cxtent permitted by the General Corporation Law of Delaware or any other law of the State of
Delaware as the same exists or may hereafter be amended, a director of the Corporation shall not be liable (o the Corporation or its
stockholders for monetary damages for breach of fiduciary duty a$ a dircctor.

EIGHTH: The Corporation shall indemnify and advance expenses to cach person who serves as an officer or director of the
Corporation or a subsidiary of the Corporation and cach person who serves or may have served at the request of the Corporation as a
director, officer, employee, or agent of another corporation, parmership, joint venture, trust or other eaterprise from any hability
incurred as a result of such service to the fullest-extent permitted by the General Corporauun Law of Delaware as it may fromi time o
time be amended, except with respect to an action commenced by ‘such director or officer against the Corporation or by such director
or officér as a derivative action By or in the right of the Corporation. Each person who is or was an cmployee cor agent of the
Corporation and each officer or dircctor who commences any action against the Corporation or a derivative action by or in the right of
the Cerporation may-be similarly indenimified and receive an advance of expenscs at the discretion of the Board of Dircetors,

The indemnification and advancement of cxpenses provided by, or granted pursuant to, this Amended and Restated
Certificate of Incorporation shall not be deemed exclusive of any other rights to which those seeking indemnification or advancement
of expenses may be entitled under any agreement, vote.of stockhalders or disinterested dircctors or otherwisce, both as to action in his
afficial-capacity and as to action in another capsacity while holding:such office,

The Corporation may purchasc and maintain insurance on behalf of any person who 15 or was a director, officer, employee or
agent of the Corporation, or is or was serving at the request of the Corporation as a director, officer, employee or agent of another
corporation, parmership, joint venture, trust or other enterprisc against any liability asscreed against him and incurred by himin any
such capacity. or arising out of his status as such, whether or not the Corporation would have the power to indemnify him against such
liability under this Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation or the laws of the State of Delaware.

The-indemnification and advancement of expenses provided by, or granted pursuant to, the Amended and Rcsta(_éd'Ccrtiﬁcatc
of lncorporation shall continue as o a person who has ceased to be™n director, officer, employee or agent and shall inure to the benefit
of the heirs, executors and administrators of such a person.

NINTH: No amendments to this Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation or repeal of any Article of this
Amended and Restated Certificate of [ncorparation shall increase the lntuluy or alleged liability or reduce or limit the right 1o
indemnification of any directors, -




officers or employees of the Corporation for acts or omissiuns of such person eccurring prior w such amendment or repeal.

TENTH: Whenever a compromise or arrang,emenl is proposed between the Corporation and its creditors or any class of
them andfor between the Corporation and its stockholders or any class of them, any court'of equitable jurisdiction within the State of
Delaware may, on the applicaticn in 2 summary way of the Corporation or of any-creditor or stockholder thereof or on the application
of any receiver or receivers appointed for the Corporation under Section 291 of Title 8 of the Delaware Code-or on the application of
trustecs in dissolution or of any receiver or receivers appointed for the Corporation under the provisions of Section 279 of Title 8 of
the Delaware Code, order a meeting of the creditors or class of creditors, and/or of the stockholders or class of stockholdars of the
Corporation, as the case may-be, to be $ummoned in such manner as the said court directs. If a-majority in number representing thiree
fourths in value of the creditors or class of creditors, and/or of the stockholders or class of stockholders of the Corporation, as the case
may be, agree to any compromise or arrangement and 1o any reorganization of the Corporation as consequence of sitch compromise or
arrangement, the said compromisc or arrangement and the said reorganization shall, it sanctioned by the court to which the-said
application bas been made, be binding on all the creditors or.class of creditors, and/or on all the stockholders or class of stockholders,
of the Corporation, as the case may be, and also’on the Carporation.

ELEVENTH:

1L.1)  No person may become the Beneficial Owner of five percent (3%) or mare of any class or series of the
Corporation's issucd and outstanding Capital Stock unless such Person agrees in writing to: (i) provide to the Gaming Authorities
information regarding such Person; including without limitation theféto, information regarding other gaming-related activities of such
Pérson and financial statements, in such form, and with stich updates, as may be required by any Gaming Authority; (ii) respond to .
written or oral questions that may be propounded by any Gaming Authority; and (iil) consent to the performance of any background
investigation that may be required by any Gaming Authority, including without limitation thereto, an investigation of any criminal
record of such Person.

11.2)  Notwithstanding any other provisions of this Amended and Restated Centificate of Incorporation, but subject o the |
provisions of any resolution of the Board of Directors creating any serics of Class B Common Stock or any class or series of Preferred
Stock or any-other class of stock which hds a preference over Common Stock:with regard to dividends or upon liguidation,
outstanding shares of Capital Stock held by a Disqualificd Hotder shall be subjuct to Tedemption at any time by the Corporation by
action of the Board of Directors. The terms and conditions of each redemption shall be as follows:

(1) The Redemption Price of such shares may be paid in cash, by promissory note, or both, as reguired by the
applicable Gaming Authority and, if not so required, as the Board of Directors c[ccts

(b) If less than all the shares held by Disqualificd Holders are to be redeemed, the shares 10 be redeemed shall
be setected in such manner as shall be determined by the Board




of Directors, which may include selection first of the most recemly purchased shares thereof, selection by lot, or selection in any other
manner determined by the Board of Directors,

() If the Board of Dircetors deems it necessary or advisableito redeem any shares of Capital Stock held by a
Disqualified Holder, the Corporation shall give a notice of redemption to the D;squal:ﬁt,d Holder which shall set forth the (i)
Redemption Date, (i) the number of shares of Capital Stock 1o be redcemed and (iii) the Redemption Price and the manner of
payment therefor,

(d) From and after the Redemption Date or suchearlicr date as mandated by a Gaming Authority or pertinent
state or federal law, any and all rights of whatever nature which may be held by the Beneficial OQwners of shares selected for
-redemption (lncludmg any rights to vote of part:c:pdtt: in dividends declared on stock of the same class or series as such shares) shall
cease and terminate and they shall thenceforth be eniitled only to receive the.cash or Redemption Securities payable upon redemption.

(e} Such redemption-shall be upon: such other terms and conditions as the Beard of Directors shall determine.

i1.3) A Disqualified Holder shall indemnify and hiold harmless the Corporation and its Affiliates for any and all losses,
costs and expenscs, including attomeys' fees, incurred by the Corporation or its Affiliates as a result of, or arising out of, such
Disqualified Holder's ownership or control or faiture to-promptly divest itself of any shares of Capital Stock.

11.4)  Capitalized terms used in this Article ELEVENTH shall have the meanings provided below:.

"Affiliate” and "Associate” shall have the respective meanings ascribed to such terms in Rule 12b-2 lmdt:r the. General Rules
and Regulations under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as Amendcd (the "Act”). The tenm "registrant” as used in said Rule 12b-2
shall mean the Corporation.

"Benefictal Owner" shall mean-any; Pcrson who, singly.or together with any of such person's Affiliates or Associates, directly
or indirectly, has "beneficial ownership" of Capital Stock (as defermined-pursuant to Rule 13d:3 of the Act).

"Capital Stack" shall mean Comman Stock, Class B Commeon Stock, Preferred Stock, or any other class or series of stock.of
the Corporation.

"Disqualified Holder" shall mean any Beneficial Owner of shares of Capital Stock of the Corporation or any of its
Subsidiaries, whose holding of shares of Capital Stock, when taken together with the holding of shares of Capital Stock by any other
Beneficial Holder may in-the judgment of the Board 6f Dircetdrs, result'in (i) the disapproval, modification, or non-refewal of ariy
contract under which the Corporation.or any Subsidiary has sole or shared authority to manage any gaming operations, or (i) the loss
or non-reinstatement of any license.or franchise from any governmental agency held by the Corporatlon or any Subsidiary to conduct
any portion of the business of the Corporation.or any Subsidiary, which license or franchise is-conditioned upon some or all of the
" 'holders of Capital Stock meeling certain criteria.




"Guming Authorities” shall mean state gaming authorities, the National Indian  Gaming Commission, and any other tribal or
governmental authornity regulating any form of gaming that has jUHdeLtIOI’l over the Corporation or any Subsidiary.

"Person” shall mean any natural person, corporation, finn, partnership, association, govemment, governmenial agency, or any
other entity, whether acting in an individual, fiduciary, or any other capacity.

"Redemption Date” shall mean the date fixed by the Board of Directors for the redemption of any shares of Capital Stock of
the Corporation pursuant to Section 11.2.

"Redt:mpnon Pnu, shall mean the per share price for the redemption of any shares of Capital Stock to be redeemed
pursuant to Seetion 11.2, which shall be (A) that price (if any) required to be paid by the applicable Gaming Authority or state or-
federal law, or (B)if no o such price is required, that amount deemed reasonable by the Board of Directors (which may include, in the
Corporation's disctetion, the original purchase price per share of the sceurities to be redeemed); provided, howcever, that the price per
share represented by.the Redemption Price shall in no.event be in cxcess of (i) the closing sales price of the securities on the nationat
securities exchange on which such shares arc then listed on the date the Redemption Notice is delivercd to the Disqualified Holder by
the Corporation, or (ii) if the shares are not then so listed, then the mean between the reprutntatw:. bid and the ask price a5 quoted by
any other generally recognized reporting system.

"Subsidiary” shall mean any company of which a majority of any class of cquity security lb broeficialiy owned by the
Corporation.

TWELFTH: Elections of directors need not be by written batlot unless and except to the extent that the Bylaws of the
Corporation so provide.

THIRTEENTH: Except as otherwise may be required by law or pursuant fo the rights of any series of Preferred Stock or
Class B Common Stock, special meetings of stockholders may only be called by (i) the Chairman of the Board of Directors, if there be
one, (ii) the Vice Chairman of the Board of Dircetars, if there be.on, (iit) the Chief Exccutive Officer, if there be one, (iv) the
President of {v) the Board of Directors, and no specml meeting of stockholders may be called by any other PErson Of PErsons.

F OURTEENTH: The Corporation herehy reserves-the right-to amend, alter, change or,repeal any provision contained'in
this Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation in the.mamiter now or hereaftér. prescribed by the Generat Corporation Law of
Delaware and all nghts conferred on stockholders herein granted are subject to this reservation.

FIFTEENTH:

15.1)  Special Vote Requirement

(a) The affirmative vote or consent of the holders of at [east two-thirds of the voting power of the Corporation,

voling as a single class, shall be required for (i) the adoption of any- agreement providing for the merger or consolidation of the
Corporation with or into any




otheT corporation or entity, or simildr transaction in which the shares of stock of the Corporation are exchanged for or changed into
other stock of seeurities, cash and/or other property, (ii) the adoption of any agreement prowdmg for thé sale or lease of all'or
substanitially afl of the assets or property of the Corporation and its subsidiarics (taken as:a Whole), (iii) spin-off; split-up or
extraordinary dividend to stockholders aid (iv) the Iquidation; dissolution-gr winding up of the.Corporation. Such affirmative vote or
consent shall be in zddition’to the votes or consents of the:holders of stock of the.Corporation’ otherwise required by law or any
agreemént between the Corporation and any national securities exchange.

(b} This Section 15.1, and the terms and conditions contained herein, sha[l,,wlthout any action of any person or
entlty automatically cxpire and be null.and void and of no further effect upon the ﬁrst to"ogcur of (i)ithe Goldstein Family Group (as
defined below) ceasing 1o hold Commion Stock uf the Corporation representing at "{east 22:5%:of the Corp{)ratlon H outslzmdmg
Comumnon Stock, not including any: shares of Class B Common Stock of shares of Common:Stock tsued upon conversion of any
Prefirred Stock and (ii) the tenth'anniversary of the Articlé’ 13 Effective Time (as- defined bélow) (the time at which-the first of the
miatters set forth in the foregoing clauses (i) and (i) occurs is referred to herein as the: “Supermajomy Expiration Time").

(©) For purposes of this Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporanon "Goldstein Family Group” means,
collectively, (i) Jeffrey D Goldstein, (ii) Richard A. Go]dstem (iii) Robert S: Goldstein, (iv) GFIL Holdings, LLC, a Delaware
limited liability compuny, (v) the spouse,-child (including any personlégilly adopied before the agé of fivej, or grandchlld of any of
Bernard-Guidstein, Jeffrey D: Goldstein, Rabert' S. Goldstein and/or Richard A.-Goldstein;and (vi) any entity in which all of the
equity intérests in and all of the beneficial infercsts of which are owned by a- persoii of entlty describedin subparagraplis (i) through
(v) above.

(d) From the Article 15 Effective Timc until the: Supermajority Expiration Time, the Corporation shall not
amend, modify or repeal this Section 15.1 unless-such amendment, modifi cation of; repeal is: approved bv the affirmative vote or
consent of the holders of at least two-thirds of the voting power.of the Corporation, votmg as'a single class.

15.2)  Ciasses of Dlreciurs

() The Board of Direciors of the Corparaticn shall be divided into thrée classes, designated Class 1, Class 11
and Class I1I. Each class of directors shall consist, as'nearly as may be ‘possible; of oné:thifd of the total nurnber of directors.
constituting the entire Board of Directors of the ‘Corporation. “The Board of Difecturs|is: hereby authorized to assign members of the
Board of Dircctors alréady in office to.such classes.effective upon the filing with,the Secretary of State:of the Cértificate of
Amendinent to this Amended and Restated Centificaté of Incmporatlou that provides; for the inclision:of this Article 15 in this
Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation (the "Article 13 Effective Titie"); provided, that each of Jeffrey D. Goldstein,
Rabert §..Goldstein and Richard A. Goldstein shall be in separate classes. The terms of the:initial Class ['directors shall expire at-the
firstannual meeting of stackholders to-be held after the Asticle 15 Effective Time; the. terms of the, initial Class [l directors shall -~
expire.at the second annual meeting of siockholders to be held after the Article 15 Effective Time; and the
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terms of the initial Class 1T directors shall expire a1 the third annual meeting of stockholders to be held after the Anticle [5 Effective
Time.

(b) At each angiual mecting of stockholders, successors to'the class of directors whose terms expire at that
annual meeting shall be elected for a three-year term.

{(c) A director shall hotd office until the annial meeting of stockholders for-the year in which his or her term
expires and until his or her successor shall be elected and shall qualify; subject; however, 10 prior death, resignation, retirement,
disqualification or removal from office.

: (d) From the Article 15 Effective Time until the Supermajority. Explmuon Time, the Corporation shall not
amend, modity or repeal this Section 15,2 unless such amendment; madification or rt:pcal is'dpproved by the affirmative vole or
cansent of the holders of at least two:thirds of the voting. powu of the’ Curporation, voting as a’ 'single class
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Exhibit 23.1
Consent of Inilependent Registercd Public Accounting Firm
We consemt to the incorporation by reference in'the following Régistration Statements:
(1)  Registration Statemént (Form 8-3 No. 333-160526) of Isle of Ca_pri‘C;;sinos. Inc.,

(2)  Regiswration Statement {Form $-8. Nos. 33-61752, 33-80918, 33-86940, 333-30774, 333-30776, 333-77233, 333- 111498, 333-123233,
333-153337, and 333-163543) of Islc of Capri Casiitos: Inc.

of our reports dated June 16, 2011, with respect to the consolidated financial staiements and schedule of Isle of Capri Casinos, Inc., and the effectiveness of
internal control aver financial reponing, of Esie of Capri Casinos, Ing. included in this Annual Report (Form 10-K) for the fiscal year ended April 24, 2011,

/sf Ernst & Young LLP

St Louis, Missounri
June 16,.20} 1
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Exhihit 31.1

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER PURSUANT TO RULE I3A-I-4(A) UNDER THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT
OF 1934

1, Virginia M. McDowell, Chief Executive Officer of Isle of Capn-Casinos, Inc., certify that:

I thave reviewed this annal report on Farm 10-X, of Isle of Capti Casinos, Inc.;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any unuroe statement of a material fact or omit to stare a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect 1o the period covered by this report;

.3, Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in afl material respects the
financia} condition, resiilts of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report:

-4, The registrant's other certifying officer and | are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (us defined in

Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(¢) and 15d-15(e)) and internal conyrol over financial reporting (as defincd in Exchange Act Rules 13a- 15(f) and 15d- Ij(f)) for the
registrant and have:

{a) :Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and precedures to be designed under our supervision, to

ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known.10 us by athers within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared:

{(b) Designed-such internal controt over financiil reporting; or cadsed such intérnal contral over financial reporting to be designed uader our

supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparauon of financial statemenis for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting prmc:ples

{c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controts and procedures-and prc‘icmcd i this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the. cnd of the pcrlod covercd by this repon based on such evaluation: and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internat-control over financial reporting that uccurred during the registrant's first fiscal
quarter that has materinlly affected, or is reasonably likely to materally. affect; the registrant’s internal control over financial reponting; and

5. The regiswrant's other certifying officer and I have discloscd, based on our Most recént ¢vahfation of internal cuntrol over financial reporting; to the
registrant’s auditors and the zudit committee of registrant's board of directors (or persons pefforming the equivalent functions):

() Al significan deficiencies and materal weaknesses in the design or operation of internal contral over financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affeet the registrant's ability 1o record, process, summarize and fcport finasicia) information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a 5|gmfcanl role in the registrant's internal
control over financial reporting.

Pate: June 16,2011 IVIRGINIA M. MCDOWELL

Virginia M. McDowell
Chief Executive Officer
I
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Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER PURSUANT TO RULE 13A-14(A) UNDER THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT
OF 1934

I, Dule R. Black, Chief Financial Ofticer of Isle of Capri Casinos, lnc., cenify that:
1. Lhave reviewed (his annual report on Form 10-K of Isle of Capri Casinos, Ine.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue.statement of 4 material fact or omif to state a material fact necessary-to make the
'statements made, -in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows uf the registrant as of; and for, the periods presented in this report;

‘4. The n:g[.slmms other centifyi mg ofiicer and 1 are responsible for e‘.tabll‘-hlﬂg and maintaining disclosure ¢ontrols and procedures (as defined in

F\cchange ‘Act Ridles 13a-15(¢) and 15d- lS(e)) and internal contro} over financial reponting (as defined in Exch:mgu Act Rules 13a- 15(f) and 15d- lS(f)) for the
tcgistrant and Wave:

(a) Designed such disclosure conirots and proccdures or caused such disclosure controls and pmccdurcs to be designed ender our supcrvmon to

ensure that material :nfnnnatmn relating to the registrnt, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known o ns by others within those entities,
-particuiarly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

() Designed such‘intr:mal control over financial reporting, ar cansed such internal control over financist reporting to be designed under our

supervision, 10 provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reponting and the preparation of financial statements for extemial
purposes mn accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

{c) Evaluated the eftectiveness of the registrant's disclosifé contréls and procedures and presénted in this report our conclusians about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end-of the period covered by this report based on such evaluvation: and

{d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting thar occurred during the registrant's first fiscal
quarter that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The regisuwant's other certifying officer and [ have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant's auditors and the audit commitiee of registrant's board of directors {or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significam deficiencies and material weaknesscs in the design or opesation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably
likely 10 adversely.affect the registrant’s ability to record, proecss, sumimarize and report financial information; and

{b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management ar ather employees who have a significant role in the registrant's intcrnal
conirol over financial reporting.

Date: June 16, 2011 /st DALE R. BLACK

Dale R, Black
Chief Financial Officer
1
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Eahibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER PURSUANT '_I'()SE_C'I‘!ON_ 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002 (18 us.C.
SECTION 1350)

In connection with the Annual Report of Isle of Capri Casinos, Inc. (the "Company™) on Form 10-K for.the period ended April 24, 201 1, as filed with the
Securitics and Exchange Commission on the ’da}c hereof (the."Annual Report”), 1, Virginia M. MeDowell, Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify,
pursuant to Sectiofi 906 of the Sarbancs-Oxley'Act of 2002(18 L).5.C, Section 13350), that:

{1} The Annual Repart fajly complies with the rcqui]'cmcnt.s of Section 13(a) of the Securities Exchange Actof 1934; and

(2) 'The information contained in the Annal Report fairly. presents, in all material tespects, the financial condition and results of operation of the
Company.

Date: June 16, 2011 I5f VIRGINIA M. MCDOWELL

Virginii M. MeDowell
Chief Executive Officer
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Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002 (18 US.C,
SECTION 1350)

In connection with the Annuid Report of Isle of Capri Casinos, Ine, (the "Companiy™) on'Form 10-K' for the period ended Aprit 24, 2011 as filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on the date pcreaf (the "Anpual Report™, 1, Dale R. Black, Chicf Financial Ofticer of the Company, certify, purszant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (18 U.S.C. Section 1350),_ that:

(1) The Annual Report fully complies with the requirements of Section Ij(a) of thé Securities Exchange Act of 1934: and

(2) The information contained in the Annual Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operation of the
Company.

Date: June 16, 2011 /s/ DALE R. BLACK

Dile R, Black
Chief Financial Officer
1
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Exhibir 99.3
DESCRIPTION OF GOVERNMENT REGULATIONS

The ownership and operation of £asino gaming facifities are subject to extensive state and focal regulations. We are required to
obtain and maintain gaming licenses in each of the - jurisdictions in which we conduct gaming. The limitation, conditioning or
suspension of gaming licenses could {(and the revocation or non-renewal of gaming licenses, or the failure to reauthorize gaming in
certain jurisdictions, would) materially adversely affect our operation in that jurisdiction. In addition, changes in law thal restrict or
prohibit our gaming operations in any jurisdiction could have a material adierse effect on us.

Colorado

The State of Colorado created the Division of Gaming ("Colorado Division®) within the Department of Revenue to license,
implement, regulate and supervise the conduct of limited gaming under the Colorado Limited Gaming Act. The Director of the
Colorado Division ("Colorado Director™), pursuant to regulations promulgated by, and subject to the review of, a five-member
Colorado Limited Gaming:Contrel Commission ("Colorado Commission"), has been granted broad power to ensure compliance with
the Colorado gaming laws and regulations (collectively, the "Colorado Regulations™). The Colorado Director may inspect without
notice, impound or remove any.gaming device. The Colorado Director may examine and copy any licensec's records, may investigate
‘the dei\gI'(Jllnd and conduct of licensees and their employees, and may bring disciplinary. actions against licensees and their
employees, The Colorado Director may also conduct detailed background anvestigitions of persons who loan money to, or otherwise
provide financing to, a licensee.

The Colorads Commission is empowered to issue five types of guming and gaming-related licenses, and has delegated authority 1o the
Colorado Director to issue certain tvpes of licenses and approve certain changes in ownership. The licenses are revocable and non-
transfcrable. The failure or inability of the Isle of Capri Black Hawk, LLC ("Isle:Black Hawk") or CCSC/Blackhawk, Inc. ("Colorado
Centra] Station-Black Hawk™) (each, a "Colorado Casino” or col]ecuve]y the "Colorado Casinas™), or the failure or lnab:llty of others
associated with any of the Colorado Casinos, including us, to maintain necessary gaming licenses or approvals would have a material
adverse effect on our operations. All persons employed by any of the Culoradu Casinos, and involved, directly or indirectly, in gaming
uperations in Colorado also are required o ubtain-a, (ulorddo gaming license. Al licenses must be renewed EVErY 1WO yeurs. Asa
general rule, under the Colorado Regulalions, no persen may have an "ownership interes(™ in more than three retail gaming licenses in
Colorado. The Colorado Commission has ruled that a person does not have an ownership interest in a retail gaming licensce for
purposcs of the multiple license prohibition if:

« that person has less than a 5% ownership interest in an institutional investor that has an ownership interest in a publicly
traded licensee or publicly traded company affiliated with a-licensee;

» 2 person has a 5% or more ewnership interest in an institutional investor, but the institutional investor has less than a 5%
ownership interest i a publicly traded licensee or publicly traded company affiliated with a licensee;

» an institutional investor has less than a 5% ownership-interest in a publicly traded llLensce or publicly traded company
affiliated with a licensec;

« an institutional investor posscsses voting securities in a fiduciary capacity for another person, and does not exercise voting
control.over 5% or more of the outstanding vating securities of a publicly traded licensee or of a publicly traded company
affitiated with-a licensee;

e aregistered broker or dealer retains possession of voting sccurities of a publicly traded iicensee or of a publicly traded
campany affiliated with a licensee for its customers and not for its own account, and exercises voting rights. for less than
5% of the outstanding voting securities of a publicly traded licensee or publicly traded company affiliatéd with a licensee;

¢ aregistered broker or dealer acts as a markct maker for the stock ofa publicly traded licensee orof a publicly traded
company affiliated with a licensee and exercises voting rights in less than 5% of

]




the omstanding voling secuntics of the publicly waded Yicensee or publicly wraded company affilated with a licenses;

» an underwriter is holding secorities of a publicly traded licensee or publicly t:rédeii company affiliated with a licensee as
part of an underwriting for no more than 90 days after the beginning of such underwriting if it exercises voting rights of
less than 5% of the outstanding voting securitics of a publicly traded licensee or pubhcly wraded company affiliated with a
licensee;

» abook cntry transfer facility holds voting securitics for third partics, if it exercises voting rights with respect to less than
5% of the outstanding voting securities of a publicly traded licensee or publicly traded company affiliated with-a licensee;
or

» 2 person's sole ownership interest is less than 5% of the outstanding voting securities of the publicly traded licensee or
publicly traded company affiliated with a licensee.

Because we own the Colorado Casinos, our business opportunities, and those of persons with an "ownership interest” in us, or any of
the Colorado Casinos, are limited to interests that comply with the Colorado Regulations and the Colorado Commission's rule.

In addition, pursuant to the Colorado Regulations, no manuficturer or distributor of slot machines or associated equipment may,
without notification being provided to the Colorado Division within-ten days, knowingly have an interest in any casino operator, dflow
any of its officers or any other person with a substantial interest in such business to have such an interest, employ any person if that
person is employed by a casino operator, or allow any casino operator gr person with a substantial mtercst theretnt to have an interest
in a manufacturer's or distributor's business, A "substantial' interest” means the lesser of (i) as large an interest in an entity as any other
person or (i) any financial or equity interest equal to or greater than 3%. The Colorado Commisston has ruled that a person does not
have a "substantial interest” if such person's sole ownership interest in such licensee is through the ownership of less than 5% of the
outstanding voting securities of a'publicly tradéd licenscé or publicly fraded affiliated company of a licensee.

We are a "publicly traded corporation” under the Colorado Regulations.

Under the Colorado Regulations, any person or entity having any direct or indirect intcrest in a gaming licensee or zn applicant for a
gaming ficense, including. but not limited to, us, Casino Asnerica.of Colorado, Inc., 1C Holdings Colorado, Inc.. 10C Black-Hawk
Distribution Company, LLC or cither of the two Colorado Casinos and their sccurity holders, may be required to supply the Colorado
Commission with substantial information, including, but not limited to, background information, source of funding information, a
sworn statement that such person or entity is not holding his or her-interest for any other party, and fingerprints. Such information;
investigation and licensing (or finding of suitability) as an “associated person™ automatically will be required of all persons {other than
certain institutional investors discussed below) which directly or indtrectly beneficially own 10% or more of a dircet or indirect
beneficial ownership or interést in either of the two Colarado.Casinos, through their beneficial ownership of any class of voting
sceurities of us, Casino Amen¢a of Celorado, Inc., IC Holdings Colorado, Inc., 1OC Black Hawk Distribution Company, LLC or
either of the hwo Colorado Casinos, Those penons must report their interest within 10 days {including institutiona) tnvestors) and file
-appropriate applications within 435 days after acquiring that interest (other than certain institutional investors discussed below),
Persons (including institutional invesiors) who divectly or indirectly beneficially own 5% or more {but less than 10%) of a direct or
indirect beneficial ownership or interest in either of the two Colorado Casinos, through their beneficial ownership of any class of
voting securities of us, Casino Amenica of Colerado, Inc., IC Heldings Colorado, Inc., 10C Black Hawk Distribution Company, LLC
or either of the two Colorado Casinas, must report their interest to the Colorado Commission within 10 days after acquiring that
interest and may be required to provide additional information and to be found suitable. (Tt is the currens practice of the gaming
regulators to require findings of suitability for persons beneficially owning 5% or more of'a direct or indirect beneficial ownership or
interest, other than certain institutional investors discussed below.) [f cefrain instivitional investors provide specified information to
the Colorado Commission within 45 days after acquiring their interest (which, under the current:practice of the gaming regulators is an
iiterest of 3% or mare, directly or indirectly) and are halding {or investment purposes only, those investors,
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in the Colorado Commission's discretion, may be permitted to own up 10 14.99% of the Colorado Casinos through their beneficial
ownership in any class of voting of sceurities of us. Casino America of Colorado, Inc., 1C Holdings Colorado, Inc., 10C Black Hawk
Distribution Company, LLC or either of the two Coloradu Casinos, before being requtrcd to be found suitable. All Iuensmg and
investigation fees will have to be paid by the person in question.

"The Colorado Regulations define a "voting security” to be a security the holder of which is_entitled to vote gencrally for the election of
a member or members of the board of directors or board of trustees of a corporation or a comparable person or persons of another
form of business organization.

The Colorado Commission also has the right to request information from any person dircetly or indirectly interested in, or employed
by, a licensee, and to investigate the moral character, honesty, integrity, prior activities, criminal record, reputation, habits and
associations of? (1) all persons licensed pursuant to the Colorado Limnitéd Gaming Act; (2)all officers, directors and stockholders of a
licensed pnvalclv held corporation; (3) all 6fficers, directors and stockholders holding cittier a°5% or greater interest or a controlling
interest in a licensed publicly traded corporation; (4) all general parters and- all liniited. partners of a licensed partnership; (3) all
persons that have a relationship similar to that of an officer, director &t stockholder of a corporation’(such as members and managers
of a limited liability cumpany) (6} all persons supplying ﬁndncmb or l(mnmu mongy to any licensee connected with (he establishment
ar operation of limited gaming; (7).2ll persons having a contract, lease or ongoing financidl or business arrangement with any licensee,
where such centract, lease or arrangement relates to fimited gaming operations; equipment devices or premises; and (8) all persons
contracting with or supplying any goods and services to the gaming regulators.

Certain public officials and employees are prohibited from having any dircct‘or indirect.interest in a license or limited gaming.

In addition, under the Colorado Regulations, cvery person who.is a party to a "gamiing contract” (as defined below) or lease with an
applicant for a license, or with a licensee, upon the request of the Colorado Commission or the Colorado. Director, must promptly
provide the Colorado Commission or Colorado Director all information that’ ‘may be requested concerning financial history, financial
“holdings, real and personal property ownership; interests in other companies, criminal history, pérsonal history and associations,
character, I'LpuIdllOﬂ in the community and ali ‘other information.that might be relevant to.a determination of whether a person wuuld
be suitable to be Heensed by the Colorado Commission. Failure to provide all information requested constitutes sufficient grounds for
the Colorado Dircector or the Colorado Commission to require a licénsee-or dpplicant-to terminate its "gaming contract™ or lease wish
any person who failed to provide the information reguested. In addition, the Colorado Director or the Colorade Cominission may
require Lh'mge'; in "gaming contracts” before an application is appruved ar participation in the contract'is allowed. A "gaming
contract” is defined as an agreement in which a person does business with of on-the.premises of a licensed entity.

The Colorado Commission and the Colorado Division have interpreted the Colorado Regulations to permit the Colorado Commission
to investigate and.find suitable persons or entities providing financing to or acquiring securitics from us, Casino Ainerica of Colarado,
Inc., IC Holdings Colorado, Inc., 10OC Black Hawk Distribution- Compdny, LLC orcither of the two Colorado Casinos, As noted

' abuvc any person or-entity required to file information, be licensed.or found suitable would be reqmred to pay the costs thereof and of
any investigation. Although the Colorado Regulations do not require the prior approval for the execution of credit facilitics or issuance
of debt securities, the Colorado regulators reserve the right to approve, require changes to or require the termination of any financing,
including if a person ar cntity is required to be found suitable and.is not found suitable. Ivany event, leaders, note holders, and others
prowdmﬂ financing will not be able to exercise certain rights and remedies without the prior approval of the Colorado. gaming
amhoritics. Informanon regarding lenders and holders of securities will be periodically reported 10-the Colorado gaming authorities.

Except under certain timited circumstances relating to slot machine manufacturers and dlsmbumrs every person supplying goods,
-equipment, devices or services to any licensee in return for payment of a :

"
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percentage, or calculated upon a percentage, of imited ganung activity or ingcome must obtain an operator license or be histed on the
retailer's license where such gaming will take place.

An application for licensure or suitability may be denied for any cause deemed reasonable by the Colorade Commission or'the
Colorado Director, as appropriate. Specifically, the Colorado Commission and the Colorado Director must deny a license to any
applicant who, among other things: (1) fatls to prove by clear and convincing evidence that the applicant is qualified; (2) fails wo
provide information and documentation requested; (3) fails t reveal any fact material to qualification, or supplies information which
is untrue or misleading as to @ material fact pertaining to qualification; (4) has been convicted of, or has a director, officer, general
partner, stockholder, limited parmer or other person who has a financial or t,qulty interest in the app]tcanl who has been convicted of,
specified crimes, including the service of a sentence upon conviction of a {elony in a cormectional facility, city or county jail, or
community com.munal facility-or underthe state board of parole’or-any probation dcpdrlmcnl within ten years prior to the date of the
application, gambling-related offenses, theft by deception or crimes involving fraud or misrepresentation, is under cumment prosecution
fur such crimes {dunng the pendency of which license determination may be deferr(.d) is a career offender or a member or associate
of a carcer offender cartel, or is a professional gambler; or (5) has refused to cooperate with any state or federal body investigating
organized crime, official con‘upnon or gaming offenses. If the Colorado Commiission determines that a-persen or entity is unsuitable
to directly or mdlrull} own interests in us, Casino America of Colorado, Inc., IC Holdings Colorado, Inc., or either of the two
Colorade Casinos, one or more of the Lolorado Casinos may be sanctioned, which may include the loss of our approvals and licenses.

The Colorado Commission does not ueed to approve in advance a public offering of securitics but rather requires the filing of notice
and additional documents prior to a pubhc offering of (i) voting sccurities, and (i1) non-voting securities if any of the proceeds will be
-used to pay for the construction of gaming facilities in Colorado, to dlru.tly ar u:ldlr'cctly acquire an inicrest in a gamiag facility in
Colorado, to finance the operation of a gaming facility in Colorado t1o retire or exteni) obhgations for any of the foregomg. The
Colorado Commission may, in its discrction, require additional information and prior approval 6f such public offering.

In addition, the Colorado Regulations prohibit a licensec or affiliated company thereof, such as us, Casino America of Colorado, Inc.,
IC Holdings Colorado, Inc., [OC Black Hawk Distribution Compdny. LLC or-either of the two Colorado Casinos, from paying any
unsuitable person any dividends or interest Upon any voting sceunties or any payments or distributions of any l\md (except as set forth
below), ar paying any unsuitable person any remuneration For services or recognizing the exercise of any voting rights by any
unsuitable person. Further, under the Colorado Regulations,. each of the Coloiado.Casinos and 1OC Black Hawk Distribution
Company, LLC may repurchase its voting securities from anyone found unsuitable at the lessér of the cash equivalent to the original
investment in the applicable Colorade Casino or 10C Black Hawk Distribution Company, LLC or the current market price as of the
date of the finding of unsuitability unless such voting sceurities are transferred to a suitable person (as detennined by the Colorado
Commission) within sixty (60) days after the ﬁndmg of unsu]tdb]luy A licéiisee.or affiliated company must pursue all lawful efforts
to require an unsuitable person to Telinguish ali voting securities, including purchasing such voting securities. The staff of Cotorado
Division has taken the position that a licensce or affiliated company may not pay any unsuitable person any interest, dividends or other
payments with respect to non-voting securities, other than with respect to-pursuing all lawful efforts to require an unsuitable person to
rclinguish non-voting securities, including by purch.asmg or redeeming such securities, Further, the reguiations réguire anyone with a
matenal involvement with a Ilcensee mcludmo a direetor or officer of a holding company, such as us, Casino America of Colorado,
Inc., IC Holdings Colorado, Inc., 10C Black Hawk Distribution Company, LLC or either of the two Colorado Casinos, to filc for a
finding of suitability if required by the Colorado Commission.

Because of their authority to deny an application for a license or suitability, the Cotorado Commission and the Colorado Director

effectively can disapprove a change in corporate position of a licensce and with respect to any entity which is required to be found

suitable; or indirectly can cause us, Casino America of Colorado, Inc., IC Holdings Colorado, Inc., [OC Black Hawk Distribiution

Lompany, LLC or the applicable Colorado Casino to suspend or “dismiss managers, officers, directors and other key employees or
sever




relationships with other persons who refuse to file appropriate applications or who the authorities find unsuvitable to act in such
capacities.

Generally, a salc, lease, purchase, conveyance or acquisition of-any interest in-a licensee.is prohibited without the Colorado
Commission's prior approval. However, because we are a publicly traded corporation, persons may acquire an interest in us (even,
under current staff interpretations, a controlling interest) without the-Colorado Commission’s prier approval, but such persons may be
required to ﬂt: notices with the'Colorado Commission and applications for sultdhullty (as discussed above) and the Colorado
Commission may, afier such acquisition, find such' person unsuitable and require them'to dispose of their interest. Under some
circumstances, we may not sell any interest in our Colorado gaming businessés without the prior approval of the Colorado
Commission,

Each Colorado Casino must meet specified architectural requirements, fire safety standards and standards for access for disabled
persons. Each Colorado Casino also must not cxceed specified gaming square footage limits as a total of each floor and the full
building. Each Colorado Casino may permit only individuals 21 or older to gamble in the casino. No Colorado Casino may provide
credit 1o its gaming patrons. Each Colorado Casino must comply “with Colorade's Gambling Payment Intercept Act, which govems
the collection of unpaid child support costs on certain cash winnings from limited gaming.

Asgriginally enacted by amendment to the Colorado Constitution, limited stakes gaming in Colorado was limited to slot machines,
blackjack and poker, with a maximum single bet of $5.00, and casinos could operaie only between 8 am. and 2 am.. On Navember 4,
2008, however, Colorado voters approved a3 subsequent amendment to the Colorado Constitution that allowed the towns of Cripple
Creek, Black Hawk, and Central City to add table:games of craps and roulette, increase the maximum single bet to $100.00. 2nd
increase the permitted hotirs of operation to 24 hours per day effective July 2, 2009.

A licensee is required to provide information and file periodic reports with the Colorado Division, including identifying those who
have a 5% or.greater ownership, financial of cquity interestin the licensee, or who have the 1b|llty ta contral the licensee, or who have
the ability to exercise 5|gmf'c1nt influence over the licensce, or who loan money or other things-of value to a licensee, or who have the
right to share in revenues of limited gaming, or to whom any interest or share in profits of limited gaming has been pledged as sccurity
for a debt or performance of an act. A licensee, and any parent company or subsidiary of a licensee, who has applied 10 a-foreign
jurisdiction for licensure or permission to conduct gaming, or who possesses @ license-to conduct forf:ngn gamingis required to notify
the Colorado Division. Any person licensed by the Calorada Commission and any associdted person of a licensee must report criminat
convictions and criminal charges to the Colorado Division.

The Colorado Commission has broad authority to sanction. fine, suspend and revoke a license for violations of the Colorada
Regulations. Violations of many provisions of the Colorado Regulations also can result:in criminal penalties.

The Colorade Coustitution currently permits gaming only in a limited number.of cities and certain commercial districts in such cities,

The Colorado Constitution permits 2 gaming tax of up to 40% on adjusted gross gaming proceeds, and authorizes the Colorado
Commission to change the rate annuatly. The current gaming tax rate is 0:25% on adjusted gross gaming proceeds of up to and
including $2.0 mitlion, 2% over. $2.0 million up to-and including $5.0 millian, 9% ovér $5.0 million up 1o and including $8.0 million,
11% over $8.0 million up to and including $20.0 million, 16% over $10.0 million up to and including $13.0 million and 20% on
adjusted gross gaming proceeds in excess of $13.0 million. New gaming tax rates approved by the Colorado Commission that ke
effect July t, 2011 are 0.2375% on revenue of up to and including $2.0 mllllon 1.9% over $2.0 million up to and including $5.0
million; §. 55% over $5.0 miilion up to and including $8.0-million; 10.45% over $8.0 ‘million bp to and including $10.0 million; 15.2%
over $10.0 million up to and including $13.0 million: and 19% on adjusted gross gaming proceeds.in excess of $13.0 million. The City
of Black Hawk has imposed an annual device fee'of $750 per gaming device and may tevise it from time to time, The City of Biack
Hawk also has imposed other fees, including a business improvement district fee and transportation fee, caleulated based on the
number of devices and may revise the same or imposc additional such fecs.

Colorado participates in multi-state lotteries.




. The saie of alcoholic beverages is subject to licensing, control and regulation by the Colorado liquor agencies. All persons who
directly or indirectly hold a 10% or-more interest-in, or. 10% or more of the issued and putstanding capital stock of, any.of the
Colorado Casinos, through their ownership of us, Casino America-of Colorado, Inc:, IC Holdings Colerado, Inc., or either of the two
Colorado Casinos, must filc applications and possibly be investigated by the Colorado liquor agencies. The Colorado liquor agencies
also may investigate those persons whe, directly or indirectly, loan money to or.have any i nam:1al interest in fiquor lidensecs. In
addition, there are restrictions on stockholders, directors and officers of liquor licensees preventing such pérsons from being a
stockholder, director, officer or otherwise interested in some persons lending money to liquor licensees and from making loans 10
other liquor licensees. All licenses are revocable and transferable only in-accordance with all applicable laws, The Colorado liquor
agenctes have the full power to limit, condition, suspend ar revoke any liquor licensc and any disciplinry-action could (and
revocation would) have a material adverse cffect upon the operations of us, Casino America of Colorado, Inc., IC Holdings Colorado,
In¢., or the. dppll(.:']ble Colorado Casino. Each Colorado Casino-holds a r(,tcnl,gdmmg tavern liquor license for i its casino, hotel and
restaurant operations.

Persons directly or indirectly interested in cither of the two Colorado Casinos may be limited in certain other types of liquor licenses
io which they may have an interest, and speuﬁcally cannot have an interest in-a retail liguor license (but may have an interestin a
hotel and restaurant liquor license and several other types of liquor licenses). No person can hold more than three retail gaming tavern
liquor licenses. The remedies of certain lenders may be limited by applicable liquor laws and regulations.

Florida

In June 1995, the Florida Department of Business and Professional Regulition, acting through the Division of Pari-Mutuel Wagering
(the "Florida Division"), issued its final order approving the transfer to the Company's' wholly owned subsidiary, PPI, Inc. ("PP1"), the
pari-mutue! wagering permits which authorize the acceptance of pari-mutuel wagers on haniess horse and quarter horse races
conducted at the Pompano Park Racetrack (* Pompano Park") lotated in'Pompano. Beach, Florida. Harness horse racing at Pompano
Park has been continuously conducted by PPl since the time it acquired the foregoing described hamess horse permit through the
present. The ficense to conduct live evening harness racing performances at Pompano Park must be renewed annually and was most
recently renewed in February 2010 for the State of Florida's fiscal year beginning July }; 2010 to June 30, 2011, PP} also has a quarter
torse permit that is not currently active.

The Florida statutes and the applicable n:]u. and regulations of the Florida.Division sev forth in the Florida-Administrative Code (the
"Florida Law"™) establish a regulatory framework for pari-mutiel W'wcrmg activilies in'the State of Florida, including licensing
requirements, a taxing structure on pari-mutuel permithélders and requirements for payments to the horscmen. incheding owners and
breeders. The Florida Law grants to the Florida Division full regulatory power over ali permitholders and licensees, including the
power to revoke or suspend any permit or Ticense upon the willful violation by a permitholder or-a licensee of the Florida Law. The
Florida Division must approve any transfer of 5% or more of the stock or.other evidence of ownership or equity in all pari-mutuel
racing permitholders such as PPI. In addition to the power to suspend or revoke.a permit or license. on-account of a willful violation of
the Florida Law, the Flonida Division is also granted the power toimpese various civil penalties on the permitholder or licensec on
account of other violations. Penaltics may not exceed $1,000 for each count or separate offense.

Pursuant to Florida law, PPl is authorized to condhict full-card pari-mutuel wagering on: (1) simulcast hamess races from outside
Florida throughout the racing season; and (2) night-time (after 6;p.m.) thoroughbred races conducted outside of the State of Flonida if
such races are simulcast to a Florida thoroughbred track and then rebroadeast-to PPL.PRT.also has the right under Florida Law to
conduct full-card simulcasting of harness racing on days during which no live racing is held at Pompano Park, However, on non-race
days. Pornpano Park mwst rebroadcast the simulcast sighals to other pari-mutuel facilities that are eligible to conduct intertrack
wagering. In addition, Pempano Park may transmit its live harness races into any dog racing or jai alai facility in Florida, including
facilities in Miami- Dade and Broward Counties, for intertrack-wagering. Pompano Patk also receives live races from othc.r Florida
pari-mutual facilitics for intertrack wagering. Florida Law establishes the allocation of contributions to the pari-mutnel pools between
Pompano Park and the other facilities sharing such Slgnak
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Florida Law authonizes pari-muteel facilities, including Pompano Park, to operate card rooms in those countics in which o majoniy
vote of the County Commission has been obtained and a local ordinance has been adopted. The County Commission of Broward
County, where Pompano Park is Jocated, has approved the operation of cardrooms in Broward County. Although the provisions of
Florida Law regarding cardsoom operations have been amended frequently by the Florida Legislature, the amendments have generally
resulted in the regulatory scheme becoming more liberal as opposed to being more restrictive. Under amendments which became
effective on July 1, 2007, the beneficial changes included permitting daily operations for any 12 hour period without the requirement
for live racing, raising the limit on the maximum bet amount from $2.00 to $3.00 with up to 3 raises allowed per round, providing less
restrictive regulations for tournaments and alowing the uperator to award prizes and create jackpots not tied to the amount bet.

In November 2004, the voters in the Siate of Florida ameaded the Florida State Constitution to allow the voters of Miami-Dade and
Broward Counties 10 decide whether to approve stot machines in racetracks and jai alai fronibns in their respective counties. Broward
County voters approved that county's local referendum in 2005 and Miami Dade voters-approved that county's docal referendum in
2008. Legislatwn enacted by the Florida Legislature in 2005, and.amended in 2007, (the "Florida Stot Law™). implemented the
constitutional amendmcot by authorizing Pompano Park and three other pari- -mutuel facilities in Broward and the pari-mutuel facilities
in Miami-Dade County to offer slot machine gaming to patronsat these facilities.. Although there are pari-mutuel facilities in
numerous other counties in the State of Florida, slot machine gaming is presently authorized only in Broward and Miami-Dade
County. I April 2007, a new casino faciliry was opened at Pompano Park adjacent to the hamess race facility.

Under the Flonida Slot taw, the following regulatory provisions are applicable to slot machine gaming at Pompano Park:

The facility may be operated 365 days per veur, 18 hours per weekday and 24 hours on weekends,

¢ The maximum number of machines 1s 2,000 Vegas-style (Class [11).slot machines per facility.

= The annuai license fee is $2,000,000.00.

e Lffective July 1,.2010, the tax payable to the State of Florida s 35% of net siot machine revenue.

¢ The machines will not accept coins or currency, but are ticket inftickel out.

e The minimum age  play the machines is 21 years.

*  ATMs are pennitted in the facility but not on the.gaming floor.

¢ The Florida Division is the regulatory agency charged with the duty to enforce the provisions of the Florida Law.

PP also pays combined county and city taxes of approximately 3.5% on the first $250 million of net slot machine revenue and 5% on
et slot machine revenue over $250 million.

in April 2009, legislation was passed which set forth the parameters undér which and granted the Governor authority to enter into an
Indian: Gammg Compact ("Compact”) en behalf of the State of Florida with the Semninole Indian Tribe of Florida for the purpose of
authorizing Class 111 gaming. Additionally, the legislation providéd for a reduction of the fax raté on slot machines operated by pari-
mutuel facilities from 50% to 35% with a guarantee of lax revenue fo be no less than the amount that was collected in the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2009. The tax guarantec was easily met. Two new slot facilities opéned in Miami:Dade County after the proposed
effective datc, of the legislation These facilities would create enough new tax revenue 1o ensure that total revenues exceeded revenue
collected-in the base year, The legislation, also reduced the annual license fee from $3 mitlion to $2.5 million for the State of Florida's
2010 Fiscal Year and $2 million per fiscal year thereafter, It allowed: slot inachines to be linked using a progressive system and
expandcd poker operations to allow operation for 18 howrs per day on week days and 24 hours per day
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on weekends, In addition, it authorized no limit poker games and tournaments In order for this legislation t become effective in 2009
the following conditions must have been met:

(] it must have been approved by or allowed to become law by the Governor;
(i) a Compact must have been entered into with the Seminole Indian Tribe of Flonida by August 31, 2009; and
(iik) the legistature must have ratified the Compact and the Compact must bave been published in the Federal Registry,

All of the provisions outlined above became effective July 1, 2010
lowa

In 1989, the State of lowa legalized riverboat gaming on the Mississippi River and other navigable waterways located in lowa. The
legislation autharized the granting of licenses to non-profit ‘curporations that, in turn, are permitted to enter into pperating agreements
with qualificd persons who actually conduct riverboat gaming operations. Such operators must likewise be approved and licensed by
the lowa Racing and Gaming Commission (the "lowa Gaming Commission”)..
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Iowa law permits gaming licensees to offer unlimited stakes gaming on games approved by the lowa Gaming Commission on a 24-
hour basis. Land-based casino gaming was authorized on July 1, 2007-and the. lowa Gaming Commission now permits licensces the
option to operate on permancntly moored vessels, moored bdrgcs or approved gambling structures. The'legal age for gaming is 21,

All Towa licenses were approved for renewal at the March 3, 2011 lowa Gaming Commiission:meceting. These licenscs are not
wansferable and will need to be renewed in March 2012 and prior to the commencement of each subsequent annual renewal period.

The ownership and operation of gaming facilities in lowa are subject to extensive state laws, regulations of the lowa Gaming
Commission and various county and municipal ordinances (collectively, the "lowa Gaming Laws"). concerning the responsibility,
financial stability and character of gaming operators and persons fi nancially intercsted or involved in gaming operations. lowa
Gaming Laws seek to: (1) prevent unsavory of unsuitable persons, from having direct or indirect involvement with gaming at any time
or in any capacity; {2) establish and maintain responsible accounting practices and procedures; (3) maintain cffective control over the
financial practices of licensees (including the establishment of minimum procedures for internal fiscal affairs, the safeguarding of
assets.and revenues, the provision of reliable record keeping and the filing of periodic reports with the Towa Gaming Commission);
(4) prevent cheating and fraudulent practices; and (5) provide a source of state and'local revenues through taxation and licensing fees.
Changes in Towa Gaming Laws could have a material adverse effcct on the lowa gaming apcerations.

The lowa gaming operations must submit detailed financial and operating reports to the lowa Gaming Commission. Certain contracts
of licensees in excess of $100,000 must be submitted to and approved by the lowa Gaming Commission. Certain officers, directors,
managers and key employees of the Towa gaming operations aré required to be licensed by the lowa Gaming Commxssmn Gaming
licenses granted to individuals must be renewed every year; and. llct.nsmg, authorities have broad discretion with regard to such
renewals. Licenses are fiot transferable. Employees associated with gaming misst obtain work permits that are subject-to immediate
suspension under specific circumstances. In addition, anyone having:a material relationship or involvement with the lowa gaming
operations may be required to be found-suitable or to'be licensed, in which case those persons would be required to pay the costs and
fees of the lowa Gaming Commission in connection with the investigation. The Towa Gaming Commission may deny an application
for a license for any cause decmed reasonable. In addition w'its authority to deny an application for license, the Iowa Gaming
Commission has jurisdiction to disapprove a change in position by officers or key employces and the power to require the towa
gaming operations to-suspend or dismiss officers, directors or other key employees.or sever relationships with other persons who -
refuse to file appropriate applications or whom the fowa Gaming Commission finds unsuitable to act.in such capacities.
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The lowa Gaming Commission may revoke a gaming license if the licensec:

¢ has been suspended from operating a gaming opération in another jurisdiction by a board or commission of that
jurisdiction;

»  has failed to demonstrate financial rLSponSlblhty sufficient to meet adequately the requltemems of the gaming
enterprise;

* s 0ot the truc owner of the cnterprise;
*  has failed to disclose ownership of other persons in the enterprise;

*  is acorporation 10% of the stock of which is subject to a contract or option to purchase at any time during the period for
which the hicense was issued, unless the contract or option was disclosed to the lowa Gaming Commission and the lowa
Gaming Commission approved the sale or transfer during the period of the license;

»  knowingly makes a false statcment of a material fact to the Iowa Gaming Commission;
e fails to meet a monetary obligation in connection with an excursion gaming boat;
»  pleads guilty to, or is convicted of a felony;

*  loans to any person, money or other thing of value.for the purposc of permitting that person to wager on any game of
chance;

*  is delinquent in the payment of property taxes or other taxes or fees or a payment ol' any other contractual obligation or
debt due or owed to a city or county; or

e assigns, grants or mms over to another person the operation of a licensed excursion boat (this provision does not prohibit
assignment of a management coatract approved by the lowa Gaming Comniission) or permits another person to have a
share of the money received for admission to'the extursion boat.

If it were determined that the Towa Gaming Laws were violated by a lcensec, the gaming licenses held by a licensee could be limited,
madc conditional, suspcuded or revoked. In addition; the licensée and the persons involved could be stibject to substantial fines for
each scparate v iolation of the lowa Gaming Laws in the discretion of the lowa Gaming Cominission. Limiations, conditioning or
suspension of any gaming license could (and revocation of any gaming license would) have a material adverse effect on operations.

The lowa Gaming Commission may also require any individual who hasa material relationship with the lowa gaming operations to be
investigated and licensed or found suitable. The lowa Gaming Commission may require any person who acquires 3% or morcof a
licensee's equity securiies to submit 1o a backgronnd investigation and be found suitable. The dpph(_dn\ stockholder is required 1o pay
all costs of this investigation. .

Gaming taxes approximating 22% of the adjusted gross receipts will e payable by each licensee on its operations to the State of lowa,
In addition, assessments paid by certain licensees during:(iscal year 2004 in an amount equal lo 2.152% of each licensee’s adjusted
gross receipts-for fiscat year 2004 arc currently being reimbursed by an offsct to state gaming taxes paid by each licensee in the
amount of 20% of the assessments paid cach:ycar beginning July 1, 2010 for five consccutive ycars. The state of lowa is also
reimbursed by the licensees for all costs associated with morlimrmg :md enforcement by the lowa Gaming Commission and the [owa
Department of Crimimal Investigation,

Lavisiana

In july 1991, Louisiana enacted legislation permitting certain types of gaming activity on ceitain rivers and waterways in Louisiana,
The légistation granted authority to supervise riverhoat gaming activitics to'the Louistana Riverboat Gaming Commission and the
Riverboat Gaming Enforcement Division of the Louisiana State Police. The Lomsmna Riverboat Gaming Commission was authorized
to hear and
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determine alt appeals relative to the granting, suspension, revocation, condition or renewal of all licenses, permits and applications. Tn
.addition, the Louistana Riverboat Gaming Commission established r(,guldlwm concerning authorized routes, duration of excursions,
minimum levels of insurance, construction of riverboats-and periadic inspections. The Riverboat (_mmmg Enforcement Division of the
Louisiana State Police was authorized to investigate applicants and issue licenses, investigate violations of the stamite and conduct
continuing reviews of gaming activitics.

ln May 1996, regulatory oversight of riverboat gaming was transferred to the Loursiana Gaming Control Board, which is comprised of
nine voting members appointed by the governor. The Louisiana: (Jdmll’lb Control Board now oversecs all licensing matters for
riverboat casinos, land-based casinos, racinos, video poker arid certain aspects of Native American gaming other than those
responsibilities reserved to the Louisiana State Police.

The Louisiana Gaming Control Board is empowered to issue up (o 15 licenses (o conduct gaming activitics on a niverboat in
accordance with applicable law, However, no more than six licenses may be granted to riverboats operating from any one designated
walerway.
The Louisiana State Police continves to be involved broadly ingaming enforcement and reports to the Louisiana Gaming Control
Board. Louisiana taw permits the Louisiana State-Police, among other things, to continue to (1) conduct suitability investigations,
(2) audit, investigate and enforce compliance with standing reg,uldnons, (3).initiate enforcement and administrative actions and
(4) perform "all vther duties and functions necessary for the efficient, efficacious, and thorough regulation and control of gaming
activities and operations" under the Louisiana Gaming Control Board's Junsdlcnon
Louisiana gaming law specifies certain restrictions relating to the operation of riverboat gaming, including the following:

¢ agents of the Louisiana State Police are permitted on.board at any time during gaming opcrations;

¢ gaming devices, equipment and supplies may onty be purchased or leased from permitted suppliers and, with respect to
gaming equipment, from permitted manufacturers;

+  gaming may only take place in the designated gaming area while the riverboat is docked on a designated river or
waterway; ’

*  gaming equipmcnt may not be posscssed, maintained ar cxhibited by any person on a riverboat except in the specifically
designated gaming arca or m & secure area used for inspection, repair or storege of such equipment;

»  wagers may be received only from a person prescat on a.licensed riverboat;
e persons under 21 are not permitted in designated gaming areas;

»  except for slot machine play, wagers' may be made only with tokens, chips or electronic cards purchased from the
licensce aboard a riverboat;

e licensees may only use docking facilitics and routes for which they are licensed and may only board and discharge
passengers at the nverboat's licensed berth;

¢ licensees must have adequate protection and indemnity insurance; -

* licensees must have all necessary federal and state licenses, certificates and other regulatory approvals prior to operating
a nverhoat; and

* gaming may only be conducted in accordance with the terms of the license and Louisiana
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law,

To receive a gaming license in Louisiana, an applicant must be found to be a person of good'character, honesty and integrity and a
person whose prior activities, criminal record, if any, reputation, habits and associations do not (1) pose a threat to the public interest
of the State of Louisiana or to the effective regulation and.control of gaming os {2) create or enhance the dangers of unsuitable, unfair
or-illegal practices, methods and activities in the conduct of gaming or the carrying on of business and financial arrangements of
gaming activities. In addition, the Louisiana Gaming Control Board will not grant a license unless it finds that, among other things:

¢  the applicant can demonstrate the capability, either through traming, education, business experience or a combination of
the preceding, to operate a gaming operation;

«  the proposed financing of the riverboat and the gaming operations is adequate for the nature of the proposed operation
and is from a suitable and acceptable source;

*  the applicant demonstrates a proven ability to operate a vessel of comparablce size, capacity and complexity to a
riverboat so as to ensure the safety of its passengers;

*  the applicant submits with its application for a license a detailed plan ofd.esign of the riverboat;

*  the applicant designates the docking facilities to be used by the riverboat;

¢ the applicant shows adequate financial ability to construct and maintdin a riverboat; and

*  the applicant has a good faith plan to recruit, train and upgrade minoritics in all employment classifications.

An initial Hicense to conduct riverboat gaming operations is valid for a term-of five years.and legislation passed.in the 1999 legislative
session provides for renewals every five years thereafier. Louisiana gaming law provides that a renewal application. for the period
succeeding the initial five-year term of an operator's license must be made to the Louisiana Gaming Control Board and must include a
statement under oath of any and all changes in information, including financial information, provided in the previous application. The
transfer of a license or an interest in a license is prohibited. A gaming licensc is deemed to be a privilege under Louisiana law and, as
such, may be denied, revoked, suspended, conditioned or limited at any time by thé Louisiana Gaming Control Board. The Isle-Lake
Charles received its first five- vear renewal of its licenses on Jily 20, 1999 and received its second five-year renewal of its two licenscs
on March 29, 2005. The third five (3) year renewal was granted to’ Grand Palais on July 21, 2009 and St. Charles Gaming on

February 23, 2010.

Certain persons affihated with a riverboal gaming licensee, inchuding directors and officers of the licensee, directors and officers of
any holding company of the licensee involved in-gaming opcrations, persans holdlng 5% or greater interests in the licensce and
persons cxercising influence over a licensee, are subject to the application and sunablhty requirements of Louisiana gaming law.

The sale, purchase. assignment, transfer, pledge or other hypothecation, lease, disposition or acquisition by any person of securities
that represent 5% or more of the total outstanding shares issued by a licensee is subject to the-approval of the Louisiana Gaming
Control Board. A security i1ssued by a licensec must gem.rallv disclose these restrictions. Prior approval from the Louisiana G ammg
Control Board is reqmred for the sale, purchase, assignment, transfer, pledge or other. hypol.hucanon lease, dlsposmon or acquisition
of any owncership interest of 5% or morc of any non-Corporate licénsee or for the transfer of any "economic interest” of 5% or more of
any licensee or aftiliated gaming person. An "economic interest” is defined as any interest whereby a person receives or is entitled to
receive, by agregment or othenwise, a profit, gain, thing of value, loan, credit,security interest, ownership interest or other benefit.
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Fees payable 1o the state for conducting gaming activities on a nverbodt include (1).850;000 per riverboat for the first year of
operation and $100,000 per ycar per riverboat thereafter, plus (2) 18.5% of net gaming pruceeds Legislation was passed during the
2001 tegislative session that allowed those riverboats that had been reqiiréd to'conduct cruises, including the riverboats at the Isle-
" Lake Charll,s to remain permancnily dockside beginning April 1,2001. The'legislation also increased the gaming tix for operators
“from 18.5% to 21.5%. A statuie also authorizes local governing amgthormus to levy boarding fees. We currently have development
agreements in Lake Charles with certain local governing authoritics in the jurisdictions.in which we operate pursuant to which we
make payments in liew of boarding fees.

A licensee must notify and/or seek approval from the Louisiana Ganuing Control Board in connection with any withdrawals of capital,
loans, advances of distributions in excess of 3% of retained eamingsfor a corporate Hcensee, or-of capital accounts for a parmership or
fimited liability company licensee, upon completion of any such transaction. The. Louisiana Gaming Control Board may issue an
emergency order for not more than ten days prohlblun;> payment of profits; tm.ome or accruals by, or investmenis in, a h(,cusee
Uniéss excepted or waived by the Louistana Gamning Control Board, riverboat gaming licensees and-their affiliated gdmm £ pLrsons
must notify the Louisiana Gaming Control Board 60 days prior to the receipt by any such persons of any loans or extensions of credit
or medifications thereof, The Louisiana Gaming Control Board is'required to investigate the reportcd loan, extension of credit or
modification thereof and to determine whether an exemption exists on the requirement of prior written approvil and, if such
(.xcmptlon is not .l[}pll(..dble 10 either appruve or disapprove the transaction. [f the Louisiana Gaming Control. Board’ dlsdppruvcs of a
transaction, the transzction cannot he entered into by the licensee oraffiliated gaming person. We are an affiliated gaming person of
our subsidiaries that hold the licenses 1o conduct riverboat gaming at the [sle-Liake Charles.

The failure of a licensee iv comply with the requirements set forth above may result in the suspension or revecation of that licensee's
gaming license. Additionally, if the Lovisiana Gaming Control Board.finds that the.individual owner or holder of a'security of a
corporate license or intermediary company or any person with an ‘econdmic interest in a licensee is not qualificd inder Louisiana law,
the Louisiana Gaming Control Board may require, under penalty of suspension or revocation of the license, that the person not:

¢ receive dividends or interest on securitics of the corporation;

s exercise directly or indirectly a right conferred by securities of the corporation;

s receive remuneration or economic benefit from the licensec;

s excreise significant influcnce over activitics of the licensee: or

s continuc its ownership or econontic interest i the licensec.
A licensee must periodically report the following information to the Louisiana-Gaming Control' Board, which is not confidential and is
available for public inspection: (1) the licensee's net gaming proceeds from all authorized games, (2) the amount of net gaming
proceeds tax paid and (3) all quarterly and annuzl financial statements prescoting historical data, including znnval financial statements

. that have been audited by an independent certified public auditér.

During the 1996 sptcial session of the Louisiana lcgislature, legislation was enacted placing on the ballot for a statlewide election a
constitutional amendment limiting the cxpansion of gaming, which was subscquently passcd by the voters. As a result, local option
elections are required before new or additional forms of gaming carni be brought imto a parish.
Prnposal'-‘. to amend or supplement Louisiana's riverboat gaming statute are frequently introduced in the Louisiana State Legislature,
There is 6o assurance that changes in Lovisiana gaming law will not occur or that such changes wiil not have a material adverse effect
on our business in Louisiana.
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Mississippi

In June 1990, Mississippi enacted legislation legalizing dackside casino gaming for counties along the Mississippi River, which-is the
western border for most of the state, and the Gulf Coast, which is the southern border for most of the state. The legislation gave each
of those counties the opportunity to hold 2 referendum on whether to allow dockside casino gaming within its boundaries.

I its 2003 regular session, the legislature amended Mississippi law to allow gaming to be conducted on vessels or cruise vessels
placed upen permanent structures located on, i or above the Mississippi River, on, in or above navigabte walers in eligible counties
along the Mississippi River or on, in or above the watcrs lying south of the counties along the Mississippt Gulf Coast. Later, after
Hurricanc Katrina, the Mississippi legislature again amended the law to allow lund-based gaming along’the Guif Coast in very imited
circumstances, Mississippi law permits unlimited stakes gaming on a 24-hour basis and does not restrict the percentage of space that
may be utilized Tor gaming. There are no limitations on the number of gaming licenses that may be issued in Mississippi.

The ownership and operation of gaming facilitics in Mississippi are subject to extensive state and local regulation intended to:

e prevent unsavory or unsuitable persons from having any direct or indirect involvement with gaming at any time of in
any capac:ty; .

-

establish and maintain responsible accounting practices and procedures for gaming operations;

*  maintain effective control over the financial practices of licensées, including cstablishing minimum procedures for
internal fiscal affairs and safcguarding of asscts and revenues, providing reliable record keeping and making periodic
reports;

¢ provide a source of state and local revenues through taxation and licensing fees;
¢ prevent cheating and fraudulent practices; and
e ensurc that gaming licensees, to the extent practicable, employ Mississippi residents.

State gaming regulations arc subject to amendment and interpretation by the Mississippi Gaming Commission. Changes in Mississippi
laws or regulations may limit or otherwise matenally affect the types of gaming that may be conducted in Mississippi and such
changes, if enacted, could bave an adverse effect on us and our Mississippi gaming operations.

We are registered as a publicly traded corporation under the Mississippi:Gaming Control Act. Our gaming opcrations in Mississippi
are subject to regulatory control by the Mississippi Gaming Commission, the Mississippi Department of Revenue and various other
local, city and county regulatory agencies {collectively referred to as-the "Mississippt Gaming Awthorities”). Qur subsidiaries have
obtained gaming licenses from the Mississippi Gaming Authorities. We must obtain a waiver from the Mississippi Gaming
Commission before beginning certain proposed gaming opcrations outside of Mississippi, and we must notify the Mississippi Gaming
Cormnmission in writing within 30 days after commencing certain’ gaming operations outside the state, The licenses held by our
Mississippi gaming operations have terms of three vears and are not transierable. The Tsle-Biloxi, the 1sle-Natchez and the Isle-Lula
hold licenses cffective from May 23, 2009, through May 22, 2012. In addition, dur wholly-owned subsidiary, [0C Manufacturing, Inc.
holds a manufacturer and distributor’s license, so that we may perform certain-upgrades to our Mississippi player tracking system. This
license has a term of three years, is effective from June 16, 2008 through June 15, 2011, and is not ransferable. There is no assurance
that new licenses can be obtained at the end of each three-year period of a license. Moreover, the Mississippi Gaming Commission
may, at any time, and for any cause it deems reasonable, revoke, suspend, condition, limit or restrict a license or approval to own
shares of stock in our sitbsidiaries that operate in Mississippi.

Substantial fines for cach violation of Mississippi's gaming laws or regulations may be levied against us, our subsidiaries and the
persons involved. Disciplinary action against us or one of our subsidiary gaming licensees in any jurisdiction may lead to disciplinary
action against us or any of our subsidiary licensces in
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Mississippi, including, but not limited to, the revocation or suspension of any such subsidiary gamning license.

We, along with each of our Mississippi gaming subsidiaries, must periodically submit dctailed financial, operating and other reports to
the Mississippi Gaming Commission and/or the Mississippi Department of Revenue. Numerous transactions, mcludmg but not limited
1o substantially all loans, leascs, sales of securities and similar. financing transactions entered into by any of our Mississippi gaming
substdiaries must be reported to or approved by the Mississippi Gaming Commission. In addition, the Mississippi Gaming
Commission may, at its discretion, require additional information about our operations.

Centain of our officers and employees and the officers, directors and certain key employees of our Mississippi gaming subsidiaries
must be found suitable or be licensed by the Mississippi Gaming Commission. We believe that all required findings of suitability and
key employee licenses related to all of our Mississippi properties have been applied for or abtained, although the Mississippi Gaming
Commission at its discretion may require additional persons to file applications for findings of suitability or key employee hcenses, In
addition, any person having a material relationship or involvement with us may be reyuired to be found suitable or licensed, in which
case those persons must pay the costs and fees associated with such investigation. The Mississippi Gaming Commission'may deay an
application for a finding of suitability for any cause that it deems reasonable. Changes in certain licensed positions must be reported to
the Mississippi Gaming Commission. in addition to its authority 10 deny an application for & finding of suitability, the Mississippi
Gaming Commission has jurisdiction to disapprove a change in a licensed position. The Mississippi Gaming Commission has the
power to require us and any of our Mississippi gaming subsidiaries.to suspend or dismiss officers, directors andiother key cmployees
or to sever relationships with other persons who refuse to file appropriate applications or who the “authorities find unsuitable to act in
such capacilies.

Employees associated with gaming must obtain work permits that are subject to immediate suspension under certain circumstances.
The Mississippi Gaming Commission will refuse to issue a work permit to a person who has been convicted of a felony, committed
certain misdemeanors or knowingly violated the Mississippi Gaming Cantrol Act, and it may refuse to issue a work permit to a
gaming employee for any other reasonable cause.

At any time, the Mississippi Gaming Commission has the power to investigate and require the finding of suitability of any record or
beneficial stockholder of ours. The Mississippt Gaming Control Act requires any person who individually or in association with others
acquires, dircetly or indirectly. beneficial ownership of mare than 3% of our common stock to report the acquisition to the Mississippi
Gaming Commission, and such person may be required to be found suitable. In addition, the Mississippi Gaming Control Act reguires
any persan who, individually or in association with others, becoines, directly or indirectly, a beneficial owner of more than 10% of our
common stock, as reporied 10 the U.S. Securities and Exchange CDI]]II]]“-‘»]DI‘I‘ to apply for a finding of switability by the Mississippi
Gaming Commission and pay the costs and fees that the Mississippi Gaming Commission incurs in conducting the investigation.

The Mississippi Gaming Commission has generally exercised its discretion to require a finding of suitability of any beneficial owner
of 3% or more of a registered publicly traded corporation’s stock. However, the Mississippi Gaming Commission has adopted a
regulation thal may permit certain "institutional” investors to obtain waivers that allow ther to beneficially own, dircctly or indirectly,
up to 15% (19% in certain specific instances) of the voting securities of a registered publicly traded corporation without finding of
suitability. If a stockholder who must be found suitable is a corporation, parinership or trust, it must submit detailed business and
financial information, including a list ofbeneficial owners.

Any person who fails or refuses to apply for a finding of suitability, or a license within 30 days after being ordered to do so by the
Mississippi Gaming Commission may be found unsuitable. We believe that compliance by us with the licensing procedures and
regulatory requirements of the Mississippi Gaming Commission will not affect the marketability of our securities. Any, person found
unsuitable who holds, directly or indirectly, any bencficial ownership of our securities beyond such time as the NllSSISSIppn Gaming
Commission prescnbes may be guilty of a misdemeanor. We are subject to disciplinary action if,
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after receiving notice that a pcr\on I8 unzsumbln 1o be a stockholder or 10 have any other rt:lduon'ihlp with us or our subsidiaries
operating casinos in Mississippi, we

s pay the unsuitable person any dividend or other distribution upon its voting sccunities;
¢ rccognize the excrcise, directly or indirectly, of any voting rights conferred by its sccurities;

*  pay the unsuitable person any remuncration in any form for services rendered or otherwise, except in certain limited and
speeific circumstances; or

e fai} to pursue all lawful efforts to require the unsuitable person to divest itself of the securities, including, if necessary,
our immediate purchase of the secunties for cash at a fair market value.

We may be rt:qumd to disclose to the Mississippi- Gaming Commission upon request the identities of the holders of any of our debt
sceurities. In addition, under the Mississippi-Gaming Control Act, ‘the Mississippi Gaming Commission may, ir-its discretion,

(1) require holders ofour securities, including our notes, 1o file. ”Lpp]lC'lthﬂ.S {(2) investigate such holders and (3) require such holders
to be found suitable to oin such securities. Although the Mississippi. Gaming Commission generally does not require the individaal
holders of obligations such as the notcs to be investigated and found suitable, the Mississippt Gamiing Commission rctains the
discretion to do so for any reason, including but not limited to a default, or iwhere the holder of the debt instrument-exercises a material
influence over the gaming operations of the entity in question, Any holder of debt securities'required to-apply for a'finding of -
suitability must pay alt investigative fees and costs of the Migsissippi Gaming Commission in conticction with such an investigation.

The Mississippi regulations provide that a change in control of us-may not occur without the prior approval of the Mississippi Gaming
Commission. Mississippi law prohibits us from making a public offering of cur securities awithout the appraval of the Mississippi
Gaming Commission if any part of the procecds of the offering is to.be used 1o finance the construction, acquisttion or operation of
gaming facilitics in Mississippi, or to rctire or cxtend obligations incurred for one or mare such purposes. The Mississippi Gaming
Commission has the authority to grant 2 continuous approval ofst.curltlcs offérings and has granted such approval 10 us, subject to
renewal every three years.

Regulations of the MlSSlSSlppl Gaming Commission prohibit certdin repurchases of securitics of publicly traded corporations
registered with the Mississippi Gaming Comumission, incleding holding companies'suchas ours, without prier approval of the
Mississippi Gaming Commission. Trdnsacnons covered by these regularions'are-generally: aimed. at discouraging repurchascs of
securities at a premivm over market price from certain holders of greater than 3% of the. oui‘:hndmg securities of the reglstered
publicly traded corporatlon The regulations of the Mississippi delng Commission alfso require prior approvai for,a "plan of
recapitalization” as defined in-such regulations.

We must maintain in the State of } Mississippi current stock Iedgers, which may be cxamined by the Mississippi Gaming Authoritics at
any time. If any securities arc held in trust by an agent or by 2 noniince, the record holder may be required to disclose the identity of
the beneficial owner to the Mississippi Gaing Amhonl:{s A failuré to make such disclosurc may be-grounds for finding the record
bolder unsuitable. We must render maximiim assistance in determining the idéntity of the bencficial owner.

Mississippi law requires that certificates representing shares of our common stock bear 4 legend to the general effect that the securities
arc subject to the Mississippi'Gaming Control- Act and. regulations of the Mississippi Gaming Commisston. The Mississippi Gaming
Commission-has the authority to grant 2 waiver, from the.Icgend rcquircment, which we have obtained.. The Mississippi Gaming
Commission, through the power to regulate licenses, has the power to impose addittonal restrictions on the holders of our securities at
any time,

The Mississippi Gaming Commission cnacted a regulation in 1994 requiring that, 4s a condition to licensure, an applicant must
provide a plan to develop infrastructure facilitics amounting to 25% of the cost of the casino and a parking facility capablc of
accommodating 300 cars. In 1999, the Mississippi Gaming
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Conimission approved amendments to this tegulation that increased the infrastructure development requirement from 23% to (00%
for new casines{or upon acquisition of a closed casino), but grandfathered existing licensces and development plans approved prior to
the effective date of the new regulation, "Infrastructure facihtics” include any of the following:

» 2 250-room or larger hotel of ot teast a two-star rating as defined by the corment edinon ofthe Mobil Travel Guide;

+  theme parks;

»  golf courses;

*  marinas;

¢  cntertainment facilities;

«  tennis complexes; or


http://to.be

*  any other facilities approved by the Mississippi Gaming Commission.

Parking facititics, roads, sewage and water systems or civie facilities are not considered "infrastructure facilivies." The Mississippi
Gaming Commission may reducc the number of rooms required in a hotel if it is satisfied-that sufficient rooms are available to
accommodate the anticipated number of visitors. In 2003 and in 2006, the 1 Mississippi Gaming Commission again amended its
-regutation regarding development plan approval but iefi the 100% mfrastmcturt, requircment intzct. In 2007, the Mississippi Gaming
Commission further amended this regulation. Among other things, the 2007 amendment retained thé 100% infrastructure requirement
and added a requirement that the qualified infrastructure be owned or leased by certain specified persons.

License fees and taxes are payable to the State of Mississippi and to the counties and cities in which a Mississippi gaming subsidiary's
respective operations will be conducted. The license fee payable to the state’of Mississippi is based upon gross revenue of the licensee
(generatly defined as gaming receipts less payout to customers as winnings) and equals 4% of gross revenue of $50.000 or less per
month. 6% of gross revenue in excess of $50,000 but less than $134,000 per-calendar month, and 8% of gross revenuc in excess of
$134,000 per calendar month. The foregoing license fees-are allowed as a eredit’ against the licensee's Mississippi income tax liability
for the year paid. Additionally, a licensee must pay a $5,000 annual license fee and an‘annual fec based upon the number of games it
operates. The gross revenue tax imposed by the Mississippi communities and counties in:which. our casing operations are located
cquals 0.4% of gross revenuc of $50,000 or Icss per calendar month, 0.6% of gross revenue over $50,000 and less than $134,000 per
calendar month and 0.8% of gross revenue greater than $134,000:per calendar month, These fees’have -been imposed in, among other
cities and counties, Biloxi and Cozhoma County. Certain local and private laws of the state of Mississippi may impose fees or taxes on
the Mississippi gaming subsidiarics in addition 10 the fees described above.

In April 2010, the Mississippi Gaming Commission adopted 2 regulation amendment that i imposes a flat annual fee on each casino
operator Itccnsee, covering all investigative fees for that year associated with an operator licensce, any entity registered as a holding
company or publicly traded corporation of that licensee, and any person required to be found suitable in connection with that licensee
or any-holding company or publicly traded corporation of that licensee. The particular fee is based on the average number of gaming
devices operated by the licensge during a twelve (12) month period, as reported to the Mississippi Gaming Commission. The
investigative fee is $325,000 for licensees with 1500 or more gaming devices; $250,000 for licensees with 1000 to 1499 gaming
devices, and 81 50,000 for licensees with less than 1000 gaming devices. The fee is pd)’dblﬂ in four (4) equal quarterly instatlments.
The amendment prowdes that should such total investigative fees coliccted by the MISSISSlppI Gaming Commission exceed the
amouat allowed by Mississippi statute, then the excess fees will be credited 1o the licensees for the following yeat. The amended
regulation also provides a schedule of various fees applicable to licensecs and pefsons not covered by the annual investigative fee.
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The Mississippi Gaming Commission requires, as a condition of licensure or license renewal, that casino vessels on the Mississippi
Gulf Coast that are not self-propelled must be moored to withstand a Category 4 hurricane with 155 mile-per-hour winds and '15-toot
tidal surge. However, after Hurricane Katrina, Iste - Biloxi réopened‘its casino on shore rather than on a vessel. A 1996 Mississippi
Gaming Commisston regulation prescribes the hurricane emergency procedure to-be-used by the Mississippi Gulf Coast casinos. The
sale of food or alcoholic beverages at our Mississippi gaming locations is subject to licensing; control and regulation by the applicable
state and local authorities. The agencies involved have full power to limit, condition, suspend or.revoke any such license, and any such
disciplinary action could (and revocation would) have a material adverse effect upon the operations of the affected casino or casinos.
Certain of our officers and managers and our Mississippi gaming subsidiariés must be investigated by the Alcoholic Beverage Control
Division of the Mississippi Deparunent of Revenuc in connection with liquor permits that have been issued. The Alcoholic Beverage
Contral Division of the Mississippi Department of Revenue must approve all changes in licensed positions.

On three separate oceasions since 1998, certain anti-gaming groups-have propased referenda that, if adopted, would have banned
-gaming in Mississippi and required that gaming entities cease opctations within two years after the ban. All three referenda were
declared invalid by Mississippi courts because each lacked a required government revenue impact statement,

Missouri

Conducting gambling activities and operating an excursion gambling boat in Missoun are subject to cxtensive regulation under
Missoun's Riverbost Gambling Act and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder, The Missouri Gaming Commission (the
"Comimnission") was created by the Missouri Riverboat Gambling Act and is charged with regulatory authority over riverboat gaming
operations in Missour, including the issvance of riverboat gaming licenses'to 6wners, operators, suppliers and cértain affiliates of
riverboat gaming facilities. In June 2000, I0C-Kansas City, Inc., a subsidiary of ours, was issued a niverboat gaming license in
connection with our Kansas City operation. In December 2001, TOC-Booaville, Inc., a subsidiary of ours, was issued a riverboat
gaming license*for our Boonville operation. In June of 2007, 10C-Caruthersville, LLC {/k/a Aztar Missouri Riverboat: Gaining
Company, L.L.C. was acquired by us and operates as a subsidiary of ours under a Missoun riverboat gaming license. ln 2010, 10C-
Cape Girardeau LLC, a subsidiary of ours, participated in 2 competitive process established by the Missoun Gaming Commission
through which a new gaming facility development in Missouri would be selected for.prioritization. In December 2010, I0C-Cape
Girardeau LLC won this process when its proposed gaming ficility development in Cape Girardeau, Missouri was selected by the
Commission for prioritization.

As a participant in this process, I0C-Cape Girardeau LLC appliced for a Class B Riverboat Gaming License in Missouri. The decision
by the Commission 1o prioritize this vasino development dues not provide 10C-Cape. Girardeaw, LLC with any license 10 open the
casino once devcloped or any assurance that such a license wil! be:granted. The.Class B license required for [OC-Cape Girardeau LLC
to operate its proposed gaming facility cannot be granted by the Commissiof until the gaming facility development is substantially
complete and ready to accept patrons. The grant of this liceose is subjeet to numerous conditions described below.

Tn 2010, 10C-Cape Girardeau LLC, a subsidiary of ours, participated in a competitive process established by the Missouri Gaming
Commission through which a new gaming facility development-in-Missouri would be selected for prioritization. ln December 2010,
10C-Cape Girardeaun LLC won this process when its proposed gaming facility development in Cape Girardeau, Missouri was selected
by the: Commission for prioritization.

As a participant in this process, IQC-Cape Girardeau LLC applied for a Class B Riverbeat Gaming License in Missouri. The decision
by the Commission to prigritize this casino development does not provide 10C-Cape Girardeau LLC with.any license 1o open the
casino ‘once developed or any assurance that such a license will bé granted. The Class B license reguired for 10C-Cape Girardean LLC
to operate its proposed
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gaming facility cannot be granted by the Commission untl the gaming facility development is substantially complete and ready to
accept patrons. The grant of this licensc is subjeet to numerous conditions described below.

In order to obtain a license to operate a riverboat gaming facility, the proposed operating business entity must completc a Riverboat
Gaming Apphmnun forr requesting 2 Class B License. In order to obtain a license to own apdfor control a tiverboat gaming facility
as its ultimate holding company, a company must complete a Riverboat Gaming Application form-requesting a Class A License. The
Riverboat Gaming Apphwtmn form is comprised of comprehensive guestions regarding the nature and suitability of the applicant.
Applicants who submit the Riverboat Gaming Application form requesting either a Class A or Class B license undergo an extensive
background investigation by the Comrmission. In addition, each kéy person associated with the applicant (including dircctors, officers,
managers and owners of a sigmficant diredt or indirect interest in the Class A or Class Brapplicant) must completea Key Person and
Level | Application (Personal Disclosure Form 1) and undergo a substantial:-background invéstigation. Certain key business entities
closcly related to the applicant or "key person business entities” must undergo a similar-application process and background check. An
applicant for a Class A or Class B ticense will not receive a ficense if the applicant and its-key persons, including key person business
entities, have not established good repute and moral character and no licensce shall either employ or contract-with any person who has
pled guilty to, or been convieted of, a felony, 10 perform any duties directly connected with the heensee's privileges under a license
grantcd by the Commission.

Each Class B license granted entitles a licensce to conduct gambling activitics on an excursion gambling boat or 1o operate an
excursion gambling boat and the equipment thereon from a specific location. Each Class A license granted entitles the licensee to
develop and operatc a Class B licensec or, if authorized, muitiple Class 1B licensces, ‘The duration of both the Class A and Class B
license initially runs for two one-year terms; thereafler, two-year terms. In conjunction with the rencwal of each license, the

" Commission requires an updated Riverboat Gaming Application furm and renewal fees, In conjunction with each renewal, the
Commission may conduct an additional investigation of the licensce with specific emphasis on new ‘information provided in the
updated Riverboat Gaming Application form. The Commission also possesses the right to periodically conduct a comprehensive
investigation on any Class A, Class B, supplier or key person licensee since the date the'last comprehensive investigation was
conducted. The Commission also licenses the serving of alcoholic beverages on riverboats and related facilities.

In determining whether to grant a liceose, the Commission considers the following factors, among others: (i) the integrity of the
applicants; (it} the types and variety of games the applicant may offer; (iii) the quality of the.physical facility, together with
improvements and eguipment, and how soon the project will be completed; (iv) the financial ability of the applicant to develop and
operate the facility successfully; (v)the status of governmental 2ctions required by the facility; (vi) the management ability of the
applicant; (vii) compliance with applicable statutes, rules, charters and ordinances; {viii} the cconomie, ecological and social impact of
the facility as well as the cost of public improvements; (ix) the extent of public. support or opposition; (x) the plan adopted by the
home dock city or county; and (x1) effects on compétition.

A licensee is subjcct to the imposition of penaltics, suspension or revocation of its license for any act that is injurious to the public .
health, safety, morals, good order, and generat welfare of the people of the State of Missouri, or that would discredit or tend to
discredit the Missouri gaming industry or the State of Missouri, mcfudmg without limitation: (i) failing to comply with or make
provision for compliance with'the legislation, the rules promulgited thereunder or any federal, state or local law or regulation;

(i) failing to comply with any rules, order or ruling of the Commission or its agents Ppertatning to gaming; (iii) receiving goods or
services from a person or business entity who does not hold a'supplier's license-but wlio s fequiréd to hold such license by the
legisiation or the rules; (iv) being suspended or ruled meligible or havinga license revoked or suspended in any state or gaming
Jurlqdncuon (v) associating with, either socially or in'business affairs, or emplaying persons of notorious or unsavory reputation or
who have extensive police rc:cqrdav or who have failed ta cooperate’ with any officially constituted investigatary ar admintstrative body
and would adversely affect public confidence and trust in gaming; (vi) employing in'any Missouri gaming operation‘any person
known to have been found guilty of cheating or using any improper device in connectian with any gambling game; (vii) use of fraud,
deception, misrcpresentation or
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bribery in securing any license or permit issued pursuant to the legislation; (viii) obtaining any fee, charge, or other compensation by
fraud, deception or misrepresentation; and (ix) incompetence, misconduct, gross negligence, fraud, misrepresentation or dishonesty in
the performance of the functions or duties regulated by the Missouri Riverboat Gambling Act. '

Any transfer or issuance of ownership interest in a publicly held gaming licensec or its holding company that results in an entity
owning, directly or indirectly, an aggregate ownership interest of 3% or more in the gaming licensee must be reported to the
Commisston within seven days. Further, any pledge or iypothecation of 5% or more of the ownership interest in a publicly held
-gaming licensee or its holding company nust be reported to the Comission within seven days. The Commission will impose certain
licensing requirements upon a holder of an aggregate ownership interest of 5% or mere in a publicly-traded Missouri Class A or
Class B licensee, unless such holder applies for and obtains an institutional investor exemption in accordance with the Missoun
gaming regulations. The Executive Director of the Commission may graol a waiver to an institutional investor that holds up to 10% of
the outstariding equity of the Missouri licensee. The Commission itself inay grant a waiver 1o an institutional mvestor that holds up to
20% of the outstanding equity of the Missour licensee,

Every employee participating in a riverboat gaming operation must hold an occupational license. In addition, the Commission issues
supplier's licenses, which authorize the supphier licensee to sell or lease gaming equipment and supplies to any licensee involved in the
operation of gaming activities. Class A and Class B licensees may not be licensed as suppliers.

_Riverboat gaming activities may only be conducted on, or within 1,000 fiet of the main channel of, the Missouri River or Mississippi
River. Minimum and maximum wagers on games-are sel by the licensee and wagering may be-conducied only with a caghless
wagering system, whereby moncy is converted to tokens, clectronic cards or chips that can only be vsed for wagering. No person
under the age of 21 is permitted to wager, and wagers may only betaken from a person present ona licensed excursion gambling boat.

The Missouri Riverboat Gambling Act imposes a 21% wagcring tax on adjusted gross receipts (generally defined as gross receipts less
winnings paid to wagerers) from gambling games. The tax imposed is to be paid by the licensee to the Commission on the day after
the day when the wagers were made. Of the proceeds of the wagering tax, 10% of such proceeds goes to the tocal government where
the home dock is located, and the remainder goes to the State of Missoun.

The Missouri Riverboat Gambling Act also requires that licensecs pay a $2.00 admission tax to the Commission for each person
admitted to a gaming cruise, One dollar of the admission fee goes.to the state and one dollar goes to the home dock city i which the
licensee aperates. The ticensee is required to imaintain public books and records clearly showing amounts reccived from admission
fees, the total amount of gross receipts and the total amount of adjusted gross receipts. In addition, all local income, earnings, use,
praperty and sales taxes are applicable to licensees. From time totime there have been several proposed bills pending before the
-Missouri General Assembly which, individually or in combination, if adopted, would (1) allow gaming credits to be uséd in food and
beverage purchases, (2) adjust the amount of wagering tax imposed on adjusted gross receipts of licensees andfor (3) adjust the
amount of amdmission tax paid by the licensee for each person admitted for 3 gaming cruise.

Pennsylvania

In 2004, the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania established the Pennsylvania Gaming Control Board ("PGCB"™) to oversee the creation
of the new casino industry. Initially, only slot machines were permitted, but in 2010, the law was revised to authorize table games as
well (collectively, the "PA Gaming Law"). The law ereated three categories of licenses - Category | slot machine licenses for up to

- seven licensed racetrack {acilities, five Category 2 licenses (twa i Philadelphia, one in Pitisburgh and two "at large”), and three
Category 3 licenses to well-established resorl hotels baving no fewer than 275 guest rooms under common ownership and having
substantial year-around recreational guest amenitics, one 0f which Category 3 licenses cannot be’issucd before July, 2017, Holders of
Category | and Category 2 licenses are entitled to up to 5,000 slot machines and 250 table games. Holders of Category 3 licenses are
entitied to up to 600 slot machines and 50 table games.
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The holder -ofa Category 3 license may only permit entry into the gaming area of the facility by the following:
(1) A registered ovemnight guest of the resort.

2) A patron of one or more of the amenities of the resort. A patron of an amenity is any individual who is a registered
atiendee of a convention, meeting or banguet cvent-or participant in a sport or recreational event or any other social,
cultural or business event held at a resort hotel or who participates in one or more of the amenities provided to
registered guests of the hotel in return for non-de minimus consideration, currently defined by.the PGCB as $10.00.
A patron of an amenity at the resort may be penmttcd unlimited access to the gaming floor for one 24 hour period
within 72 hours of use of the amenity.

(3) An awhorized employee of the licensee or gaming scrvice provider, of the PGCB or any regulatory, emergency
response or law enforcement agency while engaged in the performance of the cmployee’s duties.

(4) An individual holding a valid membership approved by.thc PGCB.or a gucst of such individual. The PGCB may
approve seasoral or year-round memberships that allow an individual to use one or more of the amenities provided
by the resort, based upon the duration of the membership, the amenity covered by the membership and whether the
fee charged represents the fair market value for the.use of the amemty.

“The first two Categary 3 licenses are not to be located within 15 linear miles of another licensed facility. The third Category 3 license
to be issued on or after July 20, 2017 is not to be iocated within 30 lincar milés of another licensed facility. The liccase fee fora
Category 3 slot machine ticense is $5 million and for a Category 3 table game operation centificate is $7.5 mitlion, for an aggregate fee
of $12.5 million.

The first Category 3 license was awarded to the Valley Forge Convention Center in April 2009, TOC-PA, LLC ("IOC-PA"), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Isle, teamed up with Nemacolin Woodlands Resort (! "Nemaeolin®) and Woodlands Fayr:tie LLC ("Woodlands
Fayettc") to develep and manage a propused Category 3 casino at Nemacolin in Fayetie County, Pennsylvania. The casino will be
called "Lady Luck — Nemacolin". Three other apphcants competed with Woodlands Fayetie for the remaining available Category 3
license and in April 2011, Woodlands Fayette was awarded the Category 3 license. The other applicants and one intervenor in
Woudlands Fayetic's application have inti! June 20, 2011 (30 days following the PGCR's issvance of its adjudication) to appeal the
decision of the PGCB directly to the Pennsylvania Suprcmc Court. The Supreme Conrt'is requived to dffirm the adjudication unless it
finds that the PGCB commitied an error of law ar that the order, determination or décision of the PGCB was arbitrary and there was a
capricious disrepard of evidence.

1OC-PA must be licensed as the manager of Lady Luck - Nemacolin. IOC-PA is required to prove by clear and convincing evidence

its financial stability and integrity, and that of its affiliates and holding companies, and their good character, honesty and integrity. In
addition, the table game operation certificate nceds to be applied for and obtained before the opening of Lady Luck - Nemacolin. The
ticenses to be issued to Woodlands Fayette and 10C-PA will be issued for one year and will need to be renewed annually thereafter.

The management agreement between 10C-PA and Woodlands Fayette is not effective until thé terms and conditions thereof have been
approved by the PGCB. In addition, any amendments to the management agreement must be submitted to the PGCB 30 days prior to
the effective date of the proposed amendment and shall not become effective until the.PGCB has reviewed and approved the terms and
conditions thereof. As the management company, [OC-PA may be jointly and severally liable for any act or omission by Woodlands
Fayetle as the slot machine liceosee in violation of the Act or the regulations, regardless.of actual knowledge by 10C-PA of the act or
omission.

Certain persons afTiliated with 1OC-PA, including our dircctors, key employees, and any person who acquires a 5% or greater
beneficial interest of our voting securitics, will be required to apply to the PGCB for licensure, obtain licensure and remain licensed.
Licensure requires, among other things, that the applicant establish by clear and convincing evidence the applicant's good character,
honesty and integrity,
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In addition, any trust that holds 3% percent or more of our voting securitics is required 1o be licensed by the PGEB and each
individual who is a grantor, trustee or benefictary of thie trust is also required to.be licensed by the PGCB. Under certain .
circumstances and under the regniations of the PGCB, an "institutionat investor,” as defined under the rzgulations, which acquires
ownership of 5% or more, but less than 10% of our voting securities, may not be required to be licensed by the PGCB provided that a
notice of ownership form is filed with the PGCB. In addition, any beneficial owner of our voring securities, regardless of the number
of shares beneficially owned, may be required at the discretion of the PGCB tofile an application for hcensure The PGCB also
licenses or registers various categories of individuals employed by'the tasino in gaming and non-gaming capacities.

Noa-renewal, suspension or revocation of a license, permit, certification or registration may occur for sufficient cause consistent with
the PA Gammg Law and public interest. A person whose application has been denied or whose license, permit, certification or
registration has been revoked may not apply for a license, permit, certification or fegistration for five yeurs from the datc of denial or
revocation, except under certain circumstances. In the event any of our security- holders is required to be licensed andiis not found
qualified, the security holder may be required by the PGCB to divést its intercst at a price not exceeding the cost of the interest.

It is the continuing duty of all holders of licenses, permits, certifications or registrations to fully cooperate with the PGCB in the
conduct of any-inquiry or investigation and to provide suppleméntary information requested by the PGCB.

JOC-PA is required to notify the PGCB of any propused appomtmt.nt, appointment, proposed nomination, nomination, clection,

hiring, tender of resignation, resignation, removal, firing, incapacitation or death of any person required to be licensed as a principal or
key employee under the PA Gaming Law or the regulations. promulgated thereunder. [n-addition, IOC-PA is also réquired to notify
the PGCB as soon as it becomes aware that it intends to enter into a transaction which may resu!t in any new financial backers.

The PGCB has broad authority to sanction, fine, suspend and revoke a license for.violations of the PA Gaming Law.

IOC-PA is requited 1o submit to the PGCB with respect to Lady Luck-Nemacolin: {1) fully signed copics of all wrinen agreements
with manufacturers, suppliers and vendors; (2) a description.of any oral agrecments with any manufacturers, suppliers and vendors;
(3) copies of all dgrt:emt_nts relating to land and real estate; and-(4) copi€s of all written agreements or a description of any gral
agreements with a person which involves or may involve payments of $500,000 or THOTE PEr year o a Ps:nnsylvama stot machine
licensece; togethier ivith any changes ar amendments thereto and any other agreements as requc>led by the PGCB. .

We must notify the PGCB iminediately upon becoming aware of any proposed or contemplated change in the ownership of Isle ar
10C-PA by a person or a group of persons acting in concert which involves any of the following:

) more than 5% percent of our securities or ather ownership interest;

) mare than 5% of the securities or other ownérship mleruts of a corporation or other form of business entity that
owns, directly or indirectly, at least 20% of owr voting or othér securities or ownership interests;

3) the sale, other than the normal course of business, of Isle or IOC-PA's assets; and

(4) other transactions or occurrences deemed by the PGCB (o be relevant to Hicense qualification.

PGCR approval is required prior to the completion of any proposed change ol ownership that meets the above criteria.

Upen a change of control.of Woodlands Fayette, the acquirer of the ownership interest would be required to qualify for licensure and
pay a new license fee of $3 million. The PGCB retains the discretion to eliminate the need for gualification and/or reduce the license
tee required wpon a ¢hange of control.

- »
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Pennsylvania imposes up 1o a 55% tax on slot machine revenues, consisting of 34% of slot machine revenues to the State Gaming
Fund; 2% to Fayetie County, 2% to Wharton Township, up to 12% to support live racing and 5% to the Pennsylvania Gaming
Economic Development and Tourism Fund. In addition, during the initial two years of table game operations, Pennsylvania imposes a
table game tax of 14% of table game revenues to the Commonwcalth ‘plus a 2% local share to each of Fayette County and Wharton
Township. Following the initial two years of operation, the table game tax to the.Commonwealth is reduced to 12% of table game
revenues, plus 2% to each of Fayette County and Wharton Township.

Stot machine and table game operators in Pennsylvania are also required to reimburse the PGCB for its-administrative and operating
expenses. The assessment rate of these fees has not been finalized by the PGCB. In addition, in order to fund operations of the
PGCB, an initial loan of approximately $36.1 million was granied to the PGCB from gaming.tax funds received by the
Commonwealth of Pennsylvanta, followed by additional founs in the aggregate amount of approximately $63.8 million, all of which
was to fund the PGCR's operationat costs. By June 30, 2011, the PGCB is required to establish a schedule governing the repayment of
the loans by licensed gaming entities, 10 bcgln when at least eleven slot machine licenses have been issued and eleven gaming entities
have commenced operation of slot machines. The repayment of the initial $36.1 million in appropriation continues 16 be deferved until
all licenses have begun operations. Currently there are ten licensed facilities operational in'Pennsylvania.

Although no repayment schedule has yet been agreed to, legislation requires at a-minimum that the schedule set forth the frequency of
puyments, assess the costs of repayment in an amount that is proportional to-cach licensee's gross terminal revenue and results in full
repayment not earlier than five years but no more than ten years following commencement of the loan repayment,

Nor-Gaming Reguilation

We-arc subject to certain fedceral, state and local safety and health; employment-and environmental laws, regulations and ordinances
that apply to nan-gaming businesses generally, such as the Clean Air Act, Clean Water Act, Occupational Safety and Health Act,
Resource Conservation Recovery Act, the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act and the Oil
Pollution Act of 1990. We have not made and do not anticipate, makmg, material expenditures with respect 16 such environmental
laws and regulations. However, the coverage and attendant compliance costs associated with such laws, regulations and 'ordinances
may resalt in future additional costs to our operations, For exampic, the Department 6f Transportation has promulgated regulations
under the Oil Pollution Act of 1990 requiring owners and operators of certaint vessels-to establish through the Coast Guard evidence of
financial responsibility for clean up of il pollution. This requirement has been satisfied by.proof of adequate insurance.

Several of our riverboats must comply with U.8. Coast Guard réguirements as to boat design, on-board facilities, equipment,
personnel and safety and must hold U.S. Coast Guard Certificates of Documentation and Inspection. The U.S. Coast Guard
rcquirements also st limits on the opcration of the riverboats and mandate licensirig of certain. personnel involved with'the operation
of the riverboats. Loss of a riverboat's Certificate of Documentation and Inspection: could preciude its use as a riverboat casino. The
U.S. Coast Guard has shifted inspection duties related to permanetitly moored casino vessels to the mdlwdlnl states. Louisiana and
Missouri have elected to utilize the services of the American Bureau of Shipping ("ABS") to undertake the inspections. lowa has
elected to handle the inspections through the lowa Department of Natural Resources. Thie states will continue the same inspection

critcria as the U.S. Coast Guard in regard to annual and five year inspections: Dcpendmg on thie outcome of these inspections 2 vessel
vould become subject to dry-docking for inspection of its hull, which. could result in a temporary loss of scrvice. This shift in
responsibility could, in the future, impact design, on-board facilities, equipmenit, personnel and safety requirements.

The barges are inspected by third parties and certified with respeét to stability and single.compartment flooding integrity. Our casino
barges must also meet local fire safety standards. We would incur additional costs if any of our gaming facilities were not in
comgpliance with one or more of these regulations.
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Regulations adopted by the Financial Crimes Enforcement Network of the U.S: Treasury Department require us to reportt currency
transactions in excess of $10,000 occurring within a gaming day, including identification of the patron by name and social secority
number. U.S. Tressury Department regulations also require us 1o report certainsuspicious activity, including any transaction that
exceeds 35,000 if we kaow, suspect or have reason to believe that the transaction trivolves funds from illegal activity or is designed to
evade federal regulations or reparting requirements. Substantial penalties can be imposed against us if we fail to comply with these
‘regulations.

All of our shipboard employeces, even those who have nothing to do.with vur operation as a vessel, such as dealers, waiters and
security personnel, may be subject to the Jones Act which, among other things, exempts-those employees from state limits on workers'
compensation gawards.
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EXPLANATORY NOTE

We are filing this Amendment No, 2 10 our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended Aprii 25, 3010 {"Amendment™), originally filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC") on June 8, 2010 and amended on June 8 2010 {the "Original Form 10-K”).

The purpose &f this Amendment is to amend the Original Form 18-K:10 include the information required by ltems 10 through 14 of Pan 1il of Form 10-
K, which infermation wag previously omitied from the Original. Form 10-K in reliance on Gieneral [h*:lnftclion G(3) 1o Form E0-K. The reference on the cover
of the Ongmal Fm-m 10-K 10 the incorporation by reference 1o portions of our dctmmvc proxy statement into Part i1 of the’ Original Form 10-K is hereby
delcted.. f\ddmona]]y in Hem 8, Note 2 10 the consolidated {inancial slatcmcmsﬂhe fnllowing lahguage in the Subsequem Events section "No material
subsequem events have decurred that require recognition or disclosure in the cunsolldated tinancial staiernents” has been replaced with a refemnce 10 a new
Note 21, which addresses the coniplétion of our acquisition of the Rainbow Casini located in Vicksburg, Mjsg]\s;pp] Othér thin described in the preceding
senicnce, the financial statlements have not been revised.

Pursuant to the rules of the SEC, ltem 15 of Part IV has also been amended 10 contain the currentiy dated centifications from the Company's Principal
Executive Officer and Principal Financial Officer as required by Section 302'and 906 of the Sarbanes Oxley Act of' 2002. The certifications of the Company's
Principal Fxccum'e Officer and Principal Financial Officer are attached to this Amendment as Exhibits 31 and 32,

For the convenience of the reader, this Amendment sets forth the Original Form 10-K in its cntirety, as modified and superseded where necessary'to
reflect the amendments discussed above. The following items have been amended 10 inclinde the required Part‘1l1-information and to update subsequent
events:

. Part [1—1Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

. purt [II—htém 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corposate Governance

' Part IU—Mtem 11, Executive Compensation

. Part lil—[tem 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneticial Owners and Managenient and Related Stockholder Matters
. Part 1LI—Item 13. Cenain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence

. Part LlI—Item 14. Principal Accountam Fees-and Services

. Part IV—ftem | 5(b). Exhibits

The remaining tems contained within this Amcndment consist of all other ltems contained in the Original Form 10-K and are included for the
convenience of the reader, The sections of the Onigindl Form 10-K which weie not amended are vnchanged and contimme in folt force and effect as originalty
filéd. Other than as required to reflect the changes discussed above, the Original Form 10-K continues to speak as of the date thereof {or such other date as
may be referred 10 in the Original Form 10-K). Events occurring subsequeni to the filiig 6f the Ongmal Farm 10-K and disclosures necessary io reflect any
subsequem events have been or will be addressed In our fifings with the SEC for periods sibsegient 16 the periods covered by the Origina) Form 10-K.
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DIBCLOSURE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Anmual Repoart containy statementy that we believe are, or may he considered io_be, "furward-looking statements”™ within the meaning of the Privae
Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995, All statements prher than siatements of historical foct, included in this Annual Repori regarding the prospects of our
inchustry orour prospects. plans, financial pasition or business strategy. may constinute forward-looking statements. In addition, forward-looking statemenits
generally can be'identified by the use of forward-looking words such as "may.” "will." " "expect,” “intened, " "estimate,” "foresee,” ”pra_{ec.r " “anticipate.”
“believe,” “plans,” "forecasts,” "continue” or "could” or the negatives of these.terms or variations of 1 them'or similar terms. Furihermore, such forward-

; atemesius may be included in various filingy thar we make with the SEC or presy releases or ora! .sta.'emem\ “made by or with the approval of one of
aur amhamed wxecuiive officers. Althaugh we believe thar the expectations ry, ﬂu Jed iA these forward- laokmg \m:em(.m\ are reasonable, we cannor assure
you that these expectations will prove 1o be correct. These Jorward-looking statements dre subject' 1 certdin known and utknown visky and uncertainties. ax
well as assumpiions that could cause actual rewdis 1o differ materially from those nﬂer.led in these forward-fooking statements. Faclars that might cause
actual resulty to differ include, bt are not limited 10 those disenssed in the seetion éntitled "Risk'Faetors™ beginning on page-10 of this repors: Readers are
cautioned nat to place undue reliance on any farward-looking statements cantained herein, which a'c’ﬂect management’s apinions arly as of the dare he.rr..uf
Except as required by law, we undertake no obligation w0 revise or publicly Felease the resulis of any revision w dny forward-looking siaiemients. You are
advised, however, 1o consult any additional disclosures we make in our reporis to the” SEC. Al subsequent writien anid oral forwardiooking statements
anributible 1o us or persons acting on our behalf are exprexsiy qualified in their entirety by the catuionary stalemenis-contained in'this Annual Report,
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PART 1
ITEM 1. BUSINESS
Overview

We are 2 leading developer, owner and operator of branded gaming facilitics and related lodging and entertainment facilities in regional markets in the
United States. We own and operate 14 casine praperties in six states. Collectively, these properties feature over 14,300 slot machines and over 350 able
games (including approximatety 95 poker tables) over 3,000 hotel ooms and more than three dozen restaurants. We-also operate a hamess racing track at our
casino in Florids. We have sought and established geographic diversity to limit the risks caused by weather, regional economic difficulties, gaming tax rates
and regulations of local gaming authorities.

Our business appreach is anchored by a disciplined-apphlication of the fo]luwing strategies:
Fucusing an core operating principles that have proven snocessful.

Qur operating focus is to deliver a superior guest experience by providing customers with the most popular gaming product in a clean, safe, friendly and
fun environmeni. These areas have been shown through cusioner research to embody the attributes of a gaming entertainment experience most important to
our customers in choosing which ¢asino to visit. We cmphas1zc among othcr thmgq customer courtesy and we havc mlplcmcmcd a proprictary progiam to
measure oUr progress against standards for centain courtesy behaviors. In addition, many of our capital and operating plans are intended to improve on guest
satisfaction, mL]udmg quality, accessibility and cleanliness of areas frequented by our customers, such as helel rooms and other public areas in our hotels and
cusino flours. We also have impleméated employee incentive progians designed to encourage t.mpluyeu; o deliver superior customer service and courtesy.

Driving volue through product offerings and hranding.

Qur currem strategy is to evolve into operating our properties under only two separate brand names: 1sie and Lady Luek (which we re-Jaunched in fiscal
2009). We use the Isle brand primarily at properties that have a repional drow. These are generally casinos in larger markets where wé have expansion
potential demonstrated by either the size of the market ar excess land thar we control. The Isle-branded properties typically offer expanded amenities, such as
hotel rooms, expanded food and beverage offerings and conference and convention capabilities. ' ’

We use the Lady Luck brend on properties that predominanmly draw local customers, thch are lyplcally 1 smaller markets with less expansion
potential, The goal of the Lady Luck brand is to offer high quality entertainment options, fca:unng casua] dining and popular local entertainment in a
comfortable setting in addition 1o 2 first class gaming experience. We have completed the refurbishment and rebrandisig of three ofour existing Isle properties
under the Lady Luck brand: Marquette, lowa in September 2009, Colomdo Central Statiof in-Black Hawl:; Colorado in June 2009 and Caruthersville,
Missourj in December 2008. We intend to rebrand some of our other existing properiies under the Lady Luck name during the next few years as economic
conditions and our capital structure improve. Qur current cXpectations are that Natchez and Lula, Mississippi; Lake Charles, Louisiana; Boonville, and Kansas
City, Missouri; and Davenport, [owa will eveniually be rebranded to Eady Luck casinos.

Continuing o focus on financial diveipline. i

We have made efforis 1o reduce our debt levels. During the last 24 months, we have reduced our outstanding debt from approximmsély $1.5 billion as of
April 27, 2008 10 $1,2 billion or a reduction of approximately 5300 million. We achieved this reduction through the use of cash obiamed from the settlement
of our Hurricane Katrina claim and cash flows from operations, 1o retire $142.7 million of the 7% senior subordinated notes for $82.8 miltion through 2 tender
offer, in February 2009 and a prepayment of 835 million of our term loans under ovr senior secured eredit facﬂny in Mareh 2009, in addition, we recently
entered ino an amendment to our senior secured credit facility that permits

[+
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increased flexibility in apcrations and capital spending. We continually seck oppartunities to inmiprove our capital structure.
Agpressively pursuing prudent growih oppornities.

We intend to continue 1o expand our operations through acquisitions, such as vur recently announced agreement to acquire the Rainbow Casino located
in Vicksburg, Mississippi, and through management of casitios owned by third parties, The Mississippi Gaming Commission recently approved our
. acquisition of the. Rainbow Cusino and we plan to complete the $80 million-acquisition in June 2010,

We formed Isle Gaming Managément, a management and consulting division of the Company, in 2009 10 leverage our experienced and respected
management team and intellectual property assets by managing and ﬂpI:r'dllng casinos owned by third pames- in exchange. for management and other fees. The
goal of Isle Gaming Management is o allow us to manage additionat casino properties without requiring cxtensive capital investment.-In January 2010, we
entered into a mapugement agreement with Nemacolin Woodlands Reson. Nemacolin is located in southwestern Pennsylvania near the West Virginia bordcr
approXimately 40 miles northeast of Morgantown, West Virginia and approxmmleiy 60 miles southeast of Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania. Nemacolin has filed an
application with the Pennsylvania Gaming Contro] Board for the one remaining resort casino hu.nse in Pcnns)]vanm Netiicolin is one of fouf apphcams.
We have also filed an application to be licensed as a casino eperator in Pennsylvania, If Nemacolin is awarded the license and we ‘are granted an opérator's
license,.we have agreed to make certain improvements (o an existing building at the resart, wlmh will house a Lady Luck casino that we will | manage. We

- will pay an annnal fee 1o the casino owner and in return will receive a management foe equal fo the’ EB]'l DA of the casina after payment of the fee to
Nemacolm The Pennsylvania Gaming Commission has not set a timeline for the award of the remaining casino license! We are actively seeking other
opportuiities to nianage casinos owned by third parties.

Casino Properties

The following is an overview of our existing casino propertics as of April 25, 2010,

Date Acquired or Slot ‘Tabte Hatey Parking
Property PO — . (lp_e.ned _Machines  _Gamis Rooms Spaces
T A T S N e T R
Lake Charles - July 1993 1,340 15493 2,335
Mn.mupprh,;, oA e ‘M__.m__wé O S LRGN T T e e )
Lula March 2000 1,215 17 484 1,583
By T T e 1603 8 T T 1393 o 7= 36, T T10.5 o, 600
Natchez March 2000 ) 6I9 IO 141 308
T e A R S AT T DR A e e )
Kansas City June 2000 1 201 2 — 1,618
LBVl s el A eGPk By e RS Decomber 2001 ¢ ah v oy h ORIy et 192 . 140~ 141013
Caruthersville _ June 2007 619 16 — ] 000
fE R A D P T o N o SR M i -—j
Bestendorf e e e gy MaLED 2000 L1031 31;1_ 1,597
F R thini City- DavenpOr Zu et e o 3 b Ay ont o OCIOBETI000 4 5¥e% 5,8 Sy 1934 ozl bots o 7o 911]
Marqu‘.l!c —_ e e e iy Murch 2000 e 600 13 —_— 475
V'iter]ou;______‘,,__,._m._;_‘&;‘-t -_,9% AN, R _;:;_._,June 70()'.@1 ‘. _‘y"g,_ = 1 040‘;,‘ i3 #195% - -1 487
Colorado s s ] )
[Tsle Casino Hotel-=Biack HAWE .o < ame. ot ,,;,,-,.Dcccmber.l‘)% e o BAE 23 23R -2 TT00)
rl.'ggy Luck Cn<mn—BIncL Hawk April 2603 381 .20 164 1,200
S AR WA N0 e K T T PN i R AN S P |
Pompann Park July 1995/Amil 2007 1,463 38 — 3,781
FENRIAREIONIE L 5 ey g T R 1,579, 17_1368, 23,0797 220,696]
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Lenrisiana
Leke Charles

COur Lake Charles property, which commenced operations in July 1995, is located on a 19-acre site along lnterstate 10, the main thoroughfare connecting
Houston, Texas 1o Lake Charles, Louisiana. The property consists of two dm,ksuie casinos offering 1,840 slot machines, 47 table games, 28 poker tables, two
hotels nﬂenng 493 rooms, a 105,000 square foot land-based pavilion and entertainment center, and 2,335 parking spaces, mc]udmg approximately.1,400
spaces in an attached parking garage. The pavilion and entertainment center offér customers a wide vancry of non gaming amenities, including a 97-seat
Farraddays' réstavrant, a 360-seat Calypso’s buifet, a 165-scat Tradewinds Markeipiace, a 64-scat Lucky Wiiis Asian-inspired restaurant and Caribbean Cove,
which fearures free live entertainment and can accommodate |80 customers, The pavilion also has a-14,750 square foot entertainment center comprised of a
1,100-scat special events center designed for concerts, five boxing, televised pay-per-view cvents, banquets and other events, mecting facilities and
administrative offices.

‘The Lake Charles market currently consists of two dockside gaming facilities, a Native: Américan casino and a pari-mutuet fadﬁt)lmcﬁno The cwrent
numbér of slot machines in the market exceeds 8,200 machiries and tble games exdeed 200 tables. In calendar year 2009, the two gaming facilities and one
racine, in the aggregate, generated gaming revenucs of approximately $665 million: Revenues for. the Native American’ ‘property are not- pubhshcd Gaming
revenucs for our Lake Charles property for caléndar year 2009 were approximately. $149 million. Lake Charles is ‘the closest ga.rm.ng ‘market 10 .the Houston
titetropolitan area, which has a population of approximately 5.5 million and is located approximately” ‘140 miles west of Lake Charlés. We believe that our
Lake Charles property attracts custorners primarily from southeast Texas, lmludtng louston, Beaumont, Galveston, Orange and Fort Arthur and from local
arca residents. ApproXimately 500,000 and 1.6 million people reside within 30 and 100 miles, respectively, of the Lake Charles prqpert)

Mississippi
Lua

Our Lula property. which we acquired in March 2000, is strtegically located off of Highway 49, the on]y rpad crossing the Mississippi River between
Mississippi and Arkansas for more than 50 miles in either direction. The property consists of two docks:de casinos containing 1,215 slot machines and
17 table games, two an-siie hotels with a total of 484 rooms, a land-based pavilion and entertainment center, 1 583 parking spaces, ind a 23 -space RV Park.
The pavilion and ententainment center otfer a wide variety of non-gaming amenitics, mcludmg a l45 seat Farraddays’ restaurant, a 300-sem Calypso's buffet
and a 44-seat Tradewinds Marketplace, and a gifi shop. All 171 rooms of our Coral Reef Hotel vnder}_vcm complete renovation in 2008.

Our Lula property is the only gaming facility in Coahama County, .\-ﬁssicsippi and generated gaming revenues of approximarcly $73 million in calendar
year 2009. Lula draws a significant amount of business from the Little Rock, Arkansaq metropolitan area, which has a population of approxiniately 675,000
and is located approximately 120 miles west of the property. Coahoma County is also located appmx:mz\tely 60 miles southwest of ! Memphis, Tennessee,
which is primarily served by nine casinos'in Tunica County, Mississippi. Approximately 1.1 million people reside within 60 miles of the property. Lula also
competes with Native American casinos in Oklahoma and 2 racino in West Memphis, Arkansas.
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Biloxi

Our Biloxi property, which commenced operations in Angust 1992, is lm.atcd on a 17-acre site at the eastern end of a c]usmr of facilities formerly known
as "Casind Row" in Biloxi, Mississippi, and is the first property reached by visitars coming from Alabdma, Florida and Georgia via Highway 90.

In October 2003, the Mississippi cgislature amended its gaming laws to allow casinos to opemlc' land-based facilities within 800 feet of the mean high
water line. Our Bikoxi propérty is now a land-based casino ofﬁ:rm&, appro:umau:ly 1,300 slot rnachmes, 27 tible games, a nine-table poker om, a 710-room
hotel including 200 whirlpoot suites, a 120-seat banquet room called "Paradise Room, 138-seat Farruddnys restaurant, a 200-seat Calypso's buffet, a
Tradeviinds Express, a multi-siary feature bar, a fiill service Starbuicks and 1,600 parking spaces.

The Mississippi Gulf Coast market (which includes Biloxi, Gulfport and Bay St. Louis) is one of the latgest gaming markets in the United States and
consists of 11 dockside gammg facilities, which in the aggregate, generated gaming revenues of apprcummely 51.1 billion during calendar year 2009 Our
Biloxi propcny generated gaming revenues of approximately $73 million durmg calendar year 2009, Approximately one million people reside within 60 miles
of the property.

:'\.'archc."’..

- Our. Natchez property, which we acquired in March 2000, is located off of nghW'lys 84 'md 61in western Mississippi. ‘The property consists of a
dockside casing offering 619 slot machines and 10 table games, a 14!-room off-<jte hotel loéated appmxlmatcly one mite from the casino, a 150-scat
Calypso's buffet and 908 parking spaces.

Our Naichez praperty is currently the only gaming facility in the Natchez market ahd generated total gaming revenues of approximately $36 million in .
calendar year 2009. We believe that the Natchez property attracts eustomers primarily from among the approximately 351,000 people residing within 60 miles
of the Natchez property.

Missouri
Kansav Ciry

Our Kansas City praperty, which we acquired in June. 2000, is the closest gﬂmmg tacility to downtown Kansas City and consists of a dockside casino
offering 1,201 slot machines and 22 table games, a 260-seat Calypso's buftet, a A5-seat deewmds Marketplacc and 1,618 parking spaces,

The Kansas City market consists of four dockside gaming facilities and a Native Americah casino. Operatmg statistics for the Native American casino
arc not published. The four dockside gaming facilities generated gaming revenues of apprommalely $720 million in calendar.year 2009, Qur Kansas Clty
property generated ganiing revennes of approxintately 382 miilion during calendar year 2009, We believe that our Kansas City casino attracts customers
primarily from the Kansas City metropolitan area, which has apprommmclv 1.9.million residents

On April 30, 2010, a ground-breaking ceremony was held signify the beginning of construction of a $521 million casino at the Kansas Speedway
incated in Wyandotte County, Kansas. This casino conld open in early 2012.In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2008 the State of Missouri, began reconstruction of’
the Paseo Bridge and interchanges adjacem 10 our property. The bridge and mterchangc construction is expected fo coniinue into fiscal 2011. Access to our
property has been and will continue to be hampered due to fane restrictions refuted to bridge construction and temporary entrance/exit rarmp designs until the
construction js completed.
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Our Boonville property, which opened on December 6, 2001, 15 Jocated [hrcc miles off tierstate 70, approxmmcb ha!fwa\ between Kansas City and
St. Louis..The property consists of a single leve) dockside casino offering 981 slut miachines, 19 table, games, a 140-room hotel, a 3 400 square foot pavilion
and entertainmest center and.1,101 parking spaces. The pavilion and entertainment center offers customers a w:dc variety of non-gaming amenities, including
an §3-seat Farraddays’ restawrant, a 21 8-seat Calypso's bofiet, a 24-scat [radewinds Markctp!acc. 4n'800 seat event conter, and an historic display arca. Our
Boonville property is the anly gaming facility in central Missouri and generated gaming revenues of approximately $82 million ia calendar year 2009. We
beiieve that oir Boonville casino attracts customers primarily from the approximaiely 583,000 pcop]c who reside within 60 miles of the property which
includes the Columbia and Jefferson City areas.

Caruthersvilte

Our Caruthersville property was acquired on June 11, 2007 and is a riverboat casino located alonig the Mississippi River in Southeast Missouri. [n June
2008, the casino was re-branded as a Lady Luck casino with the canstruction and refiiibishmen completed in December 2008. The dockside casino ofters 619
slot machines, 1 table games and 5 poker tables. As part of the re-branding; wé renovated our 40,000 square foot pavilion, which includes a_130-seat Lone
Wolf restaurant, bar and lounge, and a 270-seat Qtis & Henry's restaurani. Renovations to the rivérboat, including the casino floor, were completed in the
sumimer of 2009. The property also operates a 10,000 square foot exposition ceiiter with seating for up to 1,100 patrens and has 1,000 parking spaces. Our
Caruthersville facility is the only casino located in Southeast Missouri and generated gaming revenues of approximately $33 million in calendar year 2009,
Approximatéty 647,000 people reside within 60 miles of the property. '

Recent Changes w Missouri Gaming Laws—During November 2008, gaming law changes became cffective in Missouri which repealed the $500 loss
timir, '

fowa
Beuendarf

The Betiendorf property, which we acquired in March 2000, is located oﬂ‘"nfintuslaic 74, an interstate }i'ighumy'scrvmg the Quad Cities metropolitan
area, which consists of Bettendorf and Davenport, lows and Moline and Rock, ls!ami [llinois, The propenty consists of a dockside casine offering 1,00 shot
machines and 31 table games, 514 hotel rooms, 40,000 square feet 6f flexible conVLnuonlbanquel space, a 102-seat Faraddays’ resiaurant, 2:272-5eat
c al) pso's-buffet, a 26-seat Tradewinds Marketplace and 1,597 parking spaces. We have entered into agrccments ‘with the City of Bettendort lowa under
~ which we manage and provide financinl and operating supmn for the QC Wd{eﬂmn{ Convention Center thai is adjatent 1o our hotel, The QC Waterfrom
Convention Center opened in January 2009.

Davenport

Cur Davenpont property, which we acquired in October 2000, is located at the intersection of River Drive and lighway 61, a state highway serving the
Quad Cities metropolitan area. The property consists of a dockside gaming facility offering 934 slov machines; 16 table games, 3 228-scat Hit Parade buffet, a
Cirab-n-CGro food outlet and 911 parking spaces.

‘The Quad Cities metropolitan area gurrently hus three gaming operations—our two gaming facitities in Betendorf and in Davenport, and one operator,
which opened a larger land-based facility, including a hotcl, in December 2008, The three operations in the Quad Cities generated total gaming revenues of

approximately 5210 miilion in calendar year 2009. Qur Bettendorf and Davenport
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pruperties generuted vasin revenues for calendar year 2009 of approximately. $82 million and 353 million, respectively. Our operations in the Quad Cities
&lso compete with other gaming operations in Hlinois and lowa. Approximately 923, 000 ) people reside within 60 miles of our Bettendorf and Dav enport
propenics.

Marquette

Our Marquette property, which we acquired in March 2000, s located in Marquette, fuwn, approximately 60 miles north of Dubuque, lowa. The property
consists of a dockside casino offering 600 slot machines and 13 table gimes, a marina and 475 parking spaces. During fiscal 2010, we completed the
rebranding of the property as a Lady Luck casino. The facility now includes a newly themed 158-seat buffet restaurant, an Otis and Henry's Express food
outlet and a Lone Wolt restaurant and bar.

Our Marquette property is the only gaming facitity in the Marquette, lowa market and gencrated gaming revenues of nppmnmaiely S30 mtilion in
calendar year 2009. We beli€ve most-of our Marquette customiers are from northeast lowaand W:scunsm which mt.ludes approximately 491,000 people
within 60 miles of our property, and we compete for those custotners with other gaming facilities { i Dubuquc fowa and Native American casinos in
sonthwestern Wisconsin.

Warerloo

Qur Watesloo property, which opened on June 30, 2007, is Jocated adjacent to Highway 218 and US 20 in Waterloo, lowa, The property consists of a
single-level casino offering ,040 slot machines, 27 table games-and 5 poker iables. The property also offcrs a wide variety of non-gaming amenities,
including a 123-seat Otis & Henry's restaurant, a 208-seat Isle buffet; a-36-seat Trdewinds marketplace, Club Capri Lounge, Fling feature bar, 5,000 square
feet of meeting space, over 1,487 parking spaces and a 195-room-hotel, which includes 27.suites, as wéll as an indoer pool and hoi mb area.

Our Waterloo propetty is the only gaming facility in the Waterloo, lowa,market and approximaiely. 636,000 people live within 60 miles of the property.
We compete with other casinos in eastern lowa. We generuted gaming revenues of approximately $78 million-in calendar vear 2009.

Colorado
Isle Casino Hotel-Black Hawk

Isle Casino Hotel-Black Hawk commenced operations in December 1998, is loeated on an approximately 10-acre site and is onc of the first gaming
facilitics reached by customers arfiving from Denver via Highway 119, the main theroughfarc connecting Denver to Black Hawk. The property inchides a
‘land-based casino with §,164-slot machines and 23 table games, a 23‘3-mom hotel and'1,100 parking spaces in an atached parking garage. Isle Casino Hotel-
Black Hawk also offers custoimers three restaurants, including a 1 14-seat Far_md,days restaurant, a 271-seat Calypso's butfet and a 36-scat Tradewinds
Marketplace.

Lady Luck Cavino-Black Hawk

Lady Luck Casino-Black Hawk, which we acquired in Apri) 2003 and rebranded in June 2009, is located across the intersection of Main Street and Mil}
Steet from the Isle Casino Hotel-Black Hawk. The property consists of a land-besed cusino with.38] slot machines, [ 1 standard table games, 2 nine table
poker room, 2 {64-room hotel that opened in December 2005 and | 200 parking spaces in our parking structure connecting Isle Casino Hotel-Black Hawk and
Lady Luck Casino:Black Hawk. The property also offers guests dining in its 94-seat Station Café that was opened in early 2007 as well as 2 grab and go fast
serve food counter that is Jocated in the lower level of the facility. Our Black Hawk sites are conpected via sky bridges.
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When casinos having multiple paming licenses in the same building are combined, the Black Haw WCenral City market consists of 24 paming facilities
(seven ofwhich have more than 600 slot machmcs) which in aggregate, generated gdmmg revenues ofnpprommalely £593 million in calendar year 2009.
Our BiacK Hawk properties generated casino revenues for culendar year 2009 of: dppﬂ)xlm'ltt]) $132 million. Black Hawk is the closest gaming s indrket to the
Denver, Colorado metropolitan area, which has a population of approximately 2.9 million and is located approximately 40 miles east of Black Hawk and
serves as the primary feeder market for Black Hawk.

Recent Changes o Colorado Gaming Laws—On July 2, 2009, changes to the Colortido g Lannng law went into effect which extended the hours of
operation from 18 10 24 hours pef day, expanded the wpes of permitted table games 1o include Sraps and sotlette, and infreased the betting limits from 35 10
S100 per bet.

Florida
. Pompano

In 1995, we acquired Pompano Park, a hamess racing track located in Pompano Beach, 'Florida.: ‘Pompano Park is located off of Interstate 95 and the-
Florida Tumpike on a 223-acre owned site, near Fort Lauderdale, midway between Miamid and West Patm Beach. Pompano Park is the only racetrack licensed
1o conduct hamess racing in Florida.

Our Pompano facility includes 1,463 slot machines, 2 33-1able poker room, three restaurants, a féamre bar and 3,781 parking spaces.

Approximately 2.6 million people reside within a 25-mile radius of our Pompano facility, which competes with four other mcinos and three Native
American facilities-in the niagket. While casino revennes are not available for'all markel competitors, we csnmulc that we operute approximately 12% of the
slot machines in the market-ind generated approximately 8121 million in casif revenives for calendar yeur, "2009.

Recent Changes o Florida Gaming Laws—In April 2010, changes were made to Florida luw which, émong other things, lowered our state, gaming tax
rate from 50% to 35%% effective July 1, 2010. This legislation also-allows the poker operations to remain opcn for the same hours as the slot floor and removes
the poker betting limits. The changes to Florida law were combined with the approval of-a geming compact between the Statc of Florida and the Seminole
Tribe of Florida. This gaming compact allows the tribe the exclusive right outside of Mlaml_-D.'ldr and Broward couniies to operate slot machines and other
similar electronic gaming devices and the right 1o operute live blackjack fnd baccarat table gemes for a period of five years at certain tribal gaming locations.
International Operations

Lucaya—We operated a casine in Grand Bahama from December 2003 through November 2009, when we exited the operation.

Blue Chip—We onerated casinos in Dudley and Wolverhampton, England. These casinos opened during fiscat 2004 and were operated by us until they
were sold in November 2009.

Caventry—=We operated a casino in the Coventry Convention Center from July 2007 through Aprit 2009, when we terminated our lease and sold the
casino and related assets.

Marketing

Qur marketing programs are designed 1o promote our overall business strategy of providing customers with a safe, clean, friendly and fun gaming
experience at each of our properties. We have
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developed an extensive proprietary database of customers that allows us to crenic effective targeted marketing and promotional programs that are designed 1o
reward customer loyaliy, atiract new Custommers 1o owr properties and maimain high recognition of our brands.

Specifically, our marketing programs and initiatives are tatlored to suppert this corporate strategic plan and are geperally focused on the following areas:

' Crstomer Research: Our marketing strategics have been developed and implemented to ncet the neéds and desires of olir casino custormers in
cach of our locations. Ln order to assess these needs and desires, we engage'in, significant customer research'in cach of our markets by conducting
periodic surveys. Upon receipt of these surveys, we assess the attitudes f our customers and the customers of our compcnmre propetties
towards the most unport.mt attributes of their experence in a regional antfor lacal gaming facthly We use the extensive information gathered
from these research initiatives 1o make marketing, operating and developmént decisions that, we believe, will eptimize the position of our
properties relutive to our competition.

' Bronding Initialives: Cur strategie plan is designed to consolidate our property, portfolio from four brands into twa brands as the cconomy
improves and we undertake significant new capital improvement pmgr;m:, To date, we havé begun this initiative through the Te-branding of our
properties In Caruthersville, Missouri, Mamuctte, lowa, and the convelsmn of Colgrado Céntral Station in Black Hawk, Colorado to Lady Luck-
Black Hawk. As a component of these re-branding programs, we have also 1mplemented newly-branded customer omlms including costom
restaurants and lounges that we are expanding through our porifolio to other. properties. We believe, over time, this approa(.h will'allow.us to
more effcctively align and promote our properties based upon customer needs and desires and market our propemcs on'a consolidated basis.
Furthermore, we expect our approach will streamline the eosts associated with marketing our portfolio.

. Datehase Marketing: We have streamlined our database marketing i lmmuvcs acinss the Company in order to focus our marketing efforts on
profitable customers who have demonstrated a willingness to regularly visit our properties. Specifically, we have focused on eliminating from
our database customers who have historically been included in significant' marketing efforts but have proven costly either as a result of excessive
marketing expenditures on the part of the Company, of because these customers have becaine rélatively dornant in terms of customer activity.

. Scgmentation: We have compiled an extensive database of customer information over time, Among our most important marketing initiatives, we
have introduced database segtmentation to our properties and at the corporate level § in order o adjusl investment rates to a level at which we
expect to meet a reasonahle level of customer profit contribirtion.

. Retail Developmens: We helieve that we must more effectively attract new, non-database customers to our properiies in order to increase
pmllldb!]ny and free cash flow. Thesé customers are generally less expensive to attract and retain and, therefore, currently represent a sighificant
opportunity for our operations.

Employees

As of April 25, 2010, we employed approximately 7,500 people. We lave a collective bargaining agreement with UNITE HERE covering approximately
375 employees at our Pompano property which expires in May 2012, We believe that our relationship with our cimplovees is satisfactory.
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Governmental Regulations .

The gaming and racing industries are highly regolated, and we must maintain our licenses and pay gaming 1a%es 10 continue our eperations. Each of our
facikities is subject to extensive regulation under the-faws, riiles and regulations of the jurisdiction where it is Ioutcd. These laws, rules and regu]mmns
generally relate to the responsibility, financial stability and character of the owners, managers and persons with financial interests in the gaming operations.
Violations of laws in one jurisdiction could result in disciplinary action in other jurisdictions. A more detatled desEription of the regulations to which we are
subject is contained in Exhibit 99.1 to this Annual Report on Form 10-1C

Our businesses are subject 10 varions federal, state and Joea) laws and regolations in addition o gaming regutations. These laws and regulations include,
hut are not limited to, restrictions and conditions conceming aleoholic beverages, food service, smoking, environmental matiers, employees and employment
pncnccs currency transactions, taxation, zoning and huilding codes, and marketing and advertising: Stich laws and regulations could change or could be
lntc:rpmted differently in the future, or new laws and regulations cnu!d be enacted. Material changes; new laws or regulations, or material differences in
intcrpretations by courts or govemmcnm] authoritiés could ad\crscly aflect our operating resulis.

Available Information

For more information about us, visit our web site at www. isléofcapricasinos.com. Qur electronic filings with the U.S. Securities and Exchange
Commission (mcludmg all annual reports on Form 10:K, quariér reports on Form 10-Q, and current reports on-Form 8-K, and any amendments to these:
reports), including the exhibits, are available free of charge through our web site as spon as reasanably practicable after we electronically file them with or
furnish them 10 the LL.S. Securities and Exchange Commission.

ITEM 1A.  RISK FACTORS

We face significant competition from oiher ganing eperations, including Native American gaming fucilities, that could huve a material adverse effect on
our future operations.

The gaming industry is intensely competitive, and we face o high degree of competition in the markets in which we operate. We have numerous
competitors, including land-based casinos, dockside casmos riverboat casinos, casinos locatcd on racing, pari-mutuel operations or Native American-owned
lands and video lotery znd poker machines not located in casinos. Some of our competitors may have better name recognition, marketing and financial
resources than we do; competitors with more financial resources may therefore be able to improve the quality of, or expand, their gaming facilitics in a way
that we may be unable to match. .

:Legalized paming is currently pesmitted in various forms thioughout the United States. Certain states have redently legalized, and other states are
currently considering legalizing gaming. Our existing gaming facilities compete directly with other gaming properties in the staies in which we operate. Qur
existing casinos atira¢t a significant number of their customers from-Houstgn, Texas: Mobile, Alabama; Kansas City, Kansas: Southern Florida: Little Rock,
Arkansas: and Denver, Colorado. Legalization of gaming iﬁju'risdictions closer to these geographic markets other than the jurfsdiciions in which our faciiities
are located would have 2 material adverse effect on aur operntihg results. Other jurisdictions,.including states in ¢lose proximity to jurisdictions where we
currently have operations, have considered and may consider legalizing casino guming and other forms of competitioh. In addition, there is no limit an the
number of gaming licenses thal. may he granted in several of the markets in.which we operate. A< a result; new gaming licenses could be awarded in these
markets, which could allow new paming operators to enter oiir markets that could have an adverse effect 6;\ ouf operating results.
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We also compete with other forms of legalized gaming and entertainment such as online computer gambling; bingo, pull 1ab games, card parlors, sports
books, "cruise-to-nowhere™ opemtions, pari-mittuel or telephonic betting on horse racing and dog racing, state-sponsored lotteries, jai-alai, and, in the future,
taay compete with gaming ai other venues. In addition, we compete more generally with other, forms'ef entertainment for. the discretionary spending of our
custoimiers. '

Our continued success depends upon drawing customers from each of these peographic markets: We expect competition to increase as new gaming
operatofs enter our markets, existing competitors expand their operations, gaming d(.tl\'ltlc: ctpmd in existing jurisdictions and gaming is lq.almrd in new
jurisdictions. We cannot predict with any certainty the effects of existing and future mmpelmon on our operating results.

We are subject 1o extensive regulatinn from gaming and other reguelatory avithorities iha;_r could adversely aﬁ‘ccf us

Licensing requirements.  As owners and aperators of gaming and pari-martuel wngcrlng faulmcs we are subject to extensive state and local regulation.
State and local autharities require us and our subsidiaries to demonstrate ‘:mlablllty to oblam and retain ‘Various licenses-and réquire that we have registrations,
permits and approvals 1o conduci gaming operations. The regulatory authorities in the Junsdu_nom in-which wie operate have very broiid discretion with’
regard to their regulation of gaming operators, and may for a broad variety of rexsons aiid'in accordance with applicablé laws, rules and régulations, lirmit,
condition, suspend, fail to renew or revoke a license to conduct gaming upcranons or.prevent us from owning the securitics of any of our gaming subsidiaries,
or prevent other persons from owning an interest in us or doing business wilh 5] We may alsa'be deemcd responsible for the acts'and conduct of our
employees. Substantial fines or forfeiture of assets for violations ofgamm«_r laws o7 regulations may be Icvn:d against us, our. subsidiaries and the persons
involved, and Some regulatory authorities have the ability 1o require us$ 10 suspend our operations>The suspension or revacation of any of oir.ficenses or our
operations or the levy on us or our subsidiaries of a substantial fine would have a’material adverse effect on our business,

To'date, we huve demonsirated suitability to obtain and have obtained all governmental licenses, registrations, permits and approvals necessary for us to
operate our existing gaming facilities. We cannot assure you that we will be able to retain these licenses, registrations, pcnmts and’ 1ppm\als or that we will
bé able to obtain any new ones in order to expand our business, or that our,attempts to do so wnl] be Umely Like all gaming operators in thé jurisdictions in
which we operate, we must. periodically apply to renew our gaming licenses and have the sunah:htv of certain of our directors, officers and employeces
approved. We cannot assure you that we will be able to obtain such renewals or approvals.

‘In addition, regulatory authoritics in ceriain jurisdictions nwist approve, in advarice, any restrictions on transfers of, agreements not 10 cncumber or
pled;,es of equity securities issued by a corporation that is registéred as an intermedidry coinpany with such state, or that holds'a gaming license. If these
reswrictions are not approved in advance, they will be invalid.

'C'rmfplr'ance with other laws,  We are also subject to a variety of other federal, state dlld lucal laws, rules, regulations and ordinances that apply 10 non-
gaming businesses, incloding zoning, environneantal, construction and land-use laws and reguiations governing the serving of alcoholic beverages. Under
various federal, state and local laws and regulations, an owner or operator of réal property may be held lable for the costs of removal or remediation of certain
-hazardous or toxic substances or wastes located on its property, regardless of whether or not the present owner or operator knows of, or is responsible for, the
presence of such substances or wasies. We have not identified any issues associated with our propenties that could reasanably be expected wo have an adverse
etfect on us or the results of our operations. However, several of our properties arc located in industrial areas or.werc used for
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industrial purposes for many years. As a consequence, it is possible that historical or nughbormg activities “have affected onc or more of our properties and
that, as e result, environmental issues could arise in the fawre, the precise nature’of which we cannot now predict. The coverage and attendant compliance
costs assoctuted with these laws, regulations and ordinances may result in future additional costs.-

.Regutations adopted by the Financial Crimes Enforcement Network of the U8 Treasury, Department require us 10 report currency transactions in excess
of $10,000 occurring within a gaming day, including identification of the patron by Hame and social security number, U.S. Treasury Depanment regulations
also require us 10 repoit certain suspicious activity, including any transaction that cxceeds 35,000 if we know; suspect or have reason to.believe. that the
uansaction involves tunds from illegal sctivity or is designed 1o cvade fedéral.rcgul'a!jans or reporing requiremenis. Substantial penaliies can be imposed
againsi us if we fail to comply with these regulations.

Several of our riverboats must comply with 11.5. Coast Guard reqmrcmenl‘: as to boat design, on-board facilities, squipment, personnel and safety and
must hald 1).S. Coast Guard Certificates of Documentation and Inspection. The US : Coast Guard rcquu'emcnts also set limits on the aperation of the
riverbuats and mandate leensing of cenain personnel involved with the operation of the riverboats, Loss 6f a riverboat's Ceniticate of Documentation and
{nspection could preclude its use s a Averboat casine. The U.S. Coast Guard has slufted mspectmn ‘dutics related 1o permanemly maored casing vessels to the

individual states. Louisiana and Missowri have elected to utilize the services of the Amencml Burean ofsmppmg ("ABS"Tto undertake the inspections. lowa
has elected to handle the inspections through the lowa Department of Natural Rc&ources The “states wil) continue the sime inspection criteria as the U.S.
Coast Guard in regard to annual and five year inspections. Depending on the outcome of_lh_cxe inspections a vessel could become subject to dry-docking for
inspection of its hull, which could result in a temparary loss of service. i

We arc required to have third panties periodically inspect and certify all;of our casing barges for swbility and single compartment flooding 1mcgm) Our
casina barges and other facilities must also mieet local fire safety standards. Wc wouldiincar additional costs if any of our gaming facilities were not in
compliance with one or mare of these reguiations. .

Potentiol changes in legistation and regutution of eur operations. From time to umc legislators and special interest proups have proposed legislation
that would expand, restrict or prevent gaming operations in the jurisdictions i which: e operate; 1n addition, from {ime to time, certain anti-gaming groups
have challenged constitutional amendinents or Jegislation that would limit our bility to continue 10 operate in'those jurisdictions in which these constitutional
amendments or legislaton have been adopied.,

Taxation and fees.  State and local suthorities raise a sipnificant amount of revenne sl\mugh axes and fees on gammg acm:m:q We believe that the
prospect of significant revenue is one of the primary reasons ﬂ)atjunsdmunns permit legall?ed gaming. As a result, gaming companies are ty p:cal]y subject lo
significani taxes and fees in addition to normal federal, state, local and provineial income taxes, and sich taxes and fees are subject w increase at any time.
We pay substantial taxes and fees with respect (o our operations. From time to time, f'cdr:aal state, local and provincial legislatars and otficials have proposed
changes in tax laws, or in the administration of such laws, affecting the paming ‘industry. Any.material increase, or the adoption of additional taxes or fees,
could have a maitertal adverse effect on our future financial results.
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Qur business may be adversely affected by legislation prohibiting tobucca .cmnling.

Legislation in various forms 1o ban indoor tobacco smoking has recently been enacted or introduced in many states and local jurisdiclions, including
several of the jurisdictions in which we operate. On January 1, 2008, a statewide smoking:ban that'includes casino tloors weni into effect in Colorado. This
smaoking bah in Colorado has had a negative impaet on besiness volume at ouT Black Hawk properties.

fadditiena] restrictions on smoking are enacted anu!‘lSd]BllUl‘lb in which we operate; we could experience a significani decrease in gaming revenue and
pariicularly, if such restrictions are not applicable o all competitive facilities in that gaming market, our business could bé materially adversely affected.

‘Qur substantiaf indebtedness could adversely affect our financial health and resirict pur operations.
We have a significant amount of indebtedness. As of April 25, 2010, we had approximately $1.2 billion of total debt outsianding.

Qur signiﬁcam indebtedness could have impaortant consequences to our financial health, such as:

. limiting our ability to use operating cash flow or obtain additional ﬂnam,mg t fund working capital, capital expenditures, expansion and other
iniportant areas of our business because we must dedicate a significant portion of our cash flow to make principal and interest payments on our
indebicdness;

. causing an event of default if we fil to satisfy the financiad and restrictive covenants contained in the indénture and ngmcmcms govering our

senior secured credit facility, our 7% senior subordinated notes diie 2014 and atit other indebtedness, which could résult in all of ovr debt
becoming immediately due and payable, could permit our secured lenders 15 foréclose on the assets sccurmg our se¢ured debt and have other
adverse consequences, any of which, if not cured or waived, could have a material adverse effect on bs;

. if the indebtedness under our 7% senior subordinated notes, our senior secured credit {“aci_lity, or our ather indebtedness were 10 be acceicrated,
there can be no assurance that our assets would be sufficient to'repay such indebtedness in full;

. placing us at a competitive disadvantage to our competitors who are not as highly leveraged;

. increasing our vulnerability to and limiting our ability to react to changing murket conditions, changes in our industry and economic downtums
or downturns in our business; and

. our agreements governing our indebtedness, among other things, require us o' mainiain certain specified financial ratios and 1o meet cerinin
tindnciai tests. Our debt agreements also limis our ability to:

i barzow money:

i, make capital expenditures;

il use assets as sceunty in other transactions;

iv.  make restricied payments or restricted investments,

v incur contingent obligations; and

vi.  sclt assets and enter into leases and transactions with affiliates.

A substantial portion of oitr outstanding debt bears interest a1 variable rates, although we '}iave entered into interest rate protection agreements expiring
through fiscal 2014 with counterparty hanks
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with respect to $420 miltion of vur term loans under our senior secured credit facility. 1f short-term intérest rates rise, our interest cost will inerease on the
unhedged portion of our variable rate indebtedness, which will adversely affect our results of operations and available cash.

Any of the factors listed above could have a material adverse effect on our busistess, financial condition and results of operations. We cannot assure you
that our business will continue to generate sufficient cash flow, or that future available draws under our senior sécured credit facility will be sufficient, to
enable s to meet our liquidity needs, including those needed o service our indebtedness:

Despite aur significant indebredness, we may still be able 1o incur significandly more debt. This could intensify the risks described above,
The terms of the indenture and agreements governing our scnior secured credit facility; our,7% senior subordinated notes and our other indebtedness
limit, but do not prohibit, us or our subsidiaries from incurring significant additional indebedness in the future,

As of April 25, 2010, we had the capaeity to incur additional indebtedness; mcludmg the ability to incur additional indebtedness under ail of our lines of
credit, of appmumatcly $109 miltion. Approximately $20 million of these lines of credit.were used to support Jetters of eredit. Our capacity to issue
additional indebtedness is subject to the limitations imposed by the cavenants in our senior, secured credit facility and the indenture governing our 7% senior
subordinated notes. The indenture goveming our 7% senior suboidinated notes and our senior secured crédit facxhry contain financial and other restrictive
covenants, but will not fully prohibit us from incurring additional debt. [f new debt is added to our current level of indebiedness, the related risks that we now
face conld intensify.

We may not be able to renew or extend our senior secured credit facility or enter into & new eredit facility in today's difficult markess. In addition, sur
ahility tn renew or extend eur seniur secured credit facility or 19 enter intn'a new ‘eredit famhry ntay be xmpa:rcd further if market conditions worsen. If we
are ab!e 1o renew or extend our senior secured credit facility, it may be on termy substantiaily léss Saverable than the current senior secured credit facilin.
e may face simsilar risks with respect to vur outstanding bond,

Disruptions in the global markets have fed to a scarcity of credit, u;_hter lending 5l.mdards and higher interest rates on consumer and business loans. On
February 17, 2010, in order-to allow us to issue Senior unsecured notes and to tcmporanly maodify. the: leverage ratio and interest coverage ratio o provide for
greater tlexibility through April 30, 2012, we cntered into an amendment to our $1.35 billion- senior secured eredit f.xcshty which, smong, othes things,
reduced the capacity of the revolving line of credit by 5100 million 1o $375 million and increased the interest rate of both the revalving line of éredit and tenm
loan portions ta 1LIBOR + 3.00% with a LIBOR floor of 2.00%. As of April- 25,2010, e had approximarely $817 million in term loans and approximately
521 million drawn on the revolving line of credit. The availability under our. rcvolvmg hnc of credit as of April 2572010 was uppronmalely $109 miltion,
after consideration of approximately $20 million in owstanding leiters of credit, Qur ahility to rencw or extend our existing senior. secured credit facility or to
enter into o new Eredit facility to replace the existing senior secured credit facility could be impaired if matket conditions worsen.

In the current environment, lenders may seek more restrictive lending provisions and higher interest rates that may reduce our borrowing capacity and
increase our costs. We can make no assurances that we will be able to enter into a new ¢redit facility or renew or extend our existing senior secured credit
facility, or whether any such credit facility will be available under acceplable terms. Fuilure to obtain sufficient financing or financing on acceptable terms
waould constrain our ability to operate our business and to continue our development and cxpansion projecis. Any of these circumstances could have a material
adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operation,
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- Until recently, the bond market, and particnlarly the market for casino bonds, had deterjorated significantly over the prior 18 months. As such,
outqmndmg bonds generally offer yields 10 maturity that are significanty higher.than the. ylelds offeredat issuance. On May 12, 2004, we issued $500 million
of 7% senior subordinated nates due in 2014, If the bond market does not tarther recover prior.to the maturity of these bonds, we may be forced to refinance
some or-all of its'debt on materially warse terms thun we have cuneml) Although it'is several years before these unsecuied notes mature, our cash flow from
operations isunlikely to be sufficient to retire all of such bends at or prior to their mamnty Failure {o obtain new debt on favorable or reasenable terms to
replace existing debt could affect our liguidity and the valoe of our other sccurities, including our cquity.

We may not be able o successfully expand to new locations or recover sur investment in new properties which would adversely affect our operations and
available resources,

We regularly evaluate opportunitics for growth through development of gaming operations in eXisting or new markets, through acquiring or managing
other gaming entertainment facilities or through redeveloping our existing facilities. The expansion of anr operations, whether throngh scquisitions,
development, inanagement contracts or intemal growih, could divert managemcm S zmcnuon and'could also cause us to incur substantial costs, including
legal, prafessionsl and Eonsulting fees. To the extent that we elect tw pursde any new gaming aéquiition, management or develupment oppdrtunity, our uhility
to benefit from our investment will depend on any factors, including:

. our ability to successfully idemity. attractive acyuisition and development oppnnulnitics:

. our ability to successfullly operate any developed, managed or acquired properties;

. our ability to attract and retain competent management and cmployces for the new locations;

. our ability to secure required federal, state and local licenses, permits and approvals, which in some jurisdictions are limited in number and

subject 1o intense competition; and
. the availability of adequate financing on acceptable terms.

Many of these factors are beyond our control. There have been significam disruptions in the global capital murkets thin have sdversely impacted the
ability of borrowers to access capital. Many analysts are.predicting that these disruptions may continue for.the foresceable future. Accordingty, it is likely that
‘we are depéndent on free cash flow from ogerations and remaining borrawing capacity under our senior sectired credit facility to implement our near-term
expansion plans and fund our planned capital expenditures. As a resnlt of these and other considerations, we cannot be sure that we will be able to recover our
investments in any new gaming developnient or managenient opportunities or.acquired facilitics; or suceessfully expand to additional locations.

We may experience construction delays during our expansion or development projects that could adversely affect our nperations.

From time to tinie we may commence construction prajecis at aur properties. We also evaluate ather expansion opportunities as they become available
and we may in the furure engage in additional consiruction projects. The anticipated costs and construction periods are based upon budgeis; conceptual design
documents and construction schedule estimates prepared by us in con>uhuuon with our architects and contractors. Consiraction projects entail significant
risks, which can substansially increase costs or delay completion of & project. Such risks include shortages of materials or skilled labor, unforeséen
engineenng, environmenial or geclogical problems, work stoppages, weather inter ference and unanticipated Cosi increases. Most of these factors ané bevond
our control. In addition, difficulties or delays in obtaining any of the requisite licenses, permits or authorizations from reguiatorv authorities can increasé the
¢osl or deloy the completion of an expansion or development. Significant
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builget overruns or delays with respect 1o expansion and development projects could adversely atteet our results of operations.

{f aur key personncl leuve us, eur business could be adversely affected.

Qur continued success will depend, among other things, en the efforts and skills of a few kcy executive officers and the experience of our propenty
managers, Our ability to retain key personnel is affected by the competitiveness of our compensancn packages and the other terms and conditions of
cmplovmcm our continued ability 10 compete ¢ffectively against other gaming compamcs “and our growth prospects. The loss of the services of zmy of these
key individuals could have a- material adverse offect on our business; financial condmnn and results of aperations. We do not maintain "key man” fife
insurance for any of our employees.

We are controlled by the Goldstein family and cheir decisions may differ from these that may be made by other stackholders.

Members of the Goldstein fainily, inéliding Roben Goldstein, our Vice Chairman of the:Board, and Jeffrey Goldstein and Richard Goldstein, two of our
directors, and various family trusts associated with members of the Goldstein family, collectively own and control approximately 50.1% ,of our common stock
es of May 14, 2010 and have entered into an Agreement, dated as of April 30, 2010 (the "Agreement”), related to the uwnershlp of such common stock. The
Agreement includes; but is not limited 1o an agreement by the. pames to (i) coordinate their efforts with ¢ach other with respect to their ownership of our
securities and ensure the interests of the Goldstein family are nppropnmciy considered by our board of directors, {ii) notify the other parties of any purchase or
sale of our securities, and (lil)Jomtly approve any filing with the Securities and Lxchange Commission,, press selease or stockholder communication by a
party, -

The Goldstein family has the power 1o control the election of our board of directors and the outcome of the vote on substantially all othcr matters,
including amendment of our certificate of incorporation, amendmem of our by-laws and sigiificant corporate transactians, such as the approval'of a merger or
other transactions involving a sale of the Company. Such contrl may have the elfect of discournging tran\dclmns invalving an 4ctual ar potcnuai change of
cantrol, which in turn could have a material adverse effect on the market price of our commeon stock or prcvcm our stockholders from realizing a premium
vver the market price for their shares of common.stock, The interests of the Goldstein family may differ from those of our other stockholders.

We have a histary of fluctuations in our aperaring income (losses) from continuing operations, and we may incur additional aperating losses from
continuing operations in the future. Qur operating resulis could fluctuate significanty on a periodic basix.

We sustained a net {loss) from continuing operations of 3(1.5) miltion in.fiscal 2010 and earned net income from contineing operatiens of $61.2 million
in fiscal 2009_ Companies with fluctuations in income (loss) from continuing operations often find it mare challenging to raise capital to finance
irnprovemicnts in their businesses and to undertake other actjvities that return value to their stockhuldcrs In addition, companics with nperahng results that
‘fluctuate significantly on 2 quarterly or annual basis experience increased velnul:ly in their stock prices’in addmon 1o difficultiés in raising capial. We cannot
assure you that we will not have fluctuations in our incomie {losses) from continuing operations'in the future, and should that occur, that we would not suffer
adverse consequences to our business as a result, which could decrzase the value of our cemmnion stack.
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Inclement weather und other conditions conld seriously disrupt our businesy and huve a material, adverse effect on vur financial condition and results of
aperations. )

The operations of our facilities are subject to disruptions or reduced patronage as a resuh af severe weather conditions, ratura) disasters and other
casualties. Because many of our gaming operations are located on or adjacent (o bodies of water, these facilitics are subject to fisks in addition to those
associated with othef casinos, including Joss of service due.fo casnalty, forces of nature, mt?LhdnlLd] lallure -extended or cxtraardinary maintenance, flood,
hurricane or.other sévere weather conditions, and other disasters, such as the recent ol splu in the Gulf of Mexice. In addition, severe weather.such as high
winds and bhm;ds occasionally limits access to our land-based facilities in Colorado. We canriot be sure that the proceeds from any fuiure insarance claim
will be sufficient to compensate u5 if one or mare of our casinos experience a ¢losure. -

Reductions in discretionary consumer spending could have a material adverse effect on our business.

Our business Kas been and may-continue o be advcr'scly affected by the cconemic recession currently being experienced in the United States, as we are
highly dependent on-discretionary spending by our pmrons Changes in d]screuonmy consumcr spending ér consumer preferences brought about by factors
such us increased maemplnymem, significant i increases in cncrgy prices, perceived or actual ducnomtmn n general economic cunditions, the cusrent housmg
market crisis, bank failures and the potential for additional bank failares, pcrccnled or actua] declme in d:sposablc consumer income and wealth, the cutrent(
global economic recession and changes in consumer confidence in the economy may continue to reduce customer demand for the leisure activities we offer
and may adversely affect our revenues and operating cash flow. We are nat able:to predict the Eéngth or.severity of the current econoiic circumstances.

The market price of our common stock may fluctuate significantly.

The market price of our comimon stock has historically been yolatile and may.continue o flucnate subs!amlally due to a number of factors, including:
actual or anticipated” changes n our, results ofopcrdlmns the announcement of nlgm[u.(ml U'dnbat.uons ar othcr agreements by our competitors, conditions or,
trends in the our industry or other entertainment industries w:lh which we compete; general economic conditions including those affccting our.customers'
discretionary spending, changes in the cost 4f air travel or the cost of gasoling, changu in the gaming markets in which we operate and changes'in the trading
value of our common stock. The stock market in general, as welk as stocks-in the gaming ; aecmr have been’subject to s:gmﬁu.xm volatility and cxtreme price
{luctaations that have sometimes been unrelated or disproportionate to individual companies’ opcralmg performanccs. Brmd market or industry factors may
harm the market price of our common stock, regardless of our operating performance.

‘ork stoppuges, organizing drives and other labor problems eould negatively impact our future profits.
Some of our employces are currently represented by a fabor union or liave begun organizing a drive for labor union represeniation. Labar unjons are
making 3 concenied effon o recruit more ecployees in the gaming industry. In addition; organized labor may benefit from new legislation or legal
interpretations by the current presidential administration. We cannot provide any assurance that we will not experience additional or more successful union

activity in the tuture.

Additionally, lengthy strikes or other work stoppages at-any of our casino propertics or consiniction prajects could have an adverse efiect on our business
and result of operations.
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We are or may become involved in legal procecdings that, if adversely adindicared or settled, could impact our financial condition.

From time to time, we are defendasits in various lawsuits and ghming: reguhlory proceedings felating.to matters incidental o our business. As with all
‘litigation, no assurance can be provided as to the outcome of these matters and; in-generai, litigation can be expensive and time consuming. weé may riot be
successtul in the defense or prosecution of our current or future legal proceedings; which could resuit in settlerments or damagcs that could significantly
‘tmpact our business; financial condition and resuls of aperations. i
Qur insurance coverage may nof be adequate to cover alf possible Iossés that our properties could suffer. In addition, eut insurance cosis may increase
and we may not be able 5 obtain the same insurance coverage in'the future.

“We may soffer damage to our property cansed by a casualty logs (such as fire, namral disasters facts of war or.térrorism), that could seve rely di-impt our
busingss or subject us 1o claims by third partics who are m)ured or harmed. Atthough we mainain ihsurance Customary in our industry, (mcludmg propcrty,
Casuahy Aerrorism and business interruption m:;ur.mu:) that ifisarance may notbe: ddequdtt: ar dle]dblE 1o coverall the nsks 10 which: ol busincss and assets.
may be subjéct. The lack of sufficient insurance for these types ofaci;. could.expose us to heavy ‘losses it any ddmages occur, ditectly or mdarcct!y, that condd’
have a significant adverse impact oi-our operations.

We renew our insumance policies on an-annual basns The cost of (.()Veragz. _may become so high that we may need to further reduce gur poht:) hmm of
agice to certain exclusicns from our coverage. Among other facmrs it isipossible that rcglona] pohucal terisions; iomekand security cancermns; other
calusuophlc events or any clmnge in governmment legislation gnvcmmg insurance’ Lovemge for gets'of terrorism could m aterially @ adverscly. afrec1 availgble’
insurance mverﬂge and fesult-in‘inéréased premiums on a»allab]c cov gc {wiich miy Cause us to ‘elect to reduce our poln,y llrmtq) adddlitional exclusions

“froim coverage or higher deductibles: Among other potential furure adxerse Lhdngec in the foture we may gdect to'not, or may ot be able 10, obtain any
coverage lor losses due 1o acts of tefrorism. :

The concentrution and evolution of the siot machine mannfacturing industry could impoye additionat costs on us.

A Jarge majority of our revenues are attributable to slot machines at our casinos: Lt is important, for cdmpetitive reasons, we offer the most popular and
up-iu-date stot machine games, with the latest lechmblogy to our.customers..

In recent years, slot machine manuiacturers have trequently refused to sell'slot machines featurmg the most popular games, instead requiring:

participating lease arrangements. Generally, o participating lease is subsiaitially more expensive over the jong-term than the cost 1o purchase a new slot
machine.

For competitive reasens, we may be forced 1o purchase new slot machines; slot miachine systems, or enter into participating lease arrangements that are
more expensive than our cirrent costs assoviated with the continued operativn § uf our estnng qlot machmes If lhe newer slot- machines do not result in
sufficient increinental revenues to oftset the increased investment and- participating lease costs, it could adversely affect our, protitability,

ok K K kA

Laddition 1o the foregoing, vou should consider each of the factars set fortly in this Annnal Report in evaluating our business and qur prospects. The
factors described n oor Part 1, liem VA are not the only ones we face. ‘Additional risks and’ uneertaintics not preseatly known to s or that we currently
consider immaterial may also impair our business opérations. This Annual Report is qualified
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in its entirety by these risk factors. If apy of the forepoing risks actually oceur, our business, Ginancial condition and results of operation could be matesially
harmed. [n that case, the trading price of our securities, including our common stock, could decline significantly.

ITEM IB. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
None.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

Lake Charles

We own approximately 2.7 acres and lease approximately*16.2 acres of land in Ca]aaswu Parish, Loulsmna for usc in connection with our Lake Charles
operations. This lease autornatically renewed in March 2010 for five years and we have'the opnon 16 renew it for 14 additional tefms of five 3 years each,
subject to increases based on the Consiimer Price Index {*CP1") with a minimum of 10% and’ conslmchon of hotel famlmcs on the property. We own two
hotels in Lake Charles with 2 1o1a} of 493 rooms. Annwal remt paymems wnder the Lake C\!uﬂes lease are dppmmmmeiy $2.1 miltion,

Lula

We lease approximately 1,000 acres of land in Coahoma Cnumy, Mississippi and miiize approximately 50 acres-in connection with the operatiom in
Lula, MESSISSJppl Unless lcrmmalcd by us m &n earlicr date, the: Icaqc cxpm:s in 7033 Rcm undcr 1he leasc is currcmiy 5.5% ofgro';i gammg rcvcnuc as

for future dev clnpmcm
Bifoxi

We lease the real estate upon which some of our land-based facilities, mcludmg the: casmo are located from the Cu;. ot Biloxi and the Mississippt
Sccrclary of State at current annual rent of $561,800 per year, plus 3% of our Biloxi pmpv.rty 5 £russ paming revenues, net of state and local gaming taxes and
fees, in éxcess of $25.0 million, The lease terminates on July 1, 2014, but it is renewable a1 our option for four ﬂddluond] terms of five years each and one
more oplion renewa] term, concluding on January 31, 2034, s ubjecl 1o rent increases based on the CPI llmltcd to 6% for each renewal period.

In April 1994, in connection with the construction of a hotel, we entered into a lease for additiona] land adjoining our Biloxi property. This lease with the
City of Biloxi and the Mississippi Secretary of State is fur an initial term of 25 years, with options o renew for.six additional terus of ten years each and a
final option peried concluding December 31, 2085, Current anpual rent is $603,000 plus 4% of gross non-gaming revenues, as defined in the lease, and
.Tenewals are subject to rent increases based on the CPL The annnal rent is adjusted after each five-yeaf period besed on increases in the CP, lintited to a 10%
increase in any five-year period.:

In August 2002, we entered into a lease for two additional parcels of land adjoining our-property and the hatel. On the parcel adjoining the Biloxi
property; we conm—uctcd a malti-level parking garage that has approximately 1,000 parking spaces. There is additional ground level parking on a-parcel of
lund i front of the garage, alsa subjeci to this lease, with approximately 608 pmkmg spaces. We have constructed a 400-100m addmon to the existing hotel an
the parcel leased next 1o the existing hotel. In addition, we may construct 2 hotel above the parking gafige. This lease with the Cuy of Biloxi and the
Mississippi Secretary of State is for an isitial témm of forty years, with one option to reneiv for an additional twenty-five years and additional options
thereafier, with the consent of the Mississippi Secretary of State, consistent with the tera of the lease described in the preceding paragraph. When
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combined with the base and percentage rents described for the leases in the preceding two paragraphs, annual rent under those two leases and this lease was.
$3.8 million for lease year ending July 31, 2009, and estimated to be $3.8 million for the lease year ending July 31, 2010. The mininum reni for the lease year
beginning August 1, 2009 will be $3.8 million in accordance with the terms of the lease sgreement. Such amounts are subject to decreases due to mrket
adjusiments apd increases based on the CPL. Also, we are responsible ‘for annual rent equal to 4% of gross retail revenue and gross cash revenue (as defined in
the lease), but without double counting. If the rent minimum described in the preceding sentences is not otherwise satistied from other rents, thenithis
percentage rent is not in addition to the minimum rent, but rather is to be.applied fo that minimum.

We also lease our Biloxi berth from the Biloxi Port Conimission at an annual rent of the greater of $510,000 or 134 of the gross gaming revenue net of
state and focal gaming taxes. The lease terminates on July 1, 2014 and we have the nption 1 renew it for six additional termis of five years each.subject to
increases based on the CPI, limited 10 6% for cach renewal pcriod.

.ln connection with and pursuant to 2 settlement between the City of Biloxi and the State of Mississippi concerning the control-and management of the
aréasvhere wi ure located, we also have agrecd to pay the City of Biloxi's Ieage obligations to the State of Mississippi for an agreed upon period of lime! This
amonnt s $580,000 per year, payable n June 30, subject 10 increases based on the CP1'and decreases if there are other tenants of the subject property, This

obligation ends after June 2018 bul may be renewed for thirty years:

We have also entered into a joint venture arrangement to sublease u surfuce parking lot next 10 our Biloxi property. Our portion of the annual rent under
this:lease is approximately $229,000. The current terin is for five years expiring December 31, 2010, with & renewal option for an additional five-year term
{(under which our annual rent would increase based on the CPI), extending the leasé throngh December 31, 2015; jf exercised.

-Narches

Through sumerous lease agreements, we lease approxiindlely 24 acréy Of land jn NutcheZz, Mississippi that are used in connection with the operations of
our Natchez property. Unless terminated by us at an earlicr date, the leases have varying expiration dates through 2037, Annual rent under lhe leases 1otal.
upproxymately 31.2 million. We also lease approximaicly 1.5 acres of Yand that 35 utilized for parkmg at the facility. We own approximately 6 additional acres
of property in Natchez, Mississippi, as well as the property upon which our hotel is lecated.

Kensax City

“We lease approximately 28 acres of land from the Kansas City Port Authority in connectjon with the operation of our Kansas City property: The term of
the original lcase was en years and was renewed in Qctober 2006 for an additional five years. The lease includes seven additiona] five-year renewal options,
The minimum léase payments correspond 1o any rise or fall in the CPL, initially after the ten-year term of the lease or Cctober 18, 2006 and thereafter, al each
five year renewal date. Rent nder the lease currently is the greater of $2.6 millton {minimum:rént) per year, or 3.25% of gross revenues, less
complimentaries.

Buonville

"We lcase our 27 acre casino site in Boonville porseant to a lease agreement with the City of Boonville. Under the terms of agreement,-we lease the site
for 2 period of ninety-nine years, in lien of rent, we are assessed additional pmounts by the City of Beonville based on a 3.5% wax on gaming revenue, up to
$1.0 nillion, which-we recognize as additional gaming taxes.
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Caruthersville

We own approximately 37 acres, including our riverboat casino and 1,000 parking spaces in Caruthersville, Missouri.
Rettendorf

We own approx:matcly 24.6 acres of land in Bettendorf, lowa used in connection with the operations of owr Bcnendorf propeny. We.also operate under a
long-term lease with the City of Bettendorf, the QC Waterfront Convention Center that is adjacent to our new hotel tower. Future minimum payments
associated with the convention ceriter are approximately $1.1 miliion per year. We also lease approximately éight acres of land an a month-to-month basis
from an entity owned by members of the Goldstein family, inchuding Robert S. Gokistein, our Vice Chairman of the Board and Jeffrey D. Goldstein and
Richard A: Geldstein, directors of our company, which we utilize for parking. The initial 1erm of the lease expires 60 days after written notice is given to
either party and rent under the lease is currently $3,000 per month. We terminated a lease for warchouse space in January 2010 with the same entity.

Davenport

Pursuant to various Jease agresments with the City of Davenport, we [ease approximately 12 acres of Jand in Davenport, fowa used in connection with
the operations of our Davenport property. The aggregate annual rent on these leases 15 approximately $0.2 3 million and they have varying expiration dales
throngh 2022

Marquente

We lease the dock site in Marquertte, lowa that is used in connection with aur, Marquette opérations. The lease expires in 2019, and annual rent under the
lease is approximately $180,000, plus $1.00 per passenger, plus 2.5% of gaming revenues (less state wagering taxes);in excess of $20.0 million but less than
$40 0 million; 5% of gaming revenues (less sitte wagering taxes) in excess of $40.0'million but less than $60.0 million; and 7.5% of gaming revenues (less
state wagering taxes} in excess of $60.0 million. We have an edsément relited to-an overhead pedestrian:bridge and diiveway that is an annual payment of
approximately 36,300. We also own approximately 25 acres of land for the pavilion, sale]]ne offices, warehouse, lots by the marina and ather propeity. Prior
to September 2009 at which time the lease was terminated, we ‘leased approx:mdlclv two acres of land sed for the employee parking lot with a monthly rental
of §417..

qu_e:_'loa

‘We own approximately $4 aeres of land in Waterloo, lows used in connection with the operation of our Waterloo property. We also entered into a three-
year Jease agreement for 17,517 square feet of warchouse space. Rent under this lease is currently $35,022 per inonth.

Ixle-Black Hawk

We own approximately 10 acres of land in Black Hawk, Colorado for use in connection with our Black Hawk ofierations. The property leases an
additionat parce! of land adjoining the Isle-Black Hawk where the Lady Luck Hotel and parking are Jocated. This'lease is for an initiel term of nine years with
options to renew for 18 additional terms of five years each.with the final option perind concluding June-1, 2094. Annual rent is cursently $1.8 millian indexed
to'correspond to any rise or fall in the CP1 at one-year intervals, not 1o exceed a 3% increase or deercase from the previous vear's rate.
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Lady Luck-Black Hawk

We own ar lease approximately seven acres of land in Black Hawk, Coloredo for use in connection with the Lady Luck-Black Hawk. The propeny leases
an additional parcel of laid near the Lady Luck-Black Hawk for parking as described above. This lease is for an initia] 1erm of 10 years with options to rengw
for nine additional terms of 10 years each with the tinal aption period concluding August 2094. Currently the annual rent is $376,000 and renewals are subject
to 20% renl increases over the rate of the previous term.

Pompano
We own approximately 223 acres at Pompano.

COrther
We own all of the riverbouts and barges utilized at our facilities. We alio own oflease all of our gaming and non-gaming equipment.
We leasc our principal corporate office in Creve Coeur, Missourt, and office space itl'Bﬁloxi. Mississippi.

We own additional property and have various property leases and options to ejther lease or purchase property that are not directly selated to our existing
operations and that may be wtilized in the fture in connection with expansion projects at our existing facilities or development of new projects,

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

Lady Luck Gaming Carporation {now our wholly. owned snbsidiary) and'séveral joint venture paitaers have been défendants in the Greek Civil Courts
dnd the Greek Administratve Conrts in similar lawsuits brought by the country of (ireece. The autions allege that the defendants failed to make specitied
payments in connection with the ganiing license bid process for Patras, Greece. Ahthough it is difficult 1o determine the damages being sought from the
lawsuits, the action may seek damages up 10 that aggregate amount plus ip[cresl" froniithe date of the action.

Ln the Civil Court lawsuit, the Civil Court of First Instance ruted in our fuvar und dismissed the tawsuit in 2001, Greeee appealed to the Civil Appeal
Court and, in 2003, the Court rejected the appeal. Greeee then appezled to the Civil Supreme Cournt and, in 2007, the Supreme Court ruied that the. matler was
nat properly before the Civil Courts and should be before the Administrative Count.

In the Administrative Coun Jawsuit, the Administrative Cotrt of First Instance rejected the Jawsuit stating that it was not competent io hear the matter.
Greece then appealed to the Administrative Appeal Court, which court rejected the appeal in 2003. Cireece then appealed Lo the Supreme Administrative
Court,. which remanded the matter back 1o the Administrative Appeal Count for,a hearing on the merits. The re-hearing took place in 2006, and in 2008 the
Administrative Appeal Court rejecied Greice's appeal on procedural grounds. On Iecember 22, 2008 and January 23, 2009, Greece appealed the ruling to the
Supreme Administrative Court. A hearing has tentatively been schedvled for November 2010.

The outcome of this mauer is still in doubt and cannot be predicied with any degree of certainty. We intend to continue a vigoraus and appropriate
defense to the claims asserted in this matter. Through Aprit 25, 2010, we have accmied an estimated liability including interest of $10.6 million. Qur acerual is
based upon management's estimate of the afiginal claim by the plaintiffs for kst pryments. We continue to accrue interest on the asserted claim. We are
unable to estimate a total possible foss as )
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information as 1o possible additional claims, if any, have not been asserted or quantitied by the plaintiffs at this time.

We are subject 10 certain federal, state and locul environmental protection, health and safety laws, regulations and ordinances that apply to businesses
generally; and are subject 10 cleanup requirements a1 certain of our facilities as a result thereof. We have not made, and do not antiéipate making. matcrial
expenditures, nor do we anticipate incurring delays with respect to crivironmental remediation or protection. However, inpart because our present and futwe-
development sites have, in some cases, been used as manufacturing facilities or other. facilities that generate materials that are required io be rcmedxatcd under
environmental laws and regulmmns there can be no guarantee that additional pre-existing conditians wiH not be discovered and we will not experience
materia] liabilitiés or delays.

We are subjeet 1o various contingencies and litigation matiers and have a number of unresolved claimis. Although the ulimase liability of these
contingencies, this litigation and these claims cannot be determined at this time, we believe they will not have a material adverse effect on our conselidated
ftnancial position, resuls of operations or cash flows.

ITEM'4. [REMOVED AND RESERVED|
PART I

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF
EQUITY SECURITIES

ia)

i. ‘Market Information. Our common stock is traded on the NASDAQ Global Select Marker under the symbol "ISLE". The followmg table
presents the high and low closing sales prices for our common stock as reported by the NASDAQ Gilohal Selec: Marke1 for the ﬁscal periods

indicated.

. _ High  _ Low
First Ouarier (rouanune AT 20107, A ot SEr St oS 171§ 29:213
Fiscal Year Lndmy. Apnl 25,2010
Fourth Quarter. ; %, .= 37 5 s R S AT W TR
Third Oumer . . 9.4} .21
Second QUATTE .o - " 2 ta e L hparnt & o P o et 12:35: » %9753
First Quancr 13.78. 8.65
e T T ~ ST A
Flscal Yea.nEndmg Apnl 76:2009} - : o D
Fourth Quarter__ 927 § 2.6}
Third Quarter, .- " harto . Hat 5 e R E AT
Second Omr_ter _ 9.08 3:37
Eifst Quareery, % T § TR oy o o ey TASE T k4203

it Holders of Commuon Stock.  As of June 4, 2010, there were approximaitely 1,388 holders of revord of our common stock.

fil.  Dhidends. We have never declared or paid any dividends with respect to our common stuck and the current policy of our board of directors is
" 10 rctain earnings 1o provide for the growth of our company. [n additich; our senigr secured credit-facility and the indenture governing our senior
subordinated 7% notes limit our ability to pay ‘dividends. Sce "Itert. 8—Financial Statcments and Supplementary Data—|[sle Odepn
Casinos, Inc.—Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements—Note 4." Consequently, no cash dlwdcnds are expecied to be paid on our corunon
stock in the foreseeable future. Further, there can be no assurance that our
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current and proposed operations would generate the funds needed to declare'z cash dividend or that we would have legally available funds to pay
dividends. In addition, we may fund part of our nperatmns in the future from indebtedness, the terms of which may further prohibit or restrict the
payment of cash dividends. 1s holder ot commuon stack is disqualified by the regulatory authorities from ownig ‘such shares, sueh hotder will not
be permitted 1o receive any dividends with sespect 1o such stock. See "liem —Business—Guvernmental Regulations,”
(by  Issuance of Unregistered Securitiey
None.
(€} Puwrchases of our Common Stock
We have purchased our common stock under stack repurchase programs. ‘These programs atlow for the repurc'hase of up w 6,000,000 shares. To date we

have purchased 4,895,792 shares of common stock under these programs. These programs have no approved dollar amount, nor expiration dates. No
purchases-were made during the fiscal year ended April 25, 2010.

COMPARISON OF 3 YEAR CU\dULAII\’E TOTAL RETURN*
Amang Isle of Capri Casinos, inc; . The N.'\SDAQ Composite Index
and The Dow Jones US Gambling [index:

S180 -
$160 4
5140
$120
5100}

580 -

560 4

540 -

520 |

£0 1 x 1 . . J
4124105 4130/06 Ar28/07 4127108 4/26/09 4/25/10

—B— Isle of Capri Casinos, Inc. —A— NASDAQ Composite --©— Dow Jones US Gambling

* 3100 invested on 472405 in stock or 4/30/10 index, including reinvestment of dividends. Indexes calculated on month-end basis.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA.

The ﬁ')]lvuwing table presents our selected consolidated financial data for the five most recent fiscal years, which is detived from our audited consolidated
financial statemients and the notes to those statements, Because the data in ‘this wable does not provide all of the data contained in our consblidated financial
statements, including the related notes, you should read "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Resulis of Operations,” our
consoiidated financial siatements, including the related notes comained clsewhere in this documient and othier daia we have filed with the U.$. Securities and
Exchange Commission.

Fiscal Vear Ended(1)
Aprit 25, April 36, April 27, April 29, April 30,
20140 2009 2008, 2007 2006
(doltars in millinns, except per share data)

e

Statement nf()per'llmns )

Revenues:
3 T o
L2 o Cosifions= b Teg i,

——pr e - " - = - T yr—r—
e L e EOTTRTT)
AR N R R

T ST T AST 0330 S T.000 3,5 2901 4,5 0733]

Rooms . 430 46.4 193 496 37.0
FPari-ntael, food. bevcragt. Tt otherie 2 1 i Oj_-'ﬁlw 6; 21508 __~:1456% mlil"ﬁ

Humcane and other insurance recoveries — 62.9 04 28
D e T i Grof revenngs. g Sl st B = t1914] 15303:67417292: 30 11803, 1,152 sj
Less promotional dlluw.im.cs .. L (151, 6) (193.6) (200.9) (”!4 1) t200.1)

u T . sNetrevemies, 4. 2,02999.8:_15108,0 A100 1497533, .9524]

i Cuasing e T e «TE—‘* AN 15387 1506 - 15105515412, - 145,53
Gammu 1axes - ] 2622 2699 "35 4__ 2137 2139
e A ROOMS Lo e s n B e (ME e G o o 109, 123 - 12053 106, % 3.8]
Parl mumel food hcvcmgc and other . 448 5.5 57.0 44.6 44,4
T RN RS T M A A TR S U L ) |
\larkellng and adnum%trauvc 2531 256.2 "70 1 2364 2274
E - - Comborate and development. PO Ry T A IR RT3 T3 tse 152
Eﬂ(pensc rccovcncs and other. chuq,cs net L {6 8) 36 1 6.5 7.8 0.2
iHiimicane 3nd 0ther, iNSUFaNCe recoveriess i o . T o LE Ay Ry L e
Prcopcmng — = 3.7 11.4 .
yDeprccunmn ani amomzamm 2 e TNy T wg PR 109 \fﬁ&_l” S2 12819 96,77 2854}
Totsl operating expenses 9358 9735 1 0262 9100 8340
OBeraling INCOME: S by oo A aeo ke Bo B o akaTts, SE VT 6 0 1345 T 96513 .65, 3 i184]
[nterest expense ) (75.4) . (92.0) (106.8) (89 Ay (35.1)
AT RN i R S O R AP ks S S W TR N LS5 T K INISE T )
Other {0.3) — — =
Gain {loss) on carly_cxurig"ﬁiéhmenl BEADt o gt B TN m R R e T (13 )t s e

Income {Joss) fromn contineing operutions befure Wcome taxes ami mdudmg

nonconloi]mg interest . (9.9 1023 (53 7) _(IS 8y _434
W [nmmc TAXBENEIL (ProvISIOn ) s: Scvadhs s @ i O 5 """’,:;‘,_,mﬁ:rd 25 (4l 1)43,,"0 9 W08 H(10.3)
Income (]ms) from continuing operauonq inciuding ng_rl'controll';glp interest (l 5)' 612 (32.8) 0} 32 9
(Loss) income, fmm dLsconunu:d”;Bcranona, net’ ofmcon%mxmmimw{l 8) (l? 6) ?—(59 '))__-,_13 (7 3)
Net t incoe (Iass) including nonconmllmg;gtcrcst (3 1 43 6 (93 o0y _ ) - "5 4

= w—w—-'w"i—"r'- g

Lew net “ncome (loss) aitributable ¢ to the nocommllmg mteml; ANt R S o ‘(4 9 _:__,(3 3) ‘A_(() )
Net income (loss) attributable to common stockholders S (338 43.6 $ (96.9)% (4.6)5 189
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Fiseal Yeur Ended{l)
April 25, April 26, April 27, April 29,  April 20,
10 2000 12008 1007 L]
‘(dollary in millions, except per share data)

Statement of Operations Data (continued):: SRS
Income (lo$s) per common share atlnbumblu to conupon stockholders
AR LS A SRR ML I T Sl A SN R S SRS N
Income (loss) from continuing npcmtmm (0 05)5 195§ (1.24)8 (0.61)S  0.88
5 Ineome, fiom:discontinued upﬁnons o e 5 o 55 (0. 05)‘“""(0 56)%: (1.92) i 046 - (025}
Net'Income (loss) ) £ (0.10)8  1.39. S (3.16)8 (0. IS)S 0.63,
AN 1% W B R AT R AN T D S B A ARG
) Incomc (loss) from commumg opcratmns . 5,..{0.05 05)5 . 1.95.5: (I 245 (0. 61)S .84
E'; S E ,g., ' Income, fmdncommued opcmtmnc s m_ﬁ é; 5 (0 05, {0.56)_ (1. 9")—1‘{‘ 04677 {0.24)
Net Income (loss) S (0108 ! 39 S, (3. 16)$ (0. lS)S 0.60
OTher Data e B, o il s T0y e e R T M e E o e e T h ottt
Net cash pmuded by (used m) N ) _ )
L «Opcmtmg ACHVIHICS, P8 o o oot bem e STen ol w-‘$' 106.4°87°190.6,8 133.4;8, = 709.5__:86:7)
Investing activities (31.0) (27 9) (3()” 4)_{197.3)__(176.4)
[ 7% Fincing aetiviticss o+ g g e (1040 _(157.2) - 2.5, TH931S__ c649)
Canital expenditures _ o '1\53 6);, (190.5 5) (451 _(2244)
CERFIERA emw, R : ns" . o i #,{s;ﬂ:’:ﬂ . - gl ¥ e Lo
Ba[.mce CShzet Uala 2 . D A T m%; A A S 1‘,
Cash and cash cqnwalentgw_r_w‘__ ) ' " 3. 581 S 96 18 '91 8 S 188 15 1210
otk assets _mderon o o * 1‘”1_32’;;”,‘;;J TR GTA R, 157825 10742, 2,075 1 R17.7]
.[;ggg-:crm dcbl mclud.ma cum.m poruon 14,2000 13011 1,507.3 4180 1,2191

SwckholdersyBquity™ 5 __ 5 " L.tk X b i Tageabac s At RN, 2,,__‘;-28 4. 138 02808 280.2]

Operntmﬂ Data: - - —
Fimberot slof machines s o % « e A iy 14810 15373, 15393__i14,121. .13.494]

Number of table ¢ games e e g . 368 369_ 387 324 322
Number,of Bote] rooma s o & 0l g e T A 0703104 £ 3,107 % 2,674, 26521
Number of parking spaces 20,696 22290 21,220  [0.484 13.847

(})  Our fiscal year ended April 30, 2006 includes 53 weeks while al! other fiscal years include 52 weeks. The resolts reflect Lucaya, Blue
Chip, Cmemry, Bossier City and Vicksbury as discontinued opcmuons. We opened new casino operations in Pompano, Florida and
Waterloo, lowa in April 2007 and June 2007, respectively. We acquired our casino operations in Larulhcrwnllc Missouri in June 2007.

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RFSULTQ OF OPERATIONS

You should read the following divcussion together with the financial staiemenms, including the velated notes and the other financial information,
contained in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Executive Overview

We are u-Jeading developer, owner and operator of branded gaming facilitics and related lodging and entcrtainment facilities in regional markets in the
United States. We have sought and established geographic diversity to limit the risks caused by weather, regional economic difficulties, gaming 1ax rates and
regulations of local gaming awthorities. We currently operate casinos in Mississippi, Louisiana, Missour, towa, Colorado and Florida. We also operte a

harness racing track at our casine in Florida.
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Our operating resnlts for the periods presented have been affected, both positively and negatively, by several factors discussed in detail below. Qur
business has been and may continue 1o be adversely affected by the economic recession currently being experienced in the United States, as we are highly
dependent on discretionary spending by our patrans. Our historical operating resulis may not be indicative of our futire results of operations becanse of these
facturs and the changing competitive landscape in each of our markets, as well as b) "factors discussed clsewhere herein. This Management's Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition 2nd Results of Opersations sheuld be read in conjunction with and giving toasideration to the following:

Itemy-Impacting Income {Loss) from Contimiing Operaiions—Significant items impacting our income {loss) from continuing operations during the fiseal
years ended April 25, 2010, Apr) 26, 2009 and April 27, 2008 are as follows:

Fiscz! Year Foded
April 25, April 26, April 27,

Iﬂlﬂ 2009 . 2008
bt gt piprervanyr R T R T T R o 2 -
Hurficané and othter, insurance rr:c:m:cru:s,"nct“ﬁi B e o e 1 $' ; '95: 27 8 w2 1_]
Expense recoveries and ol.hcr charges net . 6-8 (36-1] (6.3)
Rd ® ¢~ ¥ “G o . . ey
Prelopening Sroid e o ol et st e S o T T TR
Gain (l_nl§_) on carly cxungm':hmen! of debt ‘ o — 5?.7 (15.3)

Noneontrolling Tterest Lo ks mi udoii s, et . . )
Hurricane and Other Insurance Recaveries, ner— Qur inserance recoveries for fiscal "009 mclude 392, mllhon telating 1o the final settlement of

our Hurricane Katrina claim a1 our Biloxi property and other insurance recoveris.

Expense Recoveries and Other Charges, nei— During fiscal 2010, we recorded an other expense reduction of 36.8 million representing the
discounted value of a receivable for reimbursement of development costs cxpcnscd in prior periods rclating to a terminated plan to develop a casino in
Pittsburgh, Pennsylvanin. This receivable was recorded following our current assessment of collectability.

As a result of our anpual impairment tests of poodwill and long-lived mlanglble assets under ASC 330, we recorded impaimment charges of
$18.3 million at our Black Hawk property in fiscal 2009. The results from operations for ‘Fiscal 2009 also include e $11.9 million write-off of
construction in progress at our Biloxi property following our decigion not 1o continue d prcvmusly anllupated construction project, and a $6.0 million
charge following our termination of an agreement for a potentjal development of a casino in*Portland, Oregon.

Fiscal 2008 results also include $6.5 million of charges related to the términation of our plans 10 develop 2 new casino in west Harrison County,
Mississippi and the cancellation of construction projects in Davenport, lowa and Kansas City, Missouri.

Opening/Acquisition of New: Properties ond Pre-opening Expenses— D_un;nglﬁsczil 2008, our operating resulls were impacted by the opening of the
gaming facility at cur Pompano lacation in April 2007, the acquisition of our Caruthersville, Missouri casino in Junc 2007 aqd the opening of our’
Waterloo, lowa casing in June 2007, The periods prior to the opening of cach of our new casino operations were impacted by pre-opening expenses.

Gain (Loss) on Early Extinguivhment af Debt— During fiscal 2009, we retired $142.7 million of our senior subordinated notes; through a tender
offer, for a cash payment of $82.8 million uvtilizing the proceeds from our Hurtcane Katrina settlement and repaid $35.0 million of our variable rate
ten loans as required undes our senjor secured credit facility. Afier expenses related <o the climination of deferred financing costs and transactions
costs, we recognized a net preiax gain of $37.7 million related 1o these transactions, '
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We recorded a total of $15.3 million in losses associated with the carly extingnishment of debt during fiscal 2003, consisting of 2 $9.0 mikion call
premium paid to retire $200.0 million of our 9% senior suberdinated notes, and $6.3 million of deferred fimancing costs associated with retired debt
mstruments.

Acquisition gf Nonconiroliing Interest— On January 27, 2008, we acquired the 43% mihority interest in our Black Hawk, Colorado casino
propertics for $64.8 million.

Ln addition to the items in the table the following items also have hod an impact on our eperations or the comparabifity of our operating results between
years:

Discontinued Operations— Discontinued operations include the results of our Lucaya, Blue Chip anid Coventry properties. During November 2009
“we cxited our Lucaya casino. During fiscal 2010, we completed the sale ot our Blue Chip casino properties dnder d plan of administration and have no
continuing invelvement in its operation. During fiscal 2009, we recorded u $1.4 miltion charge to reduce the Blue Chip assets held for sale to their
cstimared fair value, The adminisiration process.is cxpcctcd to be completed during fiseal 2011.

On April 23, 2009, we completed the sale of our assets and tcrminated our lease of Arena Coventry Convention Center relating to our casino
opertions in Coventry, England. Qur lease termination costs and nther expenses, net of cash proceeds from our assets szles, resulted in a pretax charge
of $12.0 million rccorded in fiscal 2009 rétated to our discontinued Coventry operations.

Increased Competition— The opening of a new hotel in October 2009 by a competitor in Black Hawk, Colorado has hada qegat'r"f'e impact on our
Black Hawk Colorado properties in fiscal 2010. The opening of a competing land-based facility, which replaced a riverboat operation in,the Quad
Chties area during Decembes 2008. has had a negative impact on net revenues and operating resulis at our Bettendorf and Davcnpﬂn lowa propenties in
the latier part of fiscal 2009 and in fiscal 2010, The imroduction of wabile games and expansion of Class li gaming st competing Native American
casinos, beginning July 2008, has had a negative impact on our Pampano property’s net revenues and operating results in fiscal- 2010 and 2009.

Gaming Law Changes— During November 2008, gaming law. changes became effective in Missouri which repealed the §500 loss limit. During -
early July 2009, ganing law changes became cffective in Colorado which extended the hours of operations, expanded the types of allowabie table
gamés and increased the-besting limit from 3510 $100 per bet. Qur gaming revenues reflect the favorable fmpact of these changes in siaté gaming laws.

In April 2010, changes were made to Florida law which, among other things, will lower our-state gaming tax rate from 30% to 35% effective
July 1,2010. It also allows the poker operations 1o remain open for the same hours a3 the slot floor and removes the poker betting limits.

Smoking Restrictions— While we have benefited at our Bettendorf and Davenport, lowa properties from a smoking ban that impacts-a competitor,
the smaking ban enacted in Colorade during January 2008 has had a continuing adverse impact on our averall operating results at our Black Hawk,
Coloradg properties,

Results of Operations

-Our results of continuing operations for the fiscal years ended April 25, 2010, Apnl 26, 2009 and April 27, 2008 reflect the consolidated operations of all
of our subsidiaries. Our international operations, inchuding Covenuy, Blue Chip and Lucaya are presented as discontinued operations: The resuhts for our
fiscal years 2009 and 2008 have been reclassified to reflect the classification of all international operations as discontinued operations as well as to conform
our financial presentation to our current year financial statement format, Cur Lucaya operations-were classified as discontinued operations-in the third quarter
of fiscal 2010, our Coventry and Bluc Chip Casino operations were classificd as disconrinued operations in the fourth quarnter of fiseal 2009.
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Qur fiscal yeur ends on the last Sunday in April. This (iscal yeas convenlion creates more wmpnmblhtv of our quarterly aperations, by generally having:
an equnl number of weeks (13} and weekend days (26) in each quarter. Penodacal]v this cunvenuon necessitates a 53-week year. The fiscal years cnded
April 25, 2010, Apnl 26, 2009 and April 27, 2008 were a)] 52-week years.

1SLE OF CAPRI CASINOS, INC.

(In thousands)

Net Revenues, OUpcrzting Inmme (L.oss)
Fiscat Year Ended Hscnl Year Ended
Aprll 25, April 26, Aprid 27, Aprib2S,  April 26, April 17,

(lulhuuxunds) 20t 2009 ZDBS 20140 200‘) 20!!8 )
Mississippind Jeodvo i, i LTS STl - T e e NN

Biloxi s 72,6028 838805 90 90950 $ (8 305)$ (7 957)5 $_(3,338 533)
o oNatcheE A g o . 732,826.8 % .;37 073,&___35 656‘,_5; 8,86850 10810, 4191

Lula ) L BR147T 7 700983 75,336 100692 11498 L1034
L2 Mississippi ma]:;.g'a_‘im 7525 101,888 7 201944, 15 254 1873575214,008)
Lonisiana: v
1 S Tiakes Char]eﬁ._,g_,i__u‘) 4237 15701 ,“139 RN 13\1173&'& 041_220,623]
Mlssuun .

CKansas Oy oo 16 51:__,,‘?4 433 0 313,556_813; 711&_10369* 821

Boonville 77.759 78,582, - 79,802 11,125 20,737 19 453
L_< Cadnthersville(1),._,_2-32;685.7 31,379 26,857, ”3'»3 - 21;638% v‘”ﬂ]

Missouri Total 187,259 184,596 182215 38695 32744 30,180 .
ToWwa__ owea.  Srat aa S T e T RS e v?ﬁ
—-Betendorf__ 9,527 91,66)  ..92,060 12,624 10'090' 18,967
L8 Davenport 48,075,715, 49,00557°52.333,:510,494 $ 10,3517 % SE’E

Marquette 27,176 29,875 3’866 1330 3705 4,380
T Watertoo0) e 16 s 80,544 T 64 630, LTS, ‘&6 1

lowa Total 236,039 231,085 241 909 36062 45323 37842
Colorado s b niaite s “"—T", T\ R AT SRR ]

Black Hawk/ :

Colorado

e Sinan . 2 136,130 - 123,382 5], 083;2:‘_14 ROIS T 4,688 30,8 11]

Florida
" Pompano;;.m_;‘_‘:_lz,s Q9R:E ~Ta21672 H A0,83 1 4 {8,951} » 16 434)%(7,442)

. Insurance rccovcncs(is) —
Expense recov ARG oy v

94 073 2, 105

x —q.
L. othef,chirgesnet(4)E 5 o e (36 1’5);_‘{6 326)
Pre-opening(2) ) — - —  {3658)
Cotporate and otherk . e 1:302 § . 2 e S07.5(49.074) . (46:335)1(53:696)
From continuing -

operations $099 836'51,108 035 $1,091 383 § 64,056 $134,532 363,154

Note: This table excludes our international properties which have been classified as discontinued operations.
(1)  Refleas results since the June 2007 acquisition effective date.
€2)  Waterloo opened for operations in June 2007. Retlects pre-opening expenses related to this property:
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(3)  lnsurance recoveries include business intermiption proceeds of $62,932, included in net revenues in fiscal 2009. $61,845 of this amount relates to
" settlement for events that occurred prior to fiscal 2009 {primarily Hurricane Katrina).

{4)  Expense recoveries and other charges include expense recoveries, valuations and vther charges. See Executive Overview—Expense Racoveries and
" Qther Charges, ner for a detailed discussion of such jtems.

Fiseal 2010 Compared to Fiscal 2009
.Rercnua\'

Revemies for the fiscal years 2010 and 2009 are as follows:

'Fiscal Year Ended

April 25, April 26, Pereentajle
{in thousands) 2010 2009 Varfance  __ Variance
Ifcgcnu&“— ._:;]__.‘ '_;3:\"; T i?tr.xi'-”.‘c*) TRLS E_k_f'b?; * ?_(_-;_ ‘_,-“,.;-:nr» .«'5 o -;1_3 ' A :.l" w0 ’i‘)-é “-‘4." - P
Casino . 8 I 013,386 5 053 694 § 308) ~4.0%
[Roomsy <75 = 7 "7 > LN T ‘?‘”‘W TG00 e o 46380, 1 (3 SYE IS A%
Pari-mutukl, food, bewmge and m.h T 134 994 s 138,632 (3,638) -2.6%
[Hl._x_mcancandother 1n<urancerqcmrencs I, "ﬂ %?ﬁ'“ R T S I S ~(62 9"2) - iN/M

. Gross revenues 1,191,387 1303638 (112,251) -8.6%
- Less: promouonaiallowanccsp ‘?’" E;E_-(_l_‘ ‘g:;l)“"' (195 603)4 {;.—'T 032, »'=  -271%

Net revenues s“ 999,836 S 1,108,035 (108;199) -9.8%

Caving Revemrex—Casino revenues decreased $42:3 million, or 4,0%, in fiscal 2016 compared to fisca) 2009. We experienced a decrease in casino
revenues at mast of our praperties primarily asa result of the commucd deterioration | in discrétionary consumer spending in conjunction with POOF CCOROmIC
conditions, with our properties in Lake Charles and Biloxi experiencing decreases of$9 5 million and $8.1 million, respectively. Casino revenues at our (Juad
Cities properties declined $13.9 million due to competition { from a new land-based facility and casino revenues at our Pompano slot facility dectined
$3.6 million due 10 expansion of nearby compeling Native: Amencan CasIN0s.

Roomy Revenye—Rooms revenue decreased $3.4 million, br 7:3%, in fiscal 2010 compared 1o fiscal 2009 primarily resulting from decreased occupancy
and lower average rooin rates as a result of reduced consumer demand for raéiiis.

Pari-mutuel, Fund, Beverage and Other Revenuey —Pari-mutuel, food, beverage and other revenues decreased $3.6 million, or 2.6%, in fiscal 2010
compared to fiscal 2009. This decrease was a result of a decrease of $3.7 million in pari-mutuel revenues at Pompano as a result of @ 33 day decrease in year
over year live racing days offset by a net increase in food, bev erage and other revenuces.

Promational Altowances—Promotional allowances, which are made up of complimentary revenues, cash points and coupons, arc rewards thal we give
our loyal customers 1o encourage them 1o continue to patronize our propertics. These allowances decreased hy $4.1 million in fiscal 2010 compared to fiscal
2009 due to"chahg:s in our promotions and comesponding redictions in ouy revenues. For fiscal 2010 and 2009, promotional allowances as 4 percentage of
casino revenues were 18.9% and 18.5%, respectively.
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Operating Expenses

Operating expenscs for the fiscal years 2010 and 2009 are as follows:

Fiseal Year Ended;

April 25, April 26, Percentzge
{in thnusznds) . 20]0 1009 . Variznee Variance
Operating expenses @ L. or b oy = V& Vg Pk i iR AT P L R s e AR
Casino . _ . % 7153, R3H S 151 6lﬂ $ 2,128 1.5%
fCimine el T B S TR I T 1260 41 41269 918 B (168 ) 2 8%]
1 -
Rooms S — 10,845 - ;1.2 306_. . ‘?(l,gg__) — 11. 9"/?
l:}’an-mmucl Tood; bevernge and Sther s =X 5. 7%, g -'::44,7'_(0.__ i S LAG2 1 95(6;,702) . =13 0%}
1,507 64,368 1861 -4.4%
_iMarme and facilities T R — 1E_v e ~ L\ Y - - %:J]
Marketing and: ddm_lmslmm'e o B b d AFURT DTU053:0977 236,210, T -(3;.113). ) =1.2%
Corporate and development 46 7)0 41,331 SNe 13.1%
Expénse fecoveries and other chanies, et i © 150 TaE 4 ¥ = IR30,125) < M(42!887). 0 2= 118:7%)
" Hwrricane and other insurance rccovcricf. — (32,277) 32,277 N
FiDepreciation and amorization s - &% Teriioun 0 e gt St I100, 504 =2 % 123 4A0B o (12,936 = -10.6%)

Total operating expenses $ 935780 5 973,503 (37,-723) -3.9%
Cavino—Casino operating expenses increased $2.2 million, or 1.5% in fiscal 2010 compaéd 1o fiseal 2009. These expenses are primarily comprised of
salaries, wages and bencfits and other operating expenses of our Casinos. This increase was primarily the result of increased cost of casino operations at our
Black Hawk casinos following a July 2009 regulatory change expanding thi hours of gaming vperations.

Gaming Toxes—Goming taxes deereased by $7.7 million, or 2.8%, in fiscal 2010 compared to fiseal 2009. This reduction in gaming taxes is primarily a
result of a 4.0% decrease in casino gaming revenue and changes in mix of gaming revenues among siates with differing gaming tax rates.

Rooms—Rooms expenses decreased by $1.5 million or 11.9% in fiscal 2016 compared to fiscal 2009. Overail reductions in rooms expénses corresponds
to our 7.3% decline in rooms revenue.

Pari-muinel, Fond, Beverage and Other—Pari-mumiel, food, beverage and other expenses decreased $6.7 million, or 13.0%, in fiscal 2010 as corpared
to fiscal 2009, Part-mutuel operating costs 2t Pompano decreased $4.2 million in fiscal 2010 compared ta fiscal 2009, Such costs consist prinarily of
compensation, benefits, purses, simulcast fees and other direct costs of track operations. The decreases in cusrenit year as comparcd to prior year are a result of
reduction of 33 live racing days during the current fiscal year. The reduction in food and beverage expenses rcsu]lcd pnmanlv from laber and other cost
reductions. Food and beverage expcnscs consist primarily of the cost of goods sold, salarics, wages and benefits and other operating éxpensés of these
depanmcms

Marine and Facilitiey—These expenses include salafies, wages und benefits of the marine and facilities departnents, operating expenses of the marine
crews; maintcnance of public areas, housckeeping and general maintenunce of the riverboms and pavilions.-Marine and-facilities expenses decreased
$2.9 millivn, or 4.4%4, in fiscal 2010 compared to fiscal 2009 and is the result of §1.3 million in utility cost reductions, 50,3 millien in reduced payroll costs
and 50.9 miilion in other cost reductions.

Marketing and Adminisirarive—These expenses include salaries, wages and benefits of the marketing and sales departments, as well as prémotions,
direct mail, advertising, special events and entertainment, Administrative expenses include administration and human resource department expenses, rent,

professional fees, insurance and property taxes. The $3.1 million decrease in marketing and
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administrative expenses in fiscal 2010, #s compared 1o fiscal 2009, reflects our deeision w reduce marketing costs to less profitable customer segments and io
reduce our administrative costs.

Corporate and Develupment—Dunng fiscal 2010, our corporate and development expenses were $46.8 million compared 1o $41.3 million for fiscal
2009. This increase in corporate and development cxpense reflects 1.8 million of costs associated with the 2amendrent of our credit l’acnin}, a $1.1 million

increase in Stock compensation cxpense and other increases in professionat'and other, cxpenses associated with our devclopmcnl and acquisition activities.

Depreciation and Amoriization—Depreciation and amortization cxpé’risé_dccr’case’d By $12.9 million, of 10.6%%, in fiscal 2010, as compared to fiscal
2009 primarily due to ceriain assets becoming fully depreciated during the current year.

Other Income (Expense). Income Taxes, Minority Interest and Dixeontinued Operations

Interest expense, interest income, other. gain on early exlm;._,umhmcm of debt, income tax {pmwslon) benefit, minority interest and income from
discontinued operations, net of income taxes for the {iscal years 2000 and "009 are as follows:.

- . Fiscal Year Ended
April 25, April 18, Percentage
{in lhous.lm!s! L 1010 2009 Varfance Variance
S e, . - - . —————
Tnteresiexpeise & - g il 2 w8 (75 434) S_(920065):31 16,6317 _ =189
Interest 1 muamc _ 1.833 202 (”79) -13.2%
Ol.her-. §.4_ R 3:_ AP ) g _?_:‘—Ag: Koty ﬁé %Mm(:;?[]) Azl‘ = g < (370} .sl\l‘r\":j
Gain on earlv cxtmgmshmem of debt — 57, 693 (57 693) N/
R r——— P T P T L v o - BT
[ncome tax (pmvlsmn) bcncﬁl____,i S DU R SO | 8;},?;{_,‘&_(5] ,f).gQ) 49 413, . s120. 4
Loss from discontinued npcrar.mns net of income taxes ’ {1, 737) (17,658) 13,926 -90.2¢%

Inierest l::tpi:'mr:—lmmsl cxpense decreased $16:6 million, or 18.1%, in-fiscal2010 compared to fiscal 2009 fesuliing from lower. avcrage debt
balances. Our lower average debt balance resulted from the reduction of §l4'? 7 millior of our senior subordinated 7% notes and a'$35.0 million repayment on
our senior secured credit ficidity debt in Fchm.u}- and March 2009, rcspm,u\ ely. While,we have experienced & decrease in the interest rate on the varable
imterest rate components of our de throwgh the third quener of fiscal 20190, our senior secored crédit facility améndment doring the fourth quaner of fiscal
2010 increased our overall interest rates. See liquidity and capital resources for additional discussion of our senior secured eredit facility amendment,

Interést income—During fiscal 2010, our interest income decreased $0.3 milkion as compared 10/fis¢al 2009, The change in imerest income reflects
changes in our invested cash and marketable securities balasices and lower interest pates.

Orther —This includes expenses related 1o the change in falr value of our ineffictive imerest rale swap agreemems.

income Tax (Provision) Benefit—Qur income 1ax (provision) benefit from continuing operations and our effective income 1ax rate has been impacted by
ous settlement of certain tax liabilitics for $4.7 million less than vur estinated secrual, out amoint of anneal taxable income (loss) for financial
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statement purposes as well as our percentage of perrmanent items in relation to such income or loss. Effective income tax rates were as tollows:

April 25, April 26,
. - 2010 2009
Continting dperations % = s CoEa b BT T T F240'1%5]
Taal 2% 41:7%

Fiscal 2009 Compared to Fiscal 2008
Revenuyey

Revenues for the fiscal years 2009 and 2008 are as follows:

Fiseal Yeor Ended

April 26, April 170 Percentage

{in lhomnds) 2009 . 2008 - Varianee :Variaoce
T T A LS R ST T S S i P T SRR |
Casino ‘3 10\5,604 S 1092291 % (36 399) -3.4%
TROoms T o e 7 2 e A aR0_,_©. HOA98 T (31N8) S 63%l
Pri-mutuel, food, beverage and other 138,632 150_.!44 . (ll 51") -7.7%
[Tirrican and Gther insurnce Fecoverias L. .~ S5y - srer A 5 600930 0 L 348~ 67 584 % NI )
Gms\. reyenves ).303,638 U.'[“?Q"”S.‘i 11,335 0.9%,
S Lﬁs,promuuonal allowancu w ¥ ‘g, Eny e (195 603)4;.0‘_., (2 .QQ)._*;..—:';E-:;;ES’J__" i L 2:6%]

Net revenues 5 1;108035 § 1,091,383 16,652 1.5%

Casino Reveries—Casino revennes decreased $36.6 million, or 3.4%, in fiscal 2009 compared to fiscal 2008. We experienced a decrease in casino
revenues at most of our propertics pnmanly as‘a result of the continued detericration in'discretionary consumer spending in conjunction with poor economic
conditions. Our Black Hawk properties' $24.2 million decline in casino revenues as compared 10 ﬁ-.ca] 2008 also reflects the impact of a siatcw:de smoking
ban effective for Colorado casinos on Janunry 1. 2008, Thc $8.4 million decresse in casino revenues at our Pompano shot facility also reflects the cxpansmn of
nearby competing Native American casinos. Decreases in our casino revenues wer pamally offset by increases in casino revenues of $20.5 million at our
Watetlao and Caruthersville propertics duc to the casinos being opened for a-full i2 months in fiscal 2009 compared 10 only 10 and_ nine months, respectively,
in fiscal 2008.

Roomy Revenue—Rooms revenue decreased $3.1 million, or 6.3%, in fisval 2009 compared to fiscal 2008 primarily resulting from decreased occupancy
and lower average room rates as a result of reduced consumer demand for rooms.

Pari-mutnel, Food, Beverage and Other Revenues —Pari-mutuel, food, beverage and other revenues decreased $11.5 million, or 7.7% in fiscal 2009
compared 1o fiscal 2008 corresponding to an overal} reduction in-casino revenues and due w deereases in consumer spending caused by current economic
conditions. Pdri-mutuel commissions and fees earned at Pompana decreased $3.2 million, or 16.8% LOITIPBR‘d to the prior fisca) year due to decreases in
wagering. These decreases were offset by increases at our Waterloo and Caruthersville propenies due 10 the casinos bemg opened for a full 12 months in
fiscal 2009 compared to only 10 and nine months, rcspcctnciy, in fiscal 2008.
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Promational Allowances—Pramotional allowances, which are made up of complimentary revénues, cash points and coupons, are rewards that we give
our loyal customers to encournge them to coniinue 10 patropize our propertics. These allowances decreased by $5.3 million in fiscal 2009 compared to fiszal
2008 primarily due to a decrease in patrons. For fiscal 2009 and 2008, promotional allowances as a percentage of casino revenues were 18.5%% and 18.4%,
respectively.

Operating Expenses

Operating expenses for the fiscal yvears 2009 and 2008 are as tollows:

__Fiscal Year Ended

. April 26, April 17, Percentage
in thousands). .. __ag . 2008 Varigoce - Varigoce
Oneraling expedses: i Soidie . ok 5 e LA ST e _'*_‘f_ RN s
Casino -5 151610 § 151,090 §. 520 0,3%
CARTIPR (IXCS - oa Sab om PaTe e T o EE 60, 92855 S 12853707 7 (15432)% 5 5 £504%]
Rooms 12,306 12,494 (j_§§) -1:5%
| Parimutnet: 1ood, heverape and oibers el s 51462 TSP TTAT 030 e (5568 0. 3 1+ 20.8%]
Marine and facilities 64,368 | 65460 {1,100 1.7%
[_:rkumg and ddministiative S fm g w R e Py T amt 2363210 ol J2T008T e S{138T e E51%)
Corpaorate and developmcm . 41331 '47.334° (§,Q£_Jj) . -12.7%
{EXpene recoverics and, wther.chdizes: et £ e s 72 kel wte - 50 283 6’1"i emm 05260 29,5995 o T d53:6%4
Hurricane ang other i msurancc TeCoue rerics ) (3..,,'.'7) . (1,157 {30,520) N/M
EPrelopening:. - = S R P 355‘3* S 5,654 2100.0%]
Dcprcc:anon and amortization 122,440 128935 (6,495) -5.0%

[ 7+ Towldperating expenses. L $En07330308 1026232 T FI(32, 700 S50%

Casing—Casine operiting expenses increased nommally year aver year. Thede expenses are primarily comprised of salaries, wages and benefits and
other operating expenses of our casinos. Casino properties opened in fiscal 2008 expe_nenccd 2:$7.8 million increase in year over year casino expenses while
casino properties aperating for both years experienced a $7.3 million reduction in casino expenses corresponding to an overali decrease in gaming revenues
and management's increased focus on cost management,

Gﬂmmg Taxes—State and local gaming taxes decreased by $15.4 million, or. 5.4%, in fiscal 2009 compared to fiscal 2008. This reduction in gaming
taxes is primarily a resuli of a 3.4% decrease in casino gaming tevenue dnd changes in paming revenues amon ‘states with diffefing gaming 1ax rates and
refund of a $1.9 million in gaming taxes at our Pompana facility following an-agreenien: reackied with the State of Florida regarding the interpretation of the
gaming tax calkeulation based on gaming taxes paid since Parapana's opening.

Pari-muiuel, Food, Beverage and Other—Pari-mutoel, food, beverage and other expenses decreased $5.6 miltion, or 9.8%, in.fiscal 2009 as compared 10
fiscal 2003, A $2.4 million reduction in food and beverage cxpenses reflects a decrease in overall food wnd beverage revenucs with food and beverage
expenses a5 3 perceniage of gross food and beverage revenues rcmammg stable in bolh fiscal 2009 and 2008. Food and beverage expenses consist primarily of
the cost of goods sold, salaries, wages and bepefits and other operating expenses of these depariments; This decrease réflects the rcducuons in our food,
beverage and other revenues, Pari-mutue] operating costs of Pompano decreased $3.1° million in fiscal 2009 compared 1o fiscal 2008. Sich éosls consist
primarily of compensation, benefits, purses, simulcast fees and other direct costs of track operations, The decreases in the current year as compared 10 prior
year are 2 Tesult of cost reductions relited 1o our-pari-mutuel operations.
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Marine and Facilitiev—These expenses inelude salaries, wages and benefits of the marine and facilities departments, operating expenses of the marine
crews, roaintenance of public areas. hoosekeeping and gencral maintenance of the riverboats and pavilions. Marine and facilities expenses decreased
$1.1 million, or 1.7%, in fiscal 2009 compared 10 fiscal 2008 and is the resitlt of headcount rcductions and cost management.

Markeiing and Advninistraiive—These expenses include salaries, wages and bcncf" ts of the marketing and sales departments, as well as pmmouons,
direct mail, advertising, c;pt‘ual events and entertainment. Adminisirative expenses include administration and human resource depariment expenses, reat,
professional fees, insurance and property taxes. The $13.9 million decrease in marketing and administrative expenses:in fiscal 2009 compared to fiseal 2008,
reflects our decision to reduce marketing costs to less profilable customer'segments and to reduce our administrative costs.

Cuorporate and Developmenr—During fiscal 2009, our corporate and development expenses were $41.3 million compared 10 §47.3 million for fiscal
2008. This decrease in corporate and development expense teflects onr continoed cfforts 1o reduce our corporate overhead and includes reductions of

$3.5-mitlion in professional and consuliing services as well as rc;_iu:tlnnc)n other carporate cxpenses.

_ Depreciation and Amortization—Depreciation und'a‘mdn@zisfsém expense decreased by $6.3 millian, or 5.0%, in tiscal 2009 compared ta {iscal 2008
primarily due to certain assets becoming fully depreciated during the current year.

Chther Income (Expense), income Taxes. Minority Intérest arnil ‘D'E.t'_n.nn;indt:ﬁ Operations

Interest expense, interest income, loss on early extinguishment of debt, income 1ax (provision) benefit, mmonty interest and income from discontinned
operations, net of income taxes for the fiscal years 2009 and 2008 are as follows:

Fiscal Year Ended

April 28, April 27, Percentage
(in thousands}) e 2009 . 2008 Variance . \arumce
EMerest ex0ense oot 20 L Gase o> SMEn T e sl (02 0657 §,_{106,826) S 14761 L1389
Interesi income 2011 3,26l AL.130) -35.3%
Giain, ﬂoss) on cariy‘cmnqulshmcm ofdebt: F TR ‘57, 693*“' Y (15 f4)_m72,957' T AT
income tax (provision) benefit (41 039) 20, 918 _(61,937) -196.2%
L:655 ffomn discofitinied operations; fict ofmc.ome taxes i, R (17 658 1059, 236) e 41,3781 ﬁ'-?()_lz“/_{,
Income attributableto noncumrul]mg interest ' — 4.868 (4, SGS) -100.0%%

Interest Expenye—Imerest expense decreaséd $14.8 mxlhon or 13.8%, in. ‘fiscal 2009 compared to fscal 3008, This decrease is primarily attributable to a
fower average debt balance resulting from the pay down of 51427 million of our senior ‘;ubordmaled 7% nites and o $35.0 millton repayment on our senior
secured credit facility debt in Febmuary and March 2009, respectively, and a decrease in the.interest rate on the variable interest rate components of our debt.

Interest Income—During fiscal 2009, our interest income decreased §1.2 million as compared to fiseal 2008. The change in imerest income reflects
changes in our invested cash and marketable securities balancés and lower, interest rates.

Inceme Tax (Provision} Benefit—Our income tax (provision) benefit ffom continuing operations and our effective income tax rate has been impacted by
amount of annual taxable income (loss) for
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financial statement purposes 25 well as our percentage of permanent items in relution 10 such income or loss, Effective income tax rates were as follows:

TR TR T
ConGnuing operations e 3 - et T
Total

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Cash Flaws from Operating Activities—During fiscal 2010, we generated S106.4 million in cash flows fram operzting activities compared to generating
$190.6 million during fiscal 2009. The decrease in cash flows from operating activitics is primarily due to reductions in net income of $§46.8 million as the
prior. fiscal year included $60 million in pretax business interruption insurance proceeds from our Hurricane Katrina settiement at aur Biloxi property and
collection of $20.9 million of income tax refunds.

Cavh Flows used in Investing Activities—During fiscal 2010 we used $31.0 million for investing activities compared fo using $27.9 million during fiscal-
2009. Our fiscal 2610 investing activitics incliide $27.7 million for puchases of property and equipment. S:gmﬁcam investing activitics for fiscal 2009
inciuded purchases of property and cqmpmcm of $58.6 miilion primarity offset by the collection of property related insurance proceeds of $32.2 million.

Cash Flows uxed by Financing Activities—During fiscal 2010 our net cash flows used by financing activities were 5104.0 million primarily comprised

of:
. Repayment of $8.4 million of our senjor secured serm loans:
. Net repayments of $90.5 million under our revolving credit agreement; and
. Payment of $3.9 million in deferred financing costs associated with the amendment of our senjor secured credit facitity.

During fiscal year ended 2009 our net cash flows used by financing activities were $157.2 million primarily comprised of:

. Repayment of $43.7 million of owr senior sceured term loans:

' Net repayments of $18.5 million under our revolving credit agreement;

. Payment of $82.8 million {used 1o retire $142.7 million) in principal amount of our 7% senior subordinated notes; and
. Repayment of other long-term liabilities of $11.4 miilion.

Availahility of Cash and Additional Capital—At Aprit 23, 2010, we hied cash and cash equivalenits of $68.1 million and marketable securities of
522.9 million. As of Apri} 25, 2010, we had $21.5 million-inborrowings under our revolving credit and $817.3 miliion in term loans outstanding under our
senivr secured credit facility. Our net line of credit availability at April 25,2010 wos approximately $109 million as lirolicd by our leverage ratio.

Amendment of our Senior Secured Credit Faciline—On February 17, 2010, we entered into an amendment to our senior. secwred credii facility which,
among other things, (1} modified the leverage ratio and interést coverage ratio to provide for. greater flexibility through April 30, 2012 after which date the
ratios retumm 1o the original levels as outlined in the senior secured credit facility: (2) reduced the capacity of the revolving line of eredit by $100,000 10
$375,000: (3) increased the interest rate of both the revolving line of credit and 1¢rm loan portions to LIBOR + 3.00% with a LIBOR floor
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of 2.00%: and (4) allows us 10 issue senior unseeured notes, provided the proceeds are wsed 1 repay borrowings under.the sentor secured credit fcility.

As a result of the smendment 10 the senior secured credit‘fucili:y, we recorded 4 charfie of approximately 52.2 million in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2010
reluted 1o fees and the write-off of certain unamartized deferred financing costs, of which approximately $0.3 million was non-cash. 1f current debt levels
Temain stam, we expect our annual interest expense 10 increase by approximately 315 million to $18 million as 2 result of the amendment to the senior
secured credit tacilify, beginning during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2010.

Capital Expenditures and Development Activities—Llistoricaly, we have made significant investments in property-and equipment and expect that our
operations will continue to demand ongoing investments 1a keep onr properties competitive.

In June 2010 we expect 1o close on our purchase of the Rainbow casino in V]Lksburg, Mississippl. We expect o fund the $80 million purchase price with
borrowings under cur senior secured credit facility. While the 380 million uded to acquire the Rainbow casino will increase the oustanding balance of our
senjor eredit facility, our overall credit avml.!blht) will not be” nmtcrml]) |mpauui By the acquisition ufter the puichase.

In fiscal 2011, we plan to invest approximately $48 roillion in maintenance capital expenditurcs.

Historically, we have funded our daily operations through net eash provided by aperating activities and our significant capital expenditures through
operating cash flow and debt financing. While we bélieve thut existing cash,-cash flow from operations, and available borrowings under our senior secured
eredit facility will be sufficient 10 support our working capital-needs, pending. purchase of the Rainbaw casino, planned capital expendimres and debt service
requirements for the foresecable future, there is no assurance that these sources will in fact pmudc adequate funding for our planned and necc=Sary
expenditures or that our plarned reduced levels of capital investments will be sufficient 1o allow us to remain competitive in our existing markets.

We have identified several capital projects primanly focused on rcfrcshihg our hotel rovm 'inw:ntor}' as well as additional improvemens to eur Black
Hawk and Lake Charles properties, and further Lady Luck conversions, The timing and amount of these capial expenditures will'be deiermined as we gain
more clarity as to improvement of economic and local market conditions, cash flows from our continuing operations und availability of cash under our senior
secured credit faciiity.

We have entered into an agreement 1o provide management services-for a potential casino to be located at the Nemaeolin Woodlands Resort in
Farmingron, Pennsylvania, {"the Reson"). The development of this casino is subject to numerons regulatory approvals including obtaining a siate gaming
license, which is a competitive award process among several applicants, If the Resort is nccessful in obmtnmg a gaming license, we have agreed to complete
the build-out of the casino space. We currently estimate the project cost at nppmmmately $50 million, .

We are highly levernged and may be unable 10 obtain additional debt or equity financing on accepiable terms if our current sonrces of liquidity are not
sufficient or if we fail to stay in compliance with the covenants of our senior secured credit facility. We will continuc to evaluaie our planned capital
expenditures at each of our existing locations in light of the operating pertormance of the facilities at such locations.

As part of our business developroent activitics, histarically we have entered into-agicements which have resulted in the acquisition or development of
businesses or assets. These business development efforts and related agreements typically require the expenditure of cash, which may he significant. The
amount and 1iming of our cash expenditnres relating to development activities may vary based upon our evaluation of current and future development
upportunitics, our financial condition and the .
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condition of the financing markets. Qur development activities ate subject 10 a varicty of tactors including but not Yimited 1o; obtaining permits, lcenses and
approvais from appropriate regutatory and other agencies, legislative changes and, in centain circemstances, negotiating acceptable leases.

Critical Accounting Estimates

.Our consolidated financial statements ase prepared in accordance with U, S, generally.accepted accounting princjples that require our management 1o
make estimates and assumptions that affect reported amounts and related disclosures, Management identifies critica] accounting estimates as:

. those that require the use of assumptions about matters that are inherently and highly uncertain at the time the estimates are made;

. those estimates where, had we chosen different estimates or assumptions, the resulting differences would have had a material impact on our
financial condition, changes in financial condition or resulis of eperations; and

. "those estimates that, if they were to change from period to period, likely would result in a material impact on owr financial condition, changes in
financial condition or results of operations.

Based upon management's discussion of the developrent and selection of these critical accounting estimates with the Audit Committée of our Board of
Directors, we believe the following accounting estimates involve a-higher degree of judgment and complexity.

Goodhwill and Quher Intangible Assets-—Ar April 23, 2010, we had goodwill and other intangible assets of $392:8 million, representing 23.49% of total
asseis. Statement ol Financial Accounting Standards {SFAS) No. 142, " Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets™ {"SFAS 142™), 1s now included in ASC
Tapic 350, Imangxbles—Good\w]] and Other. For poodwill and indefinite: lived intangible assets, we perform an annual impairment test for these assets in the
fourth fiscal quarier of each year, or on an interim basis if indicators of impairment exist. For properties with goodwill and/or other mmngzble assets with
indefinite lives, this test requires the compasison of the implicd fair value of each reporting unit 10 carrying vatue.

We must make various assumptions and estimates in performing our impaimmm testing. The implied fair value includes esiimates of future cash flows
that are based an reasonable and supportable assumptions which represent our, best estiniates of the cash flows expected to result from the use of the assets
including their eventual disposition and by a market approach based vpon valiation multiples for similar companies. Changes in estimates, increases in our
cost of capital, reductions in trunsaction muluplcs or applicativii of aliernative assumptions and detinitions could produce mg,mtlr.dntly diffeient resilis. Future
cash flow estimales are, by their nature, subjective and actual results may differ inaterially from our estimates. If our ongoing estimaies of future cash flows

_ are not met, we may have 10 record additional i impairmeni charges in future accounting periods. Qur estimates of cash flows arc hased on the current
regulatory, social and economic climates, recent operating information and budgets of the vatious propertics where we conduct operations. These estimates
could be negatively impacted by changes in federal, state or local regulations, economic downturns, or other events affecting various forms of travel and
ACCeSs 10 our propertics.
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We engaged an independent third party valuation firm to conduict our annual impairment testing for fiscal 2010. Our reporting units with goodwill andfor
other long-lived intangibtes had fair values which exceeded their camying values by at least.15%, except for our Black Hawk reporting unit with goodwil} and
indefinite-fived asséts as of April 25, 2010 of $30.6 milliun, which whose fair vilue exceeded its carrying value by 6%. During our 2009 dnnual impairment
test, we-recorded an impairment charge of S18.3 midlion to write-down goodwn]l and indefinite lwed mtanglblc assets at Black Hawk reporting unit.

Praperty and Equipment—At April 25, 2010, we had pmp:ny and cqmpmcm net of sccumublated dcprcc:auon of $1.1 billion, rcpn:senung 66% of total
assets. We capitatize the cost of propeny and equipment, Mainmenance and repairs that neither materialty 2dd 10 the value of the property or equipment nor
apprecmb]y profong its life are charged 10 expense as incumed. We depreciate: ‘property and equipment on a straight-line basis over their csumuted useful lives.
The estimated useful lives are based on the namre of the agsets as well as our-ciirrént operatmg, strategy. Future events such as property expansions, new
competitidn, changes in technalogy and new regulations could result ina change in thé manner in which we are using certain assets requiring a change in the
estimated useful lives of such assets.

Impaivment of Long-lived Assees—We evaluate lung-lived assets for impaiment in'attordance with the guidince in the Impairment or Disposal of Long
Lived Agsets subgection of ASC Topic 360, Property, Plant and Equipmcnt (ASC Tapic 360"). For'a long-lived asset to be held and vsed, we review the asset
for impairment whenever events or changes in cireumstances indicate the carrymg amount may not be recoverable. [n assessing the rccuvemblllry of the
carrying value of such property, equipment and other-long-lived assets, wc make assumptions rcgardmg future cash flaws and rcsuhlal values. If these
estimates or the related assumptions are not achieved or change in the fulum we may be reguired & to'record an impairment loss for lhese assets. in cvaluating
impairment of long-lived assets for newly opened operations, estimites of future cash flows and residial valies may rcquln: some perjod of actual results 10
provide the basas for an opinion of future eash flows and residual values used in the determination of an i :mpamncm loss for these assets. For assets held for
dlsposal we recognize the asset ot the lower of canying value or fair market value, less cost of d:sposal based upon apma\sals, discounted cash flows or other
methods as appropriae. An impaimment loss would be recognized as 2 non-cash component of aperating income.

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2009, we recorded a charge of $1.4 million to reduce our Blue Chip assets held for sale to their estimated fair value
less the cost to sell.

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2008, we engaged an independent third party valuation firm to conduct an appraisal of our long-lived assets associated
with our casino property in Coventry, England due to the continuation of losses from operations, a review of expected future operating trends and the currem
fair values of our long-lived assets in Caventry, England. Based upon thiy appraisal, we recorded an impairment charge of $78.0 million relating to the write-
down of long-lived assets a: our Coventry property in fiscal 2008,

Sélf-Insurance Liabilitie—We are self-funded up to a maximum amount per claim for our employee-related health care benefits program, workers'
compensation and general liabilities. Clais in excess of this maximum are fizlly insured through a stop-loss insurance policy. We accrue a discounied
cstimate for workers’ compensation liability and general liabilities based on claims filed and estimates of claims incurred but not reported. We rely on
independent consultants to assist in the determination of estimated accruals, Whilé the estimated cost of claims incurred depends on future developments, such
as increases in health care costs, in our opinion, recorded reserves are adequate 10 cover future claims payments. Based upon our current accrued insurance
liabilities, a 1% change in our discount factor would cause a $0.7 million change in our accnted self-insurance Liability.
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Income Tax Assets and Lighilities—W e account for income taxcs in accordance with the g E._.uidaiicc‘in ASC Topic 740, Income Taxes ("ASC Topic 7407),
We are subject to income taxes in the United States and in several states in which we operate. We recopnize a current tax asset or liability, for the estimated
1axes payable or refundable based upon application of the enacied 9% mies o tXable income in the cument year, Additionally, we are required to recogpize a
deferred 1ax liability or asset for the estimated future ux effects attributable to wemporary differences. Temporary differences oceur when differences arise
between: (a) the amount of taxable income and pretax financial income for a year and (b} the tax basis of assets or hiabilities and their reported amounts in
financial statements. Deferred tax assets recognized must be reduced by a valuation allowance fur any.tax benefits that, in our judgment and based upon
available evidence, may not be realizable. '

We assess our tax positions using a two-step process. A tax position is recognized if it meets a "more likely than not” threshold, and is measured at the
largest amaunt of benefit that is greater than 30 percent likely of being realized. Uncertain tax pmﬂmns must-be reviewed at each balance sheet date.
Liabilities recorded as 2 result of this analysis must generally be recorded separately trnm any currcnt’or deferred income tax accounts, and are classified as
current Other accrued Habilities or long-term Other long-terin labilities based on the time untii cxpec_lf_:d payinent. We recognize accrued interest and
penalties related to unrecognized tax bencfits in income tax expensc.

-Stock Based Compensation—We apply the guidance of ASC Topic 718, Coriipensation—Stock Compensation ("ASC Topic 718" in accounting for
stock compensation. Generally, we are required to measure the cost of employee services received in‘exchange for an award of equity instnrments based on
the grant-date fair value of the award. The estimate of the fair value of the stock options is calcufated vsing the Black-Scholes-Merton opuan pricing model.
This mode] requires the use of various assumptions, including the historical: ‘volatility, the rigk free interest mate, estimated expected life of the grants, the
ectimated dividend yield and estimated rate of forfeitures. Total stock based compensation expense is included in the expense category corresponding to the
employees’ regnlac compensation in the sccompanying consolidated statements of operations.

Derivative Instriments—We wtilize an investment policy for managing risks associated with our.current and anticipated future borrowings, such as
interest rate risk and its potential impact on our fixed and variable mte debt. We arc also curremly rtqmrcd to have at teast 50% of our term Joans under our
senior secured credit facility covered by some form of interest protection. Currently we have 5400 million of interest rate swap agrecments and 4 $20 million
interest rate cap agrecment. Under this policy. we may utilize derivative contracts that effectively convers our borrowings from either floating-to-fixed or
tixed-to-floating. The policy does not allow for the use of derivative tinancial instrurmenis for trading or speculative puiposes. To the extent we employ such
financial instrumients pursuant to this policy, and the instruments qualify for hedge accounting, we may designate and account for them as hedged instruments.
In order to qualify for hedge accounting, the underying hedged item must éxpose us to risks associated with market fluctuations and the financial instrument
used musi be designated as a hedge and must reduce our cxposure.to market fluctuations throughout the hedged period. [f these criteria aré not met, a change
in the market value of the financial instrument is recognized as a- gain (loss) in the period of change. Otherwise, gains and losses related io the change in the
market value aré not recognized except 10 the extent that the hedged debt is disposed of prior to maturity or to the extent thai unacceptable mnges of
ineffectiveness exist in the hedge. Net interest paid or received pursuant to the hedged financial instrumeént is incloded in interest expense-in the period. Qur
curent interest rate swap agrecments, which were designated as cash tlow hedges, became incffective upon'the amendment of our senior sectired credit
facility in February 2010. We record them at fair vatue and measure their effectivencss bsing the Jong-haul method. The effective-portion of any gain or loss
on our inferest rate swaps is recorded in other comprehensive income (loss), We use the hypothetical derivative method 10 measure the ineffective pertion of
our interest rate swaps. The ineffective portion, if any. is recorded in other income (¢€xpense). We measure the
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mark-to-market value of our interest rate swaps using a discounted cash flow analysis of theprojected future receipts or payments based upon the forward
yield'curve on the date of measurement. We adjust this amount to measure the fair value af our interest rate swaps by applying a credit valuation adlusrmeni
to the mark-16-market exposure profile,

Commgem.rm——\\'c are invoived in various Jegal proceedings and have identified certain loss commgcm:les We record Habilities related to these
contingencics when it is determined that a loss is probable and redsonably estimable in aceordance. with the guidance of ASC Toplc 450 Contingengcies ("ASC
Tapic 4507). These assessments are based on our knowledge and experience as well as the udv:cc of lega] counsel rcgardmg cufrent and past evems, Any such
cstimates are also subject to future events, const rulings, negotiations between the parties and Olhcr upeertainties. If an actual Toss differs from our estimate, or
the acmal outcome of any of the legal proceedings differs from expectations, operiting results could be impacted.

Contractual Obligations znd Commercial Commitments

“The following table provides information as of fiscal 2010, about vur contractual obligations und commercial conimitments. The table presents
contractial obligations by due dates and related contractual commitments by expiration dates (in millions).

Payments Due by Period

Less Than
Cortractual Obllzations Tatal . | Year I'-3 Years: d4-5 Years After &Y ears
Long-Term DEbtr_ % mas TR it o T SE 000,908 4 87587 39.1_S_ 111502 8-, 222.9]
Estimated interest paymcms‘ on ]ong len'n debl{l) 2717 . 719, 145.1 522 2.5
Opcrdimg Leases - Fo = S ~:.:57_()8:8?:."-2‘. 205 - a0 o 05, 4235
Long Térm Obhganons(”) S :18.4 0.1 5% .4 2.1
Other LonfTern Obligations Lo, SN A A T NN TSR T |
Total Contractual Cash Obhamm__ns $ 20205 § 1173 § 225 3 123186 5 4483

{1}  Estimaled intercst payment on long-ferm debt are based on principal amounts outstanding at our fiscal year end and forecasted LIBOR
rates for onr senior secured credit facility.

(3}  Long-term obligations include future purchase commitments as well as current and future canstruction contracts.
Recently Issued Accounting Standards

Recently Issued Accounting Standards—New Pronouncements—in Jine 2009, the Financiij Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued Statement of:
Financial Accounting Standard ("SFAS") No. 168, "The FASB Accounting Standards Cadification™!"and the Hierarehy of Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles—a replacement of FASB Statement No. 162" ("AS(.") which identifies the sources of acCounting principles and the framework for seleciing the
pnnmp\cs used in the preparation of financial statements of nongovernmental entities-that are presemted in conformity with GAAP in the United States {the
GAAP hierarchy). SFAS 168 establishes ihe FASH A(umnlmg Stundardy Codific ation’™ us the source of authoritative accounting principles recognized by
‘the FASB to be applicd bv nongovernmental entities in the preparation of financial statenients in cnnfurmny with GAAP. SEAS 168 is eifective for most
financizk statements issued for interim and annual periods ending after. September 13, 2009. “The aduption of this guidance has changed how we reference
various clements of GAAP when preparing our financial statcment disclosures, but did not have an impact on aur consolidated financial statements,
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In December 2007, the FASB issucd SFAS No. 160, "Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial Statements—An Amendment of ARRB No. 517
("SFAS 160"). SFAS 160 changes the sceounting for rencontrolling (minority) interests in consoliduted financial statements, requires noncontrolling interests
to be reported as part of equity and changes the income statement p;escntatinn_bf income or losses aributable to the noncentrolling interests. We adopied
SFAS 160 as of April 27, 2009, as required. The adiiption of SFAS 160 did nét have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT.MARKET RISK

Market risk is the risk of loss arising from adverse changes in market rates and prices, including interest rates, foreign cummency exchange mics,
commodity prices and equity prices. Our primary exposure 1o market risk is interest rate risk associated with our senior secured credit facility.

Senior Secured Credit Facility

,Duringr fiseal 2010, we maintained interest rate swap agreements and an interest rate cap amangement with an aggregate notional value of 5400 milion
and $20 million as of April 25, 2010, respectively. The swap agreements éffectively,cohvert portioris of the senior secured credit facility variable debt to a
fixcd-rate basis until the respective swap agreements terminate, which occurs through fiscal 2014,

The following table provides information at April 25, 2010 about our financial instruménts that are sensitive o changes in interest rates. The table
presents principal cash flows and related weighted average interest rates by expected maturity dates,

Interest Rate Sensitivity
Principal (Notional) Amount by Expected Matarity
Average Interest (Swap) Rate

- Fair
Fiscal p’.ﬂr Value
{dallars in miltions) 2011 2012 2013 2014 2018 ‘Thereafter _Lotnl_ 4/2572010
o tiTrigale e - Y STy SR Sl g R :"TJ
Liabilivies ol e e wfU e RS R S welaiy L ! P A

Long-term debt,
inclading current
__portion O
yl-!xcdmle e I
Average
mtercst raic 7.01% 7.01% 7 01% 7. 01% 8 50% 8.50%

253577558500y $4,40.0,:5361:255:329.9)

A\ t:mg\.
interest

Imtrumcnts*- -

faidgr o O

£ Related 10 Dbt ; 2y 2
lntercst rate swans
Do iR b

e
I3 Average; o
By _receive e

v 4.20% 400":.. 400% 000%
- —r‘w ,

ey 3"‘%

(1) Represens the annual average LIBOR from the forward yield curve at April 23, 2010 plus the weighted average margin abovc LIBOR
an all consolidated variable rate debr.

42




Table of Contents
As'of April, 25, 2010, our senior secured eredit facility contained variable rate debt based on LIBOR with a floor of 2%%, which is ubove the current
market LIBOR rates we receive under our interest rate swap agreement. [n addition, we have pirchased an interest rate cap at 3% for a notional amount of

$20 million 1o further hedge our interest rate exposure. The following table depicts the estimated impact on our anoual interest expense for the relative

changes in interest rate based upon current debt levels:

Increase (o Increasci{decrease)
variable rate {in milllans)

R Wy »._qc;?:“}%:.-‘-_,;_, N.}{‘;s;xé;::é S e :{49)‘}

2% o (5.6)
A S T A R PRI N (15

% o 29
RN AU A WSO S T

B 13




Lable of Cantents
ITEM 8, FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

The following consolidated financial statements are included in this report:

Réport of Indépesident Registered Public Accounting Firm'on Consoliduted ]-ln.mu.ll Statéments.

Consolidated Balance Sheets—April 28, 2010 and Aprli 26,2009

Fisc:il Years Ended April 25, 2000, April 26, 2009 and April 27, 2008
onsolidated Statements of Operations-
Consolidated Staternents of Stockholdérs” Equity
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows.
Nates to Consolidated Financial Statenicnts

Schedule 1—Yaluation and Qualifving Accounts—¥iscal Years Ended April 25 ‘2010 Apn\ 26, 2009 and April, 27,
2008
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
lsle of Capri Casinos, lnec.

We have audited Isle of Capn Casino, Inc.'s internal cantrol over financial reporting as o' April 23, 2010, based on criteriu established in Internal Control
—Integrated Framework issued by the Comminee of Spongoring Organizations of the Treadway Commlssmn (the COSO criteria). Isle of Capri Casino, [nc's
management is responsible for mainiaining etfective intermal control over financial reporting, and for its assessment of the effectiveness of intémnal contral
over fidancial reporting inchided in the sccompanying Management's Report on Intermal Control Over Financial Repoiting. Qur responsibility is to express-an
opinion on the company’s internal contro] over financial reporting based on our i,

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require
that we plan and pcrform the audii 1o obtain reasonable assuranice about whether effcctive int€mal control over financial reporting was maintained in ail
material respects. Qur andit included obtaining an underqumdmg of internal coxtrol over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists,
testing and evaluating the d:s;gn and operating cffectiveness of internal contfol based on the assessed risk, ‘and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances. We belicve that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed 1o provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparaiion of financial stitements for external purposes in accordance witli geerally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal control
over financial réporting includes those policies ind procedires thit {1) pertain o the mainténance 6f records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
retlect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company: (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordarice with generally accepted sccounting principles, and that receipis and éxpenditures of the company are being
made cnly in accordance with suthorizations of management and directors of.the company: and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unavtharized acquisition, use or disposition of the campany's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent er detect misstalements. Also, projeciions of any evaluation
of effectiveness to future periods are subject 1o the risk that contrals may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, ar that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures myay deteriorate.

1n our opinion, Isle of Capri Casinos, inc. maintained, in all material respects, ¢ffective internal control over financial reporting as of April 23, 2010,
based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accardance with the standards of the Public Company. Accounting Oversight Board {United States), the consolidated balance
sheets of Iske of Capri Casinos, Inc. as of April 25, 2010, and April 26, 2009, und the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholder’s equity, and
cash flows for the fiscal years ended April 25, 2010, April 26, 2009, and April 27, 2008, and our report dated June 8, 2010, expressed an unqualificd opinion
thereon.

/sf Emnst & Young LLP
Saint Louis, Missouri

June 8, 2010
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Isle of Capri Casinos, Inc.

We have andited the accompanying consolidated halance sheets of Isle of Capri Casinos, Ine. (the Company) as of April 25, 2010, and April 26, 2009,
and the related consolidaied statements of operations, stockholders' equity, and cash flows for the fiseal years'ended April 25, 20 10, April 26, 2009, and
April 27, 2008. Our audiis also included the financia) statement schedule Yisted in the [ndex ai Item | ${a). These financisl siatements are the responsibility of
the Company's management. Qur responsibility s to express an opinion on these financial statements and schedule based on our gudits,

We conducted our andits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Aceounting OVersight Board (United States): Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit 1o obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a tést basis, évidence supporting the amounis and d:s&.losurc; in the ﬁmncla] statéments. An audn aiso inchuides assessing the zccounting
principles used and significant estimaies made by management, as well a5 evaluating the overill financial! statemment presentation. We believe that our audits
provide-a reasonable basis for our opinjon,

In our opinion, the findncial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of Isle of Capri
Casinoes, Inc. at April 23, 2010, and April 26, 2009, and the consolidated results of its nperations and its cash flows for the years ended April 25, 2010,
April 26, 2009, and April 27, 2008, in conformity,with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. -Also, in our opinion, the related finamcial statement
schedule, when éonsideréd in relation 1o the basic consolidated financial statements taken aé ' whole, presents fairly, in all material respects, the informaiion
set forth therein.

We also have audited. in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Beard {United States), isle of Capri Casinos, Inc.'s
internal control over financial reporting as of April 25, 2010, based on the criteria established in fmrernal Control—iniegrated Framework issued by the

Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission, and cur report date June 8, 2010; expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

s/ Ernst & Young LLP
Saint Louis, Missouri

June 8, 2010
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ISLE OF CAPR] CASINOS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(In thousands, except share und per share amaounts)

April 15, April 26,

) . 2010 2009
o R e B v i n st ASSETS g0 A b e e T : ‘i

Curreng ssctc - )
- Cash and Lash ‘Cquivalems L %‘&ﬂg .3 o _5‘;& Pl B *};Ln o Ta735.{768.069.5,.796, 6‘3‘].
Marketable sccunucs - 22 926 17,548
TTATCOUNIS ICEIVERIT, m.t ofallowancc fur doubuul dLLOUmS of $17955 4 and 55 106: NEREY T "—1
£ o : ol £795. 2 11,9355

-rcspcu..twel)' i d ' B e W E R P SO
Income laxes mcenable . 8,109 7,744
P Deferred income taxes e 2 2g a L L,, RN AT 8”61.__‘,16.:-'}.3
Prepaid expenses and mher assets, . . 23,095 _2__3,23-1
[ Assashéld forsulel - fu Z edens pipal v, m T RRET R T o e 74,183
Tota] curfent assets _ - . _#149 o4 177,593
Propeny, nd equipment, not._ e & o MU ¢ AR R L e 098,942 1 177,54¢—]
Other assus .
o G X s 313736 313.1361
Olher intangible assets, net - 79,675 83,588
| S =_Deferred financing cOsts, el & o2 % &2 ﬁ‘“'ﬁ};@q‘m"’ g‘-;»;'_‘;,.m TS 3-7[0}35_51;_'_ __"_‘)rﬁ?ﬂ
Restricted cash . - 2,714 2,774
= Prepad depasits and | O ST RS - 20058 18,7171

Total assets’ $1,674,840 51,782,662

el St LIABI[JIIIES;\J\I)SIOCI\HOLDERS'FOUIT‘:T_ SIS N A
Cu.rn.m liabilities:

s - MY 1 —
L;_-tg;f_‘._,;_Cmnt maturities off]ong—Ich debt_, PR &m ﬁw RN i~ 85T 8.754.5 7. 9,688]

Accounts payable — e — L 2407 13, 0?9
corued liabilities, oo Sy 7y i B o T Sy RN s R 2 ‘I:&..}_...‘.H.& .
Payroll and related . -y 45,863 47 407
i Property-and Otheh, 1AXes 2 £ S & - st s e, Jirs ot 3o B PRl 363337 31.563]
‘Inter >
e Interest m S S 779 L 9280
;Progressive |acl\pm§ \ R IR Aty wn e et F Rl A14; 144*1;_“%13 8‘}
Other 19,..‘5’0 39,201
b Y .;4 0\:. FrER T vj"‘en,u S T TR T T "‘“‘_i
I “Liabilities related to asscts heid for sa]c BB 4 b R 11,888
I'mﬂl current fiabilitics ) — ep o A5T38 167,993
Lonje.térm debtless curTent matimitics 21e S T K I Y AR R l93,135_‘. 1,291,334’1
2 3
DGR IOMEMES iy o gy T I T T 5 Y e
Othver. accried liabilities - TR R T R T S & L F Y8072 es 5758
O:hcr long—term hab:]nm e e ey e . e MTHE6 T30S
Stockhaides, Ceanity’ T 2 _____”"u AR e e s R N N LT i

Preferred stock, 5,01 pd.r value; 2,000,000 shaves authorized: none issued — s L —
‘_.,,‘__.Ccrumon ‘ilock. $.0Vipar, \dh.ll: 45,000 000° :,har(“: anthorized: shares 1ssued: ,___‘,___“_,“,_, .
_aﬁ 77I ,730 at April 23, 2010 and 36, lll 089 at Ap_gl_l';g, 2009

smck 501 par.\aﬁ']—cz") (‘.l(]t’l Oﬁﬂ qhares aul]mn?cd, non

T
L__\,_. =7 Class B commor

Addmcnal patd-m uamtal N . "ﬁl A4 3
U o Fon Retmined earmings,, Yo arat Geioay Jb'ﬁ.amﬁw__m NP SR A R S S—Eﬁm S’S]
Accumulated other wmprehcnsn.e income {loss) (8,060) (15,191)
W IR CE T e B R RN e LT e T, T ey T L292.3265 280,825 ]
Treasury stock, 4,326,242 5ha1ts dl Apn] ’25. 'EDlﬁ:md 4, 340 436 :.h.m.s al Apn} 26, 1[)09 (5'.!,107) {52,399)
% < B Toal tockholders) equn} el 2 B G LR R T TR T L 4 v 24D,219, 05228, 426,:_'1
Total ligbilities and stockholders’ equity $1,674 840 51:782,662

Sew accompanying notes o consolidated financiat statements.
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ISLE OF CAPRI CASINOS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(In thousands, except share and per share anlounts)

Flscal Year Ended
April 15, April 16, April 17,

- 2010, . . 2009 2008

Revorms e T R T R e e P R Tt L g L s e
Casino ) $.1,013 386 s I 055,694 § 1,002,203
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Net income atuributable (o noncontrolling interest : - — — “; 863)

NeT income, (1055) atiributable 10, COMMON SOCKNOIACTS 5, oy’ 4,885 %, e v iide 7 5. (3.273)3 43,5755 _(96:874)

I-a.mmgs (]055) pet cummaon § charc atyibutable to gommon sto«.khgl\den—baalc
bn B [ncome (1658) from o contiiuing ODCTREIONS 5, 5~ ﬂg@_ﬁﬂ-{: S EL L ‘A.‘J’—ST’WH‘(0._05)5."."-?1*“’-1.95 St {124y

Loss from discontinued operations including gain on sale, net of income °

taxes, (0.0%) {0.56) (1.92)
NE1 income (165<) aitrButable comman SI0cKhOIors | g, S w ™5 S a & L - = (01 0)S_ B2 #1139)8# 73 (3:16)
—— e e
Pammj,s (loss) per commonéharc attributable to common . stockholders djlutcd
= e St Ww """_'\:'—r"':‘_"_‘

r__::*" T Z&fntone (Yoss) from commumg vpcrationssi e T G, T ‘? il § (D055 A58 r. 8 7 (1-14)

Loss from discontinued operatiens including gain on sale, net of mcomc

taxes - (0.05) (. 56) (1.92)
n?“‘{"ﬁ’”"ht:t income (103s) atributable commar Stockholdersy, ;’*_"E{’ B2 ": \$"1 SN e e 1019°8 (3 16}
Weighted av erage basic shares 32,245 769 31,372.670" 30 699 457

Weighted average dilited Shares srbr - ouat ias i o R o e e i ey ) A5 780 £31,379.016-:30,699.3573
Sce accompanying notes to consolidated financial staternents.
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ISLE OF CAPRI CASINOS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS® EQUITY

(In theusands, except share amounts)

Accum.
{Mher
Shares of Additional . Comprehepsive _ Total
Common  Common  Paiddn  Retalned ‘Antame ‘Treasury Stockboldery'
Stock ‘Qluck CaEllnl I*.armng‘ {I_n“) Sluck lig' ulty

Net loss_ - = — (96 374) _ ‘f ,'; (968?4)

R cmuracls m:l‘ K
mol ]l'lLUﬂJk. tax K
_beiiefit of

Forengn
currency
translation
adjustments

C{Jmprchcnsnc, .

15 dosss_e”

Exercise of
stock
options,
including
income tax
benefit of

5977

Issvanceof " ¢

'défcfn?d s

hnnus sharcz

f‘mm truasu

smgk L

Purchase of

treasury

stock . — — — — — (I .:Ol) (1.3o1)
Fo L T I e 2 R T T E R I e N i SR 7651
Stock

compensation

expense — — 7,312 — — — 72
Bﬂ.l{lnccf ‘i Y LA e PRE b 0 %‘ 5".“1iﬁ1}1
-, April 27 o RN B g

2008 2 @ (5760137053 029)?“ 188,012

Nel incume
Unrcalxzed ]055 .

T (6,..55]

currency

iranslation

adjustments 3,335)
Comprehen:.wc, A "’.«ﬁ sl N N N SR 'f U
Laincdme? o 1 = il L R M S A 233,985

Exercisc of
__stock options
{3spanceof F 7
. (dcfem:d g '@
“bonts Shures




ofrom ueasurys-; A’
ok
Other I
isstiance ofa,_ o
[restictid. &7, " &
‘stock, nerof < <

-forfcsmreb"?r o 345.(}(\5 “,_:_,;.Sr :
Stock

compensation

cxpense

Bdi..ul(:r..

# contmct: nct-
ot mcomc la
- provision
55268355, 22
Deferred hedge
adjustroent
net of income
tax provision
or51,463

:,
e

ey g ___mmﬁ'-ﬁ(

PRI ' Z
-s, 1',% Ls,;c .,-1?""?’ S é:‘

’ i:ranslanon
adjustmcnls

Comprehensive

income
Exo..rmst. uf";"' ;-ﬁ
Exstock options:. ‘s I,60
[ssuance of

..h,

deferred

banus shares

trom treasury

stock — — 202 —
Other, = < o= JRNG ARG A ’—’"’fw‘—f—#:": ST
tssuance of

restricted

stock, net of

forfeltures

36,771,730 S 3678201,464 § 98,555 §  (B060)$(52,107) § 240,219

See accompanying notes 1o consolidated financial statements.
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ISLE OF CAPRI1 CASINOS, INC.
CONSOLIDATEDR STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(In thousands)

. Fiscal Year Ended
April 258, April 26,  April 27,

2010 29 } 2008
Operiting aetivitics? a2 o & & - i O N A SO S SN
Net income (loss) S (.: ’73)$ 4 375.8 (96,874)
‘Adusthents, ﬁcconc:le ‘et income (1095} 10 nucash provided by, opcmnng acnvmcs HRE . MR Sl
Depreciation and amortization 109,504 127,222 ) 136,127
A mDTtiZAtion Of JCleTTed INGRCITE COMS ik Lol Bt st 38382+ 2,470 50~ 2,700)
(Gain) loss on early cxungu:shment of debt Lo (57,693) 15,274
T o  Chopenty, IR e TECOvEr T R RO R T I o H T R e
— Expcme recoveries and ather charpes, net. o A0,762) 36,525 85,184
St = T Deferred incomne taxes F M. ......Ix‘;,n: Sofag e D e (453)_5132:350 (35, 194}
Stock cumpensanon cxpenqe 7,633 7,125 7312
ARSI Dl:fcm.d chmpensation N expense M g e r,,?;%‘_n_s PSS | K Cil;_'{'Sjﬁ_}_._"m
Lnss on derivative mstrumcmq 370 — 530
i3 T F Lasspain)on disposal of aSSets . awis e % AR N VAN (96}
Nnncnmmlllnulﬁcrcsl — — 4 gﬁq
Changes in‘operating assers:and HabilGes: g s T, el inge 4 Aot Wl o T o g o e o T
Sales (purchascs) oflmdm;, securmcs . . (3, T]S) 985 (1, 364)
"I'At.'\,ounts CEIVADIE e e F, B T 3273 a8 10,276} )
lncomc taxes reccivable (363)’_,__"’_9 91G 32,::6")
LR T, “nsurance receivable 52T 3 . ;mﬁ_m Cil e e % 304 5 5.486 WTE 393_[
Prepaid expenses and other assets . 4 ,546 8551 (1, 098)
5 : W wAccounqt:;Bayablo and accrued: ]mbllmcs B S T R m_*ﬁf (8 1575}, (1901 1) 10 41(])
Net cash provided by opcratm;, activities 106,382 190,610 133,357
LivEsting Activities- < 2 g .- w_-;.s,,_,,i.ﬂ,'*‘* T B R D s I P I r s ‘:5{'_‘___‘_';‘}
Purchase of pmpenv and equ:pmc.m ‘ ("‘7 690) (58 579) (190 459)
Propeny, i :mumncc TecOVeTitay i L R Ry S :‘15}:‘"3‘5_:*;. P i Gk ot A ge T
Payments towards gaming llcum, ) (4 000] (4 000) (4,000}
I\el cash paid foF acauisitions . £ 7 m* HEA a e TE AR AT ] (]07 895')
Proceeds from sales of asscts held for sale 6531 934 —
Restricied Cash oo s 208t ¥ PG o e LU G R Y e T et L s S TAT) o 65]
Other . — — (157}
Net cash tsed in MVESTING SCTVITIES 2! " ng Ao, Sh Bl i R i BTt o O3 (30,000 327867, (02,4467
I—mancmg acuvities;
Principal repayments on:long- term: dcbl R T IR TR IR 2 S(RT30) (127457}, .(697108)
Ncg{renaymcnls) borrmnngt on line of credll i s (91 358) [18484) (99 333},
Termimation payment relatiily 1o olhcn]ong-tem: hablhm.t., NN '—‘J}_(ll 353y, o}
Proceeds from lnnp. term debt bnrmwmg< — 875 ;000
Payment of defered ﬁnancmn costs*,r.,_r?r %e SRR W?ﬂﬁwm—“ %3 3 Vi e (8 88i)
Purchase of reasury stock — — ( 30!)
DS GIbation t0 RORCONrollifg INETST R L B e e ¢ 58 E\%ti‘féﬁﬁfa‘fﬁh;iw&i g e (12588)
Proceeds from exercise of stock opuons 204 119 5,747
1ot cash (uséd by) provided ] by, finaneing. Bl Vilios e Y gy Y L H(103,958)5(137,183)..2_72,514]
Effect of foreign currem:) e\changc r.ilcs on cash {19) (696) 251
Nt (decrease) ierease in cash and cash’ cqun-'aicms ,%M,:if@n@;"!% Ben o S(2R)585)55 " 48647 (96:324)
Cash and cash equivalents at begmnmg ofyca.r 96,634 91,790 188,114

Cashiand’cash cqnivalents "M énd o1, yearmw B T e e S 6806955 06,65415 - #.91:790)

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements,
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ISLE OF CAPRI CASINOS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{amounts in thousands, except share and per share amounts)
1. Organization

Orgam_a!mn—lsie of Capn Casinos, Inc., a Delaware corporatmn was lncurporalcd in February 1990. Except where otherwise noted, the words "we,"
"us,” "our™ and similar terms, as well as C()mpany, refer o Iske of C.lpl‘l Casmos Inc-and ali’ of jts subsidiaTies, We &t a lmdmb developer, owiter. and
operator of brarided gaming | facikitics and related Jodging and entertainment facilitics in markéts, thmnghout the United Sla:es Our wholly owned subsidiaries
own and operate thirteen casino gaming facilities in the United States located in Black Hauk Culomdo, Lake Charlcs Louts:;ma. Lula, Biloxi and Natchez,
Mississippi: Kansas City, Camthersville and Boonville, Missouri; Bcttendort Davenport, Walcr]oo and Marquetlc fowa; and’ Ponipano: Bcach Flond.a
Effective Jannary 27, 2008, we own 10{)% of oiir operations in Black Hawk, Colorado following the acquisition of ouif. minority partner's 43% interest in those
operations. Our international gaming inkerests included wholly awned casinos in Freeport, Grand Bahamas, Covcnuy, Dudley and Wolverhampton, England,
which are now classified as discontinued operations,

2. Summuary of Significant Accounting Palicies

bnlunces and trans.:chons have been eliminated. We view each pruputy as un vperating ségment and all such opcmtmg scgments ha\c been aggre;,a:ed into
one rcpomng -;egrnem

Discontinued operations include our formerly wholly owned casinos; in Dudley and Wolverhampton, En'g']an:d sold in November 2009: in Freeport:
Grand Bahamas exited in Novemher 2009; and in Coventry, England sold in April 2009,

Fixcal Year-£End—Our fiscal year ends on the last Sunday in April. Periodically, this system nccessitates a 53-week year. Fiscal years 2010, 2009 and
2008 are-all 32-week years, which commenced on'April 27, 2009, April 28, 2008, and April 30, 2007, respectively.

Reclassificarions—Cenain reclassifications of prior vear presentations have been made 10 conforim ©'fiscal 2010 presenation,

Use of Estimates-—The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting pnnc:pl:.s generally accepted in the United States requires
management 10 make estimates and assumptions that affect the'amounts reported in the financial statéments and accompanying notes. Actual results could
differ from thosc esiimates,

Cash and Cavh Equivalenis—We consider all highly liquid investments purchased with an original matyrity of three months or less as cash equivalents.
Cash also inciudes the minimum operating cash balonces required by state regulutory budn.s which totaled $20,846 und 522,507 at April 23, 2010 and
April:26, 2009, respectively.

Marketable Securities—Marketable securities consist prisharily of trading securities primarily héld by Capri Insurance Corporation, oir captive insurance
subsidiary. The trading securities we primarily debt and equity secwrities that'are purchased with-the intention:to rescll in the near term. The trading securilies

are carried a1 fair value with changes in fair value recognized in current period income in the accompanying siatements of operations.
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ISLE OF CAPRI CASINOS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {Continued)
(amounts in thousands, except share and per share amouits)

2, Summary of Significant Accounting Policles (Continued)

Inventories—Unventories are stated a1 the lower of weighted average cost or market value.

Properiy and Equipmeni—Property and equipment are stated at cost or if acquired through acquisition, the valze as determined under purchase
accountmg Assets subject to Impairment write downs are recorded at the lower of net book value or fair value, We capitalize the cost of purchases of property
and equipment and caplmllze the cost uflmpm‘- EMeALs to praperny and equipment thal increases the value or extends the useful lives of the assets, Costs of

normal repairs and maintenance are charged w expense as incwred.

Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the following estimated vseful lives of the assets:

Ycars
Slot machincs ssoftwareand camputers e it ofTm. e S350 T4 v VA
I-urmmm fixtures and eqmpmenl . .. 5.0
e

e 'Lc sscr of life of leasc or.

: i "’ff_,,_‘(.sﬂmdlt:d ubeful Im.
Buildings and improvements ] © 78395
Certain propenty currently leased in Betendarf, lowa and property tormerly Jeased in Coventry, Englind, prior to the termination of such lease, are
accounted for in accordance with Accounting Standards Codification ("ASC") Topic 840, Leases ("ASC 840").

Leaschold lmproumm(s, E

Py ™ W iT LR .L*

LIS

Cupitalized Interest—The interest cost associated with major development and constructjon projects is capitaiizrd and included in the cost of the project.
When no debt is incurred specifically for a project, interest is capitalized on amGunts expcnded on'the project using the weighted-average cost of our
owstanding borrowings. Capitalization of interest ceases when the project is substantially complete or developrment activity is suspended for more than a briel
period. Capitalized interest was $75, 81,018, and 83,333 for fiscal years 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively; including capitalized interest relating to our

‘discontinued operations of $943 for fiscal 2008. '

Operating Leasex—We recognize rent expense for each lease on the straight linc basis, apgregating ail future minimum rent payments including any
predetermined fixed escalations of the minimum rentals, Our liabilities include the aggregate difference between rent expense recorded onthe straight-line
‘basis and amounts paid under the leases.

Restricied Cavh—We classify cash that is either statutorily or contractually restricted as to its withdrawal or usage as a long term asset due 10 the
duration of the underlying resiriction. Restricted cash primarily includes amounts related 1o state tax bonds and other gaming bonds, and amounts held in
escrow related to leases,

Goodwill and Other Intungible Assets—Goodwil] represents the excess of the cost over the net identfiuble tangible and intangible assets of acquired
busincsses and is stated at cost, net of impairments, if any. Other intangible assets include values atributable 10 acquired gaming licenses, custamer lists, and
trademarks. ASC “Topic 350, Ltangibles—Goodwill and Other ("ASC 350"} requires these assets be reviewed Tor impairment at lcast annually or on an
interim basis if indicators of '

Lh
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ISLE OF CAPR] CASINOS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cuntinued)
(amounts in thousands, except share and per share amounts)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policics (Continued)

impairment exist. We perform our annual impairment test during our fourth quarter. Goodwill for relevant reporting units is tested for impairment using a
discounted cash flow analysis based on forecasted future results discounted using our weightcd average cost of chpital and hy using a market approach based

upoh valuation mulupleq for similar companies. For intangible assets with indefinite lives not subject to amortization, we review, at jeast annually, the
continued use of an indefinite useful life: If these intangible assets are determined to havie o finite. useful ]lfe they are amoftized dver their estimated
remaining useful lives.

Long-Lived Assers—We periodically evaluate the casrying value of long-lived assets to be held and used in accordanee with ASC Tapic 360, Property,
Plant and Equipment ("ASC 360"} which requires impairment losses to be recorded on lon{;-lived assets used in operations.when inaicamrs; of impairment are
present and the undiscounted cash flows estimated to be generated by those assets are less than the assets’ carrying amounts. In that event, a foss is recognized
based on the amount by which the carrving amount exceeds the fair market value of the long-lived assets..

Deferred Financing Costs—The costs of issuing long-term debt are capitalized and amonized using the effective interest method over the term of the-
related debt.

Self-insurance—We are sclf-funded up to a maxinrum amount per claim for employee-retated health care benefits, warkers' compensation and general
liabilities. Claims i excess of this maximum are filly. insured through a stop-losy insurance policy. We accrue for workérs' contpensation and genersl
liabilities on a discounted basis based on claims filed and estimates of claims incurred but not reported. The estimates have been discounted at 2.0% and 4.1%
at April 25; 2010 and April 26, 2009, respectively. We wtilize independent consultants to assist in the determination of cstimated liabitities. As of April 25,
2010 and April 26, 2009, our employee-related health care benefits programand discounted workers' compénsation and general lizbilities for unpaid and
ingirred but not reported claims are $32,739 and §29,001, respectively and afe included in Accrued:liabilities—payroll and related for health care benefits and
workers' compensation liabilitics and in Accrued Habilities—other for guneml liability in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. While the total cost
of claims incurred depends on future developments, in management's apinion, recorded reserves afe adequite to cover fiture claims paymenis.

-Derivative Instruments and Hedgmg Avtiviries—ASC Topic 813, Derivatives and Hedging ("ASC 815") requires we recognize all of our derivative
instruments as either assets or habilities in the consolidated balance sheet at fair value and djsclose certain qualitative and quantitative mformanon We utilize
derivative fmancla! mnstriments to manage interest rate risk associated with a portion of our variable rate borrowings. Derivative financial instruments arc
intended 15 reduce our exposure to interest sate volaility. We account for changes in the tair value of a derivative instrument depcndmg on the intended nse of
the derivative and the resulting designation, which is established at thic inception of a derivative. ASC 815 requires thata company fornally décument, ai the
inceplion of & hedge, the hedging relationship and the entity's risk management ohjective and strategy for undertaking the hedge, including identification of
the hedging insirument, the hedged item or transaction, the nature of the risk:being hedged, the method used to fssess effectiveness and the method that will
be used to measure hedge ineffectiveness of derivative instruments that receive hedge accounting treatment. For derivative instniments designated as cash
flow hedges, changes in fair value, to the extent the hedge is effective,
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ISLE OF CAPRI CASINOS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
(amounts in thousands, except share and per share amounts)

2. Summary of Significant Aecounting Policies (Continued)

are recognized in other comprehensive income until the hedged item is recognized in ca}nirngs and ineffective hedges are recognized s other income or loss
below operating income. Hedge effectiveness is assessed quarterly. .

Revenue Recognition—In accordance with gaming industry practice, we recognize casing feveiiues ws the net win from geming activities. Cosino
revenues are net of accruals for anticipated payouis of progressive slot jackpots and certain table games wheréin incremental jackpot amounts owed are
accrued for games in which certain wagers add to the jackpot total. Revenues from rooms, food, beverage, entertainment and the gif shop are recognized at
the time the related service or sale is pérformed 6r fealized.

Promotional Allowances—The réil value of rooms, food and beverage and other services turnished to guésts | without charge is included in gross
revenues and then deducted as promotional allgwances 10 arrive at Jiet revenues included in the accompanying consolida:ed statement of operations. We also
record the rederaption of coupons and points for cash as a promouonal a]lov. ance! The t_sumatcd cost of providing such compllmcnmry services from
continting operations are included in casine expense in the accompanying consolidated staterents of.opc_ratmns are as follows:

Fiscal Year Ended
April 25, Aprit 26, April 27,

o ) 2008 2009 7008
Roomé - e LT g 1953308 178,830 Sk _10,366]
Food zuld bcverage 57 796 . 37 251 58,511
Otherz. ot ™ o e i B3 e 54 e iz 383
Taotal cost ofcomphmemary services 3 68162 8§ 66,6155 69522

Players Club Awardsi—We provide patrons with rewards based on thie dollar amouny of play 6f casine games. A liability has been established based on
an estimate of the value of these outstanding rewards, uilizing the age and prior Bistory of réderiiptions,

Adfvertiving—Advertising costs are expensed the first time the related advertisement appears.: “Total advertising cosss, including direct mail costs, from
continuing operations were $32,981, $27,496, and $29,143 in fiscal years 201 0, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

Developmenr Cosis—We pursue development opportunities for new gaming fucilities in an ongoing effort to expand our business. In accordance with
ASC Topic 720, Other Expenses ("ASC 720), costs related to projecss in the development stage are recorded as a development expense, except for those cosis
capitalized in accordance with the guidance of ASC 720. Capitalized devc.lupmcnl costs are e!{pcn:,cd when the dc.ve]opmcm is decmed less than probable.
Total development costs expensed from continuing operations were recorded-in the consolidated statements of operations in corporate and development

¢Xpenses.

Pre-Opening Costs—We expense pre-opening costs as incwrred. Pre-opening costs include payroll, outside services, advertising, insurance, utilities,
travel and various other expenscs related to new operations. All such costs are recorded in the consolidated siatements of operations in pre-opening.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Pre-opening expenses from continutng operations in our consolidated financial statements were incurred in connection with the opening of Waterloo in fiscal
2008.

Income Taves—We account for incume taxes iy dccordance ASC Topic 740, Income Taxes ("TASC 7307). ASC 740 requires the recoghition of deferred
income tax assets, net of valuation allowances related to net operating loss carry forwards and certain temporary differences. Recognizable futiire 1ax benefits
are subject to a vatuation reserve, unless such tax benefits are determined to'be more likely than not redlizable: We recognize accrzed interest and penaliies
related to unrecognized tax benefits in income tax expense. ’

Earnings (Loss) Per Common Share—In accordance with the guidance of ASC 260, Earnings Per Share ("ASC 260"), basic carnings '(ioss) per share
("EPS") is computed by dividing net incore (loss) applicable to common stock by the.weighted average conunon shares omstanding durmg ‘the period.
Diluted EPS reflects the additional dilution for all potentially difutive sceurities such as stock dptions. Any options with an excrcise price in‘excess of the
average market price of our common stock during the periods presented are not considered when calculating the dilutive effect of siock options for diluted
earnings per share calculations.

Stock Compensation—Our stock compensation is acvounted for in accordance with ASC Topie Tt 8, Compensation-—Stock Compensation ("ASC 718").
Stock compensation cost is measured at the grant date, based on the estimated fir valoe ot the award and is recognized as expense on a straight-line basis
over the requisite service period for each separately vesting portion of the award as if thé award was,'in-sobstance, muhipte awards,

-Fureign Currency Translarion—We account for currency translation in accordance with ASC Topic 830, Foreign Currency Matters ("ASC 830"). Assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into U.S. dollars at the exchange rate in effect at each balance sheet date. Statement of
operatiods accounts are translated monthly at the average rate of exchange prevailing during the period. Translation adjustments resulting from this process
are included in stockholders' equity-as ‘tccumu]a:cd other comprehensive (loss) income. The cumitlative loss from foreign currency translation included in
other comiprehensive Joss is ($133) and ($359) as of April 25, 2010 and April 26, 2009, mspe_clwe_]y Losses ffom forcign currency transactions dre inciuded
in income (los3) from discontinued operations and were $0, ($2) and {$356) in fiscal years 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

Allowance for Doubifil Accounis—We reserve for receivables that may not be collected. Methedologies for estimating the allowance for doubtful
accounts range from specific reserves to various percentages applied 10 aged receivables. Historical collection rates are considered, as are customer

relationships, in determining specific rescives.

Fair Value Measurements—We follow the guidance of ASC Topic 820, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures ("*ASC 820") for our financial assets
and liabilities including marketable securities and derivative instruments. ASC 820 provides a framewaork for measuring the fiir value of financial assets

55




Table of Contents

ISLE OF CAPRICASINOS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED l-lNAh(’ML STATEMENTS (Continued)
{amounis in thousands, excepl share and per share amounts)

2, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

and liabilitics. A description of the vatuation methodologics used to measure fair value, key inputs, and significant assumptions follows:

Marketahle securities— The estimated fair values of our marketable securities are based upon quoted prices available in active markets and
represent the amounts we would expect to receive if we sold these marketable securities,

Derivative instrumenty— The estimated fair value of our derivative instruments is based on market prices obtained from dealer quotes, which are
based on interest yield curves and such quotes represent the estimated smounts we wonld receive or pay, to terminate the contracis.

Subsequent Events—The Company cvalusted all subsequent events throngh the date the consolidated financial statements were issued. (See Note 21).

Recenily Ivsued Accounting Standards—New Pronouncements—In June 2009; the Finaheizl Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued Siatement of
Financial Accounting Stndard ("SFAS™) No. 168, "The FASB Accouming Standareds C()th_)‘zcalr(mr“ and the' H:er.lrchy of Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles—a replacement of FASB Statemem No. 162", which identifies the sources of accounting principles and the framework for selecting the principles
used in thé preparation of financial statemenis of fongovemmental entities ihdt afe firésentéd’in conforniity with GAAP if the Uniited States {the GAAP
hierarchy). SFAS 168 established the FASB dcconnting Standards thf"canunn’ a5 the souree of authoritative accounting principles recognized by the
FASH to be applicd by nongovermment] entities in-the preparstion of financial statements in canformity with GAAP. SFAS 168 is cffective for most
financial statements issued for interim and annuai periods ending after September 15, 2009, The adopuon of this gmdancc has changed how we reference
various elements of GAAP when preparing our financial statement disclosures, but did niot liave in impact oo our cortsolld.stcd financial stztements.

In'December 2007, the FASB issned SFAS No. 160, "Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial Statements—An Amendment of ARR No. 51"
("SFAS 1607) which was codified primarily in ASC Topic 803, Business Combmatmns ("ASC 805" ) SFAS 16{] changes the accounting for noncontrolling
(minority) interests in consolidated financial statements, requires noncontrolling interests to he reporiad as part of equity and changes the inicome statement
presentation nt'mcgme or losses attributable to the nonconirolling intercsts. We adopted SFAS 160 as of April 27, 2009, as required. The adoption of
SFAS 160 did not have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements,

3. Discontinned Operations

Discontinued aperations include our former casinos: Dudley and Wuiv&hamptma, England ("Blue Chip") sold in November 2009, Freeport, Grand
Bahamas exited in November 2009: and Coventry, England sold in April 2009.
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‘The results of our discontinued operations are surmmarized as follows:

Discontinued Operatons
Fiscal Year Ended
April 25, Aprii 26,  April 27,
2010 2009 Ims
PR R DR R ¥ NSRS $37:406/5:27,628°5_33:207)
Valuation chargc‘i — (1,400} (73 653) )

Pre1ay’ (hss) gain.on sale .of discontined’ opgratmncﬁ_,é_m RS (6I7) 12,016) 5 a2

Pretax (Iuss income-frum discontinued omrdlxuus L {-,-98) (77 543) (103 138)
Incorme, 18X “benefit’ (prowa.lon} from dlscommmd opcmllons s S ARG 0,887 0l 90”]
[ncome (1055) from discontinued operdt:uns (1,732 17, 638) (59,2 36)

During fiscal 2010, we completed the sale of our Blue Chip casino pioperties under a pl.m of administration and have no ‘continuing involvement in its .
operation. The asscts and liabilities held for sale in our April 26, 2009 balanee sheet were sold as'a part of this adniinistrative process. The sale of our Blue
Chip assets resulted in a pretax charge of $617 recorded in fiscal 2010. The admm;s!ranon process is expected to be completed during fiscal 201 1.

Puring fiseal 2009, we recorded a pretax charge of $1,400 1o reduce.oui Blue Chip assets held for sale to their estimyated fair value less the cost to scll
and we completed the sale of our assets and terminated our lease in the Arena Coventry Convention Center relating to our.casino operations in Coventry,
England. Our lease terminatien tosis and ather expenses, net of cash proceeds from our assets sales, resulted in a pretax charge of $12,016 recorded in fiscal
2009. :

.During fiscal 2008, we recorded impairment charges at our United Kingdom ("UK") propertics based upon a review of expected fumre operating trends
and the current fair value of our long-lived assets, The current fair values used'in our determination of the impairmerit charge were based upon a third party
appraijsal, a review of historical costs and other relevant information.

“Net inierest income (expensé) of $8, (§1,972), and ($1,907) for fiscal years 2010, 2009, and 2008, sespectively, hus been allocated ta discontinned
operations. Interest expense allocated 1o our former international operations was based upon long term debt and other Jong-term obligations specific 10 such
operations as these cntities are not guaraniors under our semior secured credit facility.

d. Acguisitions

Aequisition of Minority interest in Black Hawk, Colerado Operations—During Janvary 2009, we finalized our purchase accounting for our Janvary 2008
aequisition of the 43% minority membership interest in our Black Hawk, Colorudo Quhcldhmcs During Jamary 2008, a preliminary allocation of the $64,800
purchase price, mecluding wansaction costs and afler consideration of mmom) interest of $29, 219, was made by us based upon the esuma:ed fair vahze of the
purchased assets and assumed labilities. This preliminary purchase price allocation resulted in values being assigned of 514,000 to property and equipment,
$10,600 1o othe intangible assets and $10,381 10 goodwill. After completion of third party viluations of the assets acquired, the final prrehase price
sllocation incleded a $8,331 reduction in the acquired historical cost basis in propenty and final allocation amounts of $20,855 for
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4. Acquisitions (Confinued)
intangible assets, $411 for other liabilitics and $22,868 in goodwill. The intangible assets included S‘_’,O’l of trademarks and 4,257 related to our gaming
licenses bath with indefinite ths as well as $14,577 relating to customers lists with a 4 year life. Goodw in - resulting from aur acquisition of this minority
imierest is deduciible. for wx purposes. We accounied for the purchase using the purchase method of acconnting in aceordance with ASC R05.
5. Praperty and Equii;menl, Net

Property and equipment, net consists of the following:

-April 25, April 26,
2010 ] 2009
Pronerty and CauTPIO » 20 Gg, T o o 3 Pt I el g R ad
Land and land :mprmcmcnts . S 159 442 S 159,574
[Ceasihold improvements, v - . o o=, Sore 5 - 135356 . 333.7621
Buildings and improvements .. 646_81 | £49,020
IRlvubmi'; and ﬂoaum, pavilionsw! % “’W EE fai\n G 144, 470, > ’14‘2,7—-}
Furniture, f'murcs and cqmpmem "0‘3 177 516,523
Cnn;trucunn iin progress "12-1 T Vg '*5’*"5 S 453 B -7,_'1- 537,
Total prnperw and cqmpmem ~ 1, 805 314 1,813, 131
r_uas ar.:cumulan.d dcpn:ualmn amd’ -mmmzaucm B 0‘06 812) g‘:‘;‘(ﬁaﬁ n‘)l)
Propenty and equipment, net’ i S 1098942 § 1,177,540

6. Intangible Asscets and Guodwill

intzngible asscts consist of the following:

Aqpwit 25, 2010 April 26, 2009 .
Gross Net Gross Net
Carrying Accumnutated Carrying Carrving Accumulated Carrying
Amaunt -\.momrulmn Amnint  Amount Amortization Amount

FRAeT eIV ed ARSeIS s o Lo Bl ¥ 7 o Bt ST & g a1
Gaming licenses 366,126 S - $06126560,126 S — 366 126
Trademarksaed £ 2 on L At AT h e T A9 AT 4 L Tt T 140}

Intangible assets—subject to
ama_rli?.nﬁt_)n - ]
Crctomier Nets mb e e 1 M SR AE i og i ) F1 5 08 e a0 1) 10,31 3%
Total S88.659 § (8,084)879,675 588,650 S (5,071)583.588

Cur indefinite-lived intangible assets consist primarily of gaming licenses and trademarks for.whith it is redsonably assured that we will continue 1o
renew indefinitely. Our finite-lived assets consist of customer lists amortized over 3 o 4 years. The weighted average remaining life of our other intangible
assels subject to amortization 1s approximaiely 1.7 years.
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We recordcd amortization expense of $3,913, $4.624, and 5549 for our intangible assets subject 10 amortization related to our conunumg operations for
" the fiseal years ended 2010, 2009, and 2008, respectively.

Future amortization expense of our amorizable imangible assets is as follows:

5 RS 033666,
2,734.

Total, 28 e g 2 oot RGSEIRE ST - 6400}

A roll forward of goodwill is as follows:

April 25, April 26,
2010 _ 2009

Ay ey e ’. e T = .
‘Baldnce beginning of p::rlodi FLLE s 2 5313;136.8 3_07,6519_]
Acquisition ofmmnrnv interest in Hf.u.k H'awk Cnlnmdn onerations o et jl_2_,487
Impairment __ N T ARy B T AT T e 1(7,000)
Balance, end of pcriod $313]136'3 313,136
_——— e—————y

Druring fiscal 2009, we recorded a pretax iropairnxent charge of §7,000 for goodwill related to our Black Hawk, Colerado property.
7.-Expense Recoveries and Other Charges, net
We recorded pretax expense recoveries and other charges from mminu‘if'ng aperations as follows;

Fiseal 2010—W¢ recorded an expense recovery of $6,762 representing the discounted value of a receivable for reimbursement of development costs
expended in prior periods relating to a terminated plan 1o develop a casino in Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania. This receivable was recorded following a revised
assessment of collectability.

Fiveal 2009—An impairment charge of $18,269 was recorded at our Black Hawk, Colorado property as a result of our annual impairment test required
under ASC 350. The Black Hawk impairnrent charge included 57,000, £7,072 and 34,197 related to gOOdWl“ trademarks and gaming licenses, respectively.
Fair values were determined vsing methods as follows: discounted cash flow and multiples of earnings for goodwill, rélict from royalty. method for
trademarks: and the cost approach for the gaming license. The impairment was a result of decreased operating performance caused by.a smoking ban which
became effective in January, 2009 and declines in the economy resulting.in lower market valaation multiples for gaming assets and higher discount rates,

Following our decision not 1o complete our construction plan as originally designed fur our Biloxi property, we recorded a valuation charsze of $11,856 10
, constniction in progress.

Following our termination of an agreement {or a putential development of a casino project in Portland Qregan, we recorded a 56,000 charge consisting of
-a non-cash write-oft of $5,000 representing
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7. Expense Recoverics and Other Charpes, net (Continned)

our rights under a land option and $1,000 termination fee. Under the terms of the agreement, we retain ccitain rights but no continuing obligations with regard
o this development project.

Fiscal 2008—We recorded valviation charges of $6,326 felated 1o the termination of the Compani’s plang'to develop a new casing in west Harrisan
County, Mississippi and the cancellation of construction projects in Davenpont, lowa and Kansas City, Missouri.

8. Long-Term Debt

Long-term debt consists of the following:

Aprit2s,  April 26,
.- - 2010 2009

‘Senior. Secired Credit Facility g%, A RN e e L F e
July 2007 Credit Facility: - )
Ri mh.mg, line of “credi, EXpires- smy "6 70!” mtere“.\ pa‘_.uble at .
“Jenst quartérly, at either, EIBOR' and/m pnme Plustaimarging s - e
Variable rate term loans, mature November.25, 2013 » principal and

interest paymenis due quarterly ut either LIBOR andlur prime

plus g margm

Semor Subardﬁi'atml Natcs . 4 :
7% Senior Subordinated Notes, interest- payablc semi- annua]]y )
\larch 1 and Seplembcr 1 - . -357,273. 357273

AT ""%FW T O O L e e S algaR (I 6l146]
15200,889 1,301,072
CL Ir 2 il iy g U Th B.758. 3 9,688!
Long-term'debt $1,192,135 81,291,384
Credit Facility, ax amended—The Credit Facility as amended ("Credit Facility") consists of 2-$373,000 revolving line of credit and 2 $873,000 term
loun. The Credit Facility is secured on a first pHority basis by substantially all of our assets and guaranteed by all of our significant domestic subsidiaries.

D L1
o

Our Credit Facility was amended on February 17, 2010 The amendiuent, among other things, {1) modified the leverage satio and interest coverage ratio
to provide lor greater flexibility throngh April 30, 2012, aftef which date the ratios return 1o the original levels as outlined in the Credit Facility; (2) reduced
the capacity of the revolving line of credit by $100,060 to $375,000: (3) increaSed the intercst rate of both the revolving line of credit and term loan portions
to LIBOR + 3.00% with a LIBOR floor of 2.00%: and ('4) allows us 10 issue senior unsecured notes, provided the procccds are used 10 repay the 1erm loan
under the Credit Facility. A5 a result of the amendment, we incarred a charge of approximately $2,143 related to fees and the write-off of certain unamontized
deferred itnancing costs, of which approximately 5309 was non-cash and recorded deferred financing costs of $3,874.
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Our net line of credit availability at April 25, 2010 ss limited by our maximum leverage covenant was approximately $109,000, afier consideration of
$20,449 in mnsmndmg letiers of eredit. We have an annual commitment fee related to the unused portion of the Credit Facility of up to 0.75% which is
included in Interest expense in the accompanying consolidated statements of aperations. The weighted average effective interest rates of the Credit Facility for
the fiscal years 2010 and 2009 were 4.83%, and 5.33%, respectively.

The Credit Facility includes a number of affirmative and negative covenants. Addittonally, we must comply with certain financial covenants including
maintenance of a leverage ratio and minimum interest coverage ratio, The Credit Facility also restricts our ability to make certain investments or disiributions.
We are in compliance with the covenants as of April 23, 2010.

7% Senior Subordinated Notes—During 2004, we issucd $500,000 of-7% Scnior Subordinated Notes duc 2014 ("7% Senior Subordinated Notes™). The
% Senior Subordinated Notes are guaraniced, on a Jaint and severn] basis, by all of our significant domesuc subsidiaries and certain other subsidiaries as
dcscnbcd in Note §8, All of the guarantor subsidiaTics are wholly owncd by s, The 7% Senior Subordinated Notes are general unscéured obligations and
rank junior to all of our senior indebtedness. The 7% Scniar Subordinated Notes are redecrnable, in whale or in part, at our opmm at any time on or after
Mareh 1, 2009, with cull premivms as defined in the mdt.,nmre governing the: 7% Senior Stbordinated Notes.

The indenture governing the 7% Senior Subordinated Notes limits, among other things, our ability and our restricted subsidiaries ability to borrow
money, make resticted payments, use agsets as security in other transactions, enter into transactions with atfiliates, pay dividends. or repurchase stock. The
indenture also limits our ability to issue and self capital stock of subsidiaries, sell asscts in excess of specified amounts o merge with or into other companices.

Gain (Loss) on Early Extinguiskment of Deht—During Febraary 2009, we retired $142; 725 of the 7% Senior Subordinated Notes, thrnugh a tender offer,
for $82,773 flom our available Cash and cash equivalents. Afier expenses rehtcd 10 the’ elm:undt:on of deferred finance costs and transactions costs, we
recognized = pretax gain of $57,892 during fiscal 2009. Dunng March 2009, we rcpznd $35,000 of our term loans under our Credit Facility resulting in a loss
un early extinguishment of "debt of 5199 due 10 ibe write-oi¥ of deferred financing cost.

During fiscal 2008, we recorded a toral of $15,274 in losses associated with the redemption of $200,000 of 9% Senior Subaordinated Notes refinanced by
our Credit Facility and the replacement of ouf previous credit facility with the Credit Facility and the early extinguishment of other debt instruments, i
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Future Principal Payments of Long-term Dehi—The agpregate principal paymenis due on long-term debt as of April 25, 2010 over the next five years
and thereafier, are as follows:

FiscalsYears Ending:
2001

2017 2a e T

30,284
o Y T s 11149, 755
2015 7 - 4
T T R T S AR S P IO ST RN TR
Total ‘S 1,200,839

9. Other Long-Term Obligations

Quad Cities Waterfront Convention Center—We entered iiito agreernents with the City. of Bettendorf, lows under which the City construcied a
convcnnon center which opened in January 2009, adjt](:t'nl 10 our hotel‘We Jease, manage, and provide financial and operating support for the convention
center. The Company was deemed, for accounting purposes only, to be-the owner of the.convention center, during the construction’ pcnod Upon completion of
the convention center we were precluded from accounting for the transaciion as A snle and leaseback due to our continving invelvement. Therefore, we are
acceunting for the transaction using the direct financing method. As oprnl 75, 010 and April-26, 2009; we have recorded in other long-term abligations
817,166 and $17,314, respectively, related to our liability under ASC 840 related 10 the convention center. Under the terms of our agreements for the
convention center, we have guarantecd certain obligations related to $13,815 of notes issued by the City of Bettendorf, lowa for the convention center.

The other long ierm obligation will be reflected in our consolidated balance qheels until completion of the lease term, at which time the related fixed
assets, net of actumulited depreciation, will be removed from our LOH\O]]dd!t‘.’(l fifancial statements and the net remaining obligation over the net carrying

valie of the fixed asset will be recognized as a gain (loss) on sale of the fac1l|ty

Futre minimum payments due under other long-term obligations, inchuding interest, as of April 23, 2010 as follows:

Fiscal Y eart Endings 1t B f yaee BTy S iy e - u:s; AR
2011 1,100

2013, Zk e E .iq&hhh“&?wﬂ”‘%”’”rl L {W _‘,1 IOG_J

2013 l 100
2014z e G ST N N 367
20015 s 1,600
Thereatter =55 ¥8af Srr NS Bt MY S, WEhy v'tg-:’ e T 17 ‘36;5
Total minimum puymcnls s . 23,703
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Earnings per Share of Common Stoek—The tollowing table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted eamings (inss) per share (in thousands, except
share and per share amounts):

Fiscal Year Koded
Apri) 25, April 26, April 27,
2016 2009 2008

Numcrnmrv ; ;
lncomc {loss) a apphcablc lo comman  shares:
L N 1, SEL 7 _"Lm‘ome (lus;) from cnnnnumg oeralJom%{ntmbmahlel

Tty wr” common sibekholdersae 5 et L HS 5 (L 1638

Loss from discontinued operations: 1 ‘]3") {l? 658) (59 36)

RTINS (Eoss} 2ty buEble 10, the Common S\Uckhnld::s' 5 A 5@‘" ; R =1 (327384357508 (96, 874}
Dcnommmor

N R ’;Eitl)enomlmtor RALGE. far bas:c eammgs (lo:,:,) pen \harc— c:;,htcd Yt e T 8 j

s ey BETshianes A AN R R YLy 31‘372,61@_‘30 6952455

Lifect ofdjlumc sccurmcs

L S

SRR AT R A Al G Emplayee PN AR (I
Denoininator for diluted carnings (loss) per. share—dd}usled

weighted average shares and assumed conv eisions’ 32,‘245769 31,379,016 30.699,4'5?
Basic earnings {loss) per, share AUAbUADIE 1o comimon stnLLho!dcr*;‘g}""“ T T S —J
Income (loss) from continuing op;:[glmne 3 (0058 19558 {1.24 ‘)4}
t—--— F ety o8 pLoss trom) d:smnlmucd ‘dpérationszs LTI T J'(O_.Qj)‘s,ﬁ:‘ S036)° (1.9
Net income {Joss) attributable to common stockholders {0.10)8 1.39°% (3.16)
Dilited carfipgs (10§5) per.shate anributable 13 Comign Sk holder:. R T T S e

Income flms) from COntmumg opuauons (0.05)3 1.95 $ (1.24)
[____,_,,.__ Sl o B liassHrom diScontinied perations ¢ g g ei. : v E (0.05). M{036). . (I 9")
Net income {loss) attrihuiable to commeon stockholders $ {(0.10)% 1.39% (3.16)

Due 1o the loss from continuing operations, stock aptions representing 116,51 1 shares, which are potentially dilutive, and 495,474 sharcs, which are anti:
dilntive, were excluded from the caleulation of comsmon shares for dilwted earnings {loss) per share for fiscal 2010. Stock options representing 1,520,040 and
3,872,513 shares, which were antidilutive, were excluded:from the calculatiﬁn of"common shares for diluted earnings (loss) per share for fiscal 2009 and
2008, respectively. ’

Stock Bused Compensarion—Ulader our amended and restated Leng Term Lncentive Plan, we have issued stock options and restricted stock.

Stock Oprinns—We have issped incentive siock options and nonqualified stock options which have a maximum term of 10 years and are, generally,
exercisable in yearly insiallments of 20% commencing
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onc year after the date of grant. During fiscal 2010,-our estimate of forfeitures increased to 12%. The'impact of these changes in estimated forfeimres
decreased expense by $737 and was recorded as a cumalative adjustment in-the consolidated statements nfopcra:_inns for fiscal 2010.

The tair value 6f euch option grant is estimated on the date of the grant us‘i.ng the Biack-Scholes-Merten option-pricing model with the rmangé of
assumptions disclosed in the following table:

. Fiscal Year Ended
“April 18, April 26, April 27,

2010 2009 1008
Weiphied averape cxpected voltiilye % 257 <5 o5 i67.86% 4 42,209 " 43,0290
Expecied dividend yield. , 0.00%  0.00% _ 0.00%

Weirhted average expected torm (in years)._z 'ﬁM . 679]
Wc:ghled averge risk-free interést rate 3. 50% 3.94%
Wc:ghted average faif.value of options pranted: AN {55%7153 2 ‘§S‘ 357 ]
Weighted average volatility is caleulated using the historical volutility of our siock price over a range of dates equal to the expected term of a grant's
options. The weighted average expected term is calculated using historical data that is rcprescnwme oi'the option for which the fair value is 10 be determined.
The expected term represents the period of time that options granied are expected to be outstanding. The weighted average risk-free rate is based on the U.S.

Treaswry yiéld ciirve in effect at the time of the grani for the approximate period of time cquivalent to the grant's cxpected term.-

Tender Offer—On October 7, 2008, we completed a tender offer whereby certain cmplnyeca and directors exchanged 2,067,201 of then outstanding
stock options for 293,760 shares of restricted common stock and the payanI of 155 in Cush to eligible panticipants in accordance with the terms of the
tender offer. Restricted shares issued as part of the tender offer vest three years from the date of issuance. Puring fiscal 2010, our estimate of forfeitures
decreased from 20.8% to 7.7%. The impact of these ¢changes i estimated forfeitires increased expense by $384 and was recorded as a cumulative adjustment
in the consolidated statements of operations for fiscal 2010.

Restricted Stock—We issue shares of restricted commaon stock to employees and directors under our Long Term Incentive Plan. Restricted stock awarded
to employees vests onc-third on each-anniversary of the grant date and for directars vests-one-half on the grunt date and one-half on the first anniversary of the
grant date. Our estimate of forfeitures for restiicted stock for employees and directors is 10% and 0%, respectively.

Stack Campensation Expense—Ytotal stock compensation expense from conlinving operations in the accompanying consolidaled statements of operations
was $7,628, 573103, and $7,263 for the fiscal years 2010, 2009, and 2008, regpectively. We recognize compensation expense for these awards on a straight-

line basis over the requisite service period for each separately vesling portion of the award.
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Activity Under Qur Share Baved Plans—A summary of restricted stock and option activity for fiscal 2010 is presented below:

Wrelghted Weighted
 Average Avernge
Restricted Grant-Date Excrcise
e ] QIock “Fair Value Uglmm Price
Outsianding at ART 26, 20005 = L. S0t ahotars T Loy 58 761,530%5 S #% 55551 K14520,0407 /85 1230]
Gramed : . 647 861 2. 63 00, 000 . 1125
Fxf_n_:,ger[ g :2 "]‘ 5‘ e :,%.1!?"" Lk s &v"in‘ L(-)l 6(Y1)» \,-9@
Vested S = e (306 700) 700 —
Forfeited and expirede. ! 2 P iy e ke oe oo ﬁ%‘wﬁ LT e e (163:253), % 20,04
Ouwstanding a1 Aprii 25, 2010 . 1,078,717 9.35' 1435185 §- 11.29
RS of April 250201012 Y T T R ERR L R gy TR e LN
Outsmndmg cxcrc:sabic opllons . nfa. 760,385 S 13.36

'Weighted average remaining c.omraclual tefmy B b o d Reh o S el yenrs, i ol L n w618 yearsz . e

5]
Aggregmc inurinsic value:

SRR o i et gy S
_Outstanding Exeroisable o, T e e g - ERTR OSSN
utsgandin, . . . 35 : 3
) di R - 9.3% 3 184
T * T Al 1 ¥ : RS v
LNun\.cqted ’5"""' I Rl - L I R 1 Y e s Ta AT LA Y =}
Unreeo mzed comuens‘lllon cost ) 5,999 ) S 1,437
AOEC LOnEraLs vt el e gt
S, -y TP T sy Bl
- Weighted average Tentaining vesting periods s st e " © e SH2 VEArSLey. o s -3 vearsy o D =

Additional information relating to our share based plans is as follm\.s

April 25, April 26, April 27,

—2010 2109 _ 2008
Réstricted’ S:nck P wv B e 2 o
Fair value of rcslnucd stock vcsted durmg thr: year, 5. -,146 $ 512 § —
Stock OPHORSLY, 51 £ 3 vir e s oot o bt it 2 ot B ® 5
Intrinsic \.‘g_g‘, or stock ommns excrmwd e 30 141 3,423
Income tawbenem fmm ‘-mck ammns Cxeieian Gely, g B 45, :’i” S s Tl ST,

Proceeds from stock option exercises 204 . 110 4,770
We have 2,220,296 shares available for finure issuance under our cquity compensation plan as of April 25, 2010. Upon issuance of restricted shares or
exercise of stock options, shares may be issued from available treasury or common shares,

. Stock-Baved Compensation—Deferred Bonus Plan—Qur sldck}_]olders‘]-\a\'e approved the Deferred Bonns Plan which provides for the issuance of non-
vested stock 10 eligible officers and employees who agree to receive a deferred bonus in the form of nan-vested stock. The vesting of the stock is dependent
upon continued service to the Company for a period of five yearsand the fair value of the non-vested stock at the grant date is amortized ratably over the
‘vesting period. Compensation expense related 1o stock-based compensation under the Deferred Bonus Plan for fiscal years 2010, 2009, and 2008 totaled $100,
$173, and $265, respectively. We do not plan 1o award any further compensation
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" under the Defirred Bonus Plan, however, any grants that have been awarded prior to the Defetred Bonus Plan's discontinuation will be paid provided the
vesting requirements are met.

A summary of activity for fiscal 2010 under the defermed bonus plan is as tollows;

.. Weighted
Number Average
- of Crlnl Bate
" Nonvested stoek a1 April 267 2009 3 R T Fl 017
Shares jrranted . — —

(13859 ", 118.60]
Shares forfeited - {4,196) 26.05

Nonveited:stock al Aprih2s 2010 indits P 10646 TTST L 427.54)
F — ————————

‘T'he total weighted average fair value of shares vested related 1o the Deferred Honus Plan for fiscal years 2010, 2009, and 2008 was $276, $515, and
3573, respectively.

Shafes vesicd &

Stock Repurchase—Our Board of Directors has approved a stock repurchase program, as amended, allowing up 1o 6,000, 000 shares of our common stock
to be repurchased. As of April 25, 2010, we have repurchased 4 895 797 sharcs of common steck, and retired 533,800 shares of common stock under this
stack repurchasc program, No sharcs were repurchased in fiscat yedrs 2010, 2009 or 2008.

L1. Deferred Compensation Plans

2003 Deferred Compensation Plan—Qur 2005 Deferred Compensation 'Plan (the "Plan™); as aménded and restated, is an unfunded deferred
compensation arrangement for the benefit of key managemen! officers and cmployees of the Company and its subsidiaries. The terms of the Plan include the
ability of’ the participants to defer, on a pre-tax‘basis, salary, anid bonns payments'in excess of the smount permitted under IRS Code Section 401(k). The

“termis also aliow for a discretionary annuat matching contribution by the Conspany. The Plan allows for the aggregation ‘and investment of deferred amounts in
notionul investment alternatives, includiag enits representing shares of Gur common stock, The lrabahtv related to the Plan as of April 25, 2010 und April 26,
2009 was 53,069 and 52,7”6 respectively, and is mcluded in long-term other accrued liabikities in the consolidated balance sheets, Expense for our
contributions related to the Plan was $83, $104 and S85 in fiscal years 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively,

12, Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information
For the {iscal years 2010, 2009 and 2008 we made cash payments for interesi, net of capizalized interest of $71,623, $90,706, and $108,090, respectively,
We collected an‘income tax refund net of payments of $1,561 and $20,164 for fiscal years 2010 and 2009, respectively. We paid income taxes, net of refunds,

of $7.949 in fiscal 2008.

For fiscal 2009, we purchased property and equipment financed with a long term obligation of $14,384 as discussed in Note 9. Also for the fiscal vear
ended Aprl 27, 2008, we purchased land financed with a note payable for $3,096.
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ISLE OF CATPRI CASINOS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
(amounts in thousands, except share and per share amounts)
13, Income Taxes

Income tax (benefit) provision from continuing operations consists of the following (in thousands):

Fiscal Year Ended

April 15, +April 26, Apru 27,
2000 009

CUIrem: oy by 18 i2n - St e M Sege LEet rn LT "-—3_"::- W3 et B ” Fer g
Federal : S (368) $ . =3 fl‘iO 23
Stiters 7 oL B T b M i T [ §r Hg:amm B f]

(150) 30§0 (14,022
Deferred:f_ b g, o 7 o R e ¢ _;_’,_ N,
Féderal, . r, 2976)_.__ 35,309 (5.189)
State Fhge coa iy o T TR e _(5,~43) Ge. 22,7201 T (170D}

3234) " 3802 (6.396)
income 1a¥ {benehit) provision, n::?‘?;:« R “E"(S 374),‘ o4 039 S (20918

A reconciliotion of income taxes from cortinuing operdtions at the statutory corporute itdeml tax rate of 33% to the income tax (benefit) provision
reported in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations is as follows (in thousands): -

Fiscal Year Ended
April 25, April 16, April 27,

i 1010 1009 . 1008
Stattory ax (BENelin) ProvISiOn: e g dese * <7 it oS 1a(3,469) $1535,79478.5¢18,7207
Effects of :

S R T N T e OB 3 0L B TT0T)
Reduction of um‘eco;_m?.ed tax benefits — (4 7"7) . —
[Other 3o LB = o R T e T LR
Various ncrmancni differences — 5)7 l 30" 1,586
cEmplayment 2 crédiis R T 1y .?11‘7374‘35_?. % (784) i (1’333)“ (l§351)

Noncontrolling intcrest - — (1,943)
EQualified stnck. option EXPENSE {DEneTi) Ly s by :-—Eg‘.-'i'g (230) A 64aEs - St 814 ]
COrher 112 (1,098) 403

TRCOME, (X (BEneTi). PrAVISION Sty st Hat g ot $24(8,374).5. L 41,030388 (20,91 __)
& =
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JISLE OF CAPRI CASINOS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cuntinued)
(amounts in thousands, ¢xcepl share and per share amounts)
13. Income Taxes (Continued)

Significant components of our domestic net deferred income tax asset (liability) are as follows (in thousands):

Fitcal Year Fnded
April 25, Aprii 26,
20]0 _200%

T )

Deferred tax-liabiliies: 2 Al
,Ifl"gpcny and cqulpmem . (83 830) S (85,12 )
Gain‘Gi carly, c}.:m_r:mshmcnt “of debt¥..., & £ " 3 -( 416) C e (22 450)
Other- ’ (8,696) ° (8,583)

Tatabdeferied tax liabilitesk» w@mmwwum@ 16155) -

Deferred tax assets:

e T Acchucd expensess szt or o i ooty e o -‘*,;vi.‘.f:,il'll’%ﬁf) REEAS AR
A]temall\c mlmmum tax credit ‘1,696 3,610

T Employent X credits g o ¢ s i e Bt g o ke ” i £ 5,893 1 s 13 6093
Cam:al loss canymcr . ) 1.376. 1,576

oo Net oporaling Josses_gh o 7 o A Pl b FE T, 63‘533]
Other ) B 9951 17.702

Ttal deforred tax assetsL__u Ean g wr PEES@ & T N T o142,128% 2+, 117,567

Va]uauon ‘allowance on ducn‘cd tax assels (9,553) (.10.08';')

Net deferred o assel o 122 T vk 10215750 Wt 1074801

Nex deferred-tix asseﬁ(liabiliiy) S {12367) % (8,673)

At April 25, 2010, we have federal net operating Joss canyforwards of $173,521 for income t3x purposes, with expiration dates’from fiscal 2011 to 2030.
Approximately $41,882 of these net operating losses are attributable to 1C Holdings Colorado, Inc. and its whally-owned subsidiary CCSC/Blackhawk, Inc.
{"[C Holdings, Inc: & Sub”) and can only be uscd to offset income carned by thesc entitics. The remaining federal net operating losses are subject 1o
limitations untler the internal revenne code and underlying sreasury regulations, which may limit the amount eltimately utilized; however, we believe that all
foderal ne1 operating fosses will be utilized prior to expiration. [C Heldings, Inc. & Sub also has a federal capital loss carryforward of $4,146 that cxpu-e:, in
2011 for which it has estblishéd a full valudtion allowance because it does nut cxpeet w benetit from ‘the capital loss. We alsb have vurious state income tax
net operating loss carryforwards totailing $237,010 with expiration dates-from fiscal 2011 to 2030. We have determined that it is more likely than not that we
will not be able 1o utilize $160,483 of the state income 1ax net operating losses and have established valuation teserves accordingly. If or when recognized, the
‘tax benefits relating to any reversal of the valuation allowance on defemed iax asscts as of April 25, 2010 will be accounted for as a reduction of income tax
expense. We also have a federal general business credit carryforward of $15,893 for income tax purposes, which with expiration dates from fiscal 2018 to
2030. We believe that these credits will be utilized prior-to expiration. Dcferrcd income taxes related to NOL carryforwards have been classified as noncurrent
to reflect the expected utilization of the carryforwards,
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ISLE OF CAPRI CASINOGS, INC
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cantinued)
{amounts in thousands, except share and per share amounts)
13. Income Taxes (Conlinuéd)

We account for unrecognized tax benefits in accordance with ASC 740, A reconciliation of the beginning 2nd ending amounts of unrecognized tax
benefits as follows:

April 15, April 26,
2010 1009

738410482 $1721819]

Gros:: mcmases—la'; posmons n:prior, m,nnds= 2
Gross decrcases—ia\t poslt!ons in urmr pcnuda

Lapsc of statute ofllmmtaom ’ T— L (3134d)
L e A s T 126, S 9s2]

e

l:nd:ng,Bal_mmm i

.Inchuted in the balance of unreeognized tax benefits at April 25, 2010 are $3,613 of tax benefits that, if rccogmzed would affect the cifective 1ax rate,
Also included in the balance of unrecognized tx benefits a1 April 25, 2010 dre $6,704 of tax benefits thaL, if recognized, would resuft in adjustments 1o
deferred taxes,

We recognize acerued interesi and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits in income tax expense. Related to the unrecognized tax benefits noted
above, we recorded interest expense of (8722), recorded interest income of $2 266 related 10 prior periods, and setiled $1,001 of accrued interest during the
fiscal year ended 2010. We accrued no penalties during the fiscal year ended 2010, In‘total, as of April 25, 2010, we have recognized a liability of $2,826 for
interest and no amount for penalties. ‘

We believe that an increase in unrecognized tax benefits related to tederal and state exposures in the coming year, though possible, cannot be reasonably
cstimated and will not be significant. In addition, we believe that it is reasongbly possible that an amoumt between $7,700 and $12,100 of our currently
remafning unrecognized tax positions may be recognized by the end-of the fiscal-year ending:Apgil 24,201 1. These amounis relate fo positions taken on
federal and Mississippi income tax returns for the fiscal years ending April 2002 lhrough April 2008. These amounts are expected 1o be resolved during the
next twelve months as a result of the anticipated completion of Mlbbl\‘:lppl incorné tax examinations and Federal statute expirations.

We tile invornse tax returns in the U.S, federal jurisdiction and vasious state jutisdictions. During fiseal 2010, the IRS completed its examination of our
federal income tax returns for the 2006 and 2007 1ax years which relate to our fiseal 'vears ended April 29, 2007 and April 27, 2008, respectively. We recorded
a tax benetit of $168 in fiscal 2010 related 10 the examination: Thc income tax examination changes are subject to review by the U.S. Congress Joint
Committee on Taxauon We expect this review jo be complelcd prior 1o the end of fiscal 2011, The statte of limitations expires January 201 t.and January
2012, respecme]) for the tax years included in the audit. In addition, various state jurisdictions are currently examining our siai¢ income tax returns for
various subsidiaries. The tax returns for subsequent years are also subject to examination.

We file in numerous state jurisdictions with varying stawtes of limitations. Our unrecognized state tax bencﬁism related to state tax returns open from
tax years 2001 through 2010 depending on each siate’s starute of limirations.
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ISLE OF CAPRI CASINOS, INC,
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
(amounts in theusands, except share and per share amounis)
14. Hurricane and Other Insurance Recoveries
.During fiscal years 2009 and 2008, we reccived insurance recoverics related to various claims, These insurance recoveries are from claims filed
pertaining 1o our propertics in Biloxi, Mississippi, Lake Charles, Louisiana and Pompane Beach, Florida, which were struck in the fall of 2005 by Hurricanes
Katrina, Rita and Wilma, respectively. Additionally, we received insurance recovenics relating 10 tload claims at our Davenporn property during fiscal 2009
and at our Natchez property during fiscal years 2008 and 2009.

Business interruption insurance proceeds are included as revenues under Hurricane and other msurance recoveries in our consolidated statement of
operations. Other insurance proceeds, after collection of insurance receivables are included as 2 reduction of aperating expenscs under hurricane and other
insurance recoveries in our consolidated statement of operations. :

The significant component of our fiscal 2009 insurance recoveries is the final payment of our $225,000 settlement related to Hurricane Katrina which
had damaged our Biloxi, Mississippi property. As a result of this sefflement,- we received an additional $35,000 in insurance proceeds. After first applying the
proceeds 1o our remaining insurance receivable, we recognized $92,179 of pretux income including $60,000 of business interruption proceeds included in net
revenues and other insurance recoveries of $32,179 are recorded as 2 reduction of operating expenses.

15, Employee Benefit Plan

401 (k) Plan—~We have a 401 (k) plan covering substantially all of eur employees who have conipleted 90 days of service. Expense fur our coniributions
for continuing operations related to the 401(k) plan was $1,465, 51,500, and $741.in fiscal years 2010, 2009, and 2008, yespectively. Our contribution is based
on a pereentage of employee contributions and may include an additional diseretionary amount.

16. Related Party Transactions

A member of the Board of Directors has provided consulting services related to on-going contraets and transactions in the United Kingdom. The total
fees paid under this coniract were S0, 510, and $60 in fiscal years 2010, 2009, and 2008, respectively.

In fiscal 2008 we paid $78 plus expenses to a member of the Board of Directors for consulting services related to certain contracts and real estate
transactions.

Effective February 2010, we amended a lease with an entity owned by certain of our stockholders resulting a payment of S5 per month for 2 parking area
adjacent to one of our casinos, Prior to this lease amendment, we lessed on @ month 10 month basis this parking area and a warehouse for $23 per month,

In tiscal 2008, we reimbursed a private entity owned by certain of our directors for annual Jease puyments of approximately $34, for property leased by
the private entity. The land was leased a1 our request in order to secure sites for possible casino operations.

In 20035, one of our wholly owned subsidiaries, 1sle of Capri Bettendorf, L.C., entered inio a Development Agreement with the City of Bettendorf, lowa
and Green Bridge Company relating to the development of a conference/events center in Betiendorf, lowa, the expansion of the hotel at
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ISLE OF CAPRI CASINOS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
(amounts in thnusn‘nds. except shure and per share mmnounts)

L6, Related Party Transactions (Continued)

Benendorf and related facilities, including a skywalk between the hotel and conferencefevents center and a parking facility. Green Bridge Company is
indirectly owned by certain of our directors. As part of the transaction, Iske of Capri Bentendart, 1..C. purchased ceriain real estate owned by Green Rridge
Company a1 its fair market value of $393.in fiscal 2008. Isle of Capri, Bettendort, L.C. will hold Green Bridge Compary harmless from certain future
increases in assessments on adjdcem property ow ried by Green Brudge Company, L.dpped at $4,500.

17. Fiir Valoe Measurements

Interext Rate Hedge Agreemmh——Wc have entered into various:intercst rate swap agreements pertaining to the Credit Facility for an aggregate notional
value of $400,000 with maturity dates through fiscal 2014. In sddition, during the.third quarter of ﬁsea] 2010, we entered inio an interest rafe cap contract
with a norional vahie of $20,000 having a maturity date in fiscal 2012 and paid 2 premium of $105:at mccpuon We entered into these hedging agreements in
order-to'manage market risk on variable rate term Joans outst.md:ng, as well as cnmply with, in part, requiremcnts ander the Credit Facility:

As a result of the amendment to our Credit Facility.in the fourth quartcr 0f 2010, var interest rate swaps no jonger meet the criteria for hedge
effectiveness, and therefore future changes in the fir valoe of the swaps are recorded in othér inéomie (expense) in the vonsolidated statement of operations,
As of April 25, 2010, the weighted average fixed LIBOR interest rate of ouy interest rate swap agreements was'4.58%. The interest rate cap sgreement nteets
the criteria for hedge accounting for cash {low hedges and has been cvu]ualcd as ol ‘Apnl 25, 2010, as being fully effective. As a result, there is no impact on
our consolidated siatement of operations from changes in fair vahié of the-interest rate cap.

The fair valoe of derivatives included in our consolidated balance sheet and change in ourunrealized Joss are as follows:

Type of Derivative Instrument Balance Sheet Location - April 25,7010 April 26. 2009
IntéTest rate cap conTractic 3 ae b iter s, Propaid, deposils and olichay s * iy 5e85 gt 2475 g7 AR
Interest rate swap conimcts Acu-ucd mtch‘“ 6,704 2,258

'Fs‘__"; F T T e ‘-l?‘a
The change i umeahzed loss on our demal:vcs was S':‘ 139 and 39, 998 “for fiscal ye years 2010 and 2009, respectively.

The fair value of our interest swap and cap contracts are measured using Level 3‘inpms at the present vatue of all expected future cash flows based on the
L.LEBOR-based yield curve as of the date of the valuation. ‘The fair value of our interest rate swap contracts as recorded in our consolidated balance sheet is
recorded net of deferved income tax benefits of 34,704 and 38,879, for fiscal years 2000 and 2009, respectively.

The amount of the gain {loss) reclassified from mxumulalu'l other comprehensive income (loss) inte earnings and its Jocation in the consalidated
siatements of income is as follows:

Fiseal Year Ended

Income
Type of Derivative Instrument Stiatemeny Location April 25, 2010 Aprit 26, 2009 April 27, 2008
Iniiérest rate sWap ODURCES 5 - g, ot LTCTEST CRPONSCE mirel S (19; 174)° 78,5 S(10;165) 5 82  3(70)
Other upenqe ) 3912 — _—
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(amuunts in thousands, except share and per share amounts)

17. Fair Value Measurcments (Continued)

The ‘Company recorded incame of 53,541:in other expense related to the change in fair value of the inierest ratc $Waps no longer qualifying for hedge

aceounting.

The emount of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) related to'interest rate swap contracts maturing in the nexi twelve months was $5,718 as

of Aprii-25, 2010.

The amount of gain (loss) recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income (foss) is as follows:

‘Fiscal Year Ended

Typé armricatire Instromrent: _AprIL252000 ApA 2612009, ‘April 27, 2008
Titerest:fite capiconiracis L. ¥F 3 B D)i{a eogo AR T S T B
[ntcresl raie swap comracts 6935 (6,235) (8,555)

SR 6,005 | DA T R (6255) " 55 2 E(81533)
o Sumee 0907 0 5L (625005 Se o (8070

A detaii of accumuiated olhcr comprchcnsnc inceme {loss) is as folio\\ 5:

'hpeufl)er»smelnsrrumml . . April 25; 2010:. April 26, 2009

. O x ™ e, |
Tnterdan rate’ eap” "CONLraCts 2 e SR (S0)0T S 2 i ey
1nteresl rate >wap conmacts (7 877) (14 83")

Forcign, CUTTCTCY, arS LA O B ([056) 2.5 o 5.7 oo @f% e ae l133)¢,“. 350
S, (3060). S {15,191)

Financial inxtruments—The estimated carrying amounts and fair values of vur other financial instruments-are as fallows:

April 25, 1110 April 26, 2009
Carrying : Carrying
A.mnunt Fair_Yalue Ampunt Fair Value
Ry : M VP e s Ul o)
Cash and cash cquwalcn!s & 68 069 ‘68,060 S . 0B 654 5 96,654
Marketable! su:urmcs%» A, g R 92@%‘9; 2203658517548 0 B, 54~1

Resu_lmed cash’
Notes recéivablei

2,774 2774 2,774,
3000 -*3?‘000*"9@,3 000}

l'mnncnlllablhtms S e e e S,
RevOIver Mo L 8 g e 7 «"uﬁl 0076 B 70,855 58 e | 12,000 18 72 113,9007

'\é',gr?nuble mtcrt;_l;m_lgmgi - $17,256 Sﬂﬁ a1 %25, [ ﬁ>2,264
7% Seniot subordinatéd oles SR '%*‘?37;7?5_5&_1*126 Ol”? i3] ,"."SW‘!?G? 397~

Other lonﬂ-lerm debt ) o 4,858 4838 6 146 6,146
Other 1ang-tern obligations 22 485 ~?§E 7*166%%7 16688 - eil7s 3:4,,:;,,,,,,_17—3"_"}
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ISLE OF CAPRI CASINOS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
{sumounts in thousands, except share and per share amounts)

t7. Fair Yalue Measarements (Cantinuned).

The following methods and assumptions were nsed 10 estimate the fair vahie of each class of financial instruments for which it is practicable to estimate
that value:

Cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash and notes receivable are cérried at cost, which approximates fair value due to their short-term maturities.

Marketable securities dre based upon Level 1 inputs obtained from quated pricés available in active markets and represent the amounts we would
expect to receive if we sold these marketable securities.

The faif value of our long term debt or other long-term obligations i is eaumated basecl on'the- quoted market pncc of the underlying debt issne or;
when a quoted market price is not availuble, the dlscoumed cash flow of futtire, paymcms ut]llzmg current fates avaitable 10 us for, dc‘bl of similar.
ro:maamng maturities. Debt ublu,duam with a short remaining matumy are, vnlued ‘at’the Can'ymg amoum

18. Consulidating Condensed Financial Information

~Certain of our wholly owned subsidiaries have fully and unconditionally guamnteed on'a joint apd several basis, the payment of il obligatians under our
+ 7% Senior Subordinated Notes.

The following wholly owned subsidiaries of the Company are guaraators, on ajoifi’ and'several bagis, under.the 7% Senior Subordinated Notes: Black
Hawk Huldlngs L.L.C.: Casino America of Colorado, lnc:; CCSC/Blackhawk, Tnc:rGrasd Pa]als Riverboat, lnc. [C Holdings Colorado, lnr. IOC Black:
Hawk Distribution Company, L.L.C.: I0C:Booaville, Inc.; IOC-Caruthérsviller LHL.C.: 1OC Kdnsis City; Inc; [OC-Lula, Ine.; IOC-Natehez, Inc.; [QC-Black
Hawk County, tnc.; 10C-Davenport, Inc.; 10C Holdings, L.L.C.: IOC Serwces elr: of Capn Bahamas Ho!dm as, Inic.; Isle of Capri BeuendorfMarma
"Coiparatian.; lste of Capfi Bettendorf, L. C: Lile of Capri Black lawk Capltal Corp. Ic)of(,aprl Black Hawk Ce.clsle ofCapn \rlarqueue Inc.:

£.P4, Inc.; Riverboat Corporation of Mississippi; Riverboat Services, Inc:t - and S1. Chailes Gammg Company, Inc. I.ach of the subsidiaries’ guarantees is joint

and several with the guaraniees of the other subsidiaries.
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ISLE OF CAPRI CASINOS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
{amounls in theusands, except share and per share amounts)
18. Consolidating Condensed Financial loformation (Continued)

Consolidating condensed balanee sheets as of April 25,2010 and April 26,2009 are as follows (in thousands):

As ol April 25 2010,

Isle of Capri - . Cunsulidating
Casinas, Inc.” . Non- and tsle of Capri
(Parent Guarantor  Guaraator Fllmln:ung Casinos, loc.

Balsnce Sheet {Ibligor)  Subsidiaries Guhsndnrm ‘Entries’  Consolidated
Current as§ets e o i nr 15 3583518,05717976 18543719352 (11100)S::149 004}
lmcrcompany reccivables 990,557 (185,612) (54; l'.".’) (750,768) . —
Tnvestments, it SUbSIAIATIesE, oo g o 8.-300,3695° (6331 10)‘;‘9«_@%_3(377 259) %
Properiy and ¢ and equ1pmem net 1579 1 059 147 . .32,216 — f 098 94’
Oiherassets e T T ST 097 409,106, ~ 1 151 50,5« (31 3)4) 435 ,993]

Tota) assets : $1,481,432 51,291,507 ° S 32382 $(l 130 4‘11)51 674,840

DA b S R g TE R
6,55148 80,8 _1.1;;3079013“ -,ulooys iS5

Intercompaiiy payables — 750,768 = (50768) —
Long-term de i debt, 1858 ouemts SR e ?ﬁh L ey T
Lm'\mmlc: s e el GBLIRTE3NL AT605

i)

-—vm.l ,|9...ij—5

Other accriicd liabilities, 7000 116815 12 869 (31 354y 85331
Stockhalders cquig B e L T 80,210, - 390 380 L0031 (337 359) < 1940.219)
Total habilities and stockholders' . ,
equit_y 51,481,432 81,261,507 § 32,382 $(1,130,481)81,674,840
As of April 26, 2009

tsle of Caprl Consolidating”
Casings, lne. MNon- “and! 153c of Capri
{Parent  Guarantor Guarapor  Fliminating Casines, lac.
!iahnfeShecl Obligor)  Subsidiaries Subsidiarics  Entries Consolldated
CiTrént asseis ) 24 5% o % S*" 138,145.55395, HTTLSIA5TT2 S (2 93)$ 17T, 3931

[mcrcornpan} receivables 1,145,395, ("57 297] {97 536) {790 362)

[nvestmients:in subs:dmnez._;,_.._‘_333 12 @(‘18 041)'?“_"?” (”74*97!]@*} 55 = =
Pmpﬁl’l} and equmment net 10, l'\ﬂ 1 134,553 32,8"9 — .1, lTJ‘ 540
Otfierassots g o oo T o e :.e,;,“"?% ST 0D e 00T a8ty 377 570
Total assets SE,58051551 .33(] 199 % (lU G1H)S(1,117, l33)$l 32,667

T R e R e R
Current liabilinies 2 268 2% 58 51 40440, 5579757648 % :32»77" S '(7"9.))$"'1167 993

lntcrcompanv pawbles — 790 362 — (790 562) —

1.ong-ierio debi: ess Lurent” - R ENEEA s T " S
[_,mnmnues‘.__,_ et %',386 326; F«‘B 995___&*?_’_86 _;{i RARE l"’9i‘,38-3
Qther accrued liabilities 25,123 106,976 12,070 (49 3 10) 04,859

e

Stotkhiolders! equity. 520 1 i3 5-3’-'_3@.26}.-5513__!:0.9.0;’;35{5§$l‘,12)' (274,97 1) 228, 4:}’
Total lzabilities and stockholders' .
cquity $1,580,515 51,330,199 §(10,914)$(1,117,138)§1,782,662
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ISLE OF CAPRI‘CAS[NOS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED l-'lN:\x'\'ClAl._S'l‘A'I'[‘Z-.\lE'._\'TS (Continued)
{amounts in thousands, except share and per share amounts)
18. Consolidating Condensed Financial lnfor;nnﬁon (Continued)

Consolidating condensed statements of operations for the fiscal years ended April 25, 2010, April 26, 2009 and April 27, 2008 are as follows:

For the Fiscal Year Ended Aprif 25, 2010

Isle of Cnpri . Consolidating
Casinos, In¢. ,Non- and Lsie of Capri
(Parent Guarantor  Guarantor Fllmlnulmg Casinos. lne.,

Qlulemcmofﬂgrllions Obllgnr! Fﬂubsidiarie" Sulmdmﬂes _Entries d.Cnn-mIldn(zd
Revenues: & L T e v fle ey AL E LT T 3
-Casing_ M - SI 1] 1,336 $ i s —. 51,013,386
Piri-mumel; rogms} food be»cragc s - N L T
f_and oxhcr e t‘?.?t%;. . ,-320 Wl 59‘)'“; %9 6543,\. 1(9 372) . 178,001
Gross revénues _ 3?0 1189985 9 6_;:!' {9 577) 1,i91,387
Léss promotional allowancess v ¥z, ‘. imr -“»(191 S5 1) et e - (191.551)-
Ncl névci-jués 1,320 998 434 9,634 999 836
; Y e e e Y P e e s e S

ODcralmgchcn:u. : A TR o i o
Casino —_.. 153,838 — — I53,838
Gamingiaxes, o o g 1= o o0 T T I opabg) e Ty b T -"62,341
Pari-mutuel, rooms, food, bc»cm;_,c T

and other 45479 370,311 1,979 {9,572) __ 410,197
Managemcnt fee cxpc.nse (rcvl_nuc)}rr,__,("G 1971 \26*1 97;§ ﬁ;_mz e '5 e -1‘3
Dcprcc:atmn and amortization 4115 104,779 610 — 109,504
Total Operating CXPENses 2, i, 723,397 _. 917,366, ~ 4.5897,% _(9,572)__ 935,780}
gncmung income (loss) (22077) 81068 . 5065 — 64,036
Inteiest cxpense et e, a4 o e (1080 7), % (62,545),_1#‘:%{ 9)*’.""'

e Ve
“473,601)

Gd:n on e!mngu:shmcm of debt — —
Other._Bor s lar wogiaae, o °§'§«=*=(310):;T Fa gy
Equity in'income {loss) of
subsidiaries 14,671 (“,"68)

.F‘ ﬂﬂ%\;x ﬁ.,

Income (1083) from commumg e 3 b
~and noncontolling Interest ;. z - 8 5(1 603)

'@s‘opcrauons béfore'income. nxcs

4
?HGhy {l l"403) i (9 91::)

Income tax (pm\.:smn) henefit 17,062 [6 7 19) (1,969) — 8374
[ncome (]ms) from'c commummg Vg LN _"‘.é Th sy Y hdelh " SR
Lrouer.mons e TES T ‘-'nﬁll 541),_,__‘4.;:8 536 WZ;SGT.____,(I ij403)_3_{ 153410
{ncomc (loss) of discontinued .

operations {1,732) (i,167)  (2;300) 3,467 (1;732)
Net'inconge (1088) 7 2. 2, 8085 (3,273)58.... 7369, S .56 763$47(7.936)5 . +(3:2 73i
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ISLE OF CAPRI CASINGS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
(amounfs in thousands, except share and per share amounts)

18. Consolidating Condensed Financiai Information {Continued)

For the Fiscat Yiur Ended April 26, 2009

tsle of Capri Couasolidating
Casines, loc, Nen-, and . -lsle of Capri.
(Parent Guarantor Guarantor. Eliminating Cuums, Inc.
Statement af Operstions {blipnr)  Subsidiaries . Sabsidiaries ~ Entries’ Clnmlldaled
REVEh06S T b i B rs e, Pl eV L BRI o

Casino. ... § h31055'94 S
Pari mutuc!.?momsﬂfood., bevera c-“‘”f 2 A oy
E’,’:f_and olher S BT g TR x*r*'*aﬁ’isr%gzu 47{989%%;

Gross rcvenues _ e 368 A 30.) 183 _-9_,514 ”ﬁgzﬂ'i} 1*303 638

Less: promouonal Mowsacos Lt i B (195 603) p s e (195,503)
Nét reyenues . L 368 l,l07,530 9;51{. . {9 427) 1, 108 (]33

Casino — _istelg 131510
R BT o T e S R e P o R 360,935
Pari-mutuel, rooms, fuod be\'emgc .

and other. « 47,098 382,196 9,658 gg 4"?) 429 525
M"ﬂ}aszemem 'feclexpenst. (rcvcnuc]:. (30,681 )1:’_‘“30 68 lik’ﬁu&uw’b : A A e
Deprécidtion and amortization - o 4832 116983 05, — 122,44()
Tatal’ opcralmg Expenses gwi‘ﬁ e 160, 9:.1«%98%410 263M(9 42T 49731503
Operatlng ncome tloss) (20,901} 156182 — 134, 53_
Triwerest expense el B o 3;&;__"’@“"(19 716 1(69—763)‘“&%(4!")?_@&&&(89 933)
Gain on ﬂtmgulshmcm of debt 37,693 523 sty - s .,7 693

Equ:ly in} mcame (lm,s) of Fopds S FI Z un.
Ehsubsidiariesy st & n éf- ﬁ,, 530 133 (IS 33
Income (loss) from continuing

operations before income taxes
and nencontrolting interest 70,149 70, 880 (1, lél) (3? 596) 10",27"

[ i e e e A2 ety i st
Income tax {prm 1s!on) ) BeRerits 4 =4(8, 916)@,‘(3 ,L’.v'S)h %l 052 :?”" s k(¢ I 039)

Income (k)ss) fiom continuining
__operations 61,233 32,705 (109) (37, 396)

Ak T

THCOmE (1055 ) from distontinued 4‘%“%” SR o,\m S “ﬁ -@
Loperatonsnet ot % g~ La s (17,058) 0 (20381 91 e A T3 R (17,658
Net income tloss) S 43,575% 33,667 $439;723) %  4,056'% 43‘,575,

76




Table of Contents

ISLE OF CAPRI CASINOS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
{(amounts in thouwsands, except share and per share amounfs)

18. Conselidating Condensed Financial lnformation (Conlinued)

Far the Fiscal Year Ended April-27; 2008!

Lsle of Capri- :Cansolidating
‘Casinos, Lo¢: Non-_ ‘and  Lste of Caprl

AParest.  Guarantor [Guaranter: _l'.hmmatmg "Casings, Ine..
ﬂbh_gur_) suhtldlanes Sutssidiaries Entries -'Cnnwhdaled

-%e R

Stnlemmt of pcralmns

Gmss revenues
B R AR R TR T
Ecssipromotionai.allowancess,

Ncl TEVEnRUES

;
Opemuug expcnses

Labmo - .

deuu, (B I e A ; :

Pari-mutuel, rooms, food, beverage ) . :
“and othér 55475 407,752 r10.625 _fi3,015) 460 83?

Manapémest-fee: expense, (rcw:nuc) o ("9 600),;3&79 600 Y iy X

Depreciation and amortization 5080 123264 .58 - — ‘ 178 935
:Tﬁfél’(?pcmling expetises; G A0.964% B.99T0T68 5 5 T 207842003 015),;1{026 2324

Operatmgmcome(ioss) . (30,603) 93710 2046 _ —- 65 151

Interost o expense! net o > &1(32,900)§ 70%716);
(13, 660)

Gain on exun;zmshmem of debt

= gE Ty e

bl : (13.808) 5 £ 25}
lncome (loss) fmm continuing

aperations before income taxcs

and including noncontrolling
Jﬁgggga . _ (60, 596) ‘18:619 2,007 :(13.808) (33 .688)
IRComme tax (Provision) bene (£ s o as 21,826 il 806“"-(14“7'14)‘EE R E20,018]
Income (loss) from continving

operaiions including

-noncontrolling i intercst 770) 26,425, _ {12.617) (13 808] 32.770)

Income | (]oss) i dlscommueé - %Ej«g’ ’% ek o vpf}‘. 3
f<f Gperations; net of, mxm(s9z36) R (62TYE(E 0~779)~ EIA: 4062:57(59,236)
Met income (loss) mcludmg

nancontrolling interest ~ {92,006} "5 798, (l23 396) 97 398, (9 006)
% *Z'Net anomr: attnﬁi?ab!c tor e, %"ﬁf" R %

_,_&,’-S.,j,u_ﬁ: nﬁncomrolluu, hnterest ﬂ,ﬁ("i 868) g}( 4 868}?: : 4

Net income {loss) altribulable to B '
common stockholders - $ {96,874)8  20,930,5(123, 3‘36) $ 1024665 (96,874)
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ISLE OF CAPRI CASINOS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (C.untinucr.l)
(amounts in thousands; except share and prer share nlll:;nnlé)
18. Consolidating Condensed Financial Informativn {Continued)

Consolidating condensed statements of cash flows for the fiscal years ended April 25, 2010, April 36, 2009 and April 27, 2008 arc as follows:

For thé Fiscal Year. Ended April 2‘* 2010

Isle of Capri

e ;
“tste of Capri

Casinos, Inc. Non- .
(Parent  Guarantor Guaranlor. l'.hmmnlmg -Casinos, ine.

Statemenlt af Cash Flons ()hhgor) Subsidiaries Subsidiaries; Fnlrlu (‘n'nmlidaled
-Neveash; provldcd by (uscd i), operanng TR .,,-mw R W r

ACUVILIGS e, o Er Lo @(9 849)53120, 337}?5'5,?‘?(‘3%1 ()ﬁ]"s_ﬂ_,% Sy g
Net cash prowded by (uscd in} investing ) .

activities 1!0 144 - (30 321y . 7230 L (14]1535)  (30,990)
Net'cash it pmwded by (u*:ed m) ﬁnzmung, e %ﬁ?‘:ﬁmm =)
\Eactivings e, i 5 v%";@ ‘c'mo sesm(nﬁmn‘%nsns} ST

Effect of foreign cumency exchange rates on
cash-and cash equw;zlcnts — —

l‘\ci ‘Increase, (decrew <h 1ng§ash 'ﬂ'@; g

S T L S e AN

Cash and cash cquivalents a? beginning of

(19) :

éw oy

L2 ,270)*@ (21 mv)' v

the periad. 73,77(’ 6R6RI 19:197:
Cash and’ Lﬂ'\h equw.’:lcmq atend ot th A SRRy gy T
DAneTiol ¥t B "L‘vﬁ** ¢ 4%$§l4569ﬁ3m

For the Fiscal.Year Ended ‘April 26, 2009

Isle of Capri Consolidating
Casinos, Ine. Non- and .Isle of Caprl
(Parent Guarantir Guaranior l:,llmmalmg _Casinos, Inc.
Statement of Cash Flows ()i)llgor! Subsidiaries Suhudurm Fnlrws Consulidated
Nétcashprovided by'( e 1n) upcratmgng\-a = "WWWW&&&”?‘ AR, o Rk 5 S Tad
S acrivitieSid L g TR TN e 0 50ts 00, eviﬂ?m 200 i wi%_;s,wﬁ 6103
Net cish pmvrded by (nscd m) investing
activities - 133,049 {26 177)

"‘"*'-‘( L_—'. ° K u

Eﬁ'ec[ of forel;,n (.urreru_‘} exchanee rales onR
cash and cash eqmvalems — '{(96)

N—
and cashs ;

Net mcrca:c (dv.crease} ifcashan h 3 A 3% e 6 5
TR Rt R R it Sk A N -.3,41 ‘l 7933&: h‘.‘ 5“ S
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of

the period 3362 67388 19040 — 91,790

Cqsh and’ (.ash equ:vaILms nic ot et oflhce: I "gﬂ SR 2y, S FR R e o g u
B petiod et n T T e $~;s,77r§s'2§53 63 1S 0197 35 L E".‘_‘fﬁ‘s 586,654
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ISLE OF CAPRI CASINOS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
{amounts in thousands, except sharc and per share amounts)

18. Consolidating Condenséd Financial Information (Continued)

For the Fiscal ¥ear Ended April 27, 2008
Isie af Capri (‘nnsohdalmg
Casinos, lne.. Noo- . ‘and; ‘Isle of Capri
¢Parent Guoraolor  Guaranior Flumnnung Casinas, Ine.
- Qblipar]. . .Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Fnines Consohdaled
pravide d‘t\y (used m) opcmunggg” % TR R -%-
e %‘§$P(30'ﬁ27)$,213 017 ‘(7903??5.. % ;

Net cash ,mwded by (used’ m) mvcslmg

activities (310379) (272,573 306,2!5 (3“00 446)
Netcas prav:ded by (’used m) tmaﬂcmg,g&gg‘ﬁm_ﬁ% v '1”{{ 4 e 2
Elactivities 2048 BRI A AT 928 5 1aRe 3062 m

Effet,t of forgign guirency cxchangc rales o,
;cash_and Cash equwalems
nerease, (dﬁ) i cashand CEhE i e
Qgcquwalcnts o IR e A N
Cash and cash equivaleiits at beguunng of
“the period 82,894 85,152 20,068,

Caﬁh and’ cash equn alentﬁ at cnd ot thegf

A S
SdReriod: 8. . ﬁéﬁﬂﬁ"jsfgg{.’%% S§ -19,040 S
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ISLE OF CAPRI CASINOS, INC,
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEM ENTS (Cunti.nued)
(nounts In thonsands, except share and per share ;mmunls)
19. Selected Quarterly Financial Information (unaudited)

Our selected quarnterly financial information hasincluded reclassifications for amouats show in our previously filed reports on Forms 10-Q to reflect the
discontinucd operations presentation for our Freeport, Grand Bahama and UK casino propertics.

' Fiscal Quarters Ended
July 26, Octaber 25, January 24, April 25,

24109 2009 2010 2010
Net Tovenhess, . e ? ¥ . . ___ugﬁﬁ h57 914.$5.1246,05518, F227,071{$5 268, 1796)
Operating income i 19,539 13,822 "A 2676 . . 27,619
Income (loss) from conunmm_onerauons B Sl s o n e 1,083 90 2373 (11 400)_‘_,6 ET]
Income (loss) from discontinved operations, nei ofmcnmc taxes 150) (#11)y 775 {1,546)
Nt imcorme (o) % e o o G0 £~ 1562 % (10,025) avst 48851

Eammgs ﬂuss) per common share basn:

2 Incore (1oss) ffom CONNTNg opemtions AT AR XY _§1 5007 S_____JO 35)5_-._. "U.‘
[ncome (loss) from discontinued op«_:_ran_ons et of ingome
1axes ) — {0.02) 042 (0 05)
e 7 Ret income (108S) . tai L~ F i o USRS 03,87 £20.05:8 S (0335 0. .15]
m =—_
Earnings (loss) per comman share diluted: Income (Ioss) from , .
continuing operations. _ S 001§ 0078 . (D355 0.20
15T R heomic | ﬂose) frum d;cconnnncd opcratmns net: uf‘mwmw@.‘m T ol T :n‘»“""‘ ST R % R
SV 11 D P2 SRRCIT o I e WATOY ) ol G L P ()

Net income (los s)

0058  (033)%  0.15

- '-'.!i';‘ '.r'{ v .’f" E
Welghud Average b;SICi!!n—hdﬂ!u : : ; 5 2 438 809 32 445 3?8J
Weighted average dilutive sha.res 31 885 101 32,31 1 46" 32,438 809 32,515,829




